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HB 1642-FN - AS INTRODUCED

2008 SESSION

08-2892
04/09
HOUSE BILL 1642-FN
AN ACT relative to funding for charter schools authorized by the state board of education.

SPONSORS: Rep. C. Clarke, Merr 6; Rep. Weyler, Rock 8; Rep. Price, Hills 26; Rep. McRae,
Hills 7; Rep. B. Shaw, Hills 16; Sen. Kenney, Dist 3; Sen. Bragdon, Dist 11

COMMITTEE: Education

ANALYSIS

This bill provides that charter schools approved by the state board of education shall receive the
same amount of funding as charter schools approved by a school district.

Explanation: Matter added to current law appears in bold italics.
Matter removed from current law appears [in-brackets-and-struckthroughi
Matter which is either (a) all new or (b) repealed and reenacted appears in regular type.
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HB 1642-FN - FISCAL NOTE
AN ACT relative to funding for charter schools authorized by the state board of education.

FISCAL IMPACT:
Due to time constraints, the Office of Legislative Budget Assistant is unable to provide a fiscal

note for this bill at this time. When completed, the fiscal note will be forwarded to the House
Clerk's Office.
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18Mar2008... 1030h

2008 SESSION
08-2892
04/09
HOUSE BILL 1642-FN
ANACT providing additional funding for charter schools for the 2009 fiscal year.
SPONSORS: Rep. C. Clarke, Merr 6; Rep. Weyler, Rock 8; Rep. Price, Hills 26; Rep. McRae,

Hills 7; Rep. B. Shaw, Hills 16; Sen. Kenney, Dist 3; Sen. Bragdon, Dist 11

COMMITTEE: Education

AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill provides funding for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009 for all charter schools in
operation as of July 1, 2008.

Explanation: Matter added to current law appears in bold italics.

Matter removed from current law appears [in-brackets-and-struclkthroush:]

Matter which is either (a) all new or (b) repealed and reenacted appears in regular type.



w0 = G Tt R W N

BN OMNM O ON N N DN DN DN R R e bl et e b b b e e
[T e B R = O Y - R - -~ Y = T v = T (R =~ S &L R~ S v B o B =

HB 1642-FN - AS AMENDED BY THE HOUSE
05Mar2008... 0672h
18Mar2008... 1030h

08-2892
04/09
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
In the Year of Our Lord Two Thousand Eight
AN ACT providing additional funding for charter schools for the 2009 fiscal year.

Be it Enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Court convened:

1 Charter School Appropriations for the Biennium Ending June 30, 2009. Amend 2007, 263:92
to read as follows:
263:92 Charter School Appropriations for the Biennium Ending June 30, 2009.

I. Notwithstanding the appropriations made in PAU 06, 03, 03, 01, 27, class 97, and any
related footnotes, the total amount of charter school supplemental grants appropriated in PAU 06,
03, 03, 01, 27, class 97 for the biennium ending June 30, 2009 shall be available to the department of
education for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008, for disbursement to the Cocheco Arts and
Technology Academy, the Franklin Career Academy, and the Seaccast Charter School. Any
supplemental grant funds which are unexpended at the end of the 2008 fiscal year shall not lapse
and shall be available for disbursement in the 2009 fiscal year to all charter schools listed in
paragraph II1.

II., In addition to the provisions of paragraph I, and in addition to any funds
distributed to charter schools pursuant to RSA 198:42, IV, the state treasurer shall
distribute to the commissioner of the department of education, from the education trust
fund established in RSA 198:39, the sum of $1,500,000 for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2008 for disbursement to all charter schools in operation as of the beginning of the 2008-
2009 school year. The amount shall be calculated on a per pupil basis, as set forth in
paragraph III, based on charter school pupil enroliment, and shall be distributed
pursuant to RSA 194-B:11, I(c).

IIl. The funds distributed to the commissioner of the department of education shall
be allocated in the following manner:

(a) The Academy for Science and Design Charter School, Cocheco Arts and
Technology Charter Academy, Franklin Career Charter Academy, New Hampshire
Equestrian Academy Charter School, Seacoast Charter School, Strong Foundations
Charter School and Surry Village Charter School shall each receive $2,700 per pupil;

{(b) CSI Charter School, Great Bay e-Learning Charter School, Ledyard Charter
Academy, and North Country Charter Academy shall each receive $500 per pupil; and

{c) The Virtual Learning Academy Charter School shall receive $§250 for each

full-time equivalent pupil.



HB 1642-FN - AS AMENDED BY THE HOUSE
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2 Moratorium on Charter School Authorization. Amend 2007, 263:93 to read as follows:

263:93 Applicability. No new charter schools shall be approved by the state board of education
under the provisions of RSA 194-B:3-a between July 1, 2007 and June 30, [2009] 2010, provided that
a charter school application filed prior to July 1, 2007 which is scheduled to be acted upon by the
state board of education on or before October 1, 2007 shall be exempt from this prohibition. Nothing
in this section shall affect the validity of a charter school approved by the state board of education
under RSA 194-B:3-a prior to July 1, 2007.

3 Effective Date. This act shall take effect July 1, 2008.
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HB 1642 FISCAL NOTE
AN ACT providing additional funding for charter schools for the 2009 fiscal year.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The Department of Education states this bill, as amended by the House (Amendment
#2008-0672h), will increase state education trust fund expenditures by $1,500,000 in FY 2009.
There will be no fiscal impact on state, county, and local revenue or county and local

expenditures.

This bill appropriates $1,500,000 in FY 2009 from the education trust fund to the department of

education for the purpose providing supplemental charter school grants.

METHODOLOGY:
The Department of Education states this bill provides supplemental grants to charter schools in
FY 2009 based on enrollment as of July 1, 2008. The bill specifies the per pupil amount payable
to each school, which can be $250, $500, or $2,700. The Department assumes July 1, 2008
charter school enrollment will be 10% greater than the most recently reported enrcllment for all
schools except for Ledyard Charter School, which is not operational during the 2007-2008
school year, and the Virtual Learning Academy Charter School, for which enrollment is

estimated to increase 400% over current enrollment.

The Department calculated estimated supplemental grants for each charter school as follows,
by multiplying the projected enrollment by the applicable per pupil amount. The Department
assumed Ledyard Charter School, which is not mentioned in this bill, will be eligible for a $500

per pupil grant.

Current Projected Per Pupil Estimated
Charter School Enrollment Enrollment  Amount School Grant
Franklin Career Academy 30 33 $2,700 $89,100
North Country Charter Acad. 51 56 $500 $28,000
Seacoast Charter School 50 55 $2,700 $148,500
Cocheco Arts & Technology 67 74 $2,700 $199,800

NH Equestrian Academy 20 22 $2,700 $69,400



HB 1642-FN - AS AMENDED BY THE HOUSE

Surry Village

Great Bay eLearning

Strong Foundations

C8I Charter School

Academy of Science & Design
Virtual Learning Academy
Ledyard Charter School
TOTAL

44
100
55
26
32
100

575
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48
110
61
29

35
500
30
1,053

82,700
$500
$2,700
$500
$2,700
$250
8500
N/A

$129,600
$55,000
$164,700
$14,500
$94,500
$125,000
$15,000
$1,123,100
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2008 SESSION
08-2892
04/09
HOUSE BILL 1642-FN
AN ACT providing additional funding for charter schools for the 2009 fiscal year.
SPONSORS: Rep. C. Clarke, Merr 6; Rep. Weyler, Rock 8; Rep. Price, Hills 26; Rep. McRae,

Hills 7; Rep. B. Shaw, Hills 16; Sen. Kenney, Dist 3; Sen. Bragdon, Dist 11

COMMITTEE: Education

AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill provides additional funding for certain charter schools for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2009.

Explanation: Matter added to current law appears in bold italics.

Matter removed from current law appears [m—bf&eketa-aﬂd—s&uekthfough—]

Matter which is either {a) all new or (b) repealed and reenacted appears in regular type.
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05Mar2008... 0672h
18Mar2008... 103Ch
05/15/08 1852s
04Jun2008... 2098cofc

08-2892
04/09
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
In the Year of Our Lord Two Thousand Eight
AN ACT providing additional funding for charter schools for the 2009 fiscal year.

Be it Enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Court convened:

1 Charter School Funding; Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2009.

1. In addition to any funds distributed to charter schools pursuant to RSA 198:42, IV and
2007, 263:92 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009, the Academy for Science and Design Charter
School, Cocheco Arts and Technology Charter Academy, New Hampshire Equestrian Academy
Charter School, Seacoast Charter School, Strong Foundations Charter School, and Surry Village

Charter School shall each receive a grant of $1,168 per pupil.

11. Prior to July 1, 2008, the commissioner of the department of education shall inform the
state treasurer of the amount needed to comply with the provisions of paragraph I, and the state
treasurer shall provide a sum not to exceed $503,408 from the education trust fund established in
RSA 198:39 to the commissioner who shall distribute such funds pursuant to RSA 194-B:11, I{c).

The amount distributed shall be calculated on a per pupil basis based on charter school pupil

enrollment.
2 Effective Date. This act shall take effect July 1, 2008.
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HB 1642-FN - FISCAL NOTE
AN ACT providing additional funding for charter schools for the 2009 fiscal year.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The Department of Education states this bill, as amended by the Senate (Amendment
#2008-18525), will increase state education trust fund expenditures by $435 in FY 2009. There

will be no fiscal impact on state, county, and local revenue or county and local expenditures.

METHODOLOGY:
The Department of Education states this bill provides $1 per pupil supplemental grants to
certain charter schools in FY 2009. The Department assumes FY 2009 charter school
enrollment will be 10% greater than the most recently reported enrollment for Cocheco Arts
and Technology Charter Academy, Franklin Career Charter Academy, NH Equestrian
Academy, and Surry Village Charter School. The Department expects the enrollment increase
at Seacoast Charter School to be greater than 10% since it will be adding more grades for FY
2009. The Department expects the enrollment increase at the Academy of Science and Design
and Strong Foundations Charter School to be greater than 10% because FY 2009 will be their

second year of operation.

The Department calculated estimated supplemental grants for each charter school as follows,

by multiplying the projected enrollment by the per pupil amount:

Current Projected i Per Pupil Estimated
Charter School Enroliment  Enrollment  Amount School Grant
Franklin Career Academy 34 38 $1 $38
Seacoast Charter School 50 106 81 $1086
Cocheco Arts & Technology 67 74 ' $1 $74
NH Equestrian Academy 20 22 $1 $22
Surry Village 50 55 $1 $55
Strong Foundations 53 85 $1 $85
Academy of Science & Design 32 55 $1 658

TOTAL 306 435 $1 $435




Amendments



Sen. Estabrook, Dist. 21
April 21, 2008
2008-1440s

G4/05

Amendment to HB 1642-FN

Amend the bill by replacing section 2 with the following:

2 Charter School Authorization by State Board of Education Prohibited. Amend 2007, 263:93 to

read as follows:
263:93 Applicability. No new charter schools shall be approved by the state board of education
under the provisions of RSA 194-B:3-a [be%weeﬂ—July—l—QvOOJ—-aﬁd—Juﬂ&S{}—zogs—pfewéedv&h%—&

ibition]. Nothing in
this section shall affect the validity of a charter school approved by the state board of education
under RSA 194-B:3-a prior to July 1, 2007.
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Education Committee

Hearing Report
TO: Members of the Senate
FROM: William Craig, Legislative Aide
RE: Hearing report on HB 1642 — FN - AN ACT providing additional funding
Jor charter schools for the 2009 fiscal year.
HEARING DATE: April 15, 2008
MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE PRESENT: Senators Estabrook,

Fuller Clark, Foster, Letourneau, Kelly and Bragdon
MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE ABSENT: None

Sponsor(s): Rep. C. Clarke, Merr 6; Rep. Weyler, Rock 8; Rep. Price, Hills 26; Rep.
McRae, Hills 7; Rep. B. Shaw, Hills 16; Sen. Kenney, Dist 3; Sen. Bragdon, Dist 11

What the bill does: This bill provides funding for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009
for all charter schools in operation as of July 1, 2008.

Who supports the bill: Rep. Casey, Rock 11; Rep. Weyler, Rock 8; Senator
Kenney, District 3; John E. Davis, Surry, NH: Jennifer Starr; Academy of Science &
Design; Chadd Loring, Academy of Science & Design; Bobby Grossop, ASDNH;
Rhonda Loring, ASD; Nathan Tong, Cocheco; Sheri Phillips; Denise Perron, Strong
Foundations; Deb Bryne, Cocheco Arts & Technology Charter Academy; Beth Bougie,
Cocheco; Michael Allard, Cocheco; Zachary Amault, Cocheco; Druinn Johnston,
Cocheco; Megan Williams, Cocheco; Katie Fitzpatrick; Cocheco; Amelia Wright,
Cocheco; Eileen Liponis, NH Public Charter School Association; Susan Hollis,
“Speaking for two schools™;

Who opposes the bill: No one.
Other testimony:  Roberta Tenney, DOE
Summary of Testimony Received:

Rep. Weyler, Rock 8
e Rep. Weyler submitted written testimony for the record.

e Charter schools are public schools and deserve to benefit from the same funding
structure.



At this point the federal government has spent nearly five million on our charter
schools while the state has spent only four million.

The charter school initiative was encouraged by the federal government after
seeing the success is several other states.

These laboratories of education have enriched our overall education offerings.
We must make a special effort to preserve and encourage these innovations.

We must show good faith in our schools.

Charter schools produce excellent results.

Less than two percent of our students are involved in charter schools

Many had given up on learning until they found charter schools.

it would be cruel to take these schools away from these children.

“The key to the obligation for the spending support is the resident of the student,
not the location of the school.”

Rep. Weyler presented to the committee an amendment which the House Finance
Committee rejected 12 — 12.

The amendment would spend $1.5 million from the Education Trust Fund to
support charter schools.

Senator Estabrook stated that because the $1.5 million would not be required
under the definition of adequacy the potential would exist for a $1.5 million dollar
hit to the general fund.

Senator Foster expressed his concerns about spending an additional $1.5 million
to re-open the budget for a supplemental request considering that the Governor
has already proposed significant budget cuts.

In response to Rep. Weyler’s claim that his amendment would only re-shuffle and
not create a new funding sources, Senator Estabrook remarked that sending 80%
of the $10,000 the state is required to spend would mean that $8,000 are sent per
student to the charter schools. Sen. Estabrook stated there would be no grant to
student or school that reaches $8,000 (as she currently understands the proposed
adequacy funding). The max in the proposal is $6,900 which clearly means that
Rep. Weyler is asking the state for additional funds.

Rep. Weyler stated that state money should follow a student to a charter school
just as it would if that child required a special education placement.

In response to a question from Senator Letourneau, Rep. Weyler stated that if this
bill does not pass some of our best laboratories of education will be out of
business.

Rep. Kim Casey, Rock 11 & Chair of the Charter School Oversight Committee

s Rep. Casey is involved in charter schools as a parent, legislator and member
of the Board of the Virtual Learning Academy Center.

e She submitted written testimony for the record and decided to answer some
questions raised during the testimony of Rep. Weyler.

e Rep. Casey stated that charter schools are heavily involved in fundraising and
writing grant requests, which she does not believe public schools should have
to do. '



o She and others have discovered that because charter schools receive so
little support from the state that grantors are hesitant to award grants.

* She reminded committee members that this legislation is necessary until the
state determines through SB 539 how it intends to permanently fund charter
schools.

+ Inresponse to a question from Senator Letourneau, Rep. Casey stated that it is
helpful to think of charter schools the same way one thinks of a specialty
hospital. Most schools (like most hospitals) can appropriately address the
needs of the average person but some kids just require a different kind of
education.

¢ Senator Estabrook acknowledge the good work of NH’s charter schools and
then asked Rep. Casey to help her understand how she could support a new
1.5 million dollar appropriation from a budget which is expected to cut by 150
million dollars. Rep. Casey acknowledged that it is a difficult decision but that
New Hampshire needs a charter school funding solution.

Roberta Tenney, DOE

Ms. Tenney stated that state funding for charter schools has long been inadequate.
Moreover, the philanthropic funding desire for these schools has not borne out as
hoped.

The DOE does and will continue to support NH’s charter schools and the 500 kids
who now attend them.

Charter schools break the culture of public schools and address the specific needs
of individual students.

Charter schools operate project based learning models at mission specific schools.
These things exist in other public schools but the culture is different in charter
schools.

In response to a question from Senator Kelly, Ms. Tenney stated that charter
schools are available to children across the state.

Senator Kelly asked if it is possible to bring the innovation which so many people
support from charter schools into our public schools. Ms. Tenney stated that much
of this good work does occur in public schools but that charter schools simply do
a better job promoting their efforts.

Ms. Tenney was unsure in response to a question from Sen. Estabrook if New
Hampshire would be the first state in the country to pay more per student to
charter schools than other public schools.

o If this were true, asked Sen. Estabrook, why then would not all regular
public schools attempt to become charter schools? Ms. Tenney was not
sure if all schools would attempt to become charter schools in that
situation.

Deb Burr, Cocheco

Ms. Burr is the “proud and passionate” director of the Cocheco.
She echoed the comments of Rep. Casey and Ms. Tenney.
Cocheco submitted recently grant requests to the US DOE for 5 million.



e She will soon travel to Washington, D.C. as a guest of the National Charter
School Alliance. While there she plans to meet with NH’s congressional
delegation.

e NH’s charter schools, said Ms. Burr, have caught the eye of the nation.

Beth Allard, Cocheco

s Will contact committee members this week with additional supportive
information relative to charter schools.

Zachary Arnold, Cocheco

e Mr. Arnold is a sophomore who historically was an unhappy student until
enrolling at Cocheco.

e For the first time ever he was excited to leam.

¢ Cocheco allows kids to learn about the arts and develop and promote skills in this
regard.

Megan Williams, Cocheco
¢ Another student who came to Cocheco an unhappy student.

o The flexible school allowed her to pursue her love of politics through the NH’s
presidential primary.

Katie Fitzpatrick, Cocheco.

¢ Another happy student who echoed previous supportive comments about charter
schools.

Eileen Liponis, NH Public Charter School Association

¢ In the interest of time, Ms. Liponis made brief comments and submitted testimony
for the record.
Ms. Liponis informed that committee Florida, Colorado and Texas spend more on
charter school students.
She stated that the appropriation request in this bill would complete the promised
request from last session.
She distributed the initial budget request.
Ms. Liponis reiterated that the NHDOE supports sustainable funding for charter
schools.
She submitted letters from all three presidential candidates expressing their
support for charter schools.
She refuted claims that charter schools are self selective. Rather, she stated that
parents and students come to charter school when the child is struggling.

»

John Davis, Surry

e Mr. Davis stated that many good points were made during the hearing but also
some misinformation has been repeated.

¢ Although he does not believe that charter schools were set up to fail, he wonders
that without the local tax base what the schools can do?



¢ He echoed many of the supportive comments made by previous speakers.

Chad Loring, Academy of Science & Design
e Mr. Loring, a student, echoed the supportive comments made by previous
speakers.

Denise Parent, Strong Foundation
¢ Read aloud for the record testimony which was later submitted fromm Beth
McLore founder and director of the Strong Foundation in support of charter
school funding.

Fiscal Note: (See Fiscal Note) The Department of Education states this bill, as amended
by the House (Amendment #2008-0672h), will increase state education trust fund
expenditures by $1,500,000 in FY 2009. There will be no fiscal impact on state, county,
and local revenue or county and local expenditures.

This bill appropriates $1,500,000 in FY 2009 from the education trust fund to the
department of education for the purpose providing supplemental charter school grants.

Action: The hearing was recessed until Tuesday, April 22 at 8:45 a.m.



Date: April 15, 2008
Time: 8:51 a.m.
Room:  State House, Room 103

The Senate Committee on Education held a hearing on the following:

House Bill 1642-FN (New Title) providing additional funding for charter
schools for the 2009 fiscal year.

Members of Committee present: Senator Estabrook
Senator Foster
Senator Kelly
Senator Bragdon
Senator Letourneau

The Chair, Senator Iris W. Estabrook, opened the hearing and invited a
sponsor, Representative Weyler, to introduce the legislation.

Representative Wevler:  Good morning, Madam Chair, members of the
Committee. Representative Ken Weyler, Rockingham District 8, towns of
Hampstead, Kingston, and Plaistow. I'm here to introduce House Bill 1642,
funding for charter schools.

Charter schools are public schools, and as such, should have the same
funding mechanism as all other public schools. In 1995, the legislation for
charter schools assumed that local education agencies would be the starting
point for charter schools. There were a few tentative beginnings, but the
cumbersome process made this a long drawn-out task. It took about two
years. Frequently, the group, which came together to begin the charter
process, were not all from the same district. So, a secondary process was put
into law which allowed the State Board of Education to grant charters.

This also allowed the newly-forming charter school to seek locations in more
than one district. The Charter School Initiative was encouraged by the
federal government after seeing success in several states. The first schools
were started by federal grants. There was anticipation that the grants would



continue to flow after the start-ups, but the federal government wants to
participate only in beginning the process, not in sustaining the process. At
this point, the federal government has spent five million on charter schools,
and the state only four million. By accepting federal grants, the state
becomes obligated to continue the existence of the charter schools. If there
was insufficient action in the state part, it may affect future grants by the
federal government and other programs. We must show good faith in our role.

We've now had four years of charter school development under the secondary
system of the state granting the charters. We've had some excellent schools.
Some have taken new directions in curriculum specialization. Others have
concentrated on a major problem in our system, student disinterest and
leaving before achieving a diploma. We've had excellent results in those
schools. These laboratories of education have enriched our overall education
offerings. We must make a special effort to preserve and encourage these
innovations.

Less than two percent of our students are involved in charter schools, but in
testimony we will hear these students were not flourishing in the standard
system. That has changed for them now that they are in charter schools. It
would be cruel to take away from them the opportunity to excel now that they
have found their way. We organize school districts to give geographic
responsibility for an area of students. In most cases, the education for those
students took place in the same geographical area.

But, we've had exceptions to this for decades. Special and voc tech have been
part of our system for all this time. These options have allowed out of district
placements for that whole period. If charter school students have out of
district placement, there is precedent. This should not be treated any
differently. The key to the obligation for the spending support is the residence
of the student, not the location of the school. Please support House Bill 1642.

Please see Representative Weyler’s typewritten testimony, attached
hereto and referred to as Attachment #1.

I have an amendment that I'm going to pass out. I think I have enough for
the Senators here that [ introduced in the Finance Committee.

Please see Representative Weyler’s Amendment #2008-0796h,
attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #2.

There was some reluctance to add extra money to the funding. So, therefore,
there were dollars that were going to be distributed...



Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Can we have more copies?

Representative Weyler: I have the original if you want that.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  She can make some more.

Representative Weyler:  There would be money distributed to every school
district under our present proposal 539. And, for this next school year, there
would only be six students that were not in a district receiving a state
stipend. Because of the other formula we used, there were many, there were
thirty-seven towns that received zero. In those thirty-seven towns, there are
six students that attend charter schools. There is, however, those of us that
were on the Finance Committee will remember the 800,000 that we set aside
for charter schools for ’08 and '09. There’s approximately 150, 200, there was
about 150,000 left of that money.

So, for the next year, ‘09, those six students could be covered by the remains
of that 800,000. Ongoing after '09, every district will receive a stipend from
the state on a per student basis plus differentiated aid, so will the charter
schools receive similar stipends. If we start with the amount that is spent per
student in each district, and we set that as a target amount, then we take
eighty percent of that. Typically, we're spending $10,000 per student. If we
say $8,000 is in the target for each student from that district, and the charter
school’s receiving roughly $4,000, which is the typical stipend after the
differentiated aid that we're sending, that would mean an additional 4,000
would be needed for that student. That money would not come from
additional state money, but it would come from the stipend that would have
otherwise been sent to that district. It amounts to like two cents out of every
ten dollars.

So, if you take that $4,000 that you need for that student, and you take it
from the million dollars you were going to send to that district, they get their
million dollars less the $4,000, and they get to count that student, which
might be critical if you're coming to something like the percentage for free
and reduced meals. That money then goes to the district under any one of
those differentiated aid, eighty percent still goes to the student, follows the
student, and twenty percent stays in the district. So, there is an advantage to
the district. They get to count the student in their ADMR, in effect, we double
count the student.

But, this amendment came very close to passage in the Finance Committee.
It was a twelve to twelve vote, had one more person been there that would
have voted, or if one person switched to vote the other way, you would see
before you now 1642 with this amendment on it. It came that close. So, if



your concern is not adding an extra million point two, this is a good source of
money, and for ‘09, it would be money that is already dedicated, in a
dedicated fund. So, I'm willing, I'm happy to answer any questions. I think
this could work, and I hope, if you don’t want to go with the bill as it came to
you, that you would consider this amendment. Thank you very much.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you. Questions from the
Committee? I have one. On the bill as it came to us, it draws 1.5 million from
the education trust fund. As I understand it, the law requires that the
education trust fund be used first to pay for adequacy. What happens if there
is not 1.5 million left there after paying for adequacy?

Representative Weyvler: Then, we do the same as we’ve always done with
the original design of the education trust fund was to contribute from the
general fund whatever we needed. Similarly, when we put the lottery money,
when we dedicated the lottery money to the education, if we assumed, 1
remember one year we said, “Well, we think there’s going to be fifty-four
million in lottery revenue”. So, we put fifty-four million into...

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Yeah.

Representative Weyler: ...into the budget for Finance. It came up with only
fifty-two million. So, we added two million from general fund to ensure that
fifty-four million went to education. Had it come in at fifty-six million, fifty-
six million would have gone to education from the lottery. So, it's always,
whatever we decide to spend, whatever we approve as a Legislature, any
shortfall is made up from the general fund. So, the same thing would happen.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Well, that’s true for adequacy because
that’s what the law requires, But, this is not adequacy, so, we would not be
required to do that.

Representative Weyler: Well, any shortage in the education allotment is
always made up from the general fund.

Senator Iris W, Estabrook. D. 21: For adequacy.

Representative Weyler:  For everything.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: What do you mean, “For everything?”

Representative Weyler: Well, anything we had, whatever we called it,
adequacy. If we determined one year we were going to give “x” millions of
dollars to education, and we were short in the education trust fund, we




always added money from the general fund. The same thing would occur now
if we said there 1sn’t a million and a half to put in there.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  So, there’s a potential million and a half
impact to the general fund?

Representative Wevler: There is.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, DD. 21:  Can you explain to me how the differing
amounts per charter school were established? I mean, I can understand the
Virtual Learning Academy being allocated a smaller amount per pupil
because you would think their overhead costs would be less. But, I'm not sure
I understand the difference between the schools in category (a) and (b) in
Roman HI.

Representative Wevler:  The difference in category (a) is these schools are
self-supporting and free-standing. Schools in category (b} are supported by a
district even though, or one of them, the CSI Charter School is the only one in
the state chartered through the district. All the others are started, are
chartered through the state. However, Great Bay E-Learning, Ledyard
Charter Academy (sic), and North Country Charter Academy all have
arrangements with the sending districts that contribute additional dollars. In
the case of, I think, Great Bay E-Learning, you'll probably hear testimony,
they are supported by being given space and teachers from the SAU...

Unidentified Voice from Audience: 16.

Representative Wevler: 16. Thank you. So, they are supported more than
most. And, the one, North Country Charter Academy has an arrangement
with fifteen different high schools that all send a stipend when they send
their students. Virtual Learning, obviously, is not, does not have the fixed
cost that any of the other schools would have, doesn’t have a, need a space.

Senator Iris W, Estabrook. D. 21: Do you know if the schools in (a) have
tried to make such arrangements?

Representative Weyler: Yes. Some of them have and some of them have
received a few dollars. Many of them you will hear in testimony have, in fact,
notified the sending schools, the sending districts, that they need a little
money, and I think you may hear testimony Cocheco has been given a few
dollars from the sending schools. They're one of the schools that specializes in
students that otherwise might drop out. So, they're kind of in a drop-out
prevention specialty and they receive a little help but not much from the
sending districts.




So, there are different arrangements with each of these, but for long-term,
and many of them are into fundraising, but I don’t think we should require a
public school to go out and raise funds. We don’t do it for any other thing
except maybe the Boosters Club for the football uniforms or something like
that, but as far as for paying for teachers and rent, I don’t think we should be
asking them to go out and raise funds.

There is one, I think one of the technology schools has some fairly strong
sponsors, and it hasn’t really gotten past its start-up yet, but they’ll have
some more support than others might, but, this is still as a public school, the
parents that are sending their children there expect a similar support they
would from any public school.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you. Further questions from the
Committee? Senator Foster?

Senator Joseph A. Foster, D. 13: You, as a member of Finance, know that
the budget is in difficult condition, and there was an arrangement made last
year for these needs. But, you're coming here as a member of the Finance
Committee knowing what's going on, asking us in affect to supplement this
amount of money in a fairly significant way. And, of course, there’s a lot of
needs and we're not the Budget Committee here, or the Finance Committee,
but, nevertheless, it's something which obviously we have to consider. So, 'm
wondering why this particular circumstance should we reopen the budget
because, as you know, that can lead to chaos when you start doing that.

Representative Wevler: My amendment that I brought forward does a
couple of things. It assures long-term financing of charter schools which we'd
all love to see. And, it actually saves money in the overall budget because if
this, if, typically, we're spending $10,000 per pupil. If the charter schools can
do it for eight, then we're saving money. There’s, oh, roughly around 500
charter school students, times the couple thousand that we're saving per
student. There’s a million dollars. I'm looking at this as cost-saving. These
charter schools have actually operated with monies in the range of 8,000,
typically, we're spending 10,000 in a public school. So, I'm seeing an overall
savings as a member of Finance Committee, and it’s just a matter of moving
the monies around that are already existing under my amendment. Monies
that are there or will be in the future. So, again, I say, it’s an overall savings.

Senator Joseph A. Foster, D. 13:  Follow-up?

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Follow up.
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Senator Joseph A. Foster, D. 13:  So, any program where somebody comes
in and tells us we’re going to save money because we're going to do health
prevention or early childhood intervention or early learning, we should
support because, on a long-term basis, it’s going to save money. I mean, we, I
respect what you're saying, but what you're still asking us to do 1s to
renegotiate a term of the budget that was fixed last time. And so, there
should be some special reason to even consider doing that.

Representative Weyler; When we did the budget, we set aside monies in
various categories with an assumption we would service so many people in
each of these areas. With health and human service, it seems like we're
always underestimating the population in a certain area and we have to come
up with the extra money. I look at this in a similar way. We had a pretty good
idea how many students there are in the State of New Hampshire that are
attending public schools. These same students are in that population and
should have been counted all along. As we progress, some students went from
the public school to the charter school. In some cases, there was a savings of
money overall because, when they left behind a public school and went to the
charter school, in many cases, the charter schools were funded either from
that 800,000 we put in the last budget or in start-up money from the federal
government.

So, there have been some savings as we progressed forward in this budget
because of these moves. But, it’s the same population as I see it. The one that
we have an obligation to fund for public school, and this is just reshuffling of
some of the money. I don’t see it as new money.

Senator Joseph A. Foster, D. 13:  Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  I'd like to ask you a little bit about your
amendment. You're saying, you're trying to explain...

Representative Wevler:  You've got all my copies, but go ahead.

Senator Iris W, Estabrook, D. 21:  Well, let’s get you back one then.

Representative Weyler:  Oh, wait a minute. I think I have one here.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: I mean, your testimony has indicated
that what you conceive of doing is taking the adequacy grant and sending it
with the charter school pupil so there’s no difference in funding. But, I'm not
seeing that in writing here. What I'm seeing in writing is that the state shall
pay the charter school eighty percent of the sending district’s average cost per
pupil. So, if the sending district’s average cost per pupil were, as you've been




trying to outline for us, $10,000, the state is directed in that first sentence to
send $8,000 to the charter school for that pupil.

Representative Wevler: Yes.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  And then, it says, “Such tuition shall be
deducted from the adequate education grant that is sent to the school district
in which the pupil resides”. But, my understanding is that, you know,
obviously, this is not a finished process yet, but as the costing of adequacy
now stands having, waiting for floor approval from the House, and then,
Finance approval in the House, there would be no adequate education grants
to any community or any school that reached $8,000. As you're well aware,
the maximum in the proposal is 6900. So, I don’t really understand if you're
only sending, if you're sending $8,000 from the state, but the state is not
obligated to give an adequate education grant up to that amount, then you're
clearly asking the state to send more than they would be to the resident
district, and there is a cost to that.

Representative Weyler: I also make the assumption that roughly 4,000
would have been spent on a per pupil basis anyway.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: By whom?

Representative Weyler: By the legislation that is before the House and the
Senate, and that I believe will pass in a similar form.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  But, that 4,000 is part of the 6900 or the
5300, or whatever it is that school where the child...

Representative Weyler: One is a gross amount.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  First of all, you're mixing apples and
oranges in that you're saying that we should do it based on the pupil’s district
of residence whereas the entire adequacy structure is based on where the
student attends school. So, you're asking for an exception to the structure of
the adequacy in that regard.

Representative Weyler; Right.

Senator Iris W, Estabrook, D. 21:  But, I'm also just having a really hard
time understanding how you're saying this is a wash financially.

Representative Wevler:  Let me explain it in a different way. 'm a parent. I
live in a district that has high expectations and spends a fair amount per




pupil. I still expect fairly high expectations because of the tax burden [ have
in that district. I'm paying for public schools. Now, I have an opportunity that
my child doesn’t flourish in this public school and I have an option. It’s in the
next district, but it's a charter school. Plus, it has an area of interest that my
child has, be it technology, computers, music, art... It has an area that my
child is really excited about and will finally begin to apply himself or herself
in education. | have that option. I send my child there with the expectation
this is another public school, my district is going to support it.

I expect the same amount of money, some support from the state, which is
already in existence in perhaps my local district. That amount should follow
the child. Now, this charter school 1s operating at something less than what
my district is spending; however, my child is flourishing, I'm happy there,
within there. So, where’s the extra money going to come from? My district 18
getting perhaps a million dollars. Of that million dollars, I'm going to ask for
two cents out of every ten dollars to support my child in this alternative
thing, just as if I sent my child to a voc tech or a sped placement, the district
should support it.

The district, ] don’t want to put them in the position as happened in Franklin
where they just refuse to write the check. Or, this charter school has to ask
extra people just to deal with every district that the children are coming from
to try to collect. They're going to get one amount from the state. It's going to
be based upon the adequacy grant per child, and a stipend according to each
district the child comes from.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  So, you're asking the state to make up
what would ordinarily be the local contribution.

Representative Weyler: By using money that would have gone to the local
district.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  You've already used that money.

Representative Weyvler: Where have I used it?

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, DD. 21:  In the first $4,000.

Representative Weyler:  Well, there’s always more than the $4,000, and
almost every...

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Okay. We're not getting anywhere.
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Representative Weyler: No, I mean, we're not really taking away the
adequacy. We're probably taking away the differentiated aid, but we might be
in an overall savings because many of these children that had extensive IEPs,
once they found themselves in a place where they flourished, their IEP were
reduced in some cases to nothing.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you very much. Further question,
Senator Letourneau?

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Thank you. What happens to the
charter schools should this bill not pass?

Representative Weyler: They’ll be out of business, and some of our best
laboratories of education will be gone. For four of them I know of, there is no
money left. For others additionally each month, there will be other schools
running out of money, and the overall impact would be higher costs as they
return to their public school district. There’s savings now where they are, and
going forward, I am hopeful that once we show the federal government, “Yes,
we are supporting charter schools, we have long-term financing”, that the
federal government will return to giving us larger stipends in the charter
school area.

But, should this bill not pass, these charter schools are out of business. It
would be a vast disappointment to all the people that are behind me, to the
hundreds of students that have finally found their way in education, and it’ll
be a shambles. And, the federal government may ask for the money back and
they may deduct it from what they send to us because we have failed them
and failed these students. So, it’s a no-win situation if we don’t pass
something.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19:  Just a follow-up.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Follow-up.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 13: Would you feel as though there is an
obligation on behalf of the state to support the charter schools because of the
bills that we passed in the past?

Representative Wevler: Most definitely. When they gave us this money,
there was an anticipation we would continue with this program.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Okay.

Representative Weyler: Thank you.
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Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Further questions? Seeing none, thank
you very much.

Representative Weyler: Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Call Representative Casey.

Representative Casey: I think I have enough.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Whatever you're giving out, we need a
copy for Senator Fuller Clark even though she’s not here.

Representative Casey: I made ten copies of everything...

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Oh, good.

Representative Casey: ...s0, I think we’ll be alright.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Oh, good. Okay. Thank you. Welcome.

Representative Casey: Thank you, Chairman, and good morning on, I
think, the third really nice spring day that we're having. Let’s count two in a
row for tomorrow. My name is Kim Casey. I'm State Representative for
District, Rockingham, District 11, East Kingston and Newton, and I serve as
the Chairman of the Charter School Oversight Committee in the House. It's
a, comprised of both Senators and Representatives who look at the estate of
the state in charter schools. Senator, several senators sit on it that are on
this Committee. I am the mother of a child who's in a charter school in
District, SAU 16, Great Bay eLearning Center. 'm on the Board of Trustees
for the Virtual Learning Academy Charter School, and I'm here to talk to you
a little bit today about charter schools, much more briefly, I hope, than,
because I know there are lots of people who would like to testify.

If you'll indulge me, the superintendent of SAU 16 has prepared a written
statement which I will hand in and only try to highlight rather than read...

Senator Iris W, Estabrook, D. 21:  Thank you.

Representative Casey: ...because I think that wastes some time.

Please see prepared testimony submitted by Representative Casey,
attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #3.
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I think, I was going to read my testimony, but I think I'll answer some
questions. I think because I felt, I know it’s hard when you're sitting up here
sometimes, and I was sitting back there scribbling away while questions were
being asked, and I'd like to address those.

The first one was, are the charter schools fundraising? Are they trying to
obtain grants for themselves? Are they making efforts to try and bring
districts in to work with the districts where they reside or where their
children attend to capture some money? And, I think I'm going to address the
first question about funding grants and fundraising. All of the charter schools
that I am familiar with are in active participation of raising money. They
have several large fundraisers a year, and they are attempting to write
grants. As you know, grant writing is an art, and what has been shown over
and over again with the low level of support that we received from the state,
grantors are very unwilling to participate in grant, you know, successfully
giving grants out to these schools because they are not interested in
providing grants for working costs. They’re interested in providing grants for
other things. So, that has met with some real problems.

The second question that came forth was about, and first thing I want to say
is 1642 is about a time gap between the previous year’s emergency funding
situation which Senator Foster alluded to, which, by the way, had started out
as a two year funding process with 1.5 million dollars. This is in the Finance,
that last minute thing that happened. They ended up with half of that,
$800,000. So, it really turned from a, I think the myth is that that was
supposed to be for two years and why are you back the next year? That
turned from a two year, you know, funding scheme to a one-year funding
scheme by the reduction of that money.

So, we are here for that second year, and I have to be very honest. Unlike
other times, I will tell you that if SB 539 with its more permanent funding
solution is not moved forward in the way that we anticipate, I do anticipate
that it will, but, you know, I could be back here until we find a more
permanent solution, either through 539 or another method. So, we are all
interested in finding a more stable funding mechanism for these schools.

The other thing I might want to just, we are talking about the time between
now and the implementation or the anticipated implementation of 539.
There’s a gap here that you were talking about. So, when we, we should be
very careful even though we know that monies are, have been set aside in
539 to form charter schools in a kind of a different way that we have them,
they're kind of apples and oranges to try and blend them altogether when
we're talking. So, I just wanted to kind of be very clear about that.

il
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Saving money. It’s a different analogy. We're not saving in the way that
you're thinking where if we have pre-kindergarten or full-day kindergarten,
1t really saves money because twenty years down the road we're helping.
What I think the Representative was trying to say is that it saves, his
amendment saves the state money because it shifts some of the burden back
to capturing some local money. As you know, charter schools have no
property base from which to cap. You know, all schools in the state receive a
fund, a bunch of money from the state, and the rest is made up by the local
property tax. Charter schools don’t have that local property tax from which to
draw. So, Representative Weyler’s bill, I think, it attempts to sort of capture
some of that money. And, I have some i1ssues with that, but moving on.

Roberta Tenney is here from the Department of Ed. She’s going to answer a
lot of technical questions about charter schools, where they are, where we're
going. I want to talk, I think, a little bit about where we're going. It, as a
Chairman of the Charter School Oversight Committee, it’s been my intention
and I'm sort of waiting for a lot, how this all plays out to begin the process,
but I prepared a letter, and [ am going to be sending the letter out to a lot of
different stakeholders. I think the best analogy is you're all familiar with
what Nancy Stiles did with the special education laws. She pulled everybody
together and everybody sat for quite a while at a table sort of hashing out
that issue. And, I see this as being a very similar process. I think we can have
a much better law which creates charter schools that are in cooperation and
collaboration, much clearer collaboration between the charter schools and the
local districts, sending districts, so that the benefits that they do provide,
which is that caldron for educational innovation can be more properly utilized
and there's a sharing.

So, I think those are things that really need to move forward with a new
charter school law. And, that is my intention as the Charter School Oversight
Committee Chair to do that. So, I wanted to keep that, you know, sort of have
that wash over you and let that marinade a little bit as you're looking at this
bill. This is a stop-gap bill, but without it, it'’s hardly worth, you know,
moving forward if we're losing some of our best charter schools just because of
some short-term funding problems.

So, having said that, I'll be glad to take any questions and thank you for your
time.

Please see Representative Casey’s typewritten testimony, attached
hereto and referred to as Attachment #4.
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Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you very much for your testimony
and really putting the bill in context for us. Questions from the Committee?
Senator Letourneau?

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Thank you. We've heard a lot about
the funding and the problems with the fund this morning. Perhaps you couid
tell us, and as a mother of a child in a charter school, perhaps you could tell
us about the success and what'’s going on in these charter schools and why
they’re so important.

Representative Casey: Thank you. Soft ball. I'm glad to talk about how
wonderful the charter school has been for my son who is an extremely outside
the box student, and very, you know, and all children have unique learning
styles. Let me just say this. Somebody told me one time that you should think
of charter schools like the specialists. You go to the GP, that’s the big school,
you know, the main school that is a more traditional, kind of looks, takes into
consideration everything. You know, you walk into your GP’s office, he’s going
to look at the top of you, he’s going to deal with the top of your head to the
bottom of your toes. But, sometimes, in a hundred patients, there are ten who
need a little, who need something a little bit different. They need to goto a
specialist. You know, they're just not fitting in. The GP’s just not sure about
what, why, whatever, you know, that aspirin he suggested isn't going to cut
it.

And, charter schools are kind of the same thing. Because there are so many
unique learners, the chance for public education to have an opportunity to
have some specialties, to have different flavors, maybe, if you were going to
go to another place in the analogy world, I think, is a real, real opportunity.
And, in particular, you know, these outside the box students without more,
other opportunities for their, you know, their success, they really, they’re not
left behind, but it's a tragedy. I don’t think we're fulfilling, and it doesn’t
necessarily always have to be the student who is at risk.

It could be a very creative student, or a student whose interest just always
seems to go back to science, and how can you tie the rest of the curriculum to
science, and that really keep that kid, you know, I mean, suddenly, if you're
writing poetry about, you know, “e equals mc squared”, you're giving a lot of
different, it’s just a wonderful opportunity for public schools to have a lot of
different flavors, and I think, I'm very thankful that my son has that
opportunity in his charter school. Is that enough? Okay.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Thank you. I think all of the members of
the Committee appreciate how well certain students are served in charter
schools, and what we're really struggling with is how we deal with these




15

schools that were created by a pilot that was probably not structured fairly to
begin with.

Representative Casey: Correct.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: And, in that sense is a failure, but in the
sense of serving these students, we understand is a great success.

Representative Casey; I think any child that was born under the wrong
star still has a chance to survive, so.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21;  Exactly. You've pointed out to us very
pointedly that this is a stop-gap for the '09 year?

Representative Casey: If you look... yeah.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  And so, is that the second year of the
budget that we're currently operating in that we're talking about?

Representative Casey: It’s the next school year. It, yeah.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  But, it’s the second year of the current
biennium budget.

Representative Casey:  Yes, right.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  So, what we are asking here is for a new
1.5 million dollar appropriation in a budget that is already being cut fifty to a
hundred million dollars?

Representative Casey: You are correct. That is what we're asking. But, let
me just say that it is really actually 1.123 million if you look at the...

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  The difference, you mean.

Representative Casey:  Well, according to the Finance, the methodology, if
you look at the fiscal impact, it appropriates 1.5 million dollars. But then, if
you actually look at the methodology and the grants themselves, it comes to
1.123 million. 237,000 of that represents the money that would go to the
Virtual Charter School (sic), the Great Bay eLearning Charter School, the
North Country Charter School (sic) and the Ledyard Charter School. Did you
get those? And, CSI.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19:  You're talking about the...
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Representative Casey: Those are schools that are supported, as indicated
before, supported by in some way or another by their district. I just wanted to
correct something. This, the Virtual Learning Academy has the support of the
district. It is the same district that I just got off the board. However, they
receive, they are not receiving money from our district for anything, but they
are, as you know, cutting edge for the drop-out, some of the drop-out things
that are going on. So, I've added them for that $237,000, if that was taken out
of this bill, I loathe to do it because | think that it’s supporting charter
schools even when their districts are doing their part, to encourage that
behavior is a good thing, but I understand that the desperate situation that
our, you know, our economy is looking in our budget.

I think what Representative Weyler's amendment tries to do is soften the
blow for the budget, and he does down-shift those, that softening to the local
districts. And, 'm well aware of that. And, I'm, you know, talk about a rock
in a hard place. I don’t philosophically agree with that right now without the
district’s approval, but that would mean that our charter schools would close
and I think that’s a tragedy. So, what to do? You know, I implore you...

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: That's what I mean, that's what we're all
struggling...

Representative Casey: I implore you, what to do? Can we find some way to
support these schools for one more year until some stability comes with 539
and I hope so?

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Right. Senator Letourneau?

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Thank you. Two questions. One,
you're speaking to the bill that's amended when you talk about the Finance
in here. You're not talking about Representative Weyler's...

Representative Casey: No. I'm talking about the bill as amended, yeah.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19:  And, just a follow-up?

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Follow up.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Thank you. You talked about grants
being used for other things in the beginning of your testimony...

Representative Casey: Oh.
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Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: ...and, that kind of peaked my
interest. My question is that as you, as the charter schools are applying for
grants, the grant people are reluctant to give the grants because there’s not
sufficient support coming from the state?

Representative Casey: They're reluctant to give grants for operating costs.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19:  Oh.

Representative Casey: Given the tenuous nature of the schools at this
point especially.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Could you tell me what the other
things may be that that money would be used for?

Representative Casey: I think I would prefer to have some of the...

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19:  Sure, alright.

Representative Casey:  ...money people who actually work at the schools
and write the grants...

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Thank you.

Representative Casey: ...answer that question. Okay?

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Sure.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you very much.

Representative Casey: Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Call Roberta Tenney from the
Department of Education.

Roberta Tenney, Department of Education: Good morning. My name is
Roberta Tenney. 'm the Administrator in the Department of Education. I, we
had a charter school review done in September, and I don’t believe the
Education Department, Committee has it. It's on our web page, and you can
download it, but I did do that for you so that each one of you could have your
own copies of the report.

One of the citings of the report will not surprise anybody, and that is that the
funding of the charter schools is inadequate. There are multiple ways that
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they looked at that and talked a little bit about initially there was
philanthropic hope that went with the passing of the charter legislation, and
that hasn’t borne out, specifically. So, that's cited in the report, and the
successes and the challenges of the charter program are cited as well. So, I
thought as you made this important decision, you should have that
information.

The DOE does support charter schools. We have worked hard to support
them. Our capacity is limited and we have continued to look at these public
schools as we look at all the others, and from my perspective, there are
wonderful things happening in New Hampshire public schools. Last
Thursday and Friday I was at a two-day conference for the development of
professional learning communities, and there were 400 educators from New
Hampshire there in teams looking at establishing priorities and looking at
assessments, and looking at how data is used to alter and adjust what’s
presented and done for children in New Hampshire.

So, within that context, I see charter schools as a small research and
development piece of the whole. The numbers are small. They’ll amount to
about 500 right now. But, there is some great innovation, and I think the
question comes up, “Why can’t you just do this in your normal course of
operation in the public schools?” And, I really do feel as if there is tremendous
innovation going on in our public schools and you could be very proud of it.
I'm sort of sorry the Education Committee doesn’t get out to the schools in
the same way that I can, but schools have cultures, and large schools have
multiple needs. And, a charter school is a group of people that come together
over a single mission and do one thing and hopefully, do it very well and
provide a service to some children who have not found success in the public
schools.

This is a public school in which they can find success. Great Bay eLearning is
a perfect example of that. One of their requirements is that every child apply
to college, and I think they're getting close to a hundred percent acceptance
rate, and these are children that were not flourishing in their past school.
That's what the mission of the school is, to take a C-plus student and try to
have them become innovated and engaged in education and that has
happened there. Project-based learning and they have a mission that’s
specific to them. And, the question is, “Why wouldn’t that be in all schools?”
Well, it is in all schools in certain ways. It's just that it’s not the culture of the
school totally, and things that are being learned. When CSI came before the
State Board, which is the Merrimack Valley program to deal with children
who have dropped out, they have twelve percent drop-out rate.
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And, CSI has competency skills and interests so that they individually deal
with each child. They have a very innovative high school. They have an
innovative principal in that high school, and he was asked by the State
Board, “Why don’t you just do this at your high school?” And, he said they
had so many other issues that they needed to start a separate organization
that would deal with children that had really not been successful youngsters
and who had not been successful. And, they’re having a tremendous amount
of success there. They've gone from twenty-two when they opened in
September to thirty. There are some young parents that are in there. There
are people that have been out of school for a couple of years, and it’s a very
nice story. But, it is an example of a school district that did dual
authorization. They went to their voters and got authorization, but after they
had gotten it from the State Board because the superintendent wanted buy-in
from the whole community and he got it.

So, we're working toward that kind of cooperation. This is a conversation
among educators throughout New Hampshire about ways to serve our
children. And, we support it and we understand your, the financial problems
that exist.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you. Questions? Senator Kelly?

Senator Molly Kelly, D. 10: I just have a couple questions. Thank you so
much for your testimony. Do all children in New Hampshire have access to
charter schools?

Ms. Tenney: What I'm excited about is, if you look at a map of New
Hampshire, the distribution of where it’s available 1s right across the state,
from the North Country down to Surry School over to Seacoast School.
Merrimack now has their Science and Design. And so, it, Pembroke has the
Strong Foundation, and while the missions aren’t appropriate for each
district and each person, there still is a map that looks like we've covered the
charters for the state.

Senator Molly Kelly, D. 10:  Just a follow-up.

Senator Iris W, Estabrock, D. 21:  Follow up.

Senator Molly Kelly, D. 10: Yes, I'm going on the other side, start on the
other side. So, why do children go to the traditional public schools?

Ms. Tenney: Because it most, traditional public schools meet most students
needs. In fact, if you're flourishing in a public school, if you're on a, you know,
a soccer team, and if you're friends are there and you have always gone there
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and you're very happy, you're not probably going to leave to go to a charter
school. It’s always going to be a small segment of the community, I think.

Senator Molly Kelly, D. 10: I guess my thought is that I do support the
innovation...

Ms. Tenney: Right.

Senator Molly Kelly, D. 10:  at all of the schools.

Ms. Tenney: Right.

Senator Molly Kelly, D. 10:  And, I do know that the charter schools have

specific missions that make them a little bit different. But, sometimes I think
the reason that the charter schools work is because they are small.

Ms. Tenney: Right.
Senator Molly Kelly, D). 10:  And, there are small classrooms.

Ms. Tenney: Right.

Senator Molly Kelly, D. 10:  And, the parents are very involved.

Ms. Tenney: Right.

Senator Molly Kelly, D. 10:  And so, there’s more of an individual attention,
and my concern is wanting to make sure that every child...

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Yeah.

Senator Molly Kelly, D. 10:  ...has that available to them. And, we only
have so much money. We're always only going to have so much money. It's
the way it works.

Ms. Tennev: Right.

Senator Molly Kelly, D. 10: And, the money comes from each individual in
our state. So, I try to look at this as not wanting to make a decision on an
either/or for a black and white here, or a choice about who does better, who
does worse, but to be able to bring those options to all the children in our
state. Why can’t we bring what’s happening in the charter schools for all the
children and it not cost more? Why is the traditional public school have the
barriers that doesn’t allow that to happen because it sounds to me that it’s
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small classrooms, maybe having specific areas of academia spread out in
different schools within the school, you know, if it'’s music, if it’s arts, if it's
technology in the schools because children learn different. We know that,
that’s not a new theory, that’s been there. And then, parents involved with
smaller classrooms and it works for everybody. But now, we're trying to divvy
out taking money from here to pay here, or taking money from there to pay
here, and who loses?

Ms. Tenney: I have several ways to respond to that, which I think has to do
with what a charter can do, and that is, what we found out nationally 1s a lot
of wonderful things are going on in public schools. And, parents have been
disengaged from that conversation. But, it hasn’t just been the parents’ fault.
Educators haven’t seen the need to publicize what they do.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: No.

Ms. Tenney: And...

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: I tried to do that.

Ms. Tenney: ...new charters come up and they say, “We're going to do arts
education and a local elementary school. We've been doing this for years. We
have a really good art teacher and she...” Well, they haven't been telling the
community that, and as charter schools have become spokespeople for how
we do education and continuing that conversation, public schools have
thought we can do that too. And so, they become more aggressive about
publicizing what it is they do. There is a lot of wonderful innovation going on
in public schools. I happen to think in New Hampshire that we’re lucky to
have Follow the Child Initiative because it talks about the children’s voice,
the student voice.

And, that’s a voice that’s sometimes lost in a conversation about what’s best
for education, and when you do the survey and you see that although you're
working night and day as a teacher, that’s sixty percent of the people,
students, don’t think they're listened to, all of a sudden, you say, “Boy, I
think I'm talking to them all the time, what’s going on?” So, it's a
conversation in education that’s changing. We're in a transformational time
about education in smaller classes and more attention is definitely the way
educators are moving, data driven so that we understand what children are
saying to us, and the Virtual Learning School (sic), you know, this is a
computerized school.

We're talking about online and yet, some of, anecdotally, some of those
students have answered back because you need a communication with your
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teacher. This is the most anybody’s ever asked me about how I learn. So,
we're, cultures are changing, and charters are part of that stimulus for that
as their successful teachers are saying and educators are saying, “Hm, that
was simple, we could do that.” So, I think that the, it’s a good marketing, it’s
a good stimulus, it's causing a conversation that’s a good conversation. I
mean, this Committee is talking about how people learn in a way that’s
pretty exciting over the issue of charters, but.

Due to the volume of materials submitted by Ms. Tenney, those
documents are not attached to this transcript, but are available in
the original bill file.

Senator Molly Kelly, D. 10:  Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21; Senator Letourneau?

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19:  Thank you. And, thank you for taking
my question, Ms. Tenney. American Legislator Exchange Council does a
report card on education in, across the country, and does the fifty states. And,
what I've been observing over the past several years in the report card is that
New Hampshire and Minnesota are usually in the top five, usually in the top
two, and, as far as education report cards are concerned. In comparing the
two states, the one thing I did notice that Minnesota, while spent more
money than New Hampshire did per student, and that seems to be a local
economic thing, the difference between New Hampshire and Minnesota was
that Minnesota had many more charter schools. Do you think there’s a direct
correlation here?

Ms. Tenney: Well, there’s a piece of information that’s important in that
Minnesota information. The State of Minnesota, until two years ago, spent
seventy-two percent of the cost of a local education. In other words, the state
contributed seventy-two percent. They're now down to sixty-nine percent, and
the local school districts find it troubling that the state’s cutting back. So,
there’s a real difference in the amount of money that Minnesota state (sic).

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  To put it mildly.

Ms. Tenneyv: Not that is being spent on education, but Minnesota state
government is supporting sixty-eight percent of the cost of a child’s education.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19:  They also spend more per student.

Ms. Tenney: Yeah. Well then, their local has a lot larger range of ability to
pick up.
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Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Do you find any, follow-up?

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Follow up.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Thank you. Do you find any
correlation between the amount of charter schools in that state and our state?

Ms. Tenney: Minnesota’s the home of the first charter school. It has, it’s
very far ahead. It's very much more mature in the charter movement than we
are. We're new at it.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Well, that’s because, another follow-
up, I'm sorry. Follow-up? Thank you, Madam Chair. So, you think that the
charter school experiment in Minnesota has proved to be something that has
worked very well for them and it's beginning to work for us here in New
Hampshire?

Ms. Tenney: They're happy with it.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19:  Yeah. Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  That leads into one more question I'd like
to ask, and I know we do need to move on because we have nine more people
who would like to speak in twenty-five minutes. But, with regard to
Minnesota where you said that they're paying sixty-eight percent of the class,
and therefore, obviously, they're payments to charter schools are much higher
also.

Ms. Tenney: Oh yeah.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: I know I'd looked into a few years ago the
idea about whether there are states that pay more per pupil to charter
schools than to all other public schools and at that time there weren’t. But,
there may be now.

Ms. Tenney: I don’t think there are. Yeah.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook. D. 21:  You don’t think there are any states that
pay more per pupil to a charter school than to other public schools?

Ms. Tenney: I don’t think so, but they may spend more per pupil because
there are many, many states where philanthropic monies have gone into
charter schools.
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Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  So, we would be the first state in the
country to pay more per pupil to a charter school than to other public school
students?

Ms. Tenney: 1 don’t know the, I could research that for you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: What that leads me to is the inequity,
obviously. ‘

Ms. Tenney: Right.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  And, that the inequity in my mind would,
in terms of educational policy, say that we were favoring the governance
structure that exists in charter schools as opposed to the governance
structure that exists in all other public schools. And, that there would be an
incentive for all other public schools to turn themselves into charter schools
to get the greater per pupil funding. And, when we're talking thousands of
dollars per student, we're talking a lot of money. Doesn’t that flow from the
policy?

Ms. Tenney: I...

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: That’s been suggested?

Ms. Tenney: It may be the, you know, there are unintended consequence,
and you may be thinking of an unintended consequence that I haven’t spent a
lot of time thinking about, but it could be.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you.

Ms. Tenney: I would, I am not going to...

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Oh, now we have fourteen people who
want to speak.

Ms. Tenney: I am not going to stay because the House has the home
education bill before it that I...

Senator Iris W, Estabrook, D. 21:  Sure.

Ms. Tenney: ...would like to hear what everybody’s saying.

A
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Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  You're also responsible for. Thank you
very much.

Senator Molly Kelly, D. 10:  Thank you.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19:  Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Okay. I will begin calling everyone who's
signed up to speak. We will be ending the hearing at ten past ten, and if we
are not through everyone and they would like to return, we’ll come back next
Tuesday morning. The Committee only meets once a week. Call Denise
Perron from Strong Foundations, which has a focus on early learning.

Denise Perron, Strong Foundations: Yes, thank you. I'm actually just going
to quickly read straight through this letter. 'm Denise Perron. I'm on the
Board of Strong Foundations. This is from...

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  If you could summarize it...

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Yeah.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  ...we could get copies of it.
Ms. Perron: I underlined, so I'll do...

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Okay. We could get copies of the full
letter...

Ms. Perron: And, I'll hand a copy, okay.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  ...which we do read.

Ms. Perron: Great. This is from Beth McClure, the Founder and Director of
Strong Foundations, which opened in September of '07. The mission of Strong
Foundations is to improve outcomes in early literacy has already made a
difference in the achievement of children who attend. We’re reaching our
youngest students assuring they learn to read before they are identified for
reading difficulties. It's a compelling case for the children who are helped.
They don’t have the struggles and disappointments they otherwise would
have with learning to read. It's a compelling case financially. It often costs
one and a half times as much to educate a child with a learning disability as
it costs to educate children who learn typically. We can see how much more
difficult it becomes to correct reading difficulties once the students have left
first and second grades.
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We have to help these children start over and the process is difficult.
Education is costly for them emotionally, and for schools, it’s costly
financially. We've done all this and provided a building on twenty dollars and
fifty cents a day per student. This is thirty percent of what the state averages
and we have no way to raise revenue beyond that. The financial struggle is
taking a toll on us; however, we continue to provide the education described.
State aid in an amount provided to other poor public schools is sorely needed
for next year. We need the state aid adjustment or the stop-gap that they've
been talking about this morning for 2008 that’s provided by this bill.

I'll just leave a copy because there’s obviously more information in here
supporting what I said. Thank you.

Please see prepared testimony submitted by Ms. Perron, Strong
Foundations, attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #5.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you very much.

Senator Molly Kelly, D. 10:  Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Call Deb Byrne from the Cocheco Arts
and Technology Charter Academy.

Deb Byrne, Cocheco Arts and Technology Charter Academy: Good morning,
Madam Chair. Good morning, everyone.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Morning. Welcome.

Ms. Byrne: Good morning to my students, parents, and staff who are
behind me. I am the proud and passionate Director of Cocheco Arts and
Technology, a charter high school.

I will be brief because I know our students are prepared to speak, and I want
you to hear from them. I echo what Representative Casey said this morning
and Roberta Tenney. I've worked close with Rob. She and I submitted a grant
with the help of Eileen Liponis from Seacoast, and the business manager
from my school to the U.S. Department of Education for five million dollars
for another round of charter school funding. I had a call last week that’s in
the process of being reviewed in a favorable manner.

Also, I will be representing New Hampshire for the very first time along with
Eileen at the National Alliance, National Charter School Week in
Washington D.C. We will be their guests. We will be meeting with Senators
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Gregg and Sununu and our other congressional delegation from New
Hampshire as well as a variety of other people in the U.S. Department of
Education. So, yes, New Hampshire charter schools are charging strong, and
we have caught the eye of the nation.

I will share one success story of one of our graduates from last year, and then,
you will hear from our students. Leo Janetos Hurley of Rollinsford is a
freshman student at North Carolina School for the Arts in Winston-Salem.
Leo is a music major and a composer. Leo wrote a composition in September.
In March, it was performed by the Winston-Salem Symphony because his
composition won for the entire college. Leo was then asked by the Chancellor
of North Carolina School for the Arts to write a stand-alone composition to
honor poet laureate Maya Angelou for her eightieth birthday. Leo wrote that
composition and it’s going to be performed and Leo will meet Maya Angelou
in a few short weeks. When Eileen and I go to Washington D.C., we will be
meeting Maya Angelou’s stepson and going to two of the Maya Angelou
charter schools down there.

So, once again, we are well on our way with our charter school program in
New Hampshire, and I would ask your support for all the individuals behind
me, and what you've heard from me this morning to carry us over with a gap
bill that you heard this morning. Thank you very much.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Thank you. Questions? Seeing none. Call
Beth Allard, also from Cocheco Arts and Technology Charter Academy.

Beth Allard. Cocheco Arts and Technology Charter Academy: Thank you
very much. I will also be brief because I'd like the students to be able to
speak. I did want to let you know this, and I will follow it up with some
contact either via e-mail or phone. I'm in a unique position in that I'm a
taxpayer, I'm a voter, I'm a teacher that’s taught privately, publicly, and at
Cocheco Arts and Technology Academy, been a union member, still get union
benefits. I don’t currently pay dues right now, but I'm also a collaborator with
other teachers around New Hampshire, a strong supporter of education, and
especially public education, and a pioneer in the landscape of New
Hampshire's education.

In my follow-up to you, I will let you know that I'm able to answer questions
from wearing all those different hats. And, I look at charter schools as not
something separate, different, or opposing, but part of the piece of the puzzle
of New Hampshire’s educational landscape. I feel very strongly that this is
important as our early education and early intervention programs, to our
university system. I think (sic) we put all the pieces together, we'll have a
very strong educational program. So, thank you.
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Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you. Call Zachary Arnault, also
from Cocheco Arts and Technology. Anyone...

Zachary Arnault, Cocheco Arts and Technology Charter Academy: Well, I'll
keep it short and just read what I have here. Hello. My name is Zach Arnault

and I am a sophomore at Cocheco Arts and Technology Academy, or CATA.

Before coming to CATA my freshman year, I attended a traditional public
school where more often than not, I felt unhappy with my education. I found
myself unchallenged, unmotivated, and unenthusiastic about my learning.
The first day I walked into CATA, all of that changed. I had finally found a
place where I, and many like myself, were not only able to learn, but actually
wanted to learn. I came home the first day from my new school and
remember telling my family about how I didn’t know I could actually be
excited about school. I had always had a very creative side that until
attending CATA, I was unable to express nearly as much, especially in my
education.

CATA allows students the option to learn and demonstrate their knowledge
through their art, which is very (sic) helpful way for students such as me to
prepare for a career in the arts, as well as a wide variety of other careers that
require creativity of any kind. As far as career opportunities in preparing for
the real world, CATA can’t be beat. As part of our graduation requirements,
we are asked to put in volunteer hours and participate in independent
studies where we work with mentors from outside the school to help us see
what it’s like to work in the real world. It's like a career day that lasts more
than just one day where students can actually choose to learn about a
particular career that they are interested in.

I feel that I've been given an opportunity at CATA to excel in the arts, while
at the same time, excelling in my academics. I've at long last found the
educational environment that I had been searching for. I have found that I
could be challenged, motivated, and enthusiastic about my education. I
believe that all of this has been a result of the opportunities provided for me
at Cocheco Arts and Technology Academy. Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you very much.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19;: Chairman?

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you for coming. Senator
Letourneau has a question for you if you'll stay?
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Mr. Arnault: Oh, oh. I'm sorry.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D, 19:  Actually, I don’t have a question. [
just wanted to have a comment. Thank you for coming and expressing your
opinion and your success.

Mr. Arnault: Thank you very much.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you.

Senator Molly Kelly, D. 10: Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Call Megan Williams.

Megan Williams, Cocheco Arts and Technology Charter Academy: Good
morning.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Welcome.

Ms. Williams: My name is Megan Williams and I'm a sophomore at the
Cocheco Arts and Technology Academy. My passion is politics. I couldn’t
bear...

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  You're in the right place.

Senator Joseph A. Foster, D. 13:  Foolish young lady, though.

Ms. Williams: Of course, I was excited about the upcoming presidential
election, and I wanted to volunteer. CATA allowed me to volunteer on the
campaign and get credit for it. They gave me extra time to work on it, and our
social studies teacher Mr. Keith volunteered to act as my mentor to compile
my, and document my work so I could present it for academic credit at the
end of the year. Independent study is a huge part of CATA.

Since it opened, all students are required to have at least one independent
study to graduate. It's a fantastic learning opportunity because it gives you a
chance to learn about something that might not be taught in school. It also
allows students to take more responsibility for the education. CATA is also
very flexible, and teachers want to make sure that you really understand the
subject, you don’t just memorize it. There are kids at our school who wanted
to drop out before they came to CATA because they just weren't learning at
their other schools.
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But, what they needed wasn't to be tested or held back. What they needed
was for somebody to take an extra minute to rephrase what they said in
class. At CATA, teachers will stay after school for as long as you need to help
you. No one school can meet every student’s needs or suit every student’s
learning style. That's why it’s so important to have alternatives that, so each
student can succeed. Thank you.

Senator Joseph A. Foster, D. 13: Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you very much for coming on
behalf of Senator Letourneau.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19:  And, you said you worked for a
candidate, though, in the political process, and I don’t want to know who the
candidate is, but could you tell me whether or not that particular candidate
supported charter schools?

Ms. Williams:  Actually, coincidentally, they did.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you very much. Call Katie
Fitzpatrick.

Katie Fitzpatrick, Cocheco Arts and Technology Charter Academy: Good
morning. My name is Katie Fitzpatrick, and I'm a senior at Cocheco Arts and
Technology Academy. In the past, my experience with both the federal and
state educational systems, I found that the people making big decisions about
our schools want to see positive results. So, I'm here with some results,
specifically, the positive impact that CATA has had on me, a plain Jane from
Dover, New Hampshire.

I started at CATA when it opened in January of 2005, and I'm a proud
member of the first senior class to graduate after attending all four years at
CATA. Thanks to my school, I've become not only a strong leader, but one
extremely determined human being. During my time at CATA, I've taken the
initiative to organize dances, proms, movie nights, and other fundraisers, and
I now drive up to Concord on a fairly regular basis to advocate charter
schools.

In the past two years, I've spoken in front of the New Hampshire State
Senate, the New Hampshire Department of Education, my local school board,
and members of the press. I've remained very active within my school
community. Here’s a more concrete example of the leadership and
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organizational skills I've picked up at CATA. In my junior year, I chose to
design a class trip as my independent study. I researched prices for air fare,
hotels and tickets, created packages, booked reservations, created itineraries,
motivated students to participate, and held meetings. You name it, I did it.
At age 16, I was doing the same work as a professional travel agent.

Unfortunately, the plans didn't work out last year, but I was determined to
continue on with project. So, I tried again this past fall. I am happy to say
that in two days, I, with nine of my classmates and two chaperones, will fly to
Florida on CATA’s first ever class trip to Walt Disney World. We're staying at
a Disney Hotel for a full week and attending special events just for our group.
This isn’t just a weekend in Boston, it's an all-out vacation, and I made it
happen. I feel pride and confidence in myself that I never once felt in my
entire educational career prior to CATA. I can safely say that if I had
attended any other public high school, none of this would have happened.

I've also been very successful in the college admissions process. 've made my
decision and will be majoring in drama at the Hoffstra University Honors
College, where I've been offered an $18,000 presidential scholarship
renewable for all four years. This is an accomplishment I am extremely proud
of as it is, in fact, historically, the most difficult year for college admissions
ever. CATA’s helped me to hone my artistic skills as well. [ was recently cast
in the world premiere of the original play Roadside America, to be performed
at the distinguished Players’ Ring Theatre in Portsmouth. I've been given
multiple opportunities to perform at my school and get my foot in the door in
other community theatre groups. I co-starred in my first film last year as a
student project, which opened my eyes to a completely different aspect of
performance that I had not yet explored.

The point that I am making here is that CATA can and does yield positive
results in many respects. Allowing such an incredible institution to fall
through the cracks of our system would be a terrible shame. CATA provides
so much opportunity for so many students on so many different levels.
Students realize their potential and shine at CATA, even through the
turbulent years of adolescence. It's not just about quiz grades and GPAs, it’s
about individuals. Numbers and scores on a paper don't accurately reflect a
school’s impact on students the same way its standardized test scores can’t
accurately reflect a student’s intelligence.

So, instead of going through the paperwork, ask us. We'll give you the results.
Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook. D. 21: Thank you and congratulations.
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Ms. Fitzpatrick: Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: We have seven more people who'd like to
speak in ten minutes. I'll call Eileen, sorry I cannot read the handwriting,
Lipenis?

Eileen Liponis, New Hampshire Public Charter School Association:
Liponis. My husband told me I'd be spelling it for the rest of my life.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Liponis. Excuse me. Apologize.

Ms. Liponis: I'm here on behalf of the New Hampshire Public Charter
School Association. We are a member, non-profit member organization to
support and advocate for charter schools in New Hampshire. The two-part
purpose of the Association is to provide a structure for charter schools and to
share best practices with all public schools and to work together to identify
and secure resources for charter schools.

The Association expects to host an annual conference to share best practices
with district schools, as well as seek other ways to help charter schools and
public schools to connect in the spring of 2009. I want to hit a couple, I know I
don’t have a lot of time, but I want to hit a couple arguments head-on. One
was that the state would be paying more for charter schools than more
traditional schools. I have one data point on me and more that can follow.

Florida is an example that was given along with Colorado and Texas to the
House Education Committee by Todd Ziebarth, Senior Policy Analyst with
the National Alliance for Public Charter Schools. And, on average in Florida,
charter schools get $5,260.91 compared to the state contribution of 3,546. So,
that’s one example of where the state does pay more.

Please see “2002-2003 Florida Charter Finance Data”, attached
hereto and referred to as Attachment #6.

I wanted to submit also for evidence the two-year transition grant that we
asked for last year, and if you do the math, it’s really the same thing that
we're asking for in the second year of what we asked for last year with a two-
year transition.

Please see “Charter School Transition Grant: Proposal Summary
Page”, attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #7.
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A copy of the budget where we were imitially included as a budget line. In the
first year, there was 333,000 that was appropriated in addition to adequacy
for three schools.

Please see “Budget”, attached hereto and referred to as Attachment
#8.

The State Department of Education, their statement of support for
sustainable funding, which we are seeing in House Bill, Senate Bill 539, with
the addition of 2000 to the adequacy of 3,450 gets us that much closer to
sustainable funding.

Please see “Statement from the NH State Board of Education”,
attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #9,

Two letters from the Charter School Development Corporation and Self Help,
stating the criteria of sustainable funding in order to help with facilities
funding.

Please see prepared testimony submitted by Ms. Liponis, New
Hampshire Public Charter School Association, attached hereto and
referred to as Attachment #10 and Attachment #11.

A map of the charter schools in New Hampshire excluding three that we
didn’t have the data for.

Please see “Map of Charter Schools in New Hampshire”, attached
hereto and referred to as Attachment #12.

Documentation from our current democratic presidential candidates and
their support of charter schools.

Please see “Education” and “On the Issues, Hillary Clinton on School
Choice”, attached hereto and referred to as Attachment #13 and
Attachment #14.

And then, to hit a few arguments head-on, the first one of accountability and
self-electing. One of the things that charter schools get accused of is draining
the best and brightest students from the most engaged parents. For students,
all the schools will argue that we entertain a full range of students’ strengths
and capabilities. As for the parent drain, I have two arguments. They're right
and wrong at the same time, and here’s how we are addressing where they
are right.
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Parents are most engaged when their child is in crisis or not flourishing.
Those parents come to a charter school to exercise a public option that might
work for their child. If their child does turn around and begin to flourish and
succeed, that parent becomes more secure and less engaged when they are
confident that the school is meeting their child’s needs. I personally have had
parents that in the beginning of the year, I thought for sure were going to be
very involved, and I was going to have a lot of help, and that once their child
is doing well, they’re pretty much more than happy to wave at me and drop
off and pick up.

Also, charter schools were designed to be living laboratories. To talk, to say
that the districts can do this, they had the opportunity from 1995 to 2003 and
they were unable to exercise that option. And also, as living laboratories, you
cannot force that innovation experiment on parents in a district school where
they are not looking for that option. Now, there are those students who may
need a public option, but who do not have the parents with the ability or
desire to be engaged. We want to reach those students as well, and we are
reaching out to local guidance counselors and making them aware of the
charter schools in their area and their missions. This is not easy. Let me give
you an example.

We’ve had parents come to us saying that it was their teacher who refer (sic)
them to look at the charter school for their child, but asked that the parents
not mention them by name because they did not want to get in trouble with
their district. This is where we need to break down the barriers and focus on
what works for the student to engage the greatest number of students.

" Representative Kim Casey and I have talked about this extensively, and I am
grateful for the tremendous amount of work she has done in the Charter
School Oversight Committee and plans to do to strengthen charter schools.

And, House Bill 1642 is reflective of her committee work that is in front of
you due to the bi-partisan support we received in the House. We hope to
receive the same consideration in the Senate.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook. D. 21:  Could I ask that you submit anything
else in writing so we can give another person or two a chance who's come
today?

Ms. Liponis: Certainly.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you. And, we will make copies of
all the documentation for all members of the Committee so we can all take a
good look at that.
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Ms. Liponis; Thank you.

Please see prepared testimony submitted by Ms. Liponis, New
Hampshire Public Charter School Association, attached hereto and
referred to as Attachment #15.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Call John Davis from Surry, and if I
could ask you to be brief, I'd like to at least allow one of the students from the
Academy of Science and Design who came today to speak.

John Davis: I welcome this opportunity to come and talk to you today, and

I'd also like to introduce our fifth and sixth grade class and their teacher, Deb
McGahie, who is studying, just happens to be this week, how a bill becomes a
law. So, appropriate for them...

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Goes through a long process.

Mr. Davis:  ...to be here today. There’s certainly been a lot of good points
raised and one thing, seems that there’s a lot of mess about charter schools.
We're all, I don’t think they were purposely set up to fail, but without the tax-
based funding...

Senator Iris W, Estabrook, D. 21: That’s right.

Mr. Davis: When we started our school, we went along with the three year
grant and the state money, and we had a pretty balanced budget for three
years. Well, we didn’t end up getting, we had one-year grant, had to reapply
with a little bit more restrictive grant, but, so, we never got our three years
grant. We knew there’'d need to be money to be raised. And, we are raising a
lot of money. This year, we have to raise 128,000 just to keep the lights on
and pay the teachers. So, we are raising money, and there is money out there,
people are interested in charter schools and impressed. We have a 50,000 gift
with a dollar for dollar match up to a hundred that somebody who has just
observed this school and decided to give this money to help us along.

So, these people are out there. And, these charter schools are doing a good
job. Another school had a $50,000 grant. Now, somebody’s come forward and
gave us money for a lobbyist. So, people are out there behind these charter
schools. They’re doing a good job. They fit right in with this drop-out keeping
kids in schools. This million dollars or a little over a million dollars is money
well spent. I know the astronomical deficit you have in the budget, but this
money is money well spent to keep these schools up and going because they
have so much potential to fit into everything that we need. And, I don’t want
to take away anybody else’s time.
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And, T don’t have any written testimony, but I do have a copy of a little slide
show that we developed last year that I would leave with you that maybe you
can amongst you pass around, show it, and look at the faces of these people
that are in this video and see the school that we built, not the school that I
built, the school that we built, the community built, the local community. We
draw students from three different districts, so, these are people coming from
fifteen and twenty miles away to our school, and they're not all the rich
families. It’s costing tons of money to drive with the price of gas today, but
because they believe in this. And, it is a good mixture of kids.

So, please look at that video and just think about, this is our roots. This is
how our country was built with these small, little community groups, and all
the tragedies that we’re facing today, these schools have a great place. And,
education, that's the one that’s important. These kids are the doctors that are
going to be operating on you guys later. And, we want, I want them to know
the difference from left to right.

Due to the media submitted by Mr. Davis, those documents are not
attached to this transcript, but are available in the original bill file.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Thank you very much. I would like to call
Jennifer Starr, and we are out of time.

Senator Molly Kelly, D. 10: I just want to thank you, John. I know how
passionate you feel about the Surry School, and thank you so much for
coming to testify.

Mr. Davis: Thank you for your help.

Jennifer Starr. Academy of Science and Design: I was just the driver. I can
come back next week, but we have Chadd Loring and Bobby Glossop who'd
like to speak.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  We are completely out of time.
Ms. Starr:  Can one of the students speak?

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Well, one more student to speak.

Ms. Starr:  So, I'm not a student, so then...
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Senator Iris W, Estabrook, D. 21: Oh, I'm sorry. I didn’t understand what
vou were telling me. Yes. Chadd Loring. I was just going to pick the first one
on the page, and...

Ms. Starr:  Alright. That’s fine. No, I'll come back next week.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Okay. Chadd Loring. Welcome.

Chadd Loring, Academy of Science and Design: My name is Chadd Loring
and I'm a student at the Academy for Science and Design. The funding that
our school receives is very low. Everyone has had to work their hardest so
that we can function properly as a school. I really like our school, and it could
be much better if we had the proper funding. I didn’t know what to think at
first, but as the year progressed, I started to like it more. I have learned more
this year than in all my other years of school.

I really think that this bill should get passed because everybody, most of the
teachers have had to help us learn as much as possible without some of the
resources that they need. If we had a higher budget, they could buy us some
of those resources and we could learn even more. The more we learn now, the
better prepared we will be in the future. Our school has taught us many
things including better study habits, time management skills, how to do
proper research, and better organizational skills. This school is good for most
of us, and it really helps us all. Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you very much.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19: Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21;  And, our apologies. Unfortunately, the
way the Senate is structured, we are only allotted an hour and a half a week

to meet together. So, what we will do is just recess the hearing on House Bill
1642,

Hearing was recessed at 10:08 a.m.
Respectfully submltted

Amanda Jurta W

Senate Committee Secretary
6/11/08

15 Attachments



HB 1642
Testimony of Rep. Ken Weyler
Committee on Education, April 15, 2008 Room SH 103

. Charter Schools are public schools, and as such should have the same
funding mechanisms, as all other public schools.

. The 1995 legislation for charter schools assumed that Local Education
Agencies, (LEA’s) would be the starting point for charter schools. There
were a few tentative beginnings, but the cumbersome process made this
a long drawn out task.

. Frequently the group which came together to begin the charter process
were not all from the same district. So a secondary process was put into
law which allowed the State Board of Education to grant charters. This
also allowed the newly forming charter school to seek locations in more
than one district.

. The charter school initiative was encouraged by the federal government,
after seeing success in several states. The first schools were started by
federal grants. There was anticipation that the grants would continue to
flow after startup. But the federal government wants to participate only
in beginning the process, not in sustaining it.

. By accepting the federal grants, the state becomes obligated to continue
the existence of the charter schools. If there is insufficient action on the
state part it may affect future grants by the federal governments in
other programs. We must show good faith in our role.

. We have now had four years of charter school development under the
secondary system of the state granting the charters. We have had some
excellent schools. Some have taken new directions in curriculum
specialization; others have concentrated on a major problem in our
system, student disinterest and leaving before achieving a diploma.

. These laboratories of education have enriched our overall education
offerings. We must make a special effort to preserve and encourage
these innovations.

. Less than two percent of our students are involved in charter schools,
but in testimony we will hear, these students were not flourishing in the
standard system. That has changed for them, now that they are in
charter schools. It would be cruel to take away from them the
opportunity to excel, now that they have found their way.

. We organized school districts to give geographical responsibility for an
area’s students. In most cases the education for those students took
place in the same geographical area. But we have had exceptions to this
for decades. Special Ed. and Voc-Tech have been part of our system for
all this time. These options have allowed out-of-district placements for
that whole period. If charter school students have out-of-district
placement, there is precedent. This should not be treated any
differently.

10. The key to the obligation for the spending support is the resident of the
student, not the location of the school. Please support HB 1642.

AHiachment # |
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Rep. Weyler, Reck. 8
February 29, 2008
2008-0796h

04/09

Amendment to HB 1642-FN

Amend the bill by replacing all after the enacting ctause with the following:

1 Charter and Open Enrollment Schools; Funding. Amend RSA 194-B:11, I to read as follows:
I.{a) There shall be no tuition charge for any pupil attending an open enrollment or charter
conversion school located in that pupil’s resident district. Funding limitations in this chapter shall
not be applicable to charter conversion or open enrollment schools located in a pupil's resident
district. For [any-ether] a charter or open enrollment school authorized by the school district, the
pupil’s resident district shall pay to such school an amount equal to not less than 80 percent of that

district’s average cost per pupil as determined by the department of education using the most recent

available data as reported by the district to the department. [Forany-charter schoelauthorized by
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(b) For a charter school authorized by the state board of education pursuant to

RSA 194-B:3-a, the state shall pay tuition directly to the charter school for each pupil who
is a resident of this state in attendance at such charter school in an amount not less than
80 percent of the sending district’s average cost per pupil, as determined by the department
of education using the most recent available data as reported by the district to the
department. Such tuition shall be deducted from the adequate education grant that is sent
to the school district in which the pupil resides. The pupil attending the charter school
shall be counted in the average daily membership in residence in the school district in
which the pupil resides for the purposes of computing aid for special education, English as
a second language, and the free and reduced-price lunch program. The school district in
which the charter school pupil resides shall direct not less than 80 percent of any special
education, English as a second language, and the free and reduced-price lunch program

aid that is attributable to such pupil to the charter school in which the pupil is enrolled.

Mchmendt-#7_
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Amendment to HB 1642-FN
-Page 2 -

() The commissioner of the department of education shall calculate and distribute
charter school tuition payments as set forth herein. The first payment shall be 30 percent of the per
pupil amount multiplied by the number of eligible pupils present on the first day of the current
school year. Such payment shall be made no later than 15 days after the department of education
receives the attendance report. The December 1 payment shall be 30 percent of the per pupil
amount multiplied by the membership on November 1, and the March 1 payment shall be 30 percent
of the per pupil amount multiplied by the membership on February 1. To calculate the final
payment, the commissioner of the department of education shall multiply the per pupil amount by
the average daily membership in attendance for the full school year, and subtract the total amount
of the first 3 payments made. The remaining balance shall be the final payment. Eligible charter
schools shall report membership in accordance with RSA 189:1-d. In this subparagraph,
“membership” shall be as defined in RSA 189:1-d, II. Tuition amounts shall be prorated on a per
diem basis for pupils attending a school for less than a full school year.

(d) The source of funds for payments under this section shall be moneys from the
education trust fund established in RSA 198:39.

2 Charter Schools; 2008-2009 Supplemental Grant. A charter school which does not receive an
adequate education grant in the 2009 fiscal year shall receive, for such fiscal year, a supplemental
grant from funds available in PAU 06, 03, 03, 01, 27, class 97.

3 Effective Date. This act shall take effect July 1, 2008.




Testimony for House Bill 1642

My name is Arthur Hanson, Superintendent of Schools in SAU 16. I have had the
experience of being involved with three “pilot” charter schools during the past four years,
The Great Bay eLearning Charter School, the Seacoast Charter School and the newly
opened Virtual Learning Academy Charter School.

Charter schools are public schools that provide a plethora of options for all students,
particularly for students who flourish in “non- traditional” environments. The Great Bay
eLearning Charter School (GBeCS) is an excellent example of student successes in a
project based, technology rich environment. This year marks the first year that the school
has had 12" grade students. All thirty-four (34) senior students are applying for post
secondary education opportunities. To date, eleven (11) seniors have been accepted as
“early decision” applicants with many of the students receiving academic scholarships
some upward of $20,000.

E]

The Virtual Learning Academy Charter School (VLACS) opened its classes last week
with over 700 students enrolled from 127 communities in New Hampshire. The school
employees 43 part time certified New Hampshire teachers and some of the stories that
have been heard from the students, parents, guardians and others regarding this
opportunity are heartwarming. The Seacoast Charter School was located in two of the
SAU 16 towns for three (3) years and SAU 16’s close connection with the school gave all
of us a close-up view of the successes of their students and how positive relationships
between School Administrative Units and charter schools can be developed.

The opportunities for students in New Hampshire to access charter schools allows for
numerous students, many for the first time, to experience unprecedented academic and
social successes. The current funding legislation for charter schools is not adequate for
charter schools to have a sustainable funding future. I urge Legislators to support House
Bill 1639. This bill would provide sufficient funding for charter schools to continue to
permit many of our New Hampshire children to have a bright and successful educational

future.

Sincerely,

Arthur L. Hanson
Superintendent of Schools

Miachment#3



Reasons to Support Charter School Funding

Public Charter schools are successfully serving a disparate group of grateful
students and parents, despite the low level of funding received from the
state.

There are approximately 400 students statewide (not including students of
the new Virtual Learning Academy Charter School).

These schools were approved by the state and should be supported by the
state at a monetary level sufficient to provide for their continued existence.

This bill only provides for one more year of funding and is passed with the
understanding that the charter school law will be rewritten in an effort to
ameliorate some of the problems the existing charter schools face, and in
anticipation of the success of SB 539. There is an extension of the
moratorium on any new charter schools till this can be accomplished. (2010)

The House Education Committee determined that the education policy of
charter schools is sound, and indicated as such in a bipartisan vote of 12-2.

Passing from Education on to the 2™ House committee, Finance, the bill
again received strong bipartisan support with a 16-8 OTP from the full
Finance Committee in order to continue on to the Senate. The bill passed to
the Senate, with a House vote 204-118

Our constituents support charter schools in great numbers and wish to see
them continue to operate, and thrive.

The educational opportunities charters provide public school students can
greatly enrich and strengthen all public schools. Collaboration between
public charter schools and more traditional public schools can allow for all
public schools to have opportunities to be more innovative.

Afachment +4



April 15, 2008

Dear Members of the Senate Education Committee:

I regret that [ cannot personally be present to testify today on HB 1642; however, our school
does not have the staff that allows me to be present. [ have asked Denise Perron who is on our
board, to read my comments for the record. 1 am offering comment as the Founder and Director
of the Strong Foundations Charter School which opened September 2007.

Strong Foundations’ mission to improve outcomes in early literacy has already made a difference
in the achievement of children who attend. Our entire first grade class is reading. 1/3 of our class
for children ages 5 and 6 year are already reading first grade books. Our second, third, and fourth
graders have all made significant growth that is noticeable by their teachers and parents. We are
reaching our youngest students, assuring they learn to read before they are identified for reading
difficulties, and we’re teaching them in a way that lets them read. This is turning out just as we
had hoped. Even in our brief time open our school is reaching its goals in literacy.

It is a compelling case for the children who are helped. They don’t have the struggles and
disappointments they otherwise would have had with learning to read. It’s a compelling case
financially. It often costs 1 ¥ times as much to educate a child with a learning disability as it
costs to educate children who learn typically. We can see how much more difficult it becomes to
correct reading difficulties once the students have left first and second grades without the
prerequisite skills to continue on grade level. We have to help these children start over, and the
process is difficult. Education is costly for them emotionally and for the schools it is costly
financially.

At Strong Foundations the reading tutorials of children who have IEP’s are reinforced in the
classroom, giving them even more help.

We have done all this and provided a building on $20.50 a day per student. This is 30% of what
the state average is, and we have no way to raise revenue beyond that. Their may be ways to
raise revenue but surely with such limited staff we must spend every minute of everyone’s time
just trying to meet the core education needs. We are a very poor public school. The financial
struggle is taking its toll on us, but we continue to give it all to our students.

State aid in an amount provided to other poor public schools is sorely needed for next year. Our
school is an authorized New Hampshire public school. and our children are very much deserving
of a public school where they learn to read, like other children, before they slip into failure.

We need the state atd adjustment for 2008 provided by HB1642.

Sincerely, Beth McClure. Founder, Director, Specialist in Reading and Special Education

Miachment#5



Thomas B. Fordham Institute - 2002-2003 Florida Charter Finance Data

® E

DHAM)

)

Home > 2002-2003 Florida Charter Finance Data

2002-2003 Florida Charter Finance Data

The link on the right provides the full state chapter, Including the data and our analysis. For the basic

data alone, please see below.

1) View_Printed Report

= State
L] S OWar
s Miami-Dade
State
District Schools Charter Schools All Schools
Enrpilment 2,448,324 49,733 2,498,057
Federal Revenue $1,978,057,859 $23,022,799 $2,001,080,658
State Revenue $8,683,712,156 $261,640,938 $8,945,353,094
Local Revenue $8,543,543,346 $28,987,748 $8,572,531,094
Other Revenue $0 30 $0
Indeterminate
Revenue $-31,286,360 $31,286,360 40
Total Revenue $19,174,027,001 $344,937,845 $19,518,964,846
District Schools Charter Schools All Schools
P R erane $807.92 $452.93 $801.05
. S R et $3,546.80 $5,260.91 $3,580.92
Local Revenue
Per Student $3,489.55 $582.87 $3,431.68
Other Revenue
Per Student $0.00 $0,00 $0.00
Indeterminate
Revenue {$12.78) $629.09 $0.00
Per Student
Total Ravenue
per Student $7,831.49 $6,935.79 $7,813.66
Variance $(895.70)
Percentage
Variance {11.44)%
District Schools Charter Schools All Schools
Percentage of
Federal Revenue 10.3% 6.7% 10.3%
Fercentage of 45.3% 75.9% 45.8%
Percentage of
Local Revenue 44.6% B.4% 43.9%
Percentage of
Other Revenue 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Percentage of
Indeterminate -0.2% 9.1% 0.0%
Revenue
District Schools Charter Schools All Schools

Percentage of
Total Revenue

98.23%

1.77%

http://www.edexcellence.net/institute/charterfinance/reportdata.cfm?state=FL&year=2003

Page 1 of 3
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’ Thomas B. Fordham Institute - 2002-2003 Florida Charter Finance Data

Miami-Dade

District Schools Charter Schools All Schools
P 98.01% 1.99%
Back to.top
Broward
District Schools Charter Schools All Schools
Enroliment 251,344 11,287 262,631
Faderal Revenue $176,487,562 $2,531,046 $175,018,608
State Revenue $5880,268,955 $53,773,404 $934,042,359
Local Revenue $878,575,512 46,723,020 $885,298,532
Other Revenue $0 £0 $0
Indeterminate
Revenue $-7,771,896 $7,771,896 $0
Total Revenue %$1,927,560,133 $70,799,366 $1,998,359,499
District Schools Charter Schools All Schools
P e $702.18 $224.24 $681.64
Sta::r';?u%:l:; $3,502.25 $4,764.19 $2,556.48
Logaelrﬂset\::‘l;l:‘% $3,495.51 $595.64 $3,370.88
Other Revenue $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Indeterminate
Revenue ($30.92) $688.57 $0.00
Per Student
Total Revenue $7,669.01 $6,272.65 $7,609.00
Variance $(1396.36)
Percentage (18.21)%
District Schools Charter Schools All Schools
Percentage of
Federal Revenue 9.2% 3.6% 9.0%
hercentage of 45.7% 76.0% a5.7%
Dercentage of 45.6% 9.5% 44.3%
Percentage of
Other Revenue 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Percentage of
Indeterminate -0.4% 11.0% 0.0%
Revenue
District Schools Charter Schools Al Schools
Percentage of
Total Revenue 96.46% 3.54%
District Schools Charter Schools All Schools
Percentage of
Enrollment 95.70% 4.30%
Back to.fop

http://www.edexcellence.net/institute/charterfinance/reportdata.cfm?state=FL&year=2003

Page 2 of 3
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Thomas B. Fordham Institute - 2002-2003 Florida Charter Finance Data

District Schools Charter Schools All Schools
Enroliment 359,175 7,464 366,639
Federal Revenue $338,535,737 $2,373,708 $£340,909,445
State Revenue $1,360,261,335 $38,778,156 $1,399,039,491
Local Revenue $1,169,176,976 $2,289,918 $1,171,466,894
Other Revenue $0 $0 $0
Indeterminate
Revenue $-4,813,990 $4,813,990 $0
Total Revenue $2,863,160,058 $48,255,772 $2,911,415,830
District Schools Charter Schools All Schools
Federal Revenue
Per Student $942.54 $318.02 $929.82
State Revenue
Per Student $3,787.18 $5,195.36 %$3,815.85
Local Revenue
Per Student $3,255.17 $306.80 $3,195.15
Other Revenue
Per Student $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Indeterminate
Revenue ($13.40) $644,96 $0.00
Per Student
Total Revenue
Per Student $7,971.49 $6,465.14 $7,940.82
Variance $(1506.35)
Percentage
Variance (18.90)%
District Schools Charter Schools All Schools
Percentage of
Federal Revenua 11.8% 4,9% 11.7%
Percentage of
State Revenue 47.5% B0.4% 48.1%
Percentage of
Local Revenue 40.8% 4.7% 40.2%
Percentage of
Other Revenue 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Percentage of
Indeterminate -0.2% 10.0% 0.0%
Revenue
District Schools Charter Schools All Schools
Percentage of
Total Revenue 98.34% 1.66%
District Schools Charter Schools All Schools
Percentage of
Enrofiment 97.96% 2.04%
Back to top

Copyright ©£2003-2008 The Thomas B, Fordham Institute. All Rights Reserved.

The Institute is neither connected with nor sponsored by Fordham University.

N/A = In five states - CA, GA, OH, SC and WI - we were unable to obtain statewlide data on charter
and/or district revenues, In those states, we used data from large districts as a proxy. Please see the
methodology section of the written report for more details,

http://www.edexcellence.net/institute/charterfinance/reportdata.cfm?state=FL&year=2003
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March 28, 2007
Charter School Transition Grant: Proposal Summary Page

Emergency funding is necessary for the three oldest charter schools in New Hampshire,
Cocheco Arts and Technology Academy (CATA), Franklin Career Academy (FCA), and
Seacoast Charter School (SCS) which have come to the end of the Federal Startup grant.

Reason for Need
1. Our 3 year federal startup grant expires June 2007
2. We have no other mechanism for generating operational income, such as local tax
revenue.
3. Our development operations have encountered insurmountabie roadblocks
a. Charitable foundations have said that public school funding should come from
public sources.
b. Foundations have cited weak charter school laws as a reason for our ineligibility
for grants.
4. Charter school funding is unlikely to be resolved this year while adequacy is defined.

Our proposed solution

We are requesting a two year Transition Grant, beginning on July 1, 2007 that would allow our
schools to remain open. Such a grant is an option provided for in Charter School Law: RSA
194-B. Surplus money from the education trust fund could be transferred to the budget line
called “charter school matching grants” (#060303012795) on page 1007 of the budget as a
Transition Grant for our three schools threatened with closure.

Projected Cost:

Our total projected need over a 2 year period is $1,800,000
Enroliment 2007-2008 2008-2009
07-08 08-09

CATA 70 80 $315,000 $360,000

SCS 60 80 $270,000 $360,000

FCA 50 60 $225,000 $270,000

TOTAL 180 220 $810,000 $990,000

2 Year Grand TOTAL $1,800,000

In addition, the Surry Charter Schoo! and the Equine Charter School may confront a similar
issue if the Federal Charter School Startup Grant is not renewed next fiscal year.

Possible Cost:

Enroliment 2007-2008 2008-2009
07-08 08-09
Surry Viltage 60 70 $270,000 $315,000
NH Equine Academy | 45 60 $202,500 $270,000

This would require an additional $773,500 over two years. &~ Qrv’br%qg] Lpo

Without a transition grant, our schools will close in June '07.

Allachment+7



March 29, 2007

To: The Honorable Governor John Lynch, New Hampshire State Senators and State
Representatives

Fr: Cocheco Arts & Technology Academy, Franklin Career Academy, Seacoast Charter
School

New Hampshire’s Original Charter Schools

The three original charter schools in New Hampshire, Cocheco Arts & Technology
Academy, Franklin Career Academy, and the Seacoast Charter School, have reached the
end of their eligibility for federal charter school startup funding and will close this June

without intervention. We therefore request Transition Grants of $1.800.000 be

authorized bv the Governor to keep these three schools operating through the next
biennium, as allowed by current charter school statute (RSA 194-B:11 .

NH Charter School History

e Charter schools began in New Hampshire in 2004 as an experimental pilot program
with a $7.2M federal grant distributed by the NH Department of Education (DOE).
Eight charter schools now operate in New Hampshire, with six more in the pipeline.
The school industry is now supportive of independent chartered public schools as
they can see the benefit to students who are not thriving in the larger district schools.

e Three years into the program, the pilot project is yielding measurably positive results,
some of which are as follows:

1) Our schools have performed well academically, based on standardized test
scores as well as subjective student evaluations.

2) Students who failed to thrive in traditional public schools now achieve at
higher levels, thus decreasing the pool of students potentially on the path to
dropping out.

3) The nearly 500 NH charter school students currently enrolled have actually
cost state taxpayers less to educate than if they had been in traditional public
schools.

4) Legislation has strengthened accountability requirements and financial
management guidelines for NH charter schools, making our laws among the
strongest models in the country.

5) Each school has vigorously developed and implemented its unique mission.

6) Each of our schools has a significant wait-list of prospective students,
reflecting a need for access to options for students who aren’t thriving.

7) Parents often talk of the transformative experiences their children have had in
our schools and the importance of having a choice of public educational
programs for their children. We have earned their trust and respect.

Despite this success, our three schools will be forced to close
without a swift funding solution.



The Original Charter School Funding Model Was Changed

When our three schools opened in 2004, the law was designed to fund charter schools
much like a stool with three legs:

~
Original NH Charter School Funding
2004-2005 “A Three Legged Stool”

vy
~ |
State Aid- Governor’s Charter School Grant- Federal Startup Grants-
Gave weighted aid at first Off-set lack of local tax 3’s (3 year program ends 6/07)

Also local funds

Charter schools enjoyed one short year operating under the original legislative funding
structure. At that point, the situation changed:

e The state’s Charter School Grant portion of the equation, critical to off-set the
lack of local tax dollars, was eliminated after year 1 of operation for the earliest
charter schools. Before that, charter schools ran efficiently with a combination of
state and supplemental federal funding.

o Despite the removal of this key revenue stream, there has been no replacement for
supplemental state funding for charter schools. The financial plans upon which
our schools were approved by the NH DOE were dependent on this funding.

° Federal startup grants are set to expire, while no realistic funding solution for
phase IT of the NH charter program is in place.

Thus, the funding we expect for the coming school year is much like a stool that has lost
two of its three legs. Not a comfortable place to sit. See below:

2007-2008 “A Prescription for Failure”

f
Current NHCharter School Funding ]

.

[

1
State Aid- h
Now Fixed at $3,598 + CPI
)

The State of New Hampshire has a duty to these excelling and
innovative choice public schools to provide a system of stable funding.



Current Charter School Funding Facts

e Current law will provide NH statewide charter schools with approximately $3705
per pupil in *07-’08 , about 29% of the state average. In 1995, NH policy was to
give charter school students 80% of the state average.

The NH state average cost per pupil for 2005-2006 is roughly $12,000
We have determined we need at minimum roughly $8,000 - $8500 per pupil to
operate in a lean but effective manner.

o Funding charter schools at this level would cost taxpayers just 66% of the
average total cost of other NH public schools.

o Allowing these thriving fledgling schools to close would mean essentially
discarding an innovative choice public school program that has taken 12 years to
build and has been a resounding success for our state.

Unless uncertainties regarding funding are fixed immediately, we will not be able to
adequately prepare for next year and future operation. We must be able to offer contracts
to teachers, sign leases for facilities for next year, and plan for expansion of programs.
Most importantly, we are not able to guarantee our students and parents the continued
operation of our schools, which are successfully transforming many young lives.

Request for Emergency Funding

The best possible solution for the short term is a Transition Grant to ensure the
continued operation of our three schools for the coming biennium.

We respectfully request that the Governor use his discretion under RSA 194-B:11. X

to release funds from the Education Trust Fund, which is currently carrying a surplus, and
grant $1.8 million proportionately to those charter schools whose federal startup grants
expire in June 2007. This amount will fill the gap between adequacy grants and our
projected minimum costs. Even at this level, our schools will continue to need to raise
significant funds and may not be able to accommodate significant growth, but it will keep
our students in the schools of their choice. As mentioned earlier, this intended
component of charter funding was used successfully in year 1 of the program.

This situation is extremely urgent. This transition grant would allow us to proceed with
the essential preparations for the coming year. This crisis cannot wait for public school
funding more generally to be resolved, nor can it wait until the end of this legislative
session. The very existence of these three fine examples of New Hampshire’s innovative
public school system hangs in the balance. The time to act is now.

On behalf of the students, parents and staff of our three schools, we thank you for your
serious consideration of this issue.
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Mon, Apr 14, 2008 2:41 PM

Subject: FW: Statement from the NH State Board of Education
Date: Tuesday, March 11, 2008 9:53 AM

From: Butler, Patricia <PButler@ed.state.nh.us>

To: <bill@seacoastcharterschool.org>

Conversation: Statement from the NH State Board of Education

Hi Bill: Here it is.

Patricia Butler

Administrative Assistant

State Department of Education
101 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301
603-271-3144

603-271-3830 (Fax)

From: Kincaid, Lori

Sent: Monday, March 10, 2008 1:41 PM

To: Department of Education includes VR; Superintendents
Cc: Butler, Patricia

Subject: Statement from the NH State Board of Education

The members of the State Board of Education at their February 13, 2008 meeting voted
unanimously to publicly acknowledge their continuing support for charter schools as an
important public school option in New Hampshire. The State Board of Education urges the
legislature to move expeditiously to provide sustainable long-term funding for New
Hampshire's charter school students.

Contact information for the State Board of Education members can be found on the
Department’s website at www.ed.state.nh.us/education/board/membership.htm.

Lori Kincaid

Public Information Office

NH Department of Education
(603) 271-6646

Page 1 of 2
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Charter Schools

Development Corporation
March 31, 2008

Eileen Liponis
Development Director
Seacoast Charter School
13 Church Road
Kingston, NH 03848

Dear Ms. Liponis:

As we recently discussed, the Charter Schools Development Corporation (CSDC) is a 501(c)(3)
tax-exempt, nonprofit corporation, that provides comprehensive financial services to charter
school organizations to help them lease or purchase facilities suited to their educational mission
and student enrollment. CSDC was formed for the sole mission of increasing the flow of capital
for charter school facilities and remains dedicated to helping charter schools find and finance
facilities, the “twin challenges” confronting virtually every newly-formed charter school in
America.

While CSDC’s programs are national in scope, we give priority to charter schools in those states
with charter school laws graded “A” or “B” by the Center for Education Reform (CER).
Pursuant to CER’s most recent ranking of state laws, New Hampshire received a “C” grade.
Grades are determined by examining many factors, including having multiple charter school
authorizers, caps on the number of schools or students allowed to attend charter schools, state &
local funding that follows the students, parity in funding with local districts, intercepts for per
pupil funding to secure a lease/loan and freedom from local collective bargaining. 95% of
CSDC’s credit enhancements to date have been to charter schools located in “A” and “B” graded
states.

In addition to the strength of the state law, CSDC also places significant emphasis on the school's
governance and leadership team (with a broad range of expertise represented on the board of
directors), its relationship with its authorizer (with specific focus on reporting and oversight
requirements, contract term and renewal, and contract revocation or suspension procedures),
strong fiscal management practices, competition from local, traditional public schools and
academic results that demonstrate year over year progress in meeting the school’s stated
objectives.

CSDC is willing to obligate credit enhancement funding in New Hampshire, however, it will
likely be difficult to attract substantial private sector capital to the state given the low per-pupil
reimbursement, the lack of any local support for state sponsored schools and the lack of any
separate, dedicated funding stream for facilities costs. Charter schools in your state must pay for
facilities out of the limited, precious operating dollars you receive. As a result, even with the
availability of credit enhancement from CSDC, charter schools may still find it difficult to obtain
facility lease and loan commitments,

Promuing excellence and comperition in public education by providing credit enhanceneny, financing and development services for charter school faciliries

7272 Park Circle Drive « Suite 265 « Hanover, MD 21076 + Tel (443) 561-1280 » Fax (443) 561-1281 » www.csdc.org

JMachment+1C



CSDC stands ready to assist and hopes that legislative improvements result in more parity for
public charter schools with the traditional public school districts. Ilook forward to the
possibility of working with you and others in New Hampshire.

Best Regards,

Wichalle (berat=
Michelle Liberati
Executive Vice President
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SELF = HELP

CREATING OWNERSHIP AND ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY

March 25, 2008

Eileen Liponis
Development Director
Seacoast Charter School
337 South Road
Brentwood, NH (03833

Dear Ms. Liponis:

As a follow-up to our recent conversation, I want to elaborate on Self-Help's guidelines for lending to
charter schools.

When analyzing a school, we first examine the charter laws of the applicant’s state. We assess the length
of charters, the eligible charter authorizers, per pupil funding trends, and if the state allows financial
intercepts; long charter terms, authorizers outside of local school districts, and the ability of lenders to
intercept money from school districts are favorable for securing a loan. We especially favor states that
offer some sort of dedicated facilities funding — as Minnesota and Washington, DC do, to name two
favorable states.

In addition to a school’s financial position, the quality of the school’s leadership and the strength of a
school’s academic performance are major points of consideration. We want to see a school that has a
board with a diverse set of skills and test scores at or above the district average. Long-waiting lists and
the school’s ability to save cash reserves (for a “rainy day” fund or as a downpayment on a facility) also
improve your chances for obtaining a loan.

I’'m attaching a grid we use for evaluating the charter lending climate in different states. I hope that it
might help you see some.of the things we look for.

From the recent news about increased funding for charter schools in your state, it seems the climate for
New Hampshire’s charter schools 1s improving, yet even more stability in charter funding would alleviate
some lenders’ reservations.

We look forward to the possibility of working with you and others in New Hampshire.
Best Regards,

o/
Jane Ellis

Director, Charter School Lending
Self-Help

301 West Main Street, Durham, NC 27701
P.0. Box 3619, Durham, NC 27702-3619

Tel: 919.956.4400 / Fax: 919.956.4600
www_self-help.org W Eﬁ /
®




Self-Help

Charnter School Law Overview

Flosida

Georgla

South Carolina

Funding Logic

|programs they are in) and districts pay the ehaner schools.

The Siale pays the school gistricts (based on the FTE by

Schoot district funding is always calculatad as annual funds.
The funding mechanism, the Fiorida Education Finance
Program (FEFP} is caleutated 5 times during the year.

A spacific funding formula dictates tha
minimum amount af funding a charter
school must receiva, with funding bayond
the minimum negoliated with sponsor
school district and specifiad in the charter.
A s1ale chartered special school may nol
raceive local tax dollars that a charter
school approved by a local school board
recelves.

A school district distributes siale, county and
sthool district funds to 3 charter school as
delermined by a formula outlined in state faw.

Per Pupil
Funding Last
Year {Average)

$6.936 (02-03}

§7.422 (2006) : Fullon 58566 (2008)

$5.289 (02-03}

Per Pupil
Funding
Current
(Average}

$6,.532,

$6.740

Por Pupll
Funding Trend

Langth of
Charter

Up to 30 years for non-profit run schools and up 1 15 years for
publhically supporied schoals

3.5 years

5 years

Intercepts
Alowed

No

State Faciltty

Yes

Yes

No
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Timing of
ARhotments

Charter Schoois receive payments twica monthly. They must
raceive allstrment from the district within 10 days of the district
receiving money from the State. The FEFP is recalulated §
times annually. As FTE changes are reflecled, whether for a
schoot or 2 whola district, the funding changes when the FEFP
is racalculated. Because the funding is always annuafized,
payments are changed by making the calcutation based ont he
new FTE and subtracting that from what has been paid to date,
dividing that amount by the number of paymants left in the
fiscal yaar.

The school receives 10 payments from
August 1o May based on budget estimated
in the summer. If their estimate was
incorrect according to official October
attandance count their 10th payment will
be increased/decreasad accordingly.

Who does the
monay come
through

Schogl District

School District

Scheol District

Autharizers

Local school boards. Aiso, state universities may grant a
charter to a lab schooi and community collega district boards of
trustees may grant a charier to a charter technicat career
center.

Both the local schoo! board and the stata
board of education must approve
application.

An applicant must first submit an application 1o the
staterlevel charter schoal advisory committaa, who
determines whether the application is in
compliance. If so, the application is forwarded to
the local schoot board, who then detarmines
whather or not 10 apprave the application.

Doss the stite provids
s1ari-up andior
planning grants to
charier schoais?

You Az pwi ol o chanar schod wach local
nchool bowd In which (here i5 2 schodl sslecied 1o paricipae in Use pllol program gt for
$100,000 for planning and development for eAch convaraion charier school sehacted.

¥d, $5.000 pianning grants.

Yoo Scarh Carling doss nat fund plarng granta, inswad the 5C DOE
usacs e US DOE grans ko give charier achodla stariup doflmrs an 2
Iniatives. First. n lhee-yeur plamnisd-igementsticn grmt of upl o
420,000 fod the pannng, program desgn, mnd inkitial implemeniation of
the ntwin's cherier schaols. Sacond, Dissemination grants of up o
F100.000 over o ywars privide financial s slstancs b charter schoals tat)
hases basn In successlul opecation for st St 3 coneacuiive yers, Theas
Tuncia are nlended (0 asslat othet schools In adipting a sucowasful charar
w5hoal peogram of o -dissenminma lnformston sbaoul the charter schodl.

Cap?

D cap for conversion charter schools. Yearly cap for stan-up
charter schools varies by the population of the disticl. Charler
schools are limited to no more than 28 in each school district
that has 100,000 or more students: no more than 20 charter
schoals in each district that has 50,000-88,689 students; and
ng mora than 12 charter schoois In schodl districts with fewer
than 50,000 students.

Na.
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. Senator Hillary Rodham Clinton: Education
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welcoma > on the issues » education
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Jump to: Overview | Early Childhood Education | Etementary & Secondary Education

ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY EDUCATION

No Child Left Behind

Throughout my career, I have fought to ralse education standards In our natlon's
schools. I belleve that every child should be taught by a qualified teacher and that
schools should be accountable to the parents of the children they serve. That is why I
supported the No Chitd Left Behind Act In 2001 and continue to belleve in the principles
behind the fandmark law, When the No Child Left Behind Act (NCLBA) was enacted, |
viewed it as a historic promise between the federal government and educators --
schools would be held to higher standards than ever before and the government would
make a record Investment in those schools to ensure that they would be able to meet
the new expectations confronting them.

Today, that promise has heen broken. President Bush’s budget for 2007 provides $12
billion less than was promised by the No Child Left Behind Act, including $1.24 million
less for New York. If enacted, that would mean 374,141 eligible children will be denled
services., And at a time when parents are working harder and needing the assurance
that thelr children are in safe places between the hours of 3 and 5, Presldent Bush's
budget calls for funding of the 21 st Century Community Learning Centers program at
over $1.5 billlon below the promised amount. The President's budget leaves behind 2
milllon students who would receive after school services if the were funded at the level
promised in the No Child Left Behind Act.

One of the goals of the No Child Left Behind act Is to ensure that all students recelve the
educatlon and services needed in order to compete in the 21 st century market place.
Despite this fact, the President has proposed to eliminate programs targeted at
improving the performance of students that are most at risk of not recelving a coliege
education, These programs include the Vocatlonal and technical education ($1.3 billion},
GEAR UP ($303 millllon), three TRIO programs -Talent Search ($145 million), Upward
Bound ($278 mitlion) and Upward Bound Math/Sclence ($33 mlillion), and Smaller
Learning Communities {$94 miition).

I have sponsored letters to the Appropriations committee te relnstate funding for these
critical programs. I will continue to work hard to ensure that all children recelve the
support they need to reach their full petential.

Teacher Recrultment & Class-Size Reduction

To address the severe teaching shortage facing New York and reduce the number of
students in each of New York’s classrooms, I created "Transition to Teaching.” This
program attracts professionals of all ages and stages of their career to the field of
teaching. Already, this program has provided $7 million to Albany, Niagara Falls, New
York City, Westchester and more New York communitles to help them recruit and retain
high-quality teachers. I also established a natlonal teacher recruitment campaign to
help high-rneed school districts attract effective teachers so that every child can receive
the individualized attentlon and disclplined envirenment he or she needs to succeed.

Today, New York Is certifylng 30 percent fewer teachers in mathematics, 22 percent
fewer sclence teachers, and 17 percent fewer English as a Second Language (ESL)
teachers than are leaving those fields each year. Teacher shortages result in
overcrowded classrooms, which are associated with lower academic achievement,
increases In behavior problems, and higher student drop-out rates. I supported the
Class-Size Reduction effort established by President Clinton, which provided
approximately $140 million to New York each year to help reduce class size. During the
No Chlld Left Behind Act debate, I spoke out in support of continuing the successful
Class Size Reductlon Inltlative. This program resuited in nearly 40,000 more teachers for
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first, second and third grade classrooms and enabled thousands of students to learn in
classes of 18 students or tess.

. School Leadership

Talented princlpals are critical to effective school reform efforts, yet schools with the
most challenging working conditions — high concentrations of poor students and limited
resources for curricula, supplies, and salarles - have a difficult time attracting and
retaining talented principals. That is why I champloned the School Leadership program,
which has provided close to $40 milllon over the past four years to attract dynamic,
effective school ieaders to high-poverty communlties. The School Leadership program
helps talented individuals overcome the barriers to entering the education field and
obtaln the training and ongolng support they need to help all students achieve
academically.

Schoo! Choice & Charter Schools

1 support Innovative approaches to education reform within the public school system,
such as charter schools and alternatlve routes to teacher certification. I believe our
public school system is one of the most impartant foundatlons of our society because It
exposes students to a wide varlety of ideas and cultures - to the rich diversity of their
community. I promote creative and pioneering Initiatives to improve academic
achlevement and education outcomes for all students. Charter schools are one part of a
menu of reforms that hold the potential to expand the supply of high-quality pubiic
schools, especlally in disadvantaged communities. Because most charter schools have
fimited credlt histories, they often fack access to public school facilities or traditicnal
funding streams such as bonds. A full one in three charter school gperators have
reported that school constructlon costs are a major obstacle to thelr school's success.
That is why I proposed legislation, the Investing for Tomorrow's Schoals Act, which
would create an innovative funding source to help bulld and expand charter schools.
Inadequate school buiidings should not be obstacles to Innovatlve reforms. In addition,
I strongly oppose voucher schemes that divert precious resources away from financlally
strapped public schools to private schools that are not subject to the same

. accountabllity standards.
Mentoring

1 was an criginal co-sponsor of a resofution that deslgnated January as "National
Mentoring Month.” I was pleased that this resolution passed the Senate unanimously
and was approved by President Bush. Students with mentors perform better
academicaily, enroll in college at a higher rate, and are less llkely to drop out of school
and use drugs than thelr peers who do not have the benefit of a mentor.

School Modernization

According to a study by the National Center for Education Statistics, cur nation’s schools
need more than $127 billion to meet their renovation and construction needs. In the fall
of 2002, I released a report called the "State of New York's Schools,” which illustrated
the critical need for school construction in New York. I was also an original co-sponsor of
the America's Better Classrooms Act, a bill that would provide $2.5 billion in bonding
authority to New York State. I am also the proud sponsor of the Investing for
Tomorrow's Schools Act. This bill would create Innovatlve funding scurces called
revolving lcan banks in each state. Both bills would to help New York and Amerlcan to
meet thelr school modernization needs.

The lack of adequate school buildings hampers some of today's most promising and
innovatlve efforts to boost student achlevement. 1 will continue to fight for funding to
provide our students with an academic environment that wlll prepare them for the 21st
Century workplace

Healthy Schools

According to General Accounting Office, almost half of all U.S. schoolchildren attend
schools with at least one unsatisfactory environmental condition, And poor Indoor air
quality, one of the most prevalent environmental toxins, severely aggravates allergies,
asthma, and other infectious and respiratory diseases In children. Furthermore, the

. Department of Energy has estimated that the natlon’s schools could save $1.5 billion In
energy costs by upgrading their systems - money that could be rededicated to other
educatlonal priorities,
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To address this problem, I fought for the passage of The Healthy, High Performance
Schools Act of 2001, legislation that provides grants to help school districts make thelr
i ) bulldings healthier and more energy efficlent. This program wlll heip our schocls
. improve indoor atr quality, eltminate environmental hazards, upgrade their energy
systems wlth new, energy efficient technolegy, and save money In the process.

1 have been a relentless advocate for the program since It was passed into law, but the
Administration and Congress have refused to fund it. I also included a provision in the
No Chiid Left Behind Act to require the Department of Education to assess the
environmental conditions that contribute to unhealthy tearning environments. This
study, which confirmed that poor environments In schools, due to indoer pollutants,
adversely Influence students’ health, performance, and attendance, was released on
Aprll 29, 2004,

Libraries and Museums

I was an original co-sponsor of S. 238, the Museumn and Library Services Act of 2003,
which was signed Into law on September 25, 2003. This blll authorized $13.2 million for
New York State’s iibrarles and makes it possible for New York's cultural Institutions to
eobtain the necessary insurance to host high-profile exhiblts. Libraries and museums are
part of the foundation of our community. They provide essential job search, job training
and literacy services. I will continue to support librarles and museums throughout the
legislative session,
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OnThelssues Hillary Clinton on School Choice

Every Poltical Leader on Every Issue

More teachers, smaller classes, no vouchers

I've been involved with schools now for 17 years, working on behalf of education reform. And I think we know
what works. We know that getting classroom size down works. That’s why I’'m for adding 100,000 teachers to
the classroom. We know that modemizing and better equipping our schools works. And we know that high
standards works. But what’s important is to stay committed to the public school system, not siphon off money, as

my opponent would, with vouchers.
Source: NY Senate debate on NBC Oct 28, 2000

Vouchers drain money from public schools

Q: Do you support vouchers for private schools?

CLINTON: I’ve visited schools throughout the state and some of them are among the finest in the world that you
could find anywhere. But others are overcrowded, under-resourced. That’s why I put forth a plan to try to get the
teachers that we need and to provide the funds that are required for modernizing our schools, as well as setting
high standards, making them safe from violence. I do not support vouchers. And the reason I don’t is because I
don’t think we can afford to siphon dollars away from our underfunded public schools.

LAZIO: I believe that it’s immoral to ask a child to go to a school where they can’t learn or where they’re not
safe. 80 percent of African-American and Hispanic parents feel that they need it. Why should we trap poor kids
in failing schools simply because the teachers unions won’t agree with it?

Source: Clinton-{azio debate, Buffalo NY Sep 13, 2000
Fight with Gore for public schools; no voucher “gimmicks”

[Gore] will make education his priority. [ will fight with him; I will be by his side as we fix our public schools. I
will be by his side as we fix crumbling schools, as we put more teachers in our classroom to lower class size, as
we improve the quality of education. We know that [education] is not the priority of the Bush-Giuliani team. The

other team, they want to talk about gimmicks like vouchers.
Source: Adam Nagourney, New York Times Mar 12, 2000

Vouchers will not improve our public schools

1 know there are some who believe that vouchers are the way to improve our public schools; I believe they are
dead wrong. There is simply no evidence that vouchers improve student achievement. We’ve been experimenting
with vouchers in some jurisdictions for a couple of years-we’ve found no evidence that these have made any
difference in student achievement. But what they have done is to divert much-needed public funds for the few

and have weakened the entire system.
i 3/31/2008 10:03 AM
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Let’s build up our schools-not tear them down

'We know a lot more today than we knew five or, certainly, 10 years ago about what we need to do to marshal the

resources to make every school that successful. So let’s build up our schools-not tear them down. And let’s make
sure that everyone has the same goal in mind-to make our public schools and our public school students the best

1n the entire world.
Source: Remarks to NEA in Ortando, Florida Jul 5, 1999

Charter schools provide choice within public system

I stand behind the charter school/public school movement, because parents do deserve greater choice within the
public school system to meet the unique needs of their children. Slowly but surely, we’re beginning to create
schooling opportunities through the public school charter system-raising academic standards, empowering
educators. When we look back on the 1990s, we will see that the charter school movement will be one of the

ways we will have tumed around the entire public school system.
Source: Remarks to NEA in Orlando, Florida Jul 5, 1999

Charters meet needs of failing public school students

Charter schools can play a significant part in revitalizing and strengthening schools by offering greater flexibility
from bureaucratic rules, so that parents, teachers, and the community can design and run their own schools, and
focus on setting goals and getting results. Many of these schools are meeting the needs of students who had
trouble succeeding in more traditional public schools. Every child deserves a quality public education as part of

their American birthright.
Source: Remarks at Charter School Mesting, Washington DC Aug 4, 1998

Vouchers siphon off much-needed resources

Charter schools are a way of bringing teachers and parents and communities together-instead of other efforts-like
vouchers-which separate people out-siphon much needed resources; and weakening the school systems that

desperately need to be strengthened.
Source: Remarks at Charter School Meeting, Washington DC Aug 4, 1998

Parents can choose, but support public schools

I believe strongly in a parent’s right to choose the best education for his/her child. We have a proud tradition of
parochial and private education in America. We also know that the majority of children are educated in the
public education system. So we have to support the public education system whether or not our children are in it
or whether or not we have children. The public education system is a critical investment for the well-being of all

of us.
Source: Unique Voice, p.173 Feb 3, 1997

Voted YES on funding smaller classes instead of private tutors.

Vote to authorize a federal program aimed at reducing class size. The plan would assist states and local education
agencies in recruiting, hiring and training 100,000 new teachers, with $2.4 billion in fiscal 2002. This

amendment would replace an amendme
Bill 81 ; vote number 2001-103 on May 15, 2001

Voted YES on funding student testing instead of private tutors.

Vote to pass an amendment that would authorize $200 million to provide grants to help states develop
assessment systems that describe student achievement. This amendment would replace an amendment by
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The New Hampshire Public Chartered Schools Association (NHCPSA)
Eileen Groll Liponis - member

D(The New Hampshire Chartered Public Schools Association (NHCPSA) is a non-profit member
organization to support and advocate for charter schools in New Hampshire. The two part
purpose of the association is to provide a structure for charter schools to share best practices
with all public schools and to work together to identify and secure resources for charter schools -
in NH. The Association expects to host an annual conference to share best practices with
district schools as well as seek other ways to help charter schools and public schools to connect
in the spring of 2009.

To date the 10 state approved open enrollment public chartered schools represent the
investment of the Federal DOE of over $7 million and just over $5 million from the state of New
Hampshire for a total of over $12 million to fund an innovation in education that has met with
widespread success in over 40 states and the district of Columbia with over 4,000 chartered
public schools serving over 1 million students. This bill represents the end of the engagement
NH has had with charter schools and the beginning of the marriage with permanent sustainable
funding from the state and the sharing of best practices between the chartered public schools
and traditional public schools.

}Q’he process of disseminating best practices is occurring naturally among New Hampshire
charter school and traditional public educators and is ripe for formalization. Informal reports to
the LEA of charter school teachers car-pooling with neighboring traditional public schools and
their desire to share best practices; of sending districts’ Special Ed aides bringing their best
practices to the charter school educators and taking back best practices to their traditional
public school; of two neighboring schools, one charter and one traditional public, collaborating
on combing their orchestra and strings program for a more robust music program; one charter
school sharing it’s successful fundraising model with other schools wishing to emulate it; and of
charter schools uniting to advocate for legislative support. Conflicts of interest are avoided
when goals are aligned. NH public educators have the goal of the highest individual student
achievement and are naturally striving together towards that goal.

S&he investment of combined Federal and state money of $12 million is paying dividends to the
state that serves our Governors initiative of reducing our high school dropout rate. This
investment serves the states fong term economic benefit as illustrated by the following figures
from the Alliance for Excellent Education state analysis from October 2007

* More than 4,000 students did not graduate from New Hampshire’s high schools in

2007; the lost lifetime earnings in New Hampshire for that class of dropouts alone totals
more than $1.1 billion.

- Jibachment#15



« New Hampshire wouid save more than $63 million in health care costs over the course
of the lifetimes of each class of dropouts had they earned their diplomas.

» New Hampshire households would have over $216 million more in accumulated
wealth if all heads of households had graduated from high school.

+ More than $51 million would be added to New Hampshire’s economy by 2020 if
students of color graduated at the same rate as white students.

« If New Hampshire's high schools graduated all students ready for college, the state
would save over $13 million a year in community college remediation costs and lost
earnings.

* New Hampshire’s economy would see a combination of savings and revenue of over
$15 million in reduced crime spending and increased earnings each year if the male high
school graduation rate increased by just 5 percent.

Charter schools are considered the R&D of the education industry. The investment in our state
of $12 million of combined state and federal monies over the past 4 years represents just
2/10ths of one percent on an annual basis as a percent of our overall state education budget.
The rate of return on this investment can be calculated by studies like the one previously cited
of the economic impact of engaging and retaining our NH students until they graduate from
high school and hopefully aspire to further their education. What you cannot quantify is the joy
and grateful appreciation of the parents and students who have benefitted from a chartered
public school option. What you can do is support this bill and preserve and embrace
permanent sustainable funding for chartered public schools as offered in SB 539,

)d This has been one of the arguments against funding charter schools for another year, that there
is no permanent funding structure for charter schools. That argument is taken away with the
amendment of SB 539 to add $2,000 per charter school student bringing our total to $5,450.
That is the largest step towards permanent sustainable funding made in NH to date.

}(NH was awarded the $7M charter school startup grant after it added the State Board of Ed as
an authorizer. Multiple authorizers are one of the favoring criteria in the grant. From 1995
until 2004 the local district was the sole authorizing agent and no charter schools were created.
A district sponsored or authorized school is also no guarantee of permanence. School boards
change and often so can the sentiment and support for the charter school. We are seeing the
effect that turnover in a local school board currently with a state approved, district sponsored
schoaol,



B<Nationally, of the 40 states passing a charter law, 24 passed it when a Republican was governor
and 16 when a Democrat was governor, and about two-thirds of the states passing a charter
law did so when there was no single party controlling both the legislature and the governor’s
office. (Source: Christiana Stoddard and Sean Corcoran, “Charter Politics,” Education Next,
Spring 2008).

The House showed strong bipartisan support for all charter schools in both policy and financial
commitment to continue to fund these public schools. To deny HB 1642 when permanent
sustainable funding is in the works beginning in the 2009 school year will effectively be a Senate
policy decision to close the independent state approved schools. According to Todd Ziebarth,
senior policy advisor for the National Alliance for Public Charter Schools, that would be a
nationally unprecedented step backwards that no state has ever taken. We want to be first in
the nation for the Primary, we don’t want to be first in the nation for this.

Tran \atn's gL

{The Federal start-up grant is for three years and is designed to take away the bricks and mortar
burden and to give the state three years to provide permanent sustainable funding. Lack of
state support was one of the reasons NH was not awarded the $5M continuation grant last
year. Without that grant the NH DOE lost funding for a position in the charter school office and
it is argued that there is now less accountability of charter schools. We have proposed to
strengthen that accountability by emulating other states and self funding with an
administrative fee of $160/student a position in the NH DOE of Charter School Oversight and
Accountability to work with the Charter School Oversight Committee, the Association and the
schools to strengthen charter school law and accountability. Charter school accountability is a
shift in tradition. It exists in our Board of Trustees, composed of local citizens, parents and
teachers, who are accountable to the state for the performance of the students as measured by
the same testing standards of the traditional schools. Financially we provide quarterly reports
to the state and annually we pay to be independently audited and provide that report to the
state along with our own internally generated annual report of our progress to the state. If
these standards are not met, the school can be closed by the state by non renewal of the
charter.

j\Lastly, | want to confront the argument of self selecting that charter schools drain the best and
the brightest students and the most engaged parents. For students, ali the school will argue
that they a full range of student strengths and capabilities. As for the parent drain | have two
arguments: they are right and wrong at the same time and here’s how we are addressing
where they are right. Parents are most engaged when their child is in crisis or not flourishing.
Those parents come to a charter school to exercise a public option that might work for their



child. If their child does turn around and begin to flourish and succeed that parent becomes
more secure and less engaged when they are confident the school is meeting their child’s
needs. | had parents in the beginning of the year that | thought for sure were going to be
greatly involved and now that their child is doing well are more than happy to just wave happily
at me at drop off and pick up. Also, charter schools were designed to be living laboratories.
You cannot force that innovation experiment on parents in a district school where they are not
looking for an option.

"§L Now there are those students who may need a public option but don’t have the parents with
the ability or desire to be engaged. We want to reach those students as well so we are reaching
out to local guidance counselors and making them aware of the charter schools in their area
and their missions. This is not easy. Let me give you an example. We have had parents come
to us saying it was their teacher who referred them to look at the charter school but, asked the
parents not to mention them by name because they didn’t want to get in trouble with their
district. This is where we need to break down the barriers and focus on what works for the
student to engage the greatest number of students. Representative Kim Casey and | have
talked about this extensively and | am grateful for the tremendous amount of work she has
done in the Charter School Oversight Committee and plans to do to strengthen charter schools.
HB 1642 is reflective of her Committee work and is front of you due to the bipartisan support
we received in the House. We hope to receive the same consideration in the Senate. Thank
you for your time today and | look forward to your questions.
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Education Committee
Hearing Report

TO: Members of the Senate
FROM: Susan Duncan, Senior Legislative Aide
RE: Hearing report on HB 1642-FN - AN ACT (New Title)

providing additional funding for charter schools for the 2009 fiscal year.
HEARING DATE:; April 22, 2008 — Hearing continued from April 15th

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE PRESENT: Senators Estabrook,
Foster, Fuller Clark, Letourneau, Kelly and Bragdon

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE ABSENT: No one

Sponsor(s): Representative C. Clarke; Representative Weyler;
Representative Price; Representative McRae; Representative B. Shaw;
Senator Kenney and Senator Bragdon

What the bill does: This bill provides funding for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2009, for all charter schools in operation as of July 1, 2008.

Who supports the bill: Susan Hollins for the NH Center for School
Reform; Jennifer Star, Board Member of the Academy for Science and
Design; Laurie Scandilis; Chris Franklin, Director of the Academy for Science
and Design; John Davis; Bill Wilmot, Director of Seacoast Charter School;
Randy MacLean; Frank Conroy; Beth Allard; and others who signed in but
choose not to testify

Who opposes the bill: No one appeared

Summary of testimony received:

¢ Senator Estabrook re-opened the hearing on HB 1642-FN and
called upon Susan Hollins who was speaking on behalf of the NH
Center for School Reform.

+ Ms. Hollins distributed numerous documents showing a listing of
emerging charter schools.

¢ She explained that it is very difficult to get advanced, specialized
science classes into public schools where they struggle for local
funding. She talked of the communities where there is a drop out
rate in excess of 10% of the students.

e She asked that there be a moratorium on opening additional
schools being approved to open until the funding has been fixed.
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She noted that the equestrian school is unique and that there is no
where else to get the specialized training that they offer.

Jennifer Star testified as a Board Member for the Academy for
Science and Design and as a parent. She explained that even
though they just opened last September, they have had two open
houses which were attended by over 100, She said that there
clearly 1s a need for these specialized schools.

She provided some handouts and explained that she had done some
research regarding whether if offering $6,500 would be creating a
new policy. She said that there are currently three towns (Berlin,
Greenville and Stratford) that will receive more than $6,500 in
State aid and that 50 schools will receive more than $3,900 in State
aid per student.

Laurie Scandilis of Franklin testified on behalf of her two seniors
who attend Franklin Career Academy. She said that she has
gotten to know many of these students and some she has known
since the 7th and 8t grades when she volunteered in the public
school.

She said that although this bill 1s about the money, the bill is really
about the kids. She explained that all kids do not learn the same
way and that some do need to learn in different methods. She said
that they are relying on whatever funding they can get. She
testified that we have an obligation to keep the door open for these
students who are there because they want to be there.

Chris Franklin, Director, the Academy for Science and Design,
testified in support. He said that he 1s a engineer with three
children who all attended public schools. He said that he is a great
advocate for our public schools.

He distributed a map that shows where the students at the ASD
come from. He said that there are 32 students who come from 16
different school districts {one even traveling up from Massachusetts
to attend). He said that it would be impossible to put their
science curriculum into each of these different school districts.

John Davis testified in support and talked of the great potential
here.  He said that charter schools help to address the drop out
problem and the subsequent increased prison rate.

Bill Wilmot, Director, of Seacoast Charter School, testified in
support and said that this sends a clear message. He cautioned
against ending the ability for local districts or the State Board to
sponsor charter schools and explained that this would end federal
support for charter schools. He said that preference is given for
federal financial aid for schools with multiple sponsors.

He said that the charter schools are providing critical options to our
students.

Randy MacLean testified in support and said that he has served as
a public school teacher as well as with various human services
agencies. He explained that with New Hampshire's reputation of
fiscal conservation as well as creative solutions, that charter schools
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are an important part of the solution which are cost-effective and
community based.

He explained that during the past few years, the public schools in
the south-west part of the state have been a battle ground over
funding of public schools with budgets being defeated by the voters.
He said that our charter schools spend about half of what the public
schools spend and get creative programs.

Frank Conroy testified in support and noted that originally when
the federal government sent the money for the charter schools, it
was with the obligation that the state would keep these schools
going.

He said that he had seen the Governor last week after the hearing
and that the Governor said that he supports our charter schools.
He explained that this legislation would help the schools open this
fall and provides a good stop-gap.

Beth Allard who is a teacher in both public and private schools,
testified in support. She urged that this be supported for the kids
who are achieving things she has never thought possible.

Funding: See fiscal note

Action:

Senator Fuller Clark moved “Ought to Pass.” The motion was

seconded by Senator Letourneau. The Committee voted 6 to O in support of
the OTP motion. Senator Bragdon will report the bill out of Committee.

sfd

[file: HB 1642-FN report ED of 4.22.08]
Date: April 22, 2008



Date: Apnl 22, 2008
Time: 8:45 a.m.
Room: State House, Room 103

The Senate Committee on Education held a hearing on the following:

House Bill 1642-FN (New Title) providing additional funding for charter
schools for the 2009 fiscal year.

Members of Committee present: Senator Estabrook
Senator Foster
Senator Fuller Clark
Senator Kelly
Senator Bragdon
Senator Letourneau

The Chair, Senator Iris W. Estabrook, reopened the hearing that was
recessed on April 15, 2008, and invited the next person to testify on the
legislation.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  And, I would just begin by saying we're
going to allot a half hour to hearing the rest of testimony on this bill, and
then, we do have other business we have to attend to today.

Dr. Holling; Okay. I brought for you one copy of just a listing of the charter
schools emerging in other states, smaller states, Delaware, Maryland, Rhode
Island. I thought you might find it interesting to see the proliferation of
schools in other states how the charter school is emerging. And, the second
thing I brought was...

Please see “Delaware’s Charter Schools”, attached hereto and
referred to as Attachment #1.

Please see “Charter Schools in Maryland”, attached hereto and
referred to as Attachment #2.



Please see “R.1. charter schools, 2007-08”, attached hereto and
referred to as Attachment #3.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: I think Amanda has a question.

Amanda Jurta, Senate Secretarv:  Could you please identify yourself?

Dr. Hollins: Oh. My name is Susan Hollins, and I'm from Grafton, and I
direct the Center for, New Hampshire Center for School Reform. I advise the
New Hampshire Equestrian Academy. I'm on the Board of the Academy for
Science and Design. I also brought a listing of, highlighted in yellow. I have
six copies of all the communities now where the students have a cumulative
drop-out rate of more than ten percent in our state. We have seven thousand
students drop out of school in the United States every day, the cost of about
300 billion to the country.

I wanted to ask for support of 1642. In my mind, it's a bridge bill that
provides a weighted state aid to a few schools that will have extraordinary
difficulty surviving financially until the charter schools are built into the
system, which, thankfully, is happening next year. The choice school
movement in the country is actually the National Education Policy. It’s
happening all over the world. I think there’s a growing knowledge that
students need to get themselves to schools where we thrive, they thrive, and
we can’t afford to lose more children. Probably a small percentage in our state
will go to charter schools ultimately, and if we have state aid, it should follow
students to those schools in a weighted form.

I passed out these other, what's happening in other states because I think it
doesn’t serve our state to be the only state, one of only eight states in the
nation without science-specialized schools. There was a sentiment expressed
at the last session that the regular local public schools should just make
these courses available. And, having been a superintendent, or assistant
superintendent in a number of schools, it really isn’t possible. It's
extraordinarily difficult to get high level science courses for younger students
if you're a poor community. And, there is no comparison taking music classes
in your high school versus being at a school for performing arts, and
similarly, there’s no comparison taking one science course in a high school as
opposed to being in a community of all science schools.

So, I urge you to support the bill. I wanted to make one recommendation for a
change in the wording. And, that was where it says a moratorium is extended
completely with no authorization, that you consider that there is a
moratorium on schools that are approved to open before September 2009
because, even if they're approved, it takes twelve to eighteen months to open



a school. So, if we didn’t open any during this period, it would still allow the
state to continue with its pilot program, just that schools didn’t emerge until
the funding was fixed.

My last comment is only, I noticed you were talking about having access to
dental programs and veterinary programs in this state. The Equestrian
Academy is the only place in the state where student (sic) who wants to go

into equine veterinary medicine can get a specialized program in high school.

It's co-located with the top equine surgeon. There’s nowhere else to get this
career-specialized program, and it’s our largest agricultural industry in the
state, I'm told. So, though this is a small school, I was there the other day.
The students actually, many want to be equine veterinarians where we have
a shortage, and while this is a small school and it’s a specialized career field,
we should support this school. Thank you very much for your comments.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Thank you very much. Questions from
the Committee? Seeing none, thank you. Signed up last time, and I'm not
sure if they were able to return, but I'll call in case. Jennifer Starr. Thanks
for driving again.

Jennifer Starr, Academy of Science and Design: Yeah, well, last week I
brought a group of students, but they’re on spring break, so I only could drag
one...

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: I understand.

Ms. Starr: My daughter who's an eighth grader. But, thank you for letting
me speak today. I am actually a Board Member for the Academy of Science
Design and a parent of an eighth grader. And, as you know, the Academy for
Science and Design is the first open-enrollment, science-specialized public
school serving students statewide in grades seven through twelve, and
actually our director, Chris Franklin is here, so I'll, well, in the sake of time,
I'd probably, I was going to talk a little bit more about what the Academy for
Science and Design does, but I'll defer to Chris.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  If you'd like, he can come up with you.
He's also signed up to speak.

Ms. Starr:  Oh, okay. Well, I just have one point I wanted to make...

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21; Okay. Sure.

Ms. Starr:  ...so, I know, but I did want to just let you know that even
though our school is, we just opened last September. We've had two open
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houses and each time we've had over a hundred, we’ve had probably forty
students and their families. So, over a hundred people have come to each of
these open houses, and they're from everywhere. And, Chris Franklin will
talk more about that. But, clearly, there’s a need for this type of education,
and it's an important initiative for New Hampshire. I don’t know if you even
realize. There were, with the creation of the Academy of Science and Design,
there are now forty states that have a science-specialized school. Before that,
New Hampshire was just one of eleven that didn’t support a science and
math school. So, now we've finally gotten with the, sort of the majority of
where states are heading.

Last week, I brought a group of students here, and we learned that there was
a question about the vote that you might have for this bill because you were
concerned that if we offered $6500 per student to charter school students
including the Academy for Science and Design. That would be creating a new
policy or you'd be doing something a little bit different for the Academy for
Science and Design and other charter schools.

So, since we are a school full of math and science kids who are passionate
about math and science, we did a little research, and we went to the website.
The school, the New Hampshire Board of Education and you post the fiscal
year 2009 what you're going to be spending per student in terms of state aid.
And, we found that there are actually three towns, Berlin, Greenville, and
Stratford that will receive more than $6500 in state aid. And, there are
actually fifty-eight towns that will receive more than $3900 in state aid. So,
you were worried about if you're, and I can submit this, it got a little wet on
this, but I can submit this. I mean, it was a very simple calculation of the
number of students in a town divided by the amount of state aid to get the
state aid per student.

Please see “FY09 Adequacy Aid Grants and Statewide Enhanced
Education Tax Assessment”, attached hereto and referred to as
Attachment #4.

So, but, it was hard for me. And then, when we came up with this, it was
hard to explain to the students, you know, that if other schools can get more
than $3900 because the state determines that they need it, what policy says
that our school can’t have this amount if we need it? And, since the Academy
for Science and Design is only in its first year, we still need to build on the
groundwork that was laid in the previous years to have, and a strong
foundation that was established this year, for our school. A higher level of aid

is critical because we don’t really have any other source of funding than state
aid.



And, we've made such significant progress this year, and Chris probably can
talk more about that, but we really haven’t had the time or resources that
even some of the other charter schools have had to build community support
and philanthropic support for our school. And, when I talked to the students,
the in-depth science and math courses that are offered at the Academy for
Science and Design aren’t offered in their public schools, and as a business
person, and a taxpayer, it was really hard for me to explain to these students,
well, why can the ASD offer you a better education for your needs, you know,
for a lot less money than what your typical public school is spending? I just
couldn’t explain that to them. Why was it less expensive to offer more courses
in physics and biology and chemistry and a history course focused on science
and technology, and you're a public school that’s spending more per student?
Can’t do that.

The in-depth science and math courses that are offered at the ASD now for
middle school students, these students if they, they are offered, but they're
offered in high school. It was hard for me as a parent to explain to these
children why the legislators are treating charter schools differently than
other New Hampshire students. I mean, these students have made a very
difficult decision. They've left their friends and their communities. They've
left the comfort of familiar settings, they drive, some of them are driving an
hour each way, and it was hard for me to have to explain to them, you know,
why the Academy for Science and Design may not open next year because of
the lack of state funding, and that they’ll have to return to their schools
where they came from.

And, as a parent, it was really hard for me to explain why both the federal
government and the state government have decided to invest some money to
start these schools, and then won'’t continue to fund them to help them
survive and thrive. I just, it was very hard for me to explain that. And, I was
hoping perhaps you can help explain that. We're really here to ask you to
treat our school and the other charter schools fairly by allowing them the
funding that we need for next year. It’s the amount of state aid that some
schools in New Hampshire are receiving now and will receive next year.
Thank you so much.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Thank you. Questions from the
Committee? Seeing none. We have seven more people who would like to
speak, so I'd ask everyone to be brief so everyone will get a turn. Did Bobby
Glossop or Nathan Tong or Long come back from last week?

Ms. Starr: Bobby is on vacation.



Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  No. Okay. Thank you. We'll call Lorrie
Scandalis.

Lorrie Scandalis, Franklin Career Academy: Good morning.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Morning.

Ms. Scandalis: My name is Lorrie Scandalis, and I am a parent to two
seniors at Franklin Career Academy, and my two are graduating this year, so
I'm really not here with a personal agenda. I am here because I have gotten
to know through my parental volunteering at the school every single student
that is there. Some of them I've known since they were in sixth or seventh
grade because I used to be a volunteer in the public middle school in
Franklin. So, I'm pretty much here advocating for them and every student in
New Hampshire.

And, T think that a few years ago, we came up with this knowledge we finally
realized that kids don’t all learn the same way, kids are not made from the
same mold. Some students need to move ahead, some students need to learn
in other ways besides lecture, and kids all learn differently. And, we started a
program that caters to that and that understands that, and we opened the
floodgates and gave all of these kids hope that finally they can have an
education where they learn and they're not just taught.

And, I'm just here to let you know that, although this is all about money, it’s
all about the kids, and every one of them have a story. Every one of them
come from some place, and every one of them now have the hope of
graduating successfully. And, we have an obligation to support that. We also
don’t have extra funding. We are relying on whatever help we can get, and
because we have these kids, and they've come to us and they're successful, we
have an obligation to keep them there and not close the door on their future.
And, I think that for every student who has come in the door, who's already
quit their high school because they were quit on and have enrolled
themselves, and for every student that has come through the door
voluntarily, we owe, we have an obligation to.

And, every student in that school is there because they want to be, and not
because they have to be. And, I just would hike to say that passing this bill is
crucial to their future. And, it doesn’t matter if the enrollment is one student
or a hundred students, we have an obligation to every one of them, and I
think that anything that supports an education that goes beyond adequate
and that caters to specific needs and specific ways of learning, we need to
support. So, I'm asking that you guys will do that. Thank you.



Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you very much, that was very,
very good testimony explaining what you've seen, thank you.

Ms. Scandalis: Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Call Chris Franklin. Just ask that you
agree with what you heard before or say something new.

Chris Franklin, Director of Academy for Science and Design: Oh.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Not repeat what we’ve already heard.
Mr. Franklin:  Actually, I wasn’t going to say anything that she said.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Okay.

Senator Peter E. Bragdon, D. 11:  Right.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Good.

Mr. Franklin:  So, I'm Chris Franklin. I'm the Director of the Academy for
Science and Design. A little bit about my background. I am an engineer. I
went through the system. I became group manager, eventually started my
own company, did well with that, and took a little time off. And now, I've
become basically the Volunteer Director of the Academy for Science and
Design. I work a lot of hours there, and some other things about my past.

I have three children. All three of them have gone through the public school
system, and as you can imagine, I could probably have sent them to a private
school if I wanted to, but the fact is, I really believe in the public school
system. I always have. I've been a great advocate for the public school
systems. I've even contributed money to the Merrimack District myself. So, I
want you to understand that, even though I'm a director of this particular
public school, I in no way want to hurt the public school system at all.

Now, what happened last spring was quite remarkable. I got this information
that a science school was starting, a public science school, and we were very
excited because not only do we love the public school system, but now the
public school system was getting an added feature to it that our children who
were into science and math could now get a science and math specialized
education. So, both of my children applied, both middle schoolers. One of
them decided to go there, and one of them decided to go to the Merrimack
Middle School. So, I have a child in both the Merrimack Middle School and in
the Academy for Science and Design.



Now, we thought some of the reasons that we sent our kids to public schools
were we felt that the public schools did do a good job educating our children.
We also felt that the public schools are an incredible important part of this
country in that it gives everybody a chance to get an excellent education. And
now, you could even have a chance to get a science-specialized education. So,
we thought that the science school was just a perfect addition to the public
schools.

One of the things my wife did is she wrote a letter to the Governor in support
of HB 1642, and we got a letter back that said, “I agree that charter schools
are a good thing, but they should all be owned by districts.” And, as Director,
of course, my reaction is, “Well, gee, that’s an interesting idea. If I can get
funding by going to a district, then maybe that's the way to go, maybe we can
support the school that way.” Unfortunately, the Science School, I think, is
kind of unique and I got some handouts here. It's not a big deal, but the
handouts are basically this map. And, I'll show it to the people back here so
you know what’s on it. This map shows where our students come from across
New Hampshire. We currently have thirty-two students coming from sixteen
districts.

Unidentified Person from the Audience: Want me to hold it for you?

Mr. Franklin: Oh, thank you. And, I couldn’t fathom as Director, I could go
to one of those districts and say, “Would you adopt this school where ninety
percent of the students going to it are not paying taxes into your system?’ It
just didn’t seem plausible. I'm not sure everybody really gets a full grasp of
how far some of these students travel. We have someone traveling over an
hour to get to our school just to get assigned specialized education, and the
blue ones are the ones that are applicants, and this one is not a mistake. This
is someone from Massachusetts who wants to come and even pay tuition to
our school, which is kind of a cool thing, I think.

So, that’s the first thing that this map illustrates. The other thing that 1t
illustrates is we only take an average of two students from each of the
districts. I would think it would be prohibitively expensive to try to put our
science education into the middle schools of all of those different districts. I
would think you'd spend quite a bit more money to do that. So, again, if you
look at the maps, and I gave you all one of them, I just wanted to illustrate
that fact.

Please see “New Hampshire Coverage Map”, attached hereto and
referred to as Attachment #5.



Now, the last thing I just wanted to mention about HB 1642. I know a lot of
people are against these specialized schools, these charter schools, but 1642
is really a funding bill for the students that are in those schools. And so, even
if you don’t want the charter schools, I think it’s a good idea to move for this
bill because in all the students you've seen here, it’s going to help them get a
better education. I think that’s an important thing for this particular bill. I,
you know, I certainly wouldn't mind having an argument with people about
whether or not charter schools should exist, but then, a bill to stop the
charter schools would be more appropriate than that than hurting all of the
students and voting against this bill and not adequately funding for next year
only the schools. And, that’s pretty much all I have to say.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you.

Senator Martha Fuller Clark, D. 24: Thank you very much.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Questions from the Committee? Thank
you very much.

Mr. Franklin: You're welcome.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  John Davis.

John Davis, Surry Village School: Thank you, Did anybody have a chance
to look at the video last week?

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19:  Is this a test?

Mr. Davis: This is...

Senator Iris W, Estabrook, D. 21: We ask the questions.

Mr. Davis: ...part of, this is education. Yeah. Please, please look at it
because you'll see what these charter schools, the potential they have in
communities to bring everybody together. In that video, it’s not just parents
and family and friends, it's the whole community. It’s the fire department.
It’s everybody coming out to get this started, and that community spirit’s so
important today. Anyways, (sic) I would like to tell you people that I feel that
you, this small group of people is one of the most important committees in the
state. Education is the important one. Whether it’s trying to solve the budget
problems or build a safe bridge, it all starts with education.

These charter schools have a great potential in this state to solve some of the
educational problems. We've seen that they have the ability to raise extra
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money. Our school’s going to raise around 120,000 private donations just to
keep the lights on. So, the potential’s there. Other schools are doing the same.
We're able to attract grants. There’s proof that in the short time we’ve been
in existence that we are able to work with the districts. And, as time goes on
and the charter schools and the districts find ways where we can help one
another, that potential is also great. And, you know, we know Senator Kelly,
you and I had talked about the drop-out rate and the prison populations, and
these charter schools fit into saving a lot of that. And also, Senator Kelly, you
talked about how you can bring some of these charter school ideas to the
public schools, and Chris’ testimony just kind of touched on that a little bit.

I just hope you realize the potential, and I don’t want to take a lot of time. I
could talk about this stuff all day long, but, please don't forget us. This is
small potatoes compared to what it’s going to cost later on, or could cost later
on. So, give us a chance to get up and show what the true potential is. Thank
you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Thank you. Questions? Seeing none,
thank you. Call Bill Wilmot.

Bill Wilmot, Seacoast Charter School: Good morning. I'm the Head of
School of the Seacoast Charter School. Happy Earth Day. The House
Education Committee voted on House Bill 1642, and, in doing so, sent a very
clear message that because the state had established a process for the
approval of charter schools, because the State Board of Education had
approved charter schools under this process, because there are now state
authorized charter schools successfully operating and meeting the needs of
students, the state had a clear obligation to provide these schools with
sustainable funding.

Charter schools are statewide, open-enrollment schools. We have been called,
“Wards of the State awaiting adoption” by some. I don’t like this term. I see
this state as our parent. And, as happens upon occasion in a family, there are
unexpected children, and we are in some ways an unexpected child. But, this
does not decrease the state’s parental obligation for sustainable funding for
these schools.

One of the concerns that's been raised with the local district adopting charter
schools and basically ending state authorization of charter schools is that this
would essentially mean the end of federal Department of Education support
for charter schools. Among their competitive preference priorities is an
explicit priority seeking more than one authorizer, an LEA and a, some other
authorizer estate, in our case, it’s the State Board of Education. So, a
preference is given for applications in the federal DOE that have multiple
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authorizers. Closing down the state authorization process would essentially
mean that there would be no more federal money for charter schools in New
Hampshire. Stepping back and looking at the whole picture, and I missed the
beginning, so I'm sure people have said this, so I'll make it brief.

Charter schools provide critical options to keep kids engaged from school.
Engaged kids graduate from high school, disengaged kids go on step by step
to drop out of high school. So, I think charter schools can be a critical part of
preventing drop out, even elementary charter schools that a student’s
decision to drop out of school begins that early, as early as first, second, third
grade. I think that the possibilities for charter schools are extremely positive
and this is a small step that would allow those charter schools to continue
and even flourish into the future.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you. Questions? Seeing none,
thank you. We have five more minutes and two more speakers. Raymond
Maclean.

Raymond Maclean, Surry Village School: In my years as a public school
teacher and...

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19:  Identify yourself.

Mr. Maclean: Raymond Maclean. In my years as a public school teacher
and as a employee in various human service agencies, I know that the State
of New Hampshire has a reputation for innovation and creative solutions to
problems that are fiscally conservative, and because we don’t have big
budgets for things, we come up with solutions that work on a small level that
use our money very wisely. I feel that charter schools are another example of
how this state can find a solution to a little piece of a problem which is cost-
effective, which is community-based. We've talked about students making
decisions for dropping out or staying in school, but I think we also need to
think about communities making decisions about supporting schools or not
supporting.

In our southwestern section of the state, it’s been a battle ground in the last
few years., Education is being constantly challenged and fought over, and
budgets have been defeated right and left, and I think it would behoove the
state to show its support for a creative program which spends about half as
much money per pupil as the public school system does, and I just think that
the support that you could give to charter schools to keep them going and
functioning would show both the state’s commitment to education, and
highlight its ability to create creative programs that are fiscally responsible.
Thank you.
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Senator Molly Kelly, D. 10: Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you very much. Call Frank
Conroy.

Frank Conroy, Surry Village Charter School: Frank Conroy, Surry Village
Charter School. Thank you for this opportunity to speak. I've got two
minutes, I guess.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Sorry about that.

Mr. Conroy: No, that’s okay.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: We only meet once a week.

Mr. Conroy: I understand. You know, originally when the federal
government sent this money off to New Hampshire to start these schools, it
was with the anticipation that they would find, the state would find the
funding to keep them going. And, I think it’s an obligation of the state to do
just that. That could impact us in the long run down the road if the feds take
a look up here and see that we haven’t kept these schools going. I think it's
terribly important that we do. We were here last week. We spoke, children
were here from the school. We bumped into Governor Lynch right outside
here, had a nice little chat with him, and he said he supported charter
schools.

So, we heard it right from the horse’s mouth. And, I don’t think you can get
any better than that. So, I support 1642. It's a stop-gap measure until we can
find permanent funding. Is it the amount we’d like? No, but it’ll help us to
open this fall. It'll help the schools to open this fall and keep them going until
we can find a permanent solution for these schools. And, it’s, I liken these
schools to the voce tech schools, which is state funds. It's alternative education
and it’s working here in the state. So, we hope you will support 1442 (sic) and
it will go through. Thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you very much. No one else has
signed up to speak on House Bill 1642. Are you Gail Ober?

Unidentified Voice from Audience: No. I came in late. Beth Allard...

Beth Allard: Oh, I am. I'm sorry I didn’t sign up.
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Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: I know. That’s what I wondered. If you'd
like to come forward, go ahead and identify yourself, but please be brief.

Beth Allard. Cocheco Art and Technology Charter Academy: Thank you. I
will. Beth Allard. And, I'm speaking as briefly as I can. I'm going to pass
something out, but I've been wanting to, I've been trying to contact some of
you by phone, expected to talk to you about the realness of all this. I'm going
to put aside this and just say I'd like to talk to you about the fact that I've
lived in New Hampshire my whole life. I've taught publicly, I've taught
privately. I'm now at a charter school. 'm very familiar with everything that
goes on in New Hampshire from the roads to the retirement fund to, you
know, nursing homes, etcetera, etcetera, etcetera.

Senator Robert J. Letourneau, D. 19:  You should run for office.

Ms. Allard: When I retire, I would love to do something. I look at what you
all are doing and see how important it 1s. But, looking at everything and
knowing that there are some hard decisions to make, there are some tough
decisions to make, and being familiar with, you know, I've lived in Rindge,
I've lived in Randolph, and I've lived on the seacoast and have spent, you
know, my whole life here. Looking at what happens in my classroom in a
charter school, I just urge you from the bottom of my heart to support this. I
see kids that are doing things that I never dreamed possible, and I think the
big factor if I was to, you know, there are lots of factors that go into it. My
classroom looks the same as any other classroom I've ever taught in...

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21:  Okay. I'm going to have to ask yvou to
conclude because I didn’t realize you'd had an opportunity to speak last time.

Ms. Allard;: I sure will. But, I just wanted to say, you know, the choice and
the option of being at school in there contributes highly to their engagement.
So, thank you.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: Thank you very much.

Ms. Allard: And, my apologies.

Senator Iris W. Estabrook, D. 21: For the Committee’s information,
Representative Weyler, Representative Christiansen, Peyton Hinkle, Eileen
Liponis, Senator Kenney, Gail Ober, Rhonda Loring, all signed up in favor
not wishing to speak.

Hearing concluded at 9:17 a.m.
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Respectfully submitted,

Amanda Jurta

Senate Committee Secretary
06/13/08
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Delaware’s Charter Schools

SCHOOLS CURRENTLY OPEN

Academy of Dover Charter School
104 Saulsbury Road

Dover, DE 19904

Leonard Litzi, Director

Phone: (302) 674-0684

Fax: (302} 674-3894

The Academy of Dover Charter
School was established to provide
Students with essential skills
needed for a quality education.
The school has a focus on an
entrepreneurial curriculum with a
business and technology
approach. In the school year
2006-2007 the school will have
approximately 475 students in
grades K—-0.

Campus Community Schoel

Patricia Hermance, Elementary School Administrator
21 North Bradford Street

Dover, Delaware 19904

Phone: (302) 736-3300

Fax: (302) 736-3390

Heidi Greene, High School Administrator
350 Pear Street

Dover, Delaware 19904

Phone: (302) 736-0403

Fax: (302) 736-3390

Campus Community School was
established in 1998 1o provide a
unique learning environment to
students in grades 1-8. Campus
Community School now serves
380 students in grades 1-11. The
school will expand to grades 1-12
next school year. It is located at
two sites - one at 21 North
Bradford Street in Dover and a
second at 350 Pear Street in
Dover. The building on Pear
Street houses the high school

program.

The Charter School of Wilmington
100 North duPont Road

Wilmington, Delaware 19807

Ron Russo, President

Phone: (302) 651-2727

Fax: (302) 652-1246
www,charterschool.org

The Charter School of Wilmington
was established in 1996 to
provide a strong academic
program, especially in
mathematics and science, 1o
students in grades 9—12. CSW has
an estimated enroliment of 900
students.

Delaware Military Academy
112 Middleboro Road
Wilmington, DE 19804

http://www.decharternetwork.org/decharter.html]

Delaware Military Academy's
mission is to prepare young men
and women for their next level of

Abachments|

4/17/2008
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Charles Baldwin, Commandant
Phone: (302) 998-0745

Fax: (302) 998-3521
www.demilacad.org

Page 2 of 5

education in a structured and
highly disciplined environment
providing the foundation for good
citizenship, scholarship and sound
leadership practices. DMA
opened in September 2003 with
310 cadets. DMA expanded fo
grade 11 in the 2004- 05 School
Year and will add grade 12 in the
2005-06 School Year.

East Side Charter School

3000 N. Claymont Street
Wilmington, Delaware 19802

Will Robinson, Executive Director
Phone: (302) 762-5834

Fax: (302) 762-3864

www k12 de.us/eastside/

Opened in September 1997, East
Side Charter School was
established to provide a strong
learning atmosphere and
educational program to at-risk
students. The school’s charter was
recently renewed for five more
years. The school population
includes 252 in Grades K-8.

Family Foundations Academy
1101 Delaware Street

New Castle, DE 19720

Dr. Tennell Brewington, Director
Phone (302) 324-8901

Fax (302) 324-8908

www, familyfoundationsacademy.org

Opened September 2006 in New
Castle, Delaware, Family
Foundations Academy serves
grades 1-4. FFA was established
to nurture each student,
acknowliedging that there are
learning differences among
children. FFA offers a holistic
approach to learning, focusing on
strategies to help families
participate in their children’s
learning. The school will occupy a
new building near the intersection
of Route 9 on Re. 273

Kuumba Academy Charter School
519 North Market Street
Wilmington, Delaware 19801

Dr. Sondra Shippen, Director
Phone: (302) 472-6450

Fax: (302) 472-6452

www kuumbacyberkidz.com/

Kuumba Academy Charfer School
opened in 2001 to provide a
stimulating innovative learning
environment in the city of
Wilmington. The school’s core
educational foundation focuses on
the whole child and rests on the
belief that parents are primary
educators of children. Kuumba
Academy Charter School has 250
students in grades K-35.

http://www.decharternetwork.org/decharter.html
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Marion T. Academy Charter School
1121 Thatcher Street

Wilmington, Delaware 19802

John Taylor, Head of School

Phone: (302) 575-1190

Fax: (302) 575-1425

www.mariont. groupfusion.net

Middle School

1200 Northeast Blvd.
Wilmington, Delaware 19802
Phone (302) 428-1213

Fax: (302) 428-0979

Page 3 of 5

Marion T. Academy Charter

- School was established in the City

of Wilmington to provide a unique
educational environment. The
morning program focuses on the
core curriculum, which cultivates
skills essential to academic
Success and excellence. The
afternoon program includes the
Core Knowledge Curriculum and
also the arts, Spanish, and
technology which prepares
students to be creative, intuitive,
and analytical. Enrollment is
approximately 650 students in
grades K-8. Grades 6-8 are now
housed in a new middle school
across the street from the
elementary school campus.

Maurice J. Moyer Academy

97 Vandever Ave

Wilmington, DE 19892

Theopalis Gregory Sr.,President/ CVEO
Phone: (302) 428-9500

Fax: (302) 428-9506

Located in downtown Wilmington,
Moyer Academy will serve 655
students in grades 6-12. The
school emphasizes total
development of each student by
offering: a safe learning
environment with smaller class
sizes, school uniforms and high
standards for behavior, life skills
training, and "Small Learning
Communities" in technology and
health science. In August 2006,
grades 6, 7 and 9 will be offered.
Remaining grades will be added
in subsequent years.

MOT Charter School

1156 Levels Road

Middletown, Delaware 19709
Linda Jennings, Head of School
Phone: (302) 376-5125

Fax: (302) 376-5120

www. motcharter.com

MOT Charter School provides
students with a well rounded
education that includes a rigorous
curriculum of all core subjects
and a well rounded arts program
that includes music education, art
education, and Spanish, The
school opened with approximately
600 students in grades K~7 and
currently enrolls 675 students in
grades K-8.

Newark Charter School
2001 Patriot's Way
Newark, Delaware 19711
Greg Meece, Director
Phone: (302) 369-2001

http://www.decharternetwork.org/decharter.htmi

The Newark Charter School was
established to provide students
with a rigorous and academically
challenging education. Newark
Charter School opened in

4/17/2008
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Fax: {(302) 368-3460
www.k12.de.us/ncs

Page 4 of 5

September 2003 in a new building
which houses 648 students in
grades 5— 8.

Odyssey Charter School

3821 Lancaster Averue

Building 40

Wilmington, DE 19805

Tony Skoutelas, Director

Phone: (302) 994-6490

Fax: (302) 994-6915
www.odysseycharterschooldel.org

Opened in September 2006. The
Odyssey Charter School is
established to prepare
Kindergarten through Grade 5
students for a lifelong enthusiasm
Jor learning, a keen awareness of
world citizenship, and an ability
to think independently and
creatively through participation in
a focused foreign language
immersion program. At Odyssey,
children will be taught a critical
subject matter, Math, in both
English and a classic language,
Greek, for a portion of the day
which reinforces the learning as
taught in English. This focused
language immersion instruction
method builds key reasoning
techniques, language arts skills,
and significantly strengthens the
mathematical comprehension and
performance of our students. The
school is approved to open with
131 students in grades K-2 and
expand to 290 students in grades
K-35 by its fourth year of
operation,

Pencader Business & Finance Charter High School

170 Lukens Drive

New Castle, DE 19720
David Jones, Director
Phone (302) 472-0794
Fax (302) 472-0796

www pencadercharter.org

Pencader Business and Charter
High School has been established
to provide educational
opportunities for students wishing
to pursue a high school education
with a business and finance
concentration. The school is
projected to have an enrollment of
350 students in grades 9 and 10
and is scheduled to expand o 800

_Students in grades 9-12.

Positive Outcomes Charter School
193 South DuPont Highway
Carmnden, Delaware 19934

Ed Emmett, Director

Phone: (302) 697-8805

Fax: (302) 697-8813

www k12.de.us/positive

http://www.decharternetwork.org/decharter.htmi

Positive Qutcomes Charter School
opened in 1996 to serve at-risk
students in grades 712, The
school has an enroliment of 120
students.

4/17/2008
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Providence Creek Academy Charter School

355 West Duck Creek Road
Clayton, Delaware 19938 .
Audrey M. Erschen, Administrator
Phone: (302) 653-6276

Fax: (302) 653-7850
www.k12.de.us/pea/pea/PCA

The Providence Creek Academy
Charter School was established to
provide students with an
education focused on linkages
among academics, technology,
and careers. The school enrolls
approximately 664 students in
grades K-8.

Sussex Academy of Arts and Sciences
21777 Sussex Pines Road

Georgetown, Delaware 19947

Dr. Patricia Oliphant, Executive Director
Phone: (302) 856-3636

Fax: (302} 856-3376

www sussexacademy.org

Sussex Academy of Arts and
Sciences was established to
provide a strong educational
program to middle school
students in southern Delaware.
The school has 325 studenis in
grades 8.

Thomas A. Edison Charter School
2200 North Locust Street
Wilmington, Delaware 19802
Charles Hughes, Principal

Phone: (302) 778-1101

Fax: (302) 778-2232

Thomas A. Edison Charter School
was established to provide a
strong educational program to a
diverse student population in the
Wilmington area. The school has
approximately 825 students in
grades K-8.

Copyright © 2003 Delaware Charter Schools Network. All rights reserved.
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MARYLAND CHARTER SC1000!, NETWORK
axponding axcelience in edcation

R
HCmE ABTIUT MC SN MEMBERSHIP RESOURCES NEWSROOM

3,

CONTACT MM

CHARTER SCHOOLS IN MARYLAND

Y Anne Arundel County

b Chesapeake Sclence Point
INFORMATION \&-::—_’} pe

= Opened 2005
What is 2 Charter School?

ol Principal - Fatih Kandil

Starting a Charter School }?\j Grades - 6-7 (8-12 fully operational)

FAQS @}JD 1321 Mercedes Dr, Suite Q-5

) Hanover, MD 21076

Charter Schools in Maryland 7 Phone: 410-684-2686

Fact Sheet el Fax: 410-684-25383

Statistics Lt"_L— www.clfind,org

Locai Scheal Systern Contact g

Information @ﬁ

Charter School Job < Baltimore City

Opportunities (m_li:m;

History of Maryland Legislation F_j Baitimore International Academy
it Opened 2007

Contact- Kona-Facia Nepay

Grades- K-8 (K-12 fully operational)
Main Campus: 3501 Taylor Ave.
Baltimore City, MD 21236

Phone: 410-426-3650/3651

Fax: 410-426 3652

www baltimoreinternationalacademy.org/

Bluford Drew Jemison Math Sclence Technology Academy
Opened 2007

Contact- Kirk Gaddy

Grades- 6 (6-8 fully operational)

1130 N. Caroline Street

Baltimore, MD 21213

Phone: 410-2768-3085

Fax: 410-276-3096

www bdjacademy.org/

City Neighbors Charter School
Opened 2005

Principatl - Mike Chalupa

Grades - K-5 (K-8 fully operational)
4301 Raspe Avenue

Baltimore, MD 21206
410-325-CNCS (2627}
www_.cityneighbors_org

chient- 4 2-

http://mdcharternetwork.org/csi_md_charterschools.html 4/17/2008
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City Springs School
Qpened 2005

Principal - Bemice Whelche!
Grades served - PreK - 8
100 S. Caroline Street
Baltimore MD 21231
410-396-9165

www .baltimorecp.org

Collington Square School
Cpened 2005

Principal - Harold Eason
Grades served - PreK-8
1409 N. Collington Avenue
Baltimore, MD 21213
410-396-9198

www baltimorecp.arg

ConneXlons Academy

QOpened 2006

Principai - Dana Polson

Grades - 6-8 (Fuily operational §-12)
2801 N. Dukeland Avenue
Baltimore, MD 21216

443-984-1418

Coppin Academy High School

Opened 2007

Principal - Mr. William L. Howard

Grades- 9 -11 (9-12 fully operaticnal)

2500 West North Avenue

Baltimore, MD 21216-3698

Local: (410) 951-3000  Tolt Free: (800) 635-3674
www.coppin.edu/coppin_academy/

The Crossroads School
Qpened 2005

Principal - Mark Martin
Grades served - 6-8

802 S. Caroline Street
Baltimore, MD 21231
410-685-0295

www thecrossroadsschool.org

The Empowerment Academy

Opened 2005

Pringipal - Garolyn Smith

Grades - PreK-2 {(PreK-8 fully cperational)
851 Braddish Avenue

Balttmore MD 21216

443-984-2361
empowerment.ballimorecityschools.org/

The Green School of Baltimeore
Opened 2006

Principal - Ms. Kate Primm

Grades - K-2 {K-5 fully operational)

http://mdcharternetwork.org/csi_md_charterschools.html

Page 2 of 6
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335 W, 27th Street

Baltimore, MU 21211
410-483-5784
www.greenschoolofbaltimore.org/

Hampstead Hill Academy

Opened 2005

Principal - Matt Hombeck

Grades - PreK-7 (PreK-8 fully operational)
500 S. Linwood Avenue

Baltimore, MD 21224

410-396-9146

www.hhad7.org

independence Schoo! Local |

Opened 2007

Contact- Helen Atkinson

Grades- 9-12

1250 W. 36th Street Baltimore, MD 21211
410- 467-1090

Inner Harbor East Academy
Opened 2005

Principal - Eila Waters

Grades - K-3 {K-12 fully operational}
200 N. Central Avenue

Baitimore, MD 21202

410-537-5890

Klpp Ujima Village Academy

Opened 2005

Principal - Jason Botel

Grades - 5-8

4701 Greenspring AvenueBaltimore, MD 21209
410-545-3669

www . ujimavillage.org/

Maryland Academy of Technology and Health Sciences (MATHS)
Opened 2006

Principal - Ms. Rebekah Ghosh

4701 Greenspring Avenue, Suite 400

Battimore, MD 21209

Grades - 8-9 (Fully operational 8-12)

410-262-6072

www.mathshaltimore.org

Midtown Academy

Opened 2005

Principal - Kathiean Nutt O'Hanlon

Grades - K-8

1398 Mount Royal Avenue

Baltimore MD 21217

410-225-3257 .
www . midtownacademy.org

Northwood Appold Communlity Academy
QOpened 2005

http://mdcharternetwork.org/csi_md_charterschools.html 4/17/2008
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Principal - Virginia Richardson
Grades K-2 (K-8 fully operational)
4499 Loch Raven Boulevard
Baltimore, MD 21218
410-323-6712
hitp:/Awww.nacacad.org/

Patterson Park Public Charter School
Opened 2005

Principal - Dr. Chad Kramer

Grades - PreK-6 (PreK-8 fully operational}
27 N. Lakewood Avenue

Baltimore MD 21224

410-558-1230

WWW_pppCs.org

Dr. Raynor Browne Elementary School
Qpened 2007

Contact- Alison Perkins-Cohen

Grades- PreK-7 {PreK-8 fully operaticnal)
1000 N. Montford Avenue

Baltimore, MD 21205

410-235-0015

‘Rosemont Eloementary/Middle School #6&3
Opened 2006

Principai - Ms. Sandra Ashe

Grades - PreK-5 {Fully operational PreK-8)
2777 Presstman Street

Baltimore, MD 21216

410-396-0574

Southwest Baltimore Charter Schoo!
Opened 2005

Principal - Keturah Nilsson

Grades - K-2 (PreK-8 fully operational)
31 South Schroeder Street

Baitimore, MD 21223

443-980-9016

www.shcschool.org

Woife Street Academy
Opened 2007

Contact- Alison Perkins-Cohen
Grades- PreK-5

245 S, Wolfe Street

Baltimore, MD 21231
410-235-0015

www wolfestreetacademy.org/

Frederick County

Monocacy Valley Montessori Charter School

Opened 2002
Principal - Bettejane Weiss
Grades - Currently K-8

http://mdcharternetwork.org/csi_md_charterschools.html 4/17/2008
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217 Dill Avenue
Frederick, MD 21701
301-6668-5013
www.mvms.info

Harford County

Restoration Alternative Academy

Opened 2008

Principal - Mr. Louis Gordon

Grades - 8-9 (7-12 fully operational) 253 Paradise Road
Aberdeen, MD 21001

410-272-3278
http/Awww.hcps.org/schools/middle/RestorationAcademy.aspx

Prince George's County

EXCEL Academy

Opened 2006

Principal- Ms. Deberah J. Moore

5811 Riverdale Road

Riverdale, MD 20737

Grades - K-5 (K-8 fully operational)
301-277-5320

hitp:/iwww . pgops.orgi~charterfexcel.htm!

imagine-Foundations Public Charter School
Opened 2007

Principal - Dr. Sheron Brown

Grades - K-4 (K-8 fully operational)

4605 Brown Station Road

Upper Marboro, MD 20772

301-952-8707
http://schools.pgcps.orgfindex.asp?code=15121

Lincoln Public Charter Schogl

Opened 2007

Principal - Jennifer Ciavirella-Schmidberger
Grades - PreK-4 (PreK-8 fully operational)
3120 Branch Avenue

Marlow Heights, MD 20748

301-505-6020

www.lincolrpcs.org

Turning Point Academy

OCpened 2006

Principal- Dr. Kenneth Jones
Grades - K-3 (K-6 fully operational}
7800 Goodluck Road

Lanham, MD 20708

301-552-0164

www tumingpointacademy.org

http://mdcharternetwork.org/csi_md_charterschools html 4/17/2008
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St. Mary's County

Chesapeake Public Charter School
Opened 2007

Interim Education Director - Kathleen Glaser
Grades - K-4 (K-8 fully operational)

20945 Great Mills Road

Lexington Park, MD 20653

301-994-3786
www.chesapeakepubliccharterschool.org

http://mdcharternetwork.org/csi_md_charterschools.html 4/17/2008
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_ I

Rhode Island news
R.I. charter schools, 2007-08

01:11 PM EDT on Monday, March 31, 2008

EACH CHARTER SCHOOL is considered its own school district. A nonprofit or a school department
must sponsor a charter school. In some cases, the relationship ends there; in others, the sponsoring
agency remains involved by serving on the charter’s board of trustees, for example.

RHODE ISLAND’S charter schools are: Extra

SCHOOL: Beacon Charter School Charter school roulette: It's
harder to get into some of

LOCATION: Woonsocket; currently serves students from 15 Rhode Island's charter schools

communities than it is to get into the Ivy
League.

OPENED: 2003
Q&A: What, why and where

GRADES: 9-12 are these schools?

SPONSOR: Northern Rhode Island Council for the Arts and Johnson & Gallery: Students at, and who
Wales University want to be at, charter schools

FOCUS: Visual, theater and culinary arts with a career/technical focus ~ Your turn: Do you think
and a college preparatory academic curriculum Rhode Island needs more
charter schools?

ENROLLMENT: 177

Related links

WAIT LIST: None The Rhode Island League of

' harter Sch
TEST SCORES: Reading 50 percent proficient; Math 9.52 percent Charter Schools

proficient Rhode Island General Law:

I :
WOONSOCKET AVERAGE: Reading 50 percent; Math 11 percent Efﬁf;%lfhmm of charter
STATEWIDE AVERAGE: Reading 61 percent; Math 22 percent Rhode Island General Law:

. Funding of charter schools
UNION OR NONUNION: Nonunion

National charter school

E-mail: www.beaconart.org information

SCHOOL: Blackstone Academy

Apchment #3

http://www.projo.com/news/content/CHARTERS_PULLOUTS_03-30-08_6N9F8GP_v61.... 4/17/2008
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LOCATION: Pawtucket; also serves Central Falls
OPENED: 2002
GRADES: 9-12
SPONSOR: Rhode Island Youth Guidance Center

FOCUS: Strong sense of community; college preparatory classes; multi-age classes with strong advisory
system :

ENROLLMENT: 155

WAIT LIST: 86

TEST SCORES: Reading 59 percent; Math 5.5 percent
STATEWIDE AVERAGE: Reading 61 per;:ent; Math 22 percent
UNION OR NONUNION: Nonunion

E-mail: www.blackstoneacademy.org

SCHOOL: Compass School

LOCATION: South Kingstown; serves Washington County
OPENED: 2002

GRADES: K-8

SPONSOR: Save the Bay

FOCUS: Multi-age grouping; project-based curriculum; focus on environmental sustainability and social
responsibility

ENROLLMENT: 145

WAIT LIST: 190

TEST SCORES: Reading 90 percent; Math 84 percent

SK DISTRICT AVERAGE: Reading 83 percent; Math 77 percent
UNION OR NONUNION: Nonunion

E-mail: www.compassschool.org

SCHOOL: Paul Cuffee Charter School

http://www.projo.com/news/content/ CHARTERS_PULLOUTS_03-30-08_6N9F8GP_v61.... 4/17/2008
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LOCATION: Providence

OPENED: 2001

GRADES: K-8

SPONSOR: International Sailing Institute

FOCUS: Empbhasizes scientific and technical careers through academic and maritime training
ENROLLMENT: 440

. WAIT LIST: 514

TEST SCORES: Reading 52 percent; Math 38 percent

PROVIDENCE DISTRICT AVERAGE: Reading 39 percent; Math 28 percent
UNION OR NONUNION: Nonunion

E-mail: www.paulcuffee.org

SCHOOL: Highlander Charter School

LOCATION: Providence

OPENED: 2000

GRADES: K-8 (planning a high school)

SPONSOR: The Big Picture Company

FOCUS: Help develop responsible citizens, productive workers and lifelong learners; differentiated
instruction

ENROLLMENT: 252

WAIT LIST: 500

TEST SCORES: Reading 40 percent; Math 30 percent

PROVIDENCE DISTRICT AVERAGE: Reading 39 percent; Math 28 percent
UNION OR NONUNION: Nonunion

E-mail: www.highlandercharter.org

SCHOOL: International Charter School

http://www.projo.com/news/content/ CHARTERS_PULLOUTS_03-30-08_6N9F8GP_v61.... 4/17/2008
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LOCATION: Pawtucket; also serves students from Central Falls and Providence
OPENED: 2001

GRADES: K-5

SPONSOR: International Institute

FOCUS: Dual language program, Spanish/English or Portuguese/English; develop independent, critical
thinkers

ENROLLMENT: 300

WAIT LIST: 280

TEST SCORES: Reading 49 percent; Math 28 percent
STATE URBAN AVERAGE: 43 percent; Math 32 percent
STATE AVERAGE: Reading 65 percent; Math 54 percent
UNION OR NONUNION: Nonunion

E-mail: www.internationalcharterschool.org

SCHOOL.: Kingston Hill Academy

LOCATION: South Kingstown; serves students primarily in Washington County
OPENED: 2001

GRADES: K-6 (chartered K-8; plans future growth)
SPONSOR: The Groden Network

FOCUS: Inclusive education; all students have individualized learning plans; school-wide Spanish
instruction; Groden Network support services for students with special needs

ENROLLMENT: 179

WAIT LIST: 162

TEST SCORES: Reading 78 percent; Math 53 percent

SK DISTRICT AVERAGE: Reading 83 percent; Math 77 percent
STATEWIDE AVERAGE: Reading 65 percent; Math 54 percent

UNION OR NONUNION: Nonunion

http://www.projo.com/news/content/ CHARTERS_PULLOUTS_03-30-08_6NSF8GP_v61.... 4/17/2008
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E-mail: www kingstonhill.org

SCHOOL: The Learning Community

LOCATION: Central Falls; also serves Pawtucket and Providence
OPENED: 2004

GRADES: K-4 (adding grade 5 in fall 2008; grade 6 in fall 2009)
SPONSOR: Progreso Latino

FOCUS: Building student, teacher and community leadership; emphasis on literacy; trained master
teachers; family engagement -

ENROLLMENT: 280.(will eventually grow to 420)

WAIT LIST: 176

TEST SCORES: Reading 59 percent; Math 54 percent

STATE URBAN AVERAGE: 43 percent; Math 32 percent

STATE AVERAGE: Reading 65 percent; Math 54 percent

UNION OR NONUNION: Nonunion

E-mail: www.thelearningcommunity.com

SCHOOL: New England Laborers’/Cranston Construction Careers Academy
LOCATION: Cranston; serves state

OPENED: 2002

GRADES: 9-12

SPONSOR: Laborers’ International Union of North America and Cranston Public Schools

FOCUS: Prepare students interested in construction trades and environmental science careers; provide
solid academic foundation

ENROLLMENT: 193
WAIT LIST: None
TEST SCORES: Reading 22 percent; Math 2 percent

STATEWIDE AVERAGE: Reading 61 percent; Math 22 percent

http://www.projo.com/news/content/ CHARTERS _PULLOUTS_03-30-08_6N9F8GP_v61.... 4/17/2008
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| ., . UNION OR NONUNION: Union

*E-mail: www.lecet.org/Clearinghouse_Public/NewEngland/charter/charter.htm
SCHOOL: Textron Chamber of Commerce Academy

LOCATION: Providence |

OPENED: 1997

GRADES: 9-12

SPONSOR: Providence Public Schools

FOCUS: College preparatory curricutum; 60-hour freshman summer program; senior internships; job
placement for juniors and seniors; 100 hours of community service; after-school enrichment program

ENROLLMENT: 225
- WAIT LIST: 149
TEST SCORES: Reading 53 percent; Math 3.45 percent
PROVIDENCE AVERAGE: Reading 45 percent; Math 10 percent
STATEWIDE AVERAGE: Reading 61 percent; Math 22 percent
UNION OR NONUNION: Union
*E-mail; www.chamberschool.com
SCHOOL: Times 2 Academy
LOCATION: Providence
OPENED: 1998
GRADES: K-12
SPONSOR: Providence Public Schools

FOCUS: Preparing urban youth, particularly black and Hispanic students, for careers in math, science,
technology and engineering.

ENROLLMENT: 647
WAIT LIST: 638

TEST SCORES (Elementary and Middle): Reading 53 percent; Math 40 percent

http://www.projo.com/news/content/CHARTERS_PULLOQUTS_03-30-08_6N9F8GP_v61.... 4/17/2008



R.I. charter schools, 2007-08 | Rhode Island news | Rhode Island news | projo.com | The P... Page 7 of 7

¥

.+ PROVIDENCE AVERAGE: Reading 39 percent; Math 28 percent
TEST SCORES (High School): Reading 80 percent; Math 8.8 percent
PROVIDENCE AVERAGE: Reading 45 percent; Math 10 percent
UNION OR NONUNION: Union

*E-mail: www.times2.org

* Rhode Island Federation of Teachers represents teachers in the three unionized charters,

http://www.projo.com/news/content/CHARTERS _PULLOUTS_03-30-08_6N9F8GP_v61.... 4/17/2008




i I
{
NH Deptment of Education
L Bureau of Data Management
FY(9 Adequacy Aid Grants
and Statewide Enhanced Education Tax Assessment
A B
FY05 FYOB/FY09
ADM-R Grants
K<=0.5 {See FY08 for State Aid/
calculations) Student >6500 |>5500 >3819
State Total 198,968.9] 527,360,567
Acworth 1271 438,012 3,446
Albany 118.8 483,886 4,073 X
Alexandria 255.1 693,151 2,717
Allenstown 7449 4,012,756 5,387 * X
Alstead 293.7 1,363,535 4,643 X
Alton 756.6
Amhaerst 2,438.7 3,641,010 1,494
Andover 315.1 715,467 2,271
Antrim 524.0 2,532,436 4,833 X
Ashland 253.2 649,974 2,567
Atkinson 1,099.9 910,814 828
Aubum 909.5 1,623 460 1,785
Barnstead 747.9 2,413,019 3,226
Barrington 1,284 2 3,413,322 2637
Bartlett 409.7
Bath 124.5 469,117 3,768
Bedford 38107 3,010,208 834
Belmont 1,178.7 4,186,439 3,552
Bennington 247.3 1,140,347 4,648 X
Benton 30.4 123,820 4,073 X
Berlin 1,409.4 9,466,578 6,717 {%% * X
Bethlehem 394.7 1,259,486 3,191
Boscawen 534.6 2,341,838 4 381 X
Bow 1,745.7 4,087,208 2,341
Bradford 2328 574 678 2,471
Brentwood ¥ & ¥ 738.7 1,617,578 2,190
Bridgewater {3 2., 128.5
Bristol T 4559 943,940 2,070
Brookfield i 115.3 117 676 1,021
Brookiine . 1,095.0 3,918,111 3,578
Cambridge %>
Campton gt 447.8 1,474,817 3,293
Canaan 510.1 1,849,663 3,626
Candia 604.1 1,190,259 1,970
Canterbury 298.3 366,542 1,229
Carroli 91.7
Center Harbor 13341
Charlestown 813.0 5,009,661 6,273 * X
Chatham 63.8 74,685 1,171
Chester 9726 2,982 960 3,067
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FY05 FY08/FY09
ADM-R Grants
K<=0.5 (See FYOB for State Aid/
calculations) Student >8500 1>5500 >»3818@
Chesterfield 583.3 993,959 1,704
Chichester 3905 790,235 2,024
Claremont 1,916.4 10,863,620 5,669 * X
Clarksville 40.5 69,497 1,716
Colebrook 347 .5 1,797,568 5173 * X
Columbia 112.4 386,630 3,440
Concord 4.976.1 11,438,276 2,299
Conway 1,337.2 2,549 584 1,907
Comish 2247 718,657 3,198
Croydon 91.1 297,072 3,261
Dalton 110.8 658,314 5,947 * X
Danbury 207.7 839,421 4042 X
Danville 886.8 3,594,353 4 053 X
Deerfield 790.6 2,003,525 2,534
Deering 272.8 871,854 3,196
Demry 6,469.4 26,620,181 4115 X
Dix Grant
Dixville 27
Dorchester 64.6 346,589 5,365 - X
Dover 3,299.8 5,262,210 1,595
Dublin 170.2
Dummer 53.1 135,109 2,544
Dunbarion 381.1 469,905 1,233
Durham 845.6 1,214 625 1,285
East Kingston 386.9 526,230 1,360
Easton 25.3
Eaton 55.6
Effingham 2497 917,099 3673
Elisworth 10.7 13,218 1,235
Enfield 611.0 920,688 1,507
Epping 971.1 3,101,368 3,194
Epsom 712.4 2,223,963 3,122
Ermol 26.1 23,522 901
Exeter 2117.2 3,587,156 1,694
Farmington 1,062.3 5,946,309 5,598 * X
Fitzwilliam 3201 986,141 2,995
Francestown 276.2 483,981 1,752
Franconia 123.4
Franklin 1,324.5 7,397,102 5,585 * X
Freedom 145.0
Fremont 6503 1,648,609 2,535
Gilford 1,174.0 542 711 462
Gilmanton 536.7 932,528 1,738
Gilsum 103.1 519,422 5,038 * X
Goffstown 24576 6,463,633 2630
Gorham 462.3 1,960,637 4,241 X
Goshen 105.4 430,442 4 084 X
Grafton 179.9 715,453 3,977 X
Grantham 347.2
Greenfield 281.9 890,442 3,159
Greenland 531.8 426,080 801
pago 2 ol §
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FYOS FYDB/FYDS
, ADM-R Grants
K<=0.5 (See FY0B for State Aid/
calcutations) Student >6500 >5500 >3819

Greenville 342.4 2,282 402 6,666 |53 * X
Groton 71.4 318,677 4 463 X
Hales Location

Hampstead 1,637.3 3,029,265 1,850

Hampton 1,985.1

Hampton Falls 348.2 125,489 360

Hancock 268.4 310,746 1,158

Hanover 1,169.1

Harmisville 112.6 42 860 381

Hart's Location 3.0

Haverhill 685.2 3,879,594 5,662 - X
Hebron 53.1

Henniker 747 6 2,533,284 3,389

Hill 163.7 437,599 28673

Hillsboro 957.7 4554274 4,755 X
Hinsdale 691.4 4,198,912 6,073 * X
Holdermmess 318.3

Hollis 1,560.7 1,774 871 1,137

Hooksett 2,031.0 2,673,033 1,316

Hopkinton t,012.5 2,116,855 2,091

Hudson 4,148.8 8,177,954 1,971

Jackson 86.4

Jaffrey B861.4 3,143,869 3,650

Jefferson 137.0 430 471 3,142

Keene 2,867.6 10,538,576 3,675

Kensingtcn 379.0 401,116 1,058

Kingston 034.1 1,465,116 1,568

Laconia 2,304.8 5618,159 2438

Lancaster 6249 3,370,560 5,394 * X
Landaff 53.3 143,168 2,686
| Langdon 110.5 386,861 3,501

Lebanon 1,576.2 2,432,974 1,544

Lee 7904 2,615,289 3,309

Lempster 134.8 648,987 4814 X
Lincoin 180.7

Lishon 289.6 1,813,632 6,054 * X
Litchfield 1,652 1 6,060,310 3,668

Littleton 931.2 3,368,181 3,617

Londonderry 5,426.4 14,703,579 2710

Louden 805.9 2,342 555 2,907

Lyman 56.7 165,346 2,916

Lyme 253.8 203,734 803

Lyndebarough 224 .4 407 811 1,817

Madbury 2027 914,183 3,123

Madison 319.3 417,255 1,307

Manchester 14,978.4) 49 357,620 3,295

Martborough 298.8 1,176,587 3,838 X
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FY05 FY08/FY03
ADM-R Grants
K<=0.5 (See FY08B for State Aid/
calculations) Student >6500 |>5500 >3819
Marlow 118.1 590,016 4,996 X
Martin's L.ocation
Mason 154.1 250,690 1,627
Meredith 937.5 293,593 313
Merrimack 46393 9,373,309 2,020
Middieton 293 .4 1,249 270 4,258 X
Milan 2178 1,005,002 4619 X
Mitford 25203 8,178,872 3,245
Millsfield 30
Milton 644 5 2,793,828 4,335 X
Monroe 107.0 235618 2,202
Mont Vernon 4797 1,506,979 3,142
Moultonborough 640.7
Nashua 12,729.5 31,303,454 2,459
Nelson 116.1 181,466 1,563
New Boston 8738 2,196,324 2,514
New Castle 102 .4
New Durham 454 0 575,082 1,267
New Hampton 3145 682 509 2170
New lpswich 820.9 3,155,886 3,844 X
New London 41986
Newhury 278.5
Newfields 347.5 592,501 1,705
Newington 92.9
Newmarket 1,021 1 1,982,685 1,842
Newport 1,031.7 6,358,770 6,163 * X
Newton 7847 1,963,438 2,502
North Hampton 655.1
Northfield 788.9 4,048,026 5,131 - X
Northumberiand 398.9 2,366,872 5,933 * X
Northwood 742.3 2,261,596 3,047
Nottingham 7146 1,015,413 1,421
Odelt
Orange 57.5 217,072 3,775
Orford 150.2 284 963 1,897
Qssipee 657.7 1,688,724 2,568
Pelham 2,050.3 3,121,609 1,523
Pembroke 1,186.6 4,805,556 4,050 X
Penacook 7247 2,955 112 4078 X
Peterborough 951.9 2,107,386 2,214
Piermont 114.1 430 865 3,776
Pinkham's Grant
Pittsburg 120.8 13,557 112
Pittsfield 697.9 4222 570 6,050 * X
Plainfield 389.3 820,644 2,108
Plaistow 1,378.¢ 1,862,214 1,351
Piymouth 667.6 3,308,494 4,956 X
Portsmouth 21214
Randoiph 36.5 14,693 403
Raymond 1,532.1 5,641,539 3,682
Richmond 183 4 859,190 4,685 X
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FY0S FYD8/F Y09
" a ADM-R Grants
K<=05 {See FY08 for State Ajd/
calculations) Student >6500 |>5500 >3819
Rindge 776.2 1,356,512 1,748 .
Rochester 4,326 .6 19,528,790 4,514 X
Rollinsford 307.9 468 747 1,622
Roxbury 28.4 50,947 1,794
Rumney 230.7 790,885 3,428
Rye 683.0
Salem 46152 4823759 1,002
Salisbury 208.9 574,311 2,749
Sanbomton 419.8 552,513 1,316
Sandown 1,180.6 4,798 695 4,030 X
Sandwich 156.2
Seabrook 1,084.2 1,134,709 1,047
Sharon 42.0 51,489 1,226
Shelbume 556 104 572 1,881
Somersworth 16155 6,338,043 3,923 X
South Hampton 128.4 99,092 772
Springfield 200.2 391,110 1,954
Stark 83.9 352 209 4,198 X
Stewartstown 132.9 556,924 4,191 X
Stoddard 118.8
Strafford 771.4 2,271,177 2,944
Stratford 1221 818,082 6,700 |$% > X
Stratham 1,304.1 1,278,251 980
Success
Sugar Hill 57.6
Sullivan 112.0 524 317 4,681 X
Sunapee 507.6
Surry 75.2 109,551 1,457
Sutton 277.4 330,269 1,191
Swanzey 1,116.5 5,042 805 4,517 X
Tamworth 352.1 542,993 1,542
Temple 2351 608,284 2,587
Thornton 276.4 437 257 1,582
Tilton 463.1 940,967 2,032
Troy 348.9 2,074,475 5,646 * X
Tuftonboro 3135
Unity 177.3 853672 4,815 X
Wakefield 748.0 1,259 260 1,684
Walpole 548 6 1,212,451 2,210
Wamer 4105 1,107,620 2,698
Warmen 142.9 758,937 5311 * X
Washington 170.4 82,136 482
Waterville Valley 34.3
Weare 1,802.3 7,724 162 4,286 X
Webster 267.5 489,786 1,831
Wentwaorth 129.9 635,148 4 890 X
Wentworth Location 40
Westmoreland 213.3 631,502 2,961
Whitefield 324.4 1,527,551 4,709 X
Wilmot 217.2 371,730 1,711
Wilton 570.9 1,069,963 1,874
Winchester 589 .4 3,529,631 5,888 * X
Windham 2,209.5 2,081,377 942
Windsor 30.9 94 059 3,044
Woifeboro 887.5
Woodstock 196.6 308,594 1,570
Total Districts with State Aid 16 59
page Sl s
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INTRODUCTION

In August and September 2007, Class Measures conducted a review of the New
Hampshire charter school program under contract to the New Hampshire
Department of Education (NH DOE). The purpose of the review was to evatuate
the current charter school program and its implementation in New Hampshire,
thereby providing legislators, administrators, parents, and community with a
“snapshot” of the history and current status of the charter school program. The
information generated by this review 1s intended to allow the New Hampshire
community to make more informed decisions regarding the educational choices
provided to New Hampshire students,

Methodology

The oniginal schedule for this review allotted twelve weeks for data collection and
reperting, however, because of contracting issues, the schedule was reduced to
eight weeks.  Within this expedited time frame, the study team reviewed
documents on file at the NH DOE; interviewed two NH DOE officials who were
responsible for charter school program administration and oversight in recent
years; distributed data collection forms to, and conducted on-site interviews, with
charter schools that were open and had operated in the 2006-2007 school year;
when possible, corducted telephone interviews with representatives of other
authorized charter schools, including a closed school, a school that had never
opened, and several schools that had recently opened or are scheduled to open in
2008, and reviewed additional documents and questionraires provided by the
schools under review. Class Measures collected data from and conducted on-site
and telephone interviews with officials and other stakeholders of the charter
schools included in this review, Clarus Group, a sub-consultant to Class Measures,
assisted Class Measures with documentation of the charter school program history,
charter schooi governance evaluation, reporting of NH DOE data, and report
drafting and preparation,

Study Team

From Class Measures:

Peter Davies 1s a former British School Inspector who has worked in school and
district accountabitity for more than ten years in the United States, the United
Kingdom, Europe, and the Middle East. He was formerly an administrator with the
Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development 11 Paris and a visiting
professor to the Oxford University Department of Educational Studies. He currently
trains Examiners for the Office of Educational Quality and Accountability and
mcnitors their work. He holds a Master of Arts degree from Cambridge University




and an advanced graduate degree in educational administration from London
Uriversity.

Carolyn Harris is a veteran educator with thirty-five vears experience as a
teacher, Social Studies Department Chairperson, and Director of Curriculum and
Integrated Technology for the North Reading School District in North Reading,
Massachusetts. She has supervised district initiatives in the area of curriculum
alignment, integration of interdisciplinary units and the implementation and
evaluation of new K-12 curriculum programs, the development of a standards-
based report card, professional development initiatives for teachers and educational
technology. Carolyn served as the district coordinator for the No Child Left Behind
{(NCLB) Legislation. In addition, she cbtained and coordinated all state ard federal
grants related to curriculum, professional development and technology for the
district. Carolyn 15 active in the Massachusetts Council for the Social Studies. She
has presented at both state and regional conferences in Social Studies related
topics.  Carolyn consults for the New England Leaque of Middle Schools in teacher
and admimstrative professional development, and school assessmerts. She is
currently employed as an [nstructional and Leadership Consultant for Class
Measures,

Josephine Napolitano taught seventh grade and worked on curriculum integratiaon
for thirty-six years in the Methuen Pubtic School System. Jo is active in the
Massachusetts Councii for the Sccial Studies and the Massachusetts Geographic
Alliance. She was selected as their 1997 Teacher of the Year. Jo was on staff at
National Geographic Society in Washington D. C., training teachers on strategies
and techmiques in geographic education and has presented at state, regional and
national social studies and geography conferences. She is currently a field examiner
for the Qffice of Educational Quality and Accountability.

William Compton has worked with Class Measures as a Leadership Consultant and
Assessor to the Superintendency Licensure Alternative Assessment program
operated on behalf of the Massachusetts Department of Education. Bl hoids a
Doctorate 1n education and has a distinguished career as an administrator and
superintendent,

Nancy Olsen joined Class Measures from an accounting background. She holds a
Master of Arts degree from Michigan State Umiversity and a Masters of Business
Administratson from Villanova University. She now works as a quantitative analyst
vaith gur techrmcal team,




From Clarus Group:

F. Daniel Ahern, Jr. 1s the President of Clarus Group, a consulting firm dedicated
to helping governments and nonprofit organizations meet high standards of
performance and integrity. Clarus Group has conducted numercous charter school
renewal inspections as part of the Class Measures inspection team. Clarus Group
also trains Examiners for the Massachusetts Office of Educational Quality and
Accountability and monitors their work. Prior to co-founding Clarus Group, Dan
served for ten years as the First Assistant Inspector General for Management in the
Massachusetts Office of the Inspector General. He has also been a performance
auditor for the Virginia General Assembily and an independent consultant to state
agencies in Massachusetts and Virginia. He has taught graduate courses in
nonprofit management and public administration at Northeastern University and
Clark University. He holds a Master of Public Administration degree and a Bachelor
of Arts degree from Northeastern University.

Pamela Bloomfield is the Vice President of Clarus Group, which has conducted
numercus charter school renewal inspections as part of the Class Measures team,
trained and monitored the work of Examiners for the Office of Educational Quality
and Accountability, and developed and delivered procurement training for the
Massachusetts Certified Public Purchasing Official program. Prior to co-founding
Clarus Group, she served for ten years as the Deputy Inspector General for
Management in the Massachusetts Office of the Inspector General, where she led
several major reviews of Massachusetts charter schools. She has also been the
Assistant Director of Finance and Administration for an Oregon county; a
managemeant consultant assisting federal, state, and focal government agencies;
and a course assistant teaching wnitten and oral communications at the Harvard
Business School. She currently serves on the Board of Editars of Public
Administration Review and on the Board of Directors of a local nonprofit
organization. She holds a Master of Public Administration degree from the Kennedy
School of Government at Harvard University and a Bachelor of Arts degree from
Smith College.

Abigail Johnson, Clarus Group Associate, provides research and analytical suppart
on Ciarus Group projects. She has conducted data analyses for numerous charter
school renewal inspections as part of the Class Measures team. Her experience,
acquired in government and the private sector, includes budgeting, project
planning, financial analysis, research, evaluation, spreadsheet production, report
writing, and paralegal work,
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review, and the other charter school stakeholders, including parents and students
who participated in interviews and focus groups conducted during this review,

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The New rHampshire charter school law enacted in 1995 encourages the
cstablishment of pubtic charter schoois with specfic or focused curricutum,
instruction, methods, or target pupil groups.

Consistent with this purpose, many of the chartér schools receiving
authorization from the Board of Education were designed to be unique and to fill an
identified educational niche in New Hampshire. Seven remain open, five new
schools are cpening at the time of the review, or scheduled to open, and two that
were true to this purpose have closed.

The growth of the New Hampshire charter school program since its creation
in 1995 has been limited by a number of factors, perhaps most importantly the
uncertain and shifting funding environment in which New Hampshire charter schools
have been authorized and operated.

The charter school law provides that charter schools that are eligible for
grants shall match funds provided by the state through private contributions.
However, this review has not disclosed evidence of significant private, fundraising on
the part of charter schools in New Hampshire.

State tuition payments for charter schools are widely regarded by charter
school administrators as inadequate to serve as the sole source of funding for their
schoals. The basis on wiich the charter program was established, that is that
phifanthrepic funding would fill the gap between state charter tuition grants and the
amount needed to fund a school, has not proven to be the case.

The substantial chailenges of planning, opening, and administering a school
have been exacerbated by the charter school funding climate in New Hampshire.

Recruitirg Boards of Trustees strongly committed to the school’s mission,
with a mix of appropriate skills and time to invest has been more difficult than
antic:pated for one charter schooi. In that school, Board development is said to be

Jeopardized by the uncertain funding climate and perceived lack of sustainabhility of
the school.

Almost exclusively charter schools reported good working relationships and
referred to continuing professional support over time from the administrators
responsible at the New Hampshire Department of Education.




9. The loss of federal funding which would have allowed the Department of
Education to develop systems and procedures to regulate charter schools now
hampers the building of capacity in the Department of Education. There were no
state charter school administrative positions established in the FY07/08 state
bhudget to regulate the charter schools in New Hampshire.

9. Because the charter school accountability process is not fuily implemented,
accountabiiity for raising student achievement and realizing unique school missions
continue to be elusive goals for the New Hampshire charter school program.

10. There are a number of promising charter schools in New Hampshire that are
beginring to fulfilf the purpose of the New Hampshire charter school law. Qne or
two of these provide ideal examples, by any standards of the particutar work
undertaken.

11. New Hampshire charter schools that had initial and continued local support at
the time of the review—namely: CSI Charter School, Great Bay et.earning Charter
School and North Country Charter School—appear to be the more sustainable in the
current climate of charter school authorization,

RECOMMENDATIONS

Management

The state should invest urgently in the necessary administrative capacity to provide
meaningful oversight of the charter school program and fulfill statutory requirements.

Curricidum, Instruction and Assessment

There should be a full curriculum study to determine the quality of the curricula in use

in charter schools and their alignment with New Hampshire State Frameworks before
re-authorization.

There should be a school-by-school review of the quality of classroom instruction and
the assessments in use, both formative and summative,

Student achievement data from New Hampshire charter schools is limited because of
the schools’ short history. Longer-term projections could be developed predicated on
this early data but based on the operation of altogether similar schools elsewhere in
the country. With increased collection of educational information in the state—through
the use of Performance Tracker, for example—more robust contrasts and comparisons
should be possible.




Accountability

The implementation of a formal accountability process begun last year should be
strengthened so as to develop clarity and consensus within and between schools
regarding the nature of the required accountability plan. Measurable goals should be
developed by the schools and demonstrated in their yearly report.

As schools near the fifth year of authorization and look toward re-authorization,

curriculum reviews and team site visit processes should be developed and
implemented,

Professional development support should be provided to school leaders in the
accountability process in order to provide the clarity and consensus that will make the
accountability process stronger and more value to re-authorization.

THE CHARTER SCHOOL PROGRAM IN
NEwW HAMPSHIRE

The Charter School Law and Approval Process
In 1995, the New Hampshire legisiature enacted New Hampshire Revised Statutes
Annotated 194-B (RSA 194-B), the Charter Schools and Open Enroliment Act,

authorizing the creation of public charter schools in New Hampshire. The stated
purposes of the law were to:

* Promote and encourage the establishment and operation of charter and open
enrollment schools in New Hampshire.

+ Encourage school districts to allow public charter and open enroliment schools.

* Encourage the establishment of public charter schools with specific or focused
curriculum, instruction, methods, or target pupil groups.

* Improve pupil learning and increase opportunities for learning.

» Exempt charter schools from state statutes and rules, other than where specified,
to provide innovative learning and teaching in a unigue environment.

+ Enhance professional opportunities for teachers.

+ Establish results-driven accountability for public charter schools and require the
measurement of learning.

+  Make school improvement a focus at the school level,

* Encourage the establishment of public charter schools that meet the needs and
interests of pupils, parents, communities, regions, and the state as a whole.




Under the charter school law, all charter schools are open enrcilment schools: they
may not restrict enroliment to a particular school district or region.

The approval process set forth in the original version of RSA 194-B required the
local school district’s legislative authority to vote to allow proposals for charter
schools to be presented and review charter applications for completeness, The
approved charter school applications were then required to be submitted to the
State Board of Education, which was charged with reviewing the applications and
approving those that met the criteria set forth in RSA 194-B. Approved charter
schools were to be granted five-year charters, and each charter required ratification
by a vote of the local school district’s legislative authority. RSA 194-B was revised

in 1997 for the purpose of streamlining the requirements for creating and approving
charter schools.

A 2002 study by the New Hampshire Charter School Resource Center at the Josiah
Bartlett Center for Public Policy found that the majority of communities in New
Hampshire had procedures and timelines for the two required charter school
referendum votes that could require eighteen to twenty-four months, or longer if
voters were asked to reconsider a negative vote. The study pointed to these
elongated approval procedures as a major factor impeding the creation of charter
schools in New Hampshire, along with public misperceptions about charter schools
and lack of funds for charter school planning and start-up activities, The study
reported that between 1995 and 1999, the Board of Education had granted five-
year charters to six charter schools: of these, one was approved by the local school
district; the others did not receive local approval. The single charter school
receiving local school district approval was unable to open because of funding
oroblems, according to the study. ' As of the fall of 2003, eight years after the
passage of RSA 194-B, no charter schools had opened in New Hampshire.?

In 2003, the New Hampshire General Court amended the charter school law to
create a ten-year pilot program authorizing the Board of Education to grant up to
twenty state charter school applications during the ten-year period. Under the pilot
program, applications for proposed charter schools were to be submitted directly to
the Board of Education, which was responsible for approving or denying each
application “using reasonable discretion in the assessment of the elements set forth
in RSA 194-8:3 II, (a)-(bb) and (dd).” The Board of Education’'s approval of an
application constituted the granting of charter status and the right to operate as a
public charter school. tocal approval was not required for these schools, except
that not more than ten percent of the resident pupils in any grade would be eligible
to transfer to a charter school in any school year without the approval of the local

' Memarandum from Elaine Rapp, New Hampshire Senate Research, to Roberta Tenney. NH DOE, May
21. 2007
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school board.” On July 1, 2007, the General Court enacted legislation prohibiting
the approval of new charter schools by the Board of Education between July 1,
2007 and June 30, 2008. The legislation provided that any charter school
application filed prior to July 1, 2007 and scheduled to be acted upon by the Board
of Education on or before October 1, 2007 would be exempt from this prohibition.*

As of August 2007, fifteen charter schools had heen authorized directly by the
Board of Education under the pilot program: of these, seven had operated for at
least one year and were continuing to operate, three had operated for at least one
year and had closed, and five were scheduled to open in the 2007-2008 school
year.®

Charter School Funding

The 1995 charter school law provided no state funding for charter schools. Instead,
RSA 194-B required each charter school pupil's resident school district to pay to the
charter school an amount equal to at least 80 percent of that district’s average cost
per pupil for the prior fiscal year. The current charter school law retains this
funding requirement for charter schools approved by the local school district. In
addition, the current charter school law provides that charter schools that are
eligible for grants “shall match funds provided by the state through private
contributions in order to receive funding that exceeds the state’s average per pupil
cost for the grade level weight of the pupil.”®

in the December 1997 Claremont II ruling, the New Hampshire Supreme Court
found that the State has a duty to provide an adequate education to all public
school students. In response to this ruling, the General Court enacted the “State
Aid for Educational Adequacy” system providing annual grants to cities, towns, and
unincorporated places to fund an adequate education for public school students
residing in each municipality.” The NH DOE is responsible for determining the
annual "adequate education” payments, which are based on a series of calculations
that are designed to limit state aid to towns with the greatest need.® Since charter
schools are open enrollment schools, the General Court required that a flat tuition
amount per pupil, or “adequacy payment,” follow each student enroiled in a charter

“RSA 194-B:3-a
‘HB 2, An Act Relative to State Fees, Funds, Revenues, and Expenditures, Section XLIX{b).

" One of the two schools obtained local approval after being authorized by the Board of Education.
®RSA 194-B:11 X

" Ofiice of Legistative Budget Assistant. NH DOE, Adequate Education Grant Data. December 2004,
There appears to have been seripus disagreement amongst charter schoo! founders and the legislature
ahout how much money was inlended to be spent on charter schools.
® Division of Program Support, Bureau of Data Management, N4 DOE, "FY 08 Adequate Ecucation Aid"
at hiip /'www ed state nh.us/educahon/data/stateaid.htm.




school approved by the Board of Education under the pilot program (discussed
above).®

Since 2004, when the first approved charter school began operations, the per-pupil
adequacy payments distributed by charter schools have been as follows:

Fy 2005 $4,200
Fy 2006 $3,300
FY 2007 $3,598
FY 2008 $3,707

The adequacy payments for charter school students were initially required to be
sent by the state to the local school districts whose resident students were enrolled
in charter schools; the school districts were responsible for forwarding the grant
funds to the appropriate charter schools. However, the charter school law was
amended in 2006 to require the NH DOE to send the adequacy payments directly to
the charter schools.¥?

In 2003, the NH OOE applied for and received a three-year $7,170,069 federal
grant to assist the Department in achieving the goal of authorizing at least fifteen
operational charter schools in New Hampshire by the 2005-2006 school year.'® The
requested grant funds were intended to support regional conferences within the
state to disseminate charter school information as well as charter school planning,
program design, and initial implementation. It was reported that two large
conferences were held followed by workshops on specific topics such as fund
development and governance. In 2004, the NH DOE applied for and received an
additional federal start-up grant of $500,000. Under the terms of the grants, a
charter school for which federal funds were authorized was required to open within
three years of the authorization date, otherwise the federal funds would be
withdrawn. As of August 31, 2007, according to the NH DQCE, $293,918 of the
original federal grant fund was undistributed, and an additional $336,418
distributed to New Hampshire charter schools were required to be returned if
unspent by September 30, 2007,

The FY 2005 budget enacted by the Legislature included a $333,000 appropriation
for the 2004-2005 fiscal year for charter school matching grants. According to the
NH DOE, these funds were divided among the four existing charter schools, based
on the student populations of those schools. The FY 2007 budget enacted by the
Legislature provided a $400,000 appropriation for one-time grants to charter

‘ASA 194-B-11(a)

New Hampshire Department of Education grant application, undated.




schools of up to $100,000. These funds were distributed to charter schools that did
not receive grants from the $333,000 appropriation in FY 2005.

As previously discussed, legislation enacted on July 1, 2007 imposed a moratorium
on the approval by the Board of Education of new charter schools. A separate
provision of the same legislation made the total amount appropriated for charter
school supplemental grants for the biennium ending June 30, 2009--which totaled
$400,000 for each budget year—available for distribution in the 2008 fiscal year to
the Cocheco Arts and Technology Academy, the Frankiin Career Academy, and the
Seacoast Charter School.'!

In 2007, the NH DOE applied for an additional federal start-up grant of $5 million;
however, the state’s application was unsuccessful. As a result of the NH DOE's
failure to win the additional grant, the three-person staff that had overseen the

charter schoo! program in New Hampshire has been reduced to one part-time staff
person.

Charter School Accountability and Oversight

Consistent with the charter school law's stated purposes, one of which is to
establish results-driven accountability for public charter schools and require the
measurement of learning, the charter school law requires each charter school to
evaluate the educational progress of each pupil. The law states: "The annual
evaluation must include, but not be limited to, the New Mampshire statewide
education improvement and assessment program.”'? According to the NH DOE, the
New England Common Assessment Program (NECAP) Grade-Level| Expectations are
the current standards used to fulfitl this evaluation requirement.

The charter school law states: "To ensure compliance with its appiication and
contract and applicable law, a charter school shall be subject to a first year and
periodic subsequent program audits by the department of education or its agent.”
[RSA 194-B:10 III]. The section of the law requires each charter schoaol to furnish
one copy of its annual report to the Board of Education and to its local school
board, to obtain at its own expense and provide to the Board of Education and its
lacal schoot board an annual financial audit and report that complies with any
current format and content requirements imposed on a public school and that
includes the number of pupils served by the school and their respective tuition rates
as well as a discussion of progress made toward the achievement of the school’s
mission and other goats set forth in its charter.

In June 2006, the charter school law was amended to institute new reporting
requirements for charter schools authorized under the pilot program instituted in

" HB 2. An Act Relative to State Fees, Funds, Revenues, and Expenditures, Seclion XLIX(a).
"2 ASA 194-8:8{V).




2003. These requirements were instituted in conjunction with the change to the
charter school law, discussed above, allowing the NH DOE to send adequacy
payments directly to the charter schools. Beginning in July 2006, the NH DOE
required each charter school that had been approved under the pilot program to
submit a quarterly report, a required component of which was a quarterlty financial
statement, to the Board of Education. Charter schools were provided with a sample
spreadsheet containing the required categories of information.

The charter school law also established a Joint Legislative Oversight Committee,
which is required to jointly meet at least once a year, monitor the effect of the
charter school law, make recommendations for any legislative changes to the law,
and make recommendations to the General Court for simplifying, reducing, or
eliminating regulations and paperwork required for all public education and the
state’s regulation of public education. The law requires the committee to submit a
written report of its findings and recommendations to the President of the Senate,
the Speaker of the House, and the chairpersons of the House and Senate
Committees on November 1 of each year. According to the NH DOE, the Joint
Legisiative Oversight Committee has met in recent years but has not issued any
written reperts of its findings and recommendations.

In January 2006, the NH DOE’'s Office of School Standards issued a detailed
guidance document, prepared by SchoolWorks LLC for the NH DOE, entitled The
New Hampshire Charter School Accountability Process. The accountability process
outlined in the guidance document starts with the statutorily required submission
by each charter school, prior to the opening date, of an accountability plan.’*> The
guidance document calls for the NH DOE to review and provide feedback to the
charter school on the measurability of the goals contained in the accountability
plan. Over the charter period, according to the guidance document, the NH DOE
monitors each charter school’s performance by reviewing and evaluating the
information submitted by each charter school in the quarterly and annual progress
reports required by the charter school law.'* According to the guidance document:

In addition to reporting to the Board of Education, the staff of the Charter
School Office will provide ongoing feedback to the charter schools on the
quality of their reporting, each school’s compliance with accepted practices,
adherence to federal and state regulations in relevant areas, and an
assessment of each school's overall progress toward its unique school-
defined accountability goals.

" RSA 194-8B 3idd)
RSA 194-B 5 1¥(a): RSA 194-B:10 |.
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The guidance document contains a sample monitoring checklist to be completed by
the NH DOE in assessing charter schools’ compliance with reporting requirements
and in assessing their progress with respect to four key gquestions:

Is the school making progress toward achieving its mission?
ts the school responsibly using public funds?

Is the school promoting student attainment of expected knowledge and skills?
Is the school sustainable?

Until 2004, the NH DOE had no staff dedicated to charter school oversight. In
2004, a full-time charter school staff person was assigned for six months. This
individua! was then appointed to her current position of Administrator of the Office
of School Standards, which has broad responsibility for minimum standards for
school approval of home education as well as charter schools. The federal grant
funds (discussed earlier) received by the NH DOE in 2004 enabled two full-time
staff members to be hired to assist and oversee New Hampshire charter schools.
Over the next two years, the charter school administrative capacity within the NH
DOE was sufficient to review charter school applications, disburse federal grant
funds to charter schools, review reports and other mandatory documentation
submitted by charter schools, and provide limited oversight of the progress of
charter schools. The Administrator of the Office of School Standards developed a
Logic Model for the New Hampshire charter school program defining inputs,
activities, near-term outcomes, intermediate-term outcomes, and desired impacts.
(Appendix 3 provides copy of artifact) The Administrator also attended legislative
meetings, arranged meetings at the DOE and visited each charter school. The
federal funding for the two federally financed administrative positions ended in
2007, further limiting the capacity of the state Department of Education to support
charter schools. As noted earlier, the NH DOE’s 2007 application for a $5 million
federal grant was unsuccessful. Although the positions of the two full-time charter
school administrators were funded by the state for eight months of 2007, the two
staff members left for other positions within the state when state funding became
unavailable, As of September 2007, neither federal nor state funds had been
authorized for charter school oversight by the NH DQOE. Thus, although twelve
charter schools were open or scheduled to apen in the 2007-2008 school year, the
NH DOE had no funded capacity to fulfill the statutory requirements in RSA 194-B
or the oversight functions detailed in The New Hampshire Charter School
Accountability Process.

Overview of Open Charter Schools
Seven open charter schools were in operation in the State of New Hampshire during
the 2006-2007 school year. The schools are small learning communities: according

to NH DOE data, the schools served a total of 322 students in October 2006 and
ranged in size from 28 to 76 students (Table 1).




Table 1. Charter School Enrollment: October 2006

{Charter Schoof = [ Enrollment October 2006
Cocheco Arts ad Technology Charter Academy . ) ‘ 53
Franklin Career Charter Academy 31
Great Bay elLearning Charter School 76
New Hampshire Equestrian Academy Charter School 25
North Country Charter School 49
Seacoast Charter Academy 60
Surry Village Charter School 28

o.'rce: NH DOE Enroments in New Hamgpshire Public Schoofsas ar Ocrober 2, 2006, Dated April 27, 2007,

As shown in Table 2, the number of teachers in the schools ranges from as few as 2

(Surry Village Charter School} to as many as 8.6 {(Cocheco Arts and Technology
Charter Academy).

Table 2. Charter School Teachers and Ratios of Student to Teachers:
October 2006

fCharter School . ... .. .- ioo b Numbe; . Ratlo of

¥ : - - ! . Lt h i .

RIS AR ‘ B ' .. Students to-
. ; eac. -« Teachers

CochecoArts and chnology Charter Academy ‘ .6 1 B 6.2

Franklin Career Charter Academy 3.1 10

Great Bay elearning Charter School 5 15.2

New Hampshire Equestrian Academy Charter School 4.1 6.1

North Country Charter Schoo! 4 12.3

Seacoast Charter Academy 4.5 13.3

Surry Village Charter School 2 11.5

[ Stabewide™, ™ TN S N 16,040 00 12,87
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The ratio of students to teachers ranges from 6.1 to 1 at New Hampshire
Equestrian Academy Charter School to 15.2 to 1 at Great Bay elearning Charter
School; two schools, Great Bay and Seacoast, reported ratios (15.2:1 and 13.3:1,
respectively) that exceed the statewide average of 12.8 to 1. In making such
comparisons, however, it is important to keep in mind the small numbers of
students attending the charter schools.

According to NH DOE data (Table 3), like students statewide, charter school
students are almost exclusively white (ranging from 90.6 percent white students at
Cocheco Arts and Technology Charter Academy to 100 percent at three charter
schools), and few charter school students are reportedly eligible for the
free/reduced price lunch program. No charter served Limited English Proficient
students in the fall of 2006; statewide, less than one percent of students were
Limited English Proficient that year. Again, however, in making such comparisons it
is important to keep in mind the small numbers of students at the charter schools.

Table 3. Percent of Students White and Free/Reduced Lunch Eligible
October 2006

Percent '  Percent
White . Free/Reduced
_ : - . Lunch Eligible
Cocheco Arts and Technology Charter Academy ‘ 90.6 ! 9.43
Franklin Career Charter Academy 100 --
Great Bay elearning Charter School 98.7 9.21
New Hampshire Equestrian Academy Charter School 100 --
North Country Charter School 98 6.38
Seacoast Charter Academy 96.7 1.67
Surry Village Charter School 100 --

1 - - R . EEL. - A . o

LStatewide-». S ' o e 18.88
L . .- . T . I a4 e
Saurce: NH DOE Enroifments in New Hampshire Public Schools as of Qctober 2, 2006, dated April 27, 2007 and
NH DOE Fy 2006-2007 Free/Reduced School Lunch Eligibility by District, dated Aprif 11, 2007,

NH DOE has not published recent attendance rate statistics for schools. What
information is available for the 2005-2006 school year indicates that North Country
Charter School had lower attendance rates than the state average (90.2 percent for
high school compared to 93.2 percent statewide) while Cocheco Arts and

L°,




Technology Charter Academy, Great Bay elearning Charter School, and Seacoast
Charter Academy all had attendance rates that were comparable to the statewide
rates. It must, of course, be borne in mind that North Country Charter School

caters specifically to students who are high school drop outs, or who are at risk of
dropping out.

Similarly, the most recent published data for school dropouts is available onty for
the 2005-2006 school year. That year, Cocheco Arts and Technology Charter
Academy reported two dropouts, for an annual percentage rate of 4.2. Both
schools exceeded the statewide rate of 3.1 percent.

The only available data on high school completers is for the 2005-2006 school
year and was reported by North Country Charter School that has an emphasis on
educating students who had dropped out of high schoo!, or were at risk of
dropping out: 15.2 percent of students entered four year colleges or universities,
33.3 percent entered less than four year schools, 48.5 percent were employed
and three percent served in the Armed Forces. More details are provided in the
school profile presente_d later in this report.

Authorized Charter Schools That Were Unable to
Open or Remain Open

One charter school authorized by the Board of Education, Crossroads Charter
School, never opened. Two authorized charter schools operated for a period of
time and then closed: Laurent Clerc Charter Academy and New Heights Charter
Academy. These three schools are briefly discussed below.

Crossroads Community Charter School

Crossroads Community Charter School was organized by three local school districts
in Bow, Hopkinton, and Kearsarge as well as NFI North, a human services
organization, and authorized by the Board of Education in September 2006,
according to the Concord Monitor.'> The organizers reportedly canceled plans to
open the school because the federal “vision grant” obtained by the school in 2004
was scheduled to expire in December 2007, and the state adequacy payments
would be insufficient to support the school.

Laurent Clerc Academy

Laurent Clerc Academy, located in Concord, was founded to provide a bilingual
education program in American Sign Language (ASL) and English print for
elementary students who were deaf or hard of hearing as well as those hearing

students who would benefit from direct instruction and social interaction in ASL.
According to NH DOE documents:

" "Districts scuttle charter school plan.” Concord Monitor. September 7, 2007,




Laurent Clerc Academy seeks to provide one of the highest achieving and
well-designed bilingual (ALS-English) education programs in the United
State. This unique academy will provide a choice school for New Hampshire
students who need a linguisticatly-accessible environment, often considered
the least restrictive environment for deaf students. The academy will create a
challenging, safe, and empowering learning environment designed to meet
the intellectual and social needs of deaf and hard of hearing students. The
school will provide a highly visual environment for students whose learning
style is primarily visual,

The school operated in the 2005-2006 school year. At the end of the school year,
six students were enrolied in Laurent Clerc, according to NH DOE records, The low

enrollment prompted the school’s Board of Trustees to suspend school operations in
June 2006.

New Heights Charter Academy

New Heights Charter Academy, located in Goffstown, was founded with the
following mission, according to NH DOE documents:

The mission of the New Heights Charter Academy is to provide a rigorous
career-focused platform for students in grades 11 and 12 to succeed in the
world of business and technology through: student-driven personal learning
plans, meaningful relationships with a mentor/advisor/coach/sponsor, flexible
programming to best accommodate student success, project-based
curriculum cennecting to real world oppertunities and learning experiences
and student empowerment through self-governance and decision-making

while modeling a set of core values essential in a democratic and civil
society.

The school opened in January 2006. During the first six months of operation, the
President of the Board of Trustees resigned, and the School Director was replaced,
according to NH DOE documents. NH DOE enrollment data show that thirty
students were enrolled in New Heights during the 2005-2006 schocl year and that
seven students were enrolled in New Heights during the 2006-2007 school year.
An Assessment of Progress conducted by the NH DOE in September 2006 found
that students attending New Heights had not withdrawn from the local school
district and that New Heights had yet to establish itself as a school rather than a
program. New Heights subsequently closed.

According to the school’s former Project Coach and Vice Chairman of the Board of
Trustees, who was interviewed by telephone for this review, the most significant
issue contributing to the closure of New Heights was the tack of funding. He stated
that the state adequacy payment per student was insufficient to fund the school
opening and that the school encountered difficulty meeting the requirements of the




three-year federal start-up grant received by the school. He also indicated that
New Heights received helpful support from EdVisions, a charter school cooperative
funded by the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation that helps new charter schools
develop project-based learning programs.

Authorized Charter Schooils Recently Opened or
Scheduled to Open

Five charter schools authorized by the Board of Education opened at the outset of
the 2007-2008 school year or were scheduled to open at later dates. These schools
are briefly discussed below.

Academy for Science and Design Charter School

The Academy for Science and Design Charter School, located in Merrimack, opened
on September 17, 2007, according to the school's website. (Efforts to interview
school officials by telephone for this review were unsuccessful.) The school’s
mission statement is as follows:

The mission of the charter school founders is to create a world class,
standards-setting middle/high school that specializes Iin science,
mathematics, engineering, and design. The school will graduate students
with in-depth subject mastery; real world laboratory experiences; and local,
national, and global understanding and applications. The school will be
recegnized for its outstanding academic program and for well-rounded
students with the capacity for high achievement and leadership in college,
career, and society.

According to NH DOE documents, the school serves students in grades seven
through twelve. The school’s website lists eight members of the Board of Trustees.

CSI Charter School

CS1 Charter School, to be located in Penacook, reportedly opened on September
17, 2007. According to NH DOE documents, the CSI (Competencies, Skills,
Interests) Charter School will serve students in grades 9 through 12 who are
becoming disengaged, or have become disengaged, and would benefit from an
individualized program that meets their needs. According to NH DOE documents:

The CSIi (Competencies, Skills, Interests) Charter Scheool plans on using
current student academic competencies and work-based skills as the entry
point for the development of individualized plans that allow students to meet
essential academic and work-based competencies. Integrated units will be
developed that create student interests, meet high standards of
achievement, and provide students authentic opportunities to demonstrate




the competencies. Meeting these high standards will allow students to
successfully transition after graduation to a work setting or continue their
education at the post-secondary level. This Charter School is characterized
by being very smal!, student interest centered, and supported by project-
based learning and technology.

According to the school’s Administrator, who was interviewed by telephone for this
review, the Merrimack Valley School Board and the Superintendent of SAU 46
organized CSI Charter School because they were interested in creating a
nontraditional, competency-based educational program to assist disenfranchised
student dropouts who had previously attended Merrimack Valley public schools,
The Administrator, who was interviewed before the scheduled school opening date,
predicted that twenty-three students would be enrolled as of September 17, 2007.
She stated that enrcllment has posed a challenge, as have state charter school
requirements, staffing, funding, and the need to work through the details of the
dropout status of individual students. Federal grant funds in the amount of
$300,000 have enabled the scheol to hire two outside consultants to assist in
developing course competencies and school objectives. In addition, the SAU 46
business office has assisted the Administrator with all aspects of grants
management, expenditure accountability, and purchasing. The school reportedly
has a seven-member Board of Trustees and 3.5 FTE teachers, all of whom are
Highly Qualified.

The Administrator noted that CIS Charter School has a unique, flexible scheduling
plan under which school is open three days per week from 9 a.m. to 11 a.m. and
from S p.m. to 7 p.m. This schedule allows dropouts to work as well as attend
school. Students must commit to attending four to seven hours of class per week
and must arrange their class schedules with instructors, who are called “coaches.”

Ledyard Charter Academy

Ledyard Charter Academy, to be located in Lebanon, is scheduled to open in August
2008 with an enroliment of fifty students. According to NH DOE documents, the
school will serve underperforming and/or disengaged students in grades nine
through twelve. NH DOE documents provide the following description of the
school’s missiaon and derivation of the school’s name:

Ledyard Charter Academy will prepare students for their futures, both
academically and socially, in a rigorous academic program that stresses the
importance of community and allows students to apply their learning in
context. Ledyard will provide opportunities for under-engaged students to re-
focus on their strengths and interests and will provide highly motivating and
relevant learning opportunities, much of which will be based in service
learning in the community, internships, and a strong academic core. The
Charter Academy takes its name from John Ledyard, a curious and self-




motivated Dartmouth College student who arrived at Dartmouth College in
the Spring of 1772. He spent four summer months living (and learning)
among the Iroquois as a college ambassador and became dissatisfied by the
constraining academic offerings at Dartmouth upon his return to the college.
He built his own canoce and paddled the length of the Connecticut River. He
became an acclaimed world traveler, explorer, and a lifelong hands-on
learner,

According to the school’s Project Director, who was interviewed by telephone for
this review, he and the Superintendent of SAU 88 have been the driving forces
behind this school. They expect most students to be categorized as grade nine and
grade ten students who are underachieving, disengaged, and do not fit well in a
traditional high school setting. The school’s principal source of funding will be
federal grant funds. The Project Director reported that the school’'s Board of
Trustees currently consists of five members but is expected to increase in size to
nine to eleven members. He said that the administration of SAU 88 has been very
supportive, although the high school union leadership has not. The school was able
to hire a consuttant to advise on goverrnance and programming, but it still needs
additional financial resources, according to the Project Director. Parents and other
volunteers have expressed interest in helping the school as it approaches next
year’s opening date. '

Strong Foundations Charter School

Strang Foundations Charter School, located in Pembrcke, opened in August 2007
serving fifty-five students, including fifteen students with Individual Education Plans
(IEPs), in grades K through four. The school’s mission is to:

Build early literacy by using an Orton-Gillingham approach and building phonemic
awareness so that children are reading at grade level by fourth grade.

Create a learning environment wherein 90% of the student population beginning
Strong Foundations in Kindergarten or grade one will be proficient or advanced in
reading by the end of grade four.

Create an elementary school where the entire elementary facuity is trained in and
uses the Orton-Gillingham approach so that other schools and districts can make
use of the school for training of faculty, i.e. eiementary teachers, reading
specialists, learning disabilities specialists, tutors, and para-professionals.

As of September 2007, Strong Foundations reported that it had a nine-member
Board of Trustees, a principal (who was also a .8 FTE teacher), four full-time

teachers, one teaching assistant, two other assistants, and one non-teaching staff
member.

According to the Principal of Strong Foundations, the school has confronted a
number of challenges in the first year of operation, including the school's lack of a
business administrator, lack of cooperation from local schoo! districts with students




on [EPs, refusal of school districts to provide services to the school, the uncertainty
of federa! funding, and the principal’s difficulty of responding to inquiries about the
school while also serving as a .8 FTE teacher. The principal expressed confidence
that the school will be able to conduct successful fundraising drives, but she also
noted the difficulty of obtaining funds from resistant lecal schoo! districts.,

Virtual Learning Academy Charter School

Virtual Learning Academy Charter School is scheduled to open in January 2008,
according to documents on file at the NH DQE. (Efforts to reach school
representatives by telephone for this review were unsuccessful.} NH OOE
documents provide the following description of the school’s mission.and program:

The Virtual Learning Academy Charter School will use new and emerging
distance learning technologies to provide any time any where access to a
rigorous “personalized education that helps students learn today, graduate
tomarrow, and prepare for the future” (2006, NHDOE). The educaticnal
mission of the VLACS integrates the philosophy of the New Hampshire
Department of Education's Follow the Child initiative with the power of
distance learning technologies. The VLACS will provide all students with the
opportunity to persanalize their education by combining rigorous academic
study with the flexibility that is inherent in the anytime, anyplace, any pace
philosophy to be practiced by the school. Ongoing, one-on-one
communication between students and teachers will ensure that all students
are provided with the supports necessary for success. The VLACS is also
committed to collecting meaningful data to measure growth in personal,
physical, social, and the academic characteristics of each student. It will be
the geoal of the VLACS to apply to the Commissioner of Education to become
a Follow the Child school. Furthermore, the VLACS will work with teachers to
encourage them to become Follow the Child designated teachers.

According to the school's website, the school’s administrative offices are located at
the Tuck Learrning Campus in Exeter. The website indicates that the school will
enroll part-time high school students in January 2008 and will offer full-time
coursework in the 2008-2009 school year. Adjunct teachers will be hired in the first
year of the school’s operations; after the first year, all teachers will be provided
with a mentor who will provide professional coaching, support, and advice.

CHARTER SCHOOL PROFILES

This section presents profiltes of the seven open New Hampshire charter schools
that operated in the 2006-2007 school year. These seven schocls, listed and




presented in the order in which they were authorized by the NH DOE, are as
follows:

Franklin Career Academy Charter School (authorized August 2003)

Seacoast Charter School (authorized August 2003)

North Country Charter Schoo! (authorized January 2004)

Great Bay eLearning Charter School (authorized February 2004)

Cocheco Arts and Technology Academy (authorized May 2004)

New Hampshire Equestrian Academy Charter School (authorized September 2005)
Surry Village Charter School (authorized March 2006)

The information presented in this section was coliected by the study team from the
schools. In each case, the team sought information on the following topics:

Mission

Enroliment

Governance

Staffing and professional development
Curriculum

Assessments

Student and Parent Engagement and Support
Student destination and post-secondary planning
Finance

Facilities

Complete information was not available from each school. Consequently, the

profiles are not entirely parallel in presentation. Each profile includes concluding
observations by the study team.

Franklin Career Academy Charter School

Frankiin Career Academy Charter School {FCA), located in Franklin, was chartered
by the Board of Education on August 20, 2003. FCA served grades seven through
twelve in the 2004-2005 school year, suspended operations for the 2005-2006
school year, and resumed operations for the 2006-2007 schooi year with fewer
grades. The school currently serves students in grades nine through tweive,

Mission .
FCA's mission statement is as follows:

The overall goal of the Franklin Career Academy is to create a business-
affiliated, innovative choice charter high school for predominately at-risk
Franklin and other area students - a school designed to mentor students
through completion of the schoaol’s high school program requirements. The




school will exist for only one purpose - to increase students’ life options,
including college, following a high school graduation.

FCA's 2003 charter application envisioned that the school would be designed to
attract students who were at risk, had dropped out of school, were low-achieving,
and/or were low-income. The school would also be open to interested students who
were not at risk, FCA proposed to combine a skill-based curriculum with career
preparation and apprenticeships for qualifying students. The program, which was
to be modeled on the Textron/Chamber of Commerce Providence Public Charter
School in Providence, Rhode Island, would be characterized by the following five
glements:

Rigarous academic program with high expectations,
Career education/career planning,

Enhancing education through technology,
Differentiated instruction, and

Commitment to success/School dropout prevention.

Enrollment

At the beginning of the 2007-2008 school year, FCA had forty-one enrolled
students, including three students with [EPs, from three sending districts. The
schoecl had no waitlist., FCA reported the following enrollments for the past four
school years; no information on average class size was reported.

J.: . 2004-2005 . 2005-2006 4, .2006-2007 . . 2007-2008
Enrollment | 40 o o a1
Closed
Average class size 10to 1 10to 1 10to 1

FCA reported an attendance rate of 93 percent.

Governarnce

FCA’s 2003 charter application proposed that FCA would be governed by a Board of
Trustees consisting of five to eleven members, including New Hampshire business
leaders, parents of enrolled students, professional educators or direct student
service providers, and community leaders. As of September 2007, FCA's Board of
Trustees had four members. Since the school's inception, four Board members
nave resigned, and two new members have joined the Board. According to the four
Beoard members interviewed for this review, one Board member recently resigned to
assume the position of FCA’s current Director of Operations. The Board s currently
seeking additional members through an informal recruitment process. Board
members serve three-year, staggered terms. The Board meets monthly and holds




emergency meetings as necessary. FCA has formed an informal altiance with
Seacoast Academy Charter School and Cocheco Arts and Technology Charter
Academy to lobby for state funding.

According to the Board members interviewed for this review, the Board receives a
monthly report containing student achievement data from the Director of
Operations as well as a school accountability report. A review of Board minutes for
the period January through June 2007 indicates that the Board met each month,
and twice in May. The minutes indicate that the Board regularly received and
considered information about school finances, student assessments, board
membership, charter school funding, and other matters. The Board adopted a
governance policy manual in August 2004,

Staffing and Professional Development

As of September 2007, FCA had a new Director of Operations who had previously
served on the Board of Trustees. According to the new Director of Operations, the
former director was not a good fit and was not effectively maintaining discipline in
the school. FCA also employed three full-time teachers, one part-time teacher, and
a Director of Curriculum. Two teachers were reported to be Highly Qualified, and
all but one were reported to be certified in New Hampshire; the fourth teacher is
certified in Massachusetts and has applied for New Hampshire certification.'®* Two
of the three full-time teachers were newly hired. According to FCA’s Director of
Operations, professional development at FCA is available if requested. Previous
professional development activities offered by FCA have inciuded Northwest
Evaluation Association (NWEA) training for the Measures of Academic Progress
testing, Read 180 training, and Positive Behavior Intervention and Supports
Training. Teaching staff are observed and evaluated by the Director of Operations
using lon Saphier's Skillful Teacher Model.

Curriculum

According to FCA’s Director of Operations, FCA’'s curriculum is aligned with the New
Hampshire State Curriculum Frameworks and integrates real-world projects and
technology. Curriculum decisions are made collaboratively with teachers. FCA
offers a standard high school curriculum as well as courses in life skills, including
listening and time management skills, and civic engagement. FCA students are able
to participate in internships with local businesses. In addition, students are

required to complete thirty-six hours of community service and prepare a portfolio
as a requirement of graduation,

© Trss detait vonflicts «vhanformation received from the Burcau of Credertialing, Stare of
Nes Hoarepsitre, wno cated that the teacrers were not cortified, nor had appheations been
Coeerdd e bnn ar e rnrfing.




According to the teachers interviewed, students, teachers, and parents create
individual development plans to address the individual learning style and needs of
each student. IEP meetings are held with the sending district, which provides each
student who is on an 1EP with a case worker who monitors the student.

Assessments

FCA reported using the following assessments: the New England Comprehensive
Assessment Program (NECAP), NWEA Measures of Academic Progress (MAP),
Individual Development Plans, portfolio assessments, and Authentic Assessment.
FCA’s 2006-2007 Accountability Report reported that FCA students were making
progress above national averages on the NWEA Measures of Academic Progress.

According to the Director of Operations, FCA analyzes assessment data on a regular
basis. Individual development plans for students are reviewed on a consistent
basis, and the portfolio formative assessment is part of the school's graduation
requirements. Each portfolio contains samples of academic work, career and citizen
accomplishments, and letters of recommendation when applicable,

Student and Parent Engagement and Support

The three students interviewed for this review stated that they appreciate being
able to get heip from FCA teachers when they need it. They also commented
positively on the small size and safe atmosphere at the school as well as the
opportunities for business internships. They expressed concern about continued
funding for FCA and the need for newer computers and library books. One student
indicated that she would be a school dropout if FCA closed.

FCA requires each parent to provide two hours per month of volunteer time to the
school. FCA also has a Parent Teacher Organization (PTQO) that meets monthly with
an average attendance of seven to fifteen parents. This group provides teachers
with volunteers for projects, does fundraising, and engages in legislative lobbying.
Among the FCA benefits cited by the three parents interviewed for this review were
small class sizes, frequent feedback from the school on student performance, and
individual development plans for students.

Student Destination and Post-Secondary Planning

According to a July 2007 report submitted by FCA to the NH DOE, seven FCA
students graduated in the 2006-2007 school year. One student had dropped out of
the local area high school and returned to FCA to receive her diploma; two others
had had numerous suspensions and absences at the local high school. Three
graduates of FCA had plans to pursue further education.

Finance

According to NH DOE records, in 2003 FCS received $165,000 in state funds and
grants of $322,000 and $315,000, respectively. The latter grant expired in




September 2005. NH DOE records show that as of July 15, 2005, more than
$200,000 of the federal grant was unexpended. Although a letter!’” from Assistant
Deputy Secretary Nina Rees of the US Department of Education to the New
Hampshire Commissioner of Education responding to inquiries from the FCA Board
of Trustees had stated that federal funds may be allowable to FCA under the clause
“other initial operational costs that cannot be met from State or local sources”'®,
the lack of a reliahle funding source for the school led to the decision by the FCA
Board of Trustees to suspend school operations for the 2005-2006 school year.
Moreover, the US Department of Education money could not be expended after
September of 2005 when the thirty-six months of eligibility ended. '* Additionally,
according New Hampshire Department of Education personnel, the FCA had
received an earlier pre-planning grant directly from the US Department of
Education, which caused a significant eligibility problem for the charter school. The
New Hampshire Department did not have a record of the earlier payment. In a
letter to the Board of Education dated June 16, 2006, the Franklin Superintendent
of Schools wrote on behalf of the Franklin School Board to express concerns
regarding FCA’s financial stability and fiscal management and its ability to meet the
needs of low-achieving, low-income, at-risk students. The letter also suggested
that FCA might have breached a commitment made to the Frankiin Schooi District
that it would not request any adequacy funding {charter tuition payment) from the
school district in its first year of operation. During this year of suspended
operations for the schoal, extensive correspendence also ensued between the FCA
Board of Trustees and the New Hampshire Commissioner of Education, and
between other parties including The Honorable Margaret Spellings, Secretary of
Education at the United States Department of Education, with the purpose of
resolving the uncertainties of the funding system and to re-open the school.

Because it had been closed, the school did not have a financial audit for the year
ending June 30, 2006. Information from Board minutes indicates that the school
was actively managing a very tight budget for the 2006-2007 school year.
According to the FCA’s unaudited figures for the period ending June 30, 2007, the
school had $21,779 in equity at the close of the year. The table below shows the
school’s sources of revenue each year.
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2004-2005 2005-2006 - 2006-2007
!

Federal Start-up Grant $ 322,000 " $315,000

State Equitable Aid 165,000 90,000
Closed
Cther Not applicable Mot apphcable
Total $487,000 405,000
Facility

FCA rents space on the second floor of the St. Paul’'s Roman Catholic Church
Activity Center. The school has use of kitchen facilities and a gym. The annual rent

is $35,000. The facility is adequate for the current needs of Franklin Career
Academy.

Closing Observations

In a letter to FCA dated February 28, 2007, the NH DOE noted that FCA had
submitted a report card to the NH DQE for the 2004-2005 school year and had
suspended operations for the 2005-2006 school year; thus, it was difficult for the
NH DOE to determine how much student progress was made from the one full year
that FCA had operated. The NH DOE acknowledged that FCA had reported strong
test results but noted that these were not qualified with reference to the regional
context, that the number of students in each grade was small, and that the life
skills measured by FCA had not been identified. The NH DOE also noted that four
members of the Board had resigned in the first year of operation, that three of the
four faculty members from the first year of operation had resigned, and that the
existing Board consisted of five members, four of whom were new. Finally, the NH
DOE noted that FCA's relationship with the local school district had been strained in
the 2004-2005 school year and that the school’'s report card had provided no
information regarding the school’s special education program.

On April 20, 2007, and again on July 1S, 2007, FCA submitted its own Assessment
of Progress to the NH DOE. FCA's seif-assessment reported that the school had
met or exceeded each indicator of progress in the following areas: achievement of
mission, responsible use of public funds, promotion of student attainment of
expected knowledge and skilis, and school sustainability.

It was reported in the interview that the relationship with the Franklin School
District has improved this year. Reference was made to student transportation and
collaboration with the SPED Department.

This review disclosed evidence that FCA has adhered to its mission statement and
goals: the school provides dropouts and at-risk students with skill-based courses
and internship opportunities as well as standard high school courses. Students




receive individualized attention from the school’'s advisors and through the
preparation of individual development plans.

Seacoast Charter School _
Seacoast Charter School, located in Kingston, was chartered by the New Hampshire
Board of Education on August 20, 2003, Seacoast has operated continuously since

the beginning of the 2004-2005 school year. Seacoast currently serves students in
grades one through six.

Mission
Seacoast’'s charter application contained the following mission statement:

The mission of Seacoast Charter School is to provide excellence in core
academics and the arts while cultivating the individual qualities and strengths
of each child. ‘

Provide a rigorous core academic program with a thematic approach to
curriculum

Cultivate the individual qualities and strengths of each student

Offer a comprehensive, multidisciplinary arts program that ailows students to
explore new ways of thinking, behaving, and learning

Support student achievement by creating an inclusive learning community
that actively engages parents

Promote character development and good citizenship

According to NH DOE records, the Board of Education approved a change to the
mission statement on May 11, 2007, adding the following statement:

The school seeks to integrate an appreciation of other languages and cultures
across the curriculum,

Enroliment

At the beginning of the 2007-2008 school year, Seacoast had fifty enrolled students
from fifteen sending districts, including four students with IEPs and 504 students.
The school had a thirty-student waiting list. The school reported the following
enrollments and class sizes for the past four school years:

-+ :f . 2004-2005. 7, 2005-2006 - - 2006-2007 - 2007-2008

Enroliment

Average class size




Governance

Seacoast’s 2003 charter application proposed a nine-member Board of Trustees
that would inciude three parents of enrolled children, three business community
members and/or corporate sponsors, three local community members and/or
philanthropic sponsors, and one voting or non-voting teacher representative. NH
DOE records show that on May 11, 2007, the Board of Education approved
Seacoast’s request to increase the Board size to twelve members and to increase
the number of trustee positions reserved for parents of enrolled students from
three to four.

As of September 2007, the Seacoast Board of Trustees had nine members and was
in the process of increasing the Board size to twelve, including four parents of
enrolled students. Board minutes indicate that the Board has been active in Board
development, sorting out roles and recruiting members. According to the four
Board members interviewed for this review, Board members are selected by a
Nominating Committee; the Board meets monthly and has encountered no difficulty
in obtaining the quorum of five trustees required to vote on Board matters; and
four members have resigned since 2003: three left at the end of their terms, and
one left to take a more active role in the school.

A review of the Board’s meeting minutes for the last six months of the 2006-2007
school year indicates that the Board has been actively engaged in school matters.
The minutes indicate that the Board reqularly receives reports from the Head of
School, and Board members interviewed reported the monthly reports include
discussion of student achievement. In addition, among the topics considered by
the Board in this period were the charter, board development, roles, goals, middle
school development, facility needs, budget, fundraising, and advocacy, including
legislative outreach. Board members interviewed stated that Seacoast has formed
an informal alliance with Franklin Career Academy and Cocheco Arts and
Technology Charter Academy to lobby for state funding.

Staffing and Professional Development

The Head of School was new, as were three of the five classroom teachers.
{According to interviews with Seacoast representatives, the previous Head of
School and three classroom teachers resigned at the end of the previous school
year because the school’s future was in jeopardy.) Of the three care curricufum
teachers (the 4.5 FTE includes a full time art teacher and .5 music teacher), two
were reparted to be Highly Qualified under the federal NCLB requirements, and two
had New Hampshire certification; another teacher’'s New Hampshire certification
status was pending. One teacher worked part-time as a teacher aide; the school
also employed a second teacher dide. The school reported a teacher-student ratio
of 13.5. Seacoast had provided its faculty with two professionai development days
before the school year began; this program reportedly focused on integrating the




curriculum and the school’s arts program for new teachers. The school had also
scheduled three professional development days during the school year.

Curriculum

According to Seacoast administrators, Seacoast’s curriculum includes Everyday
Math, a science curriculum that is aligned to the New Hampshire Curriculum
Frameworks, Pearson Social Studies, John Collins Writing, and Core Knowledge.
Consistent with Seaceast’'s mission, art and music are embedded in the curriculum.
Seacoast administrators receive information about students with special education
needs from the students’ sending districts; Seacoast teachers tailor the students’
personal learning plans to their IEPs.

Assessments

According to Seacoast’s year two report to the NH DOE, Seacoast students scored
above state average scores on all areas of the New England Common Assessment
Program (NECAP)., The school's year three report stated that Seacoast sixth
graders had scored at or near state averages on the NECAP and that average
student scores were comparable to or higher than sending district averages. Other
assessments in use at Seacoast include the New England Comprehensive
Assessment Program, TerraNova, Developmental Reading Assessment, and
personal tearning plans prepared with special benchmarks for individual students.
The Head of School stated that assessment data are anaiyzed regularly; however,
he was unaware of how assessment data had been used in previous years.

Student and Parent Engagement and Support .
The three students interviewed for this review stated that they loved school, felt
that they received attention and assistance from their teachers, and appreciated
the tack of bullying, which differed from previous experience at a former school.
They discussed “"QOpen Circle,” a daily period allotted for students to discuss

problems or issues at the school. Students said that they felt engaged in
developing school rules.

Seacoast reported using informal methods to gauge parent satisfaction. The school
sends letters to parents inviting their feedback on student progress reports and
encourages parent attendance at Beoard meetings. In addition, Seacoast has
established a Parent Group that attends and participates in each Board meeting;
the Parent Group is comprised of active volunteers who assist with activities such
as field trips, decorations, refreshments, fundraising drives, and legislative
lobbying. The four parents interviewed during this review expressed positive views
of Seacoast and its impact on their children; in particular, they cited the school's
personal learning plans, arts offerings, emphasis on the development of critical
thinking skills, and focus on community and student responsibility. They all stated
that the Seacoast provides a safe environment for their children.




Student Destination and Post-Secondary Planning
No information.

Finance

As previously roted, at the end of the 2006-2007 school year the Head of School
and three classroom teachers resigned, reportedly due to the school’'s financial
uncertainty. The school’s 2006-2007 annual report cited the uncertainty about
state funding as the biggest reason for staff losses.

The school’s audit report for the year that ended June 30, 2006 showed that the
school had unrestricted net assets totaling $50,812.00. According to the school’s
unaudited figures, Seacoast had $54,568.08 in equity at the close of the 2006-2007
school year. The table below shows the school’s sources of revenue each year.

2003-2004 2.004-20051 .- 2005-2006"' 2006-2007

Fed. Start-up Grant $119,100 $ 67,545 $152,555 $296,222

State Equitable Aid . - 83,623 114,650 189,964
Other - 8,874 32,906 18,413
$119,100 $ 160,042  $ 300,111 $ 504,599

As can be seen in the table, in 2007 the school derived $296,222 (60 percent of its
total revenue for the year} through its federal grant. The other major source of
funding was state equitable aid (also called adeguacy payments), which totaled
$189,964. According to the school's data, the school raised $14,195 through
contributions and fundraising. As noted previously, the Board has worked to
advocate for state legisiative funding.

According to data provided to the school, Seacoast expended $506,503.01 during
the 2006-2007 school year, equal to $8,442 per student based on 60 students
enrolted.

The school obtained an unqgualified opinion on its 2005-2006 audit report.

Facility
Seacoast rents space in a former elementary school in Kingston that also houses

town offices. The rooms used by Seacoast Charter School appear to be adequate,
The school reported that its rent expense is $35,000.

Closing Observations

An Assessment of Progress conducted by the NH DOE on October 1, 2006 found
that Seacoast met or exceeded each indicator of progress in the following areas:
achievement of mission, responsible use of public funds, promotion of student
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attainment of expected knowledge and skills, and school sustainability. The NH
DCE assessment noted that Seacoast had developed an intense fundraising
program that could serve as a model for all New Hampshire charter schools.

This review disclosed evidence that Seacoast has adhered to its mission statement
and program objectives. The school’'s curriculum appears rigorous, and its
academic program integrates arts and music into the core curriculum for each
student. Students are encouraged to be individual learners; as noted above, a
personal learning plan is prepared for each student and evaluated during the school
year. The "Open Circle” meetings encourage students to air personal concerns, and
weekly Town Meeting forums allow students to participate in school decision-
making. Parents are actively engaged in the school as volunteers and through
representation on the Board of Trustees.

North Country Charter School

North Country Charter School, located in Littleton and in Lancaster, was chartered
by the Board of Education on January 2, 2004. North Country has operated
continuously beginning with the 2004-2005 school vyear. The school was
established in response to the need identified by school superintendents in ten locat
districts to address high school dropouts; it serves high school dropouts and

students at risk of dropping out between the ages of fourteen and twenty-one,
enrolled in grades seven through twelve.

Mission
The school’s mission statement, which is unchanged from the mission statement
proposed in North Country’s charter application, is as follows:

The North Country is a place of learning inhabited by people who treasure
our countryside and its beauty and abundant resources, with a commitment
to all children and the community. In this special setting we see each
individual achieving his/her highest potential in a positive can do, goal-
ortented, nurturing, and secure atmosphere,

North Country’s charter application cited the following goals for the school:

To implement an existing alternative school curriculum (the Ombudsman Education
Services curriculum) for this Charter School

To develop collaboratively annual goal(s) to define student, school, and community
involvement in the NC Alternative Charter School




To develop an effective governing board and policies that focus on community
stewardship, collaborative and democratic decision-making, fostering the school
mission

To identify and serve recent school dropouts or those who do not learn by
“conventional methods” and are at risk of dropping out and provide an alternative
for academic success

To sustain high performance in attendance rate at 95% or above

Enrollment
The school currently enrolls sixty students in grades seven through twelve,

currently drawn from ten districts, nine in New Hampshire and one in Vermont.
Four students have [EPs.

There is no waiting list, Districts are given a pre-determined, pre-paid number of
places (called ‘slots’). Not all slots are taken up by all districts, and the practice of
buying "and selling siots between districts is commonplace. This practice helps
aveoid a waiting list.

The schoo! reported the following enrollments and class sizes for the past four
school years:

2004 2005 ° 2005-2006 : 2006 2007 4 2007 2008

. EII

hAverage c!ass snze,

North Country reported attendance rates of 90 percent for both sites during the
2006-2007 school year., Retention rates for both sites averaged 88 percent. In the
2006-2007 school year, eighty-eight percent of the school's thirty-three enrolled
seniors graduated. Of the remaining four seniors, one moved, two were dismissed
due to poor attendance, and cne had an incomplete academic record.

Governance

North Country’s 2003 charter application proposed a five- to eleven-member Board
of Trustees., By the fourth year, the Board was to consist of seven members: two
parents of enrolled students, two professional educators or direct student service
providers, and three community leaders. As of September 2007, the Board of
Trustees was comprised of nine members, including two parents of enrolled
students and two area superintendents. The school reported that all of the seven
original Board members continue to serve on the Board. The school’s close tie to
the local districts it serves is reflected by the Board’'s membership, which includes
{wo superintendents from local sending districts and a member of a local district’s
school board.




The Board meets monthly. A review of minutes for meetings conducted during the
first six months of 2007 indicates that the number of members in attendance for
the meetings has ranged from five to nine, and that the Board has been engaged in
school matters including assessment results, enrollment, and budget and finance,
including the school’'s audit results. The ombudsman reportedly provides monthly

student achievement reports to the Board that include assessment results and
attendance.

Staffing and Professional Development

Since the school’s inception, North Country’s Board of Trustees has contracted with
Ombudsman Education Services, Inc. (Ombudsman) of Libertyville, Tllinois to
provide the school’'s curriculum, technology, instructional staff, professional
development, and facilities. As of 2007, payments for these services accounted for
$324,000 of the school’s $541,602 budget.

North Country’s Principa! and administrative staff are paid by the North Country
Education Services Agency (NECSA), which bills North Country for these services.
The school reported that the four K-12 classroom teachers are state certified with
Special Education licenses,

Curriculum
North Country’s website describes the school’s current program as follows:

Upon acceptance into the Academy students will be given academic
assessments to measure math, reading and writing skills. In coordination
with sending school districts, an individual learning plan will be established to
address credit requirements. Using the nationally recognized and accredited
Ombudsman curriculum students will demonstrate competency in 7 major
areas:

Basic Skilis

Life Management
Citizenship/Social Studies
Health/Recreation

Science

Aesthetics

Careers/College Preparation

The core of the Ombudsman curriculum is essential skills with heavy emphasis an
reading/language arts, mathematics, science and social studies in addition to
extended learning in other subjects.

The curriculum is administered through Plato software from Plate Learning Inc., and
NovalNet software from Pearson Digital Learning Inc., for computer-based and




online learning. These programs are suppiemented by content prepared by
Ombudsman, predicated on the requirements of the TerraNova tests. Students are
engaged for three hours daily in basic skills, social studies, mathematics and
English by means of these programs. The classroom instructors work with
individuals on an as-needed basis when intervention is necessary, to review work‘,
or to explain aspects of the computer-based program. The curriculum also requires
that students engage in a work study placement that may be paid or voluntary.
Teachers interviewed stated that opportunities are also given for role-play, drama
and other group learning activities on an ad hoc basis. Students interviewed said
they found this way of learning agreeable and helpful both in acquiring knowledge
and skills and in developing self-esteem.

Assessments

North Country’'s 2006-2007 End of Year Report indicated that North Country
measures students’ academic progress using the Basic Achievement Schools
Inventory (BASI), a norm-referenced test administered by Ombudsman Educational
Services. According to North Country administrators, North Country also
administers the NECAP, Pearson Assessments, Analytic Survey Basic Math, and
Vocal Achievement Guide, as well as the TerraNova tests. Assessment data are
reportedly used daily by the students and teachers in a formative way to assess
student progress and reviewed weekly against school objectives.

Student and Parent Engagement and Support

The fifteen students interviewed for this review spoke positively about North
Country’'s safe and quiet environment, positive peer support, caring staff,
computer-based learning with embedded feedback, confidence-building culture, and
impact on their self-esteem.

According to North Country administrators, students attend classes for three hours
each morning or afternoon and spend an additional eleven hours in paid work study
or volunteer activities in the community. The school reported that all but two of the
sixty students enrolled in North Country in the 2006-2007 school year earned three
or more credits, and half earned three times the number of credits they had earned
in their previous high schoot careers. '

North Country reported that all parents participate in an intake interview and
meetings throughout the year as necessary, in fundraising and community service,
and with students in graduation planning meetings. The four parents interviewed
all stated that their children, former drop-outs, were attending school again
because of North Country.

Student Destination and Post-Secondary Planning
Parents, teachers, Board members and administrators provided anecdotal evidence
of students progressing onto continuing education. One parent referred to her two




children, one of whom had proceeded on to a university and another of whom
attended a music conservatory in Boston.

Finance

North Country received a three-year federal start-up grant in 2004; the grant funds
expired in March 2007. North Country’s current funding sources include the
adequacy grant payments from the State and per student contributions from the
ten school districts that send students to North Country. Unfilled slots are sold to
other jurisdictions, including the State of Vermont. The table below shows the
sources of revenue each year, as reported by the school.

’ 2004-2005:%" 2005-2006 - - 2006-2007 - 2007-2008

ger‘::;a' Start-up $299,999 |  $ 300,000 $399,029 0
State Equitable Aid - - 144,627 182,705
Other State 60,000 - - -
Unitary Charges 162,516 200,097 148,829 232,000
Out of State Students 29,856 34,593 19,156 22,000

- ;_';‘Tot_a} e $552,371;{$ 53_4,‘6_9_71&;;};,;‘ $le,§ﬁl

. $436,705

As can be seen in the table, in 2007 the school derived $400,000 (56 percent of its
total revenue for the year) through its federal grant. The other major sources of
funding were state equitable aid (also called adequacy payments) which totaled
$144,627, and unitary per student charges assessed to sending districts which
totaled $148,829. In addition, the school received $19,156 for out of state
students. In addition to the amounts in the table above, the school reported in its
statement of revenues for the quarter ending June 30, 2007 that the school raised
$1,538 in donations.

The school obtained an unqualified opinion on its 2005-2006 audit report. At that
time, the school had net assets of $117,342, of which $104,729 was available for
operations and $12,613 was invested in property and equipment. According to
North Country’s unaudited balance sheet for the quarter ending June 30, 2007, the
school’s fund equity declined from the previous year to $102,840,




Facilities

As previously noted, North Country operates in two locations:; Littleton and
Lancaster. Both spaces are leased through Ombudsman. The schoaol reports that
the space is adequate to its needs. Parents, teachers and students all referred
positively to the environment at both sites. Itis modern, clean and in both settings
part of a professional building rather than a school. Administrators and
superintendents from associated districts said that this helped students put
negative experiences of school behind them and start fresh.

Closing Observations

An Assessment of Progress conducted by the NH DOE on October 13, 2006 found
that North Country met all but one indicator of progress in the following areas:
achievement of mission, responsible use of public funds, promotion of student
attainment of expected knowledge and skills, and school sustainability. According
to NH DOE records, the single criterion rated “does not meet” related to the
school’s misunderstanding of the grant periods. In a letter to the school dated
February 28, 2007, the NH DOE stated that the schoo! continued to demonstrate
adherence to its mission, as evidenced by the enroliment of the school's graduates
tn a variety of post-secondary schools and by the positive reviews of the school
from students and parents. The letter from the NH DQE also noted some concerns
regarding the school’'s long-term sustainability and the need for the school to
conduct tonger-range planning activities.

The mission is vague, and although North Country is a beautiful landscape, it was
hard to get a sense of how the beauty of the area in particular impacted the work of
the school. Both sites were providing quiet and guided opportunities for learning on
the day of the visit. Students and teachers talked of goal setting and documentary
evidence of goais successfully met was reviewed. Attendance at the time of the
visit was 100 percent and according to the Director, the school has consistently
maintained attendance leveis better than the goals of the charter.

Great Bay eLearning Charter School

Great Bay elearning Charter School, located in Exeter, was chartered by the Board
of Education on February 19, 2004. Great Bay has operated continuously since the
2004-2005 school year. Great Bay serves students in four academic divisions
corresponding to grades nine through twelve in traditional public schools.

Mission
Great Bay's 2004 charter application contained the following mission statement:




The mission of the Great Bay elearning Charter Schoo! is to address the
needs of that middle range of students in the Exeter Region Cooperative
School District (ERCSD) whose needs are not adequately met in traditional
programs, and to educate those students in such a way that they will
graduate as caring, productive and contributing members of society.

The charter application provided the following overview of the program to be
offered by Great Bay:

High academic standards

Innovative approaches

Small size

Special interests curriculum

Greater flexibility in the educational program

Parental philosophies that perceive the charter school as a “best fit” for their child
Flexible hours and an emphasis on community service, project-based learning, and
real life experiences provided through practicums, internships, and job shadowing

Enraillment

No data was returned by the school in response to Class Measures’ request for
information. The school did not complete the data collection form sent to all
schools. According to NH DOE records, the school enrolled seventy-five students in
the 2006-2007 school year. The NH DOE reported the following enrollments for the
past three school years: .

.+ 2004-2005
' 50

2005-2006 -
100

© -2006-2007
75

Enroliment

According to Great Bay’s website, the school’s enrollment for the 2007-2008 school
year was "just over 100 students.”

Governance

Great Bay's 2004 charter application proposed a Board of Trustees consisting of five
to eleven voting members, with anticipated inclusion of two members of the
business community, two parents of enrolled students, one University of New
Hampshire (UNH) educator, two other professional educators, and two members
from the Exeter Regional Cooperative Board. The application also envisioned the
possible addition of two non-voting student representatives and additional ex
officio, non-voting members.

According to Great Bay's website, the current Board of Trustees is comprised of
sixteen members, including one parent, one UNH professor, two Great Bay
administrators, two members of the Exeter Regional Cooperative School District,




-and two community members. The website includes a comprehensive set of Board
policies. One set of minutes appears on the school’s website. Class Measures has
not had access to any further Board minutes.

Staffing and Professional Development

According to Great Bay's website, the Superintendent of Schools and the Assistant
Superintendent of Schools for SAU 16 serve as Great Bay’s Chief Executive Officer
and Director of Development, respectively. The website also lists five teachers,
including a Special Educator, and six other staff.

Great Bay's website lists a number of professional development topics offered in the
summer of 2007, including the following: Writing Across the Curriculum,
Interdisciplinary Proiect Deveiopment, Differentiated Instruction, Assessment of
Student Learning, Motivating the Reluctant Learner, Student Portfolios, and Data
Driven Decision Making.

Curriculum

According to Great Bay's website, the school blends on-line learning and

video conferencing technology using a project-based curriculum that is aligned with
NECAP Grade-Leve! Expectations. NH DOE documents note that, according to Great
Bay, the school incorporates two forms of distance learning technotlogies:
asynchronous streaming and web-based learning; these allow students to work
independently on interactive material delivered to their desktops, thereby
participating in a virtual classroom.

Assessments
No information,

Student and Parent Engagement and Support
No information.

Student Destination and Post-Secondary Planning
No information.

Finance

There is no 2005-2006 audit report for Great Bay ebearning; at that time, the
school was not a separate entity but was part of School Administrative Unit 16, NH
DOE files contained a copy of the SAU 16 financial audit report; information on
Great Bay elearning was not isolated in the audit.

Facility
No information.




Closing Observations
In a letter to the school dated February 28, 2007, the NH DOQE provided the
following descriptive evaluation of Great Bay’s educational program:

Great Bay elearning uses an alternative approach aimed at meeting the
needs of middle performing students who need a different approach to
learning. The elLearning center is a charter school that is technology
oriented, and presents methods of engaging students in their own education
with the goals of maintaining student interest, increasing academic
achievement, and more fully addressing the needs of students who are at
risk.

The NH DOE jetter also noted: “The school has support from its local district which
insures sustainability in the future.”

Cocheco Arts and Technology Academy

Cocheco Arts and Technology Academy (CATA), located in Barrington, was
chartered by the Board of Education on May 19, 2004. CATA currently serves
students in grades nine through twelve,

Mission
CATA’s mission statement, unchanged since the school’s 2004 charter application
was submitted, is as follows:

The mission of the Cocheco Arts and Techneology Academy, a Public Charter
School {CATA) is to provide excelience in secondary education in
fundamental academics and performing arts, fine arts and technology related
to the arts. CATA will be dedicated to creating an educational community
where each student thrives, exploring personal interests in an atmosphere
that encompasses different learning styles, individual learning opportunities,
smaller class sizes and multiple methods of learning assessments.

CATA’s 2004 charter application cited the following primary goals and strategies for
the school:

To promote excellence in education through innovative, engaging and challenging
coursework

To promote increased skills for future choices such as admittance to arts-based
and/or liberal arts colleges using a professional representation of their arts and
technology-based skills i.e. portfolio, resume, audition, power-paint presentation,
etc.

To encourage and guide students to take responsibility for their education.




To provide a curriculum that integrates arts and technology into the classroom
rather than being a supplement to learning

To develop methods that identify, sustain and incorporate multiple learning styles
and assessment enabling all students to attain their educational goals.

To nurture creative thinkers, independent learners, and active citizens

Enrollment

At the beginning of the 2007-2008 school year, CATA had sixty-three enrolled
students from twenty sending districts and one student from Maine:; seven students
had IEPs. The school had a forty-two-student waiting list. CATA has had several
inquiries from parents who live out of state who wish to send their child to the
school. One such inquiry was from California. The parents are willing to move to
the area so that their child can attend the school. CATA reported average class
sizes of classes in core academic subjects taught by full-time teachers and of other
classes taught by part-time teachers. CATA’s reported enroliments for the past
three years were as follows:

2004-2005  2005-2006- . 2006-2007 2007-2008

Enraliment ' 19 52 48 63

Average class size

" 8.5to 13to 1 12to 1 i16tol
Core Teachers !

Average class size

3.8to1 10.4to 1 6.8¢to1l 11tol
Part Time Teachers

Governance

CATA's 2004 charter application proposed a Board of Trustees consisting of five to
gleven members, with the full membership of all to be achieved by the third year of
operations. The Board would consist of two parents of enrolled students; three
local, professional artists and performers; two professional educators or direct
student service providers; two technology professionals; two community members;
and one non-voting student representative.

The current CATA Board of Trustees consists of seven members, including one non-
voting student representative. Board members are selected through an informal
process and serve staggered terms of two or three years. Since CATA was
founded, twelve Board members have resigned; five members of the current Board
were added to the Board in the 2006-2007 school year. The Board holds monthly
meetings and bi-monthly meetings when necessary: for example, during the past
year additional meetings were held due to the fiscal issues facing CATA. According




to Board members interviewed, the Board is in the process of forming a Curriculum
Committee, which will include Board members, administrators, teachers, and
parents, for the purpose of ensuring that CATA is in compliance with State
requirements. In addition, CATA has formed an alliance with Franklin Career
Academy and Seacoast Charter School to lobby jointly for state funding. According
to Board members interviewed, the Board receives reports of student achievement

data from the Principal; the Board also reviews the school’s annual Accountability
Pian,

Staffing and Professional Development

In addition to the School Birector, CATA has hired an Assistant Director for the
2007-2008 school year; CATA also has a part-time Development Director. CATA
employs eleven teachers, four of whom are full time and seven of whom are part-
time. Three of the core curriculum teachers were reported to be Highly Qualified,
and three were reported to be certified in New Hampshire; one teacher's
certification is pending. The school reported a teacher-student ratio of eleven to
one for all teachers and sixteen to one for classes in core academic subjects taught
by full-time teachers. The school reported that teachers are offered professional
development: examples include workshops sponsored by the New Hampshire
Council for the Arts, a Robert Frost poetry workshop, Grade Quick training, a
College Board workshop, a portfolio assessment workshop, a workshop on
harassment in schools, and a workshop on yoga for teachers. According to the
School Director, the school began conducting formal teacher evaluations last year.

Curriculum

According to CATA administrators, CATA's curricuium is collaboratively planned and
adheres to the New Hampshire Curriculum Frameworks. A Personal Education Plan
is prepared for each CATA student. In addition to core academic subjects, CATA
has offered a range of classes in drama, visual arts, interdisciplinary arts and
technology, dance, performance media, and music. CATA also offers an
Independent Study program that allows students to earn credit for learning and
work performed outside the classroom. We didn’t observe classes, but I did see
students engaging in discussion about an art project.

Assessments

CATA reports using the following summative and formative assessments: NECAP:
Progress Toward Standards; arts assessments embedded in the arts curriculum:
portfolio assessments, which are a graduation requirement; and Authentic
Assessment. State testing data and measured progress testing data are placed into
each student’s Personal Education Plan. In addition, CATA conducts formative
assessments of student portfolios, which document achievement over four years
and are included in CATA’s graduation requirements. According to the School
Director, assessment data are analyzed on a regular basis, and all staff use




authentic assessment to drive and/or revise curriculum. Homework completion
data and other data found in narrative assessments are used to make school
decisions. Teachers interviewed for this review stated that they are involved in
analyzing assessment data: for example, they use NECAP data to identify possible
modifications to curriculum and classroom instructional objectives for teachers and
students.

CATA’s Annual Report dated July 31, 2007 provided data on school performance on
state assessments. According to the report, CATA made Adeguate Yearly Progress
for both Reading and Mathematics in 2006; 61 percent of CATA tenth-graders
scored at the Advanced or Proficient level in Reading, and 33 percent did so in
Mathematics. In 2007, CATA students participated in the Progress Toward
Standards (PTS) assessment for the second consecutive year: 92 percent of CATA
ninth-graders scored at the Proficient or Advanced level in Reading, and 75 percent
scored at the Proficient or Advanced level in Mathematics. The report noted: “Due
to a Measured Progress error, the incarrect version of the PTS was administered to
CATA Sophomores, Juniors, and Seniors. No valid PTS resuits are available for
these students this year.” According to the report, CATA's internal assessment
showed that "100 percent of CATA students met CATA’s contract benchmarks for
English; 98% for Mathematics; 100% for Science.”

Student and Parent Engagement and Support

Student and parent participation at CATA is encouraged by an informal committee
with open membership. According to CATA administrators, CATA also surveys
students and parents: a teacher satisfaction survey is administered to students,
and a "How Are We Doing?” survey is administered to teachers, students, and
parents. The teacher satisfaction survey indicated that 77 percent of the students
surveyed rated their teachers as above average or excellent, The latter survey has
reportedly shown strong parental support for CATA. One parent wrote: “Cocheco
Arts and Technology Academy (CATA) meets my daughter’'s needs by providing a
strong preparatory academic program within a caring and nurturing community.”

The three students interviewed for this review described CATA as a small,
supportive community, They praised the school’'s teachers, small classes,
discussion-based approach te learning, and project-based assessments as well as
the friendly, safe school climate. Some said that their self-confidence and self-
esteem had increased since enroiling in CATA. Students also expressed concern
about CATA's uncertain funding and the stress of not knowing if the school would
remain open. Some commented that the school needed more art supplies.

Four parents were interviewed for this review. They stated that most parents
volunteer at CATA during the school year, and that the committee of students and
parents is very active. They also stated that a nonprofit organization is being
created to heip meet the school’s fundraising needs. They offered positive




comments about the small school environment, individual attention to their
children, and innovative instructional approach offered by CATA. They expressed
concern about school funding and hope that CATA would be able to continue its
good work.

Student Destination and Post-Secondary Planning
According to CATA’s School Director, 75 percent of CATA's most recent graduating
class went on to four-year colleges for the performing arts.

Finance

CATA’s audit report for the year ending June 30, 2006 showed that the schoo! had
unrestricted net assets totaling $12,571.00. The school’s unaudited figures for
June 30, 2007 indicate that its equity had increased to $46,127 and that during the
vear the school received a total of 602,853 in revenues: $365,400 in federal start-
up grant monies, $162,981 in state equitable aid, $66,666 in a state seed grant,
and $7,806 in unrestricted donations. (Note: Other data provided by the school is
not included because it is not comparable to the information provided in other
school profiles.)

Facility
CATA is located in the former Barrington Middle School building, which CATA shares
with a private Bible school. CATA’s annual rent to the Barrington School

Department is $47,000. The current facility is adequate, although parking is
limited.

Closing Cbservations
In a letter to the school dated February 28, 2007, the NH DOE stated:

Cocheco Arts and Technology Charter School met all the assessment criteria
in its 2005-2006 evaluation. It has a strong student population with
increasing enroliment. Its attractiveness to the students appears to be a
result of its unique academic curriculum. Community service, the arts and
technology are important to the school. CATA’s relationship with its local LEA
shows that the school has a strong foundation to grow and succeed.

The fetter from the NH DOE noted that the school’s Director had resigned in
January 2006 but that the school appeared to be “back on track” under the
direction of the new Director. The letter predicted that the school would be able
attamn financial stability and accommodate its enroliment growth through outside
fundraising efforts.

This review found evidence that CATA has adhered to the mission and program
goals outlined in its charter application. CATA has made Adequate Yearly Progress,
and the four graduating seniors of the class of 2007 have entered four-year
colleges for the performing arts. The school has integrated the arts into its




curriculum by offering a number of specialized courses, and teachers are provided
with professional development opportunities that comport with the school’s arts-
retated mission. Alternative assessments are embedded in the curriculum: for
example, a student may write a poem or compose a song instead of preparing a
traditional written report. CATA also uses collaboratively prepared personal
education plans to identify individual student needs.

New Hampshire Equestrian Academy Charter School

New Hampshire Equestrian Academy Charter School was chartered by the Board of
Education on September 14, 2005. The school opened in September 2006 at a
location in Rochester, New Hampshire; as of September 10th, 2007, the school had

not yet opened at its new location. The school operates grades nine through
twelve,

Missian
The school’'s mission statement, which is similar to that provided in its 2004 charter
application, is as follows:

The mission of The New Hampshire Equestrian Academy Charter School is to
create a mgh standards academy combining college preparatory education
with a unigue vocational program in equestrian/equine and related studies.

The school’s 2004 charter application provided the following program overview:

The program will promote academic achievement, a longer school day and
week, an expectation for all to acquire current computer technology skills,
private sector involvement for post-graduate scholarships, apprenticeships
which bridge education and career, and even courses for dual credit (high
school and college). Key features of the academic program will be
entrepreneurial business exposure, a strong literacy program, and core
courses in equestrian studies.

Enrollment

As of September 2007, the school had twenty four enrolled students, four of whom
had 1EPs, in grades nine through twelve.

e
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Enroliment 25 24

- 2006-2007- ! 2007-2008

Average class size Not reported | Not reported




Governance

According to the school’'s 2004 charter application, the school anticipated that the
Beoard of Trustees would be comprised of seven members: two or three members
would be school founders and would, over time, represent equestrian teachers or
experts; two or three members would represent business and industry, including a

veterinarian whose practice specialized in horses; and two or three members would
be parents of enrolled students.

As of September 2007, the Board of Trustees of New Hampshire Equestrian
Academy bad seven members, six of whom were founding Board members.
According to the school’s Consultant, who referred to herself in interview as the
Consuitant Superintendent, the Board meets four to six times each year. A review
of 2007 Board minutes available on the school’s website (January, February, March,
and June) indicates that four to five Board members attended the meetings; in two
instances one member attended by teleconference. A major issue considered
during the meetings was the school’s facility needs and options. Other topics in
evidence included enroliment, finances, fundraising, academic program, school
scheduie and board governance issues including its organization, policies, and
member terms. There was no explicit information indicating that the Board
discussed student academic performance.

Staffing and Professional Development

Two of the school’'s 2.6 FTE teachers were reported by the school to be Highly
Qualified; in addition to the teachers, the school employed a .6 FTE non-teaching
administrative and business support staff member. A local veterinary surgeon
allows students to attend ward rounds once a week; this time is contributed
voluntarily.  According to the school’'s Consuitant Superintendent, professional
development in the form of coaching and modeling of good instructional practice is

provided through the organization with which she is associated, the New Hampshire
Center for School Reform.

Curriculum

The charter application anticipated that the school’s curriculum would incorporate
the foilowing unique features:

School design (fult academic and equestrian career studies program)
School catendar on a 12-month schedule

Budget with entrepreneuriai revenue streams (funding sources to include
equestrian events, riding programs, boarding and care of horses, annual
fundraisers, business sponsors)

World vision

Unique career education

Instructional philosophy highly project-based




Combined college and career plan for every student
School facility combines school and farm sites

The school’s 2004 application anticipated that the school would provide a three-part
curriculum consisting of an academic program, an equestrian studies program, and
an entrepreneurial business program.

According to the school’s Consultant Superintendent, in the first year of operation,
2006-2007, the school provided a twenty-nine credit program, with three distinct
elements in keeping with the charter. Students have the opportunity to earn two
credits in Equine Studies, three credits in business studies, and the remaining
twenty-four credits in the academic program, in which biology and physics are
prominent. The curriculum is designed for students with a special interest in equine
affairs, (although horseback-riding is not part of the curriculum, and there are no
horses on-site). According to the Consultant Superintendent, the broad premise is
that graduating students will be able to follow higher education programs related to
equine science, equine business, or large mammal veterinary work. It was not
possible to access indicators of success of this program overall, though the
Consultant Superintendent referred to one of last vear's graduates who had
proceeded directly to a degree program in equine veterinary studies,

Assessments

Last year (2006-2007), one eleventh grade student took the NECAP test. According
to the school’s Consultant Superintendent, no further external testing took place in
the first year of operation. Again, according to the Consultant Superintendent,
during the first year internal assessment based on the school's unigue curricutum
took place on a regutar basis. It was not possible to determine the frequency or
results of these internal tests at interview,

Student and Parent Engagement and Support

The school was not opened during this review, so parents and students were not
interviewed. The school reported that in its first year of operation parents were
involved in school projects, and there was regular dialogue between staff and
parents. Projects included a fundraising barbeque and other fundraising events., A
group of three parents atso undertook a survey refating to student needs at the
school. The Consultant Superintendent said that parents received minutes of Board
meetings and a regular newsietter. A current “Parents News” page exists on the

school web site. The school did not conduct satisfaction surveys of students or
parents.

Finance
Limited financial information is available on the school. The school’s Jure 30, 2007
financiat information (balance sheet, statement of equity, statement of revenues,




and statement of expenditures) was not available for review. Moreover, the school
did not have a financial audit for the 2005-2006 schoo! year because the school
began operations in 2006-2007.

However, New Hampshire Equestrian Academy did report that during the 2006-
2007 school year the school raised a total of $588,000 in revenue comprised of
$399,000 in federal grant money, $105,000 from the state, an unspecified $66,000
grant, and $18,000 obtained through fundraising.

Facility
As noted above, New Hampshire Equestrian Academy was in the process of
refocating during this review. The school reported that, after renting space last

yvear, the school executed a lease for space with a purchase option, and that the
school has exercised the option to purchase.

Closing Observations

The information about the school was derived from desk-based research and a
single interview with the school Consultant Superintendent. The school was in
transition between sites at the time of the review and it was not possible to
scrutinize any school documents. The impression gained by the team is that the
school has not yet developed data-rich planning instruments for student learning.
In terms of the charter, however, it appears that the school is remaining faithful to
its mission through the provision of the three-part program and the engagement of
students for whom equine interests are strong.

Surry Village Charter School

Surry Village Charter School, located in Surry, was chartered by the New
Hampshire Board of Education on March 14, 2006. The school, which opened in
September 2006, currently serves students in grades one through six.

Mission
Surry Viliage’'s mission statement is as follows:

The mission of Surry Village Charter School is to provide a challenging and
rigorous education for children in an environment that emphasizes creativity,
collaboration, community, diversity, service, and leadership. Students will be
academically and socially prepared to meet the demands of further education

while maturing into preductive and caring adults with a lifelong passion for
tearning.




Children will learn the basics of reading, writing and math and experience
science and social studies through projects that emphasize everyday skills
such as cooking, canning, knitting, gardening, and woodworking. Music and
the arts will be integrated into the daily curriculum. The Surry Village
Charter School seeks to foster the development of individuals and their
connectedness to communities of the school, the region, the world, and the
natural environment.

According to Surry Villtage's 2006 charter application, the founders’ vision for the
schoaol was to:

Inspire creativity, curiosity, and wonder.

Foster the development of individuals and their connectedness to communities of
the school, the region, the world, and the natural environment.

Enable life-long learning for students, teachers, and families.

Emphasize curriculum that integrates humanities, science, and the arts with the
mastery of basic literacy and math skills.

Provide opportunities for students and teachers to explore subjects and content in
depth,

Utilize multiple strategies of assessment, evaluation, and reporting to help students
learn, to inform teachers’ understanding of the child, and to include families in the
learning process.

Develop in students the critical skills that guide problem-solving, decision-making,
and critical thinking.

Create a welcoming and nurturing environment for students from a E:Iiversity of
backgreunds, skills, challenges, and needs.

Enrollment

At the beginning of the 2007-2008 school year, Surry Village had sixty-two enrolled
students, including five students with IEPs. The school’s three sending districts
included SAU 38, which previously closed the elementary schools in Surry, Gilsum,
and Sullivan. The school had a forty-two-student waiting list. Surry Village
reported the following enroliments and class sizes:

3 es o 1 2006-
Llpn g

a5 el

B

Enrollment ) 30

Average class size 10 15.5

The school reported an attendance rate of 92 percent in the 2006-2007 school year.




Governance

Surry Village's 2006 charter application proposed a seven-member Board consisting
of three community representatives, one business representative, two parents of
enrolled students, and the school director. As of September 2007, the Surry Village
Board of Trustees had six members. The Director had previously served on the
Board of Trustees, and Board members interviewed stated that they expected to fill
the vacant position shortly. Board members serve staggered two-year terms, up to
a maximum of three terms. The Board meets bimonthly. No Board members have
resigred since the school was founded. The Board has established governance and
school policies. At the end of the 2006-2007 school year, the Board reportedly
conducted an informal evaluation of the Director.

A review of the Board’s meeting minutes for the four months of January through
Aprit 2007 indicates that each meeting was attended by five Board members and
the Director. Topics discussed included facilities, fundraising, budget, enroliment,
staffing, and. policies (including a conflict of interest policy for Board members),
among other matters. The minutes did not indicate discussion of student
performance and assessment, although the three members of the Board
interviewed stated that the Board receives a monthly report on student academic
achievement from the Director.

Board members interviewed for this review noted that Surry Village has received
overwhelming community support since it began operations. They also noted that
the Board has formed a fifteen-member Advisory Board that includes a former state
senator. The Advisory Board will meet three or four times each year to discuss
financing and lobbying activities.

Staffing and Professional Development

Surry Village employs four teachers, three of whom are reported to be Highly
Qualified and all four of whom are reported to have New Hampshire certification.
The school reported a teacher-student ratio of nine to one. In total, the school has
eighteen paid staff members, including the Director, teachers, -three teacher aides,
teaching consultants, and two parents and two high scheool students hired to run a
morning care program and an afternoon care program. According to the Director,
the school is hoping to hire a Director of Curriculum.

Professionat development is offered to teachers: for example, the school has
offered workshops in Everyday Math and Connected Math, Responsive Classroom
Training, Social inclusion Training, and a workshop on motivating the unmotivated
child. In addition, staff members have participated in the New England Organic
Farming Conference Farm to School Program. Teachers reported that the school

provides a mentor program to provide specialists when needed and to mentor new
teachers at Surry Village.




The Director sets specific performance goals for teachers and conducts periodic
teacher observations throughout the vyear as part of the school’'s annual staff
evaluation process. The school reported having received thirty applications for a
single teaching position to be filled for the 2007-2008 school year,

Curriculum

Surry Village's curriculum inciudes language arts, mathematics, science, social
studies, library skills, social skills, physical education, art, music, and information
technology. The language arts curriculum includes Four-Blocks; Guided Reading,
Phonics for Reading: Road to the Code, Handprints, Working With Words, Writers
Express, Spell-It-Right and SpellsWell, and Handwriting Without Tears, among
other resources. The social studies curriculum is Early United States (Harcourt
Brace).

Teachers receive IEPs from students’ sending districts and use them to plan and
make accommodations to curricula for the students with 1EPs. Each student with
an IEP is monitored by a case worker from the student’s sending district. Teachers
interviewed for this review stated that they plan curricula collaboratively and that
ail curricula adhere to the New Hampshire Curriculum Frameworks. They described
Surry Village as a “teacher-driven school.”

Assessments

Surry Village raported using the following assessments: NECAP, the Northwest
Evaluation Association Measures of Academic Progress, Diagnostic Reading
Assessment, Everyday Math/Connecting Math tests, and personal learning plans
written in the fall and reviewed haifway through the year. . Accerding to the
Director, a portfolio system for formative assessment has been introduced.
Teachers interviewed for this review stated that they are all involved in data

analysis and that they use assessments to identify areas needing improvement at
the class and individual leveis.

Student and Parent Engagement and Support

The five Surry Village students interviewed for this review stated that they liked
schogl, felt that the teachers were friendly and helpful, and felt safe and
comfartable at the school. One previously home-schooled student stated that he
liked being challenged at Surry Village and that he had friends there. Another liked
the smaller size of Surry Village in comparison with her previous school. All
expressed the hope that Surry Village would continue to stay open.

Surry Village has an informal parent council that raises funds for the schoal,
provides volunteers for various projects, and conducts legislative lobbying, among
other actwvities. [n addition, the school requires parents to veolunteer their services
for twenty hours during the school year. Surry Village administers a parent




satisfaction survey at the end of the first year of operations. Most of the five
parents of Surry Village students interviewed for this review expressed satisfaction
with the school. They indicated that they liked the school's portfolic assessments
and engagement of parents in the development of students’ personal fearning
plans. However, one parent submitted written comments for this review indicating
that although her daughter's previous teacher had been strong, her daughter’s
current teacher was not; she also criticized the school’s failure to share information
with parents. School funding was a major concern of the parents interviewed.

Student Destination and Post-Secondary Planning
No information.

Finance

According to the school’s un-audited figures for the quarter ending June 30, 2007,
Surry Village ended its first year of operations with a small negative equity balance
($2,384). The school earned revenue for the year totaling $363,032. Of that
amount, $166,569 (46 percent) was from a federal start-up grant, $79,870 was

from state equitable aid, $66,666 was from seed money, and $32,303 was from
contributions and fundraising.

Facility

Surry Village operates out of two modular classrooms on land rented from the
Bethel Bible Church and located behind the church. Surry Village also uses a
renovated trailer as administrative office space and a large field with playground
equipment, a vegetable garden planted by the students, and a storage shed. The
school uses the Surry Town Hall meeting room and kitchen for some classes and
group activities. In addition, the school pays the Town Librarian to open the library
early two days per week for the school’'s use.

Closing Observations

This review disclosed evidence that Surry Village has adhered to its mission
statement and school vision. Based on the interviews conducted for this review,
the school environment emphasizes creativity, collaboration, diversity, and
comrnunity service. An example of the latter is a Thanksgiving tea held by the
students for retired community members. Art and music are reportedly integrated
into the curriculum: for example, grades three, four, and five wrote poems, created
pictures, and assembied them all into a Haiku poem calendar. In additicn, students
actively participate in village life by, for example, growing vegetable gardens and

making field trips to farms to learn about farming activities such as cider pressing
and sheep herding.




CONCLUDING OBSERVATIONS

This report has provided an overview of the status of the fifteen charter schools
that have been chartered by the Board of Education since the charter school law
was enacted in 1995. One of the stated purposes of the New Hampshire charter
school law was to encourage the establishment of public charter. schools with
specific or focused curriculum, instruction, methods, or target pupil groups.”®
Consistent with this purpose, many of the charter schools receiving authorization
from the Board of Education were designed to be unique and to fill an identified
educational niche in New Hampshire. As discussed in previous sections of this
report, some charter schools have targeted high school students who are at-risk or
have dropped out of school. Other charter schools offer curricula that integrate
academic subjects and the arts. Ancther charter school was created with the intent
to meet the needs of high school students seeking academic preparation for college
and training in the equine industry, '

As the previous sections of this report have shown, the growth of the New
Hampshire charter school program since its creation in 1995 has been limited by a
number of factors, including a lack of support for some charter schools from tocal
school districts; the difficulty of attracting students; the obvious challenges
associated with planning, opening, and administering a school; and, perhaps most
important, the uncertain and shifting funding environment in which New Hampshire
charter schools have been authorized and.operated. Each of these factors is briefly
discussed below.

Tensions between local school districts and charter schools are hardly unique to
New Hampshire. Nevertheless, these tensions have had a significant impact on the
growth of the charter school program in new Hampshire: as previously discussed,
no charter school opened until the charter schoot law, which requires local school
districts to approve charter school proposals and then ratify each charter approved
by the Board of Education, was amended to allow a pilot project that allowed
charter schools to be authorized by the Board of Education without local approval.
While several charter schools do appear to have strong and productive retationships
with their sending districts, these appear to be the exception rather than the rule,

Two charter schools that offered unique learning envirenments have closed, in part
because of low enrollments: a school founded to provide a bilingual education
program in American Sign Language {(ASL) and English print for elementary
students who were deaf or hard of hearing as well as those hearing students who
would benefit from direct instruction and social interaction in ASL, and a school
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designed to offer students career-focused training in business and technology,
personal tearning plans, and flexible programming.

Founding a new charter school requires a significant, ongoing investment of time
and expertise on the part of organizers and administrators, whose many obligations
include preparing a detailed application to the Board of Education, securing and
furnishing appropriate facilities, creating an effective governance structure, hiring
and training 'staff, and recruiting students. Several charter school administrators
interviewed for this review cited the importance of being able to hire consultants to
assist with some of these activities. The substantial challenges of planning,
opening, and administering a school have been exacerbated by the charter school
funding climate in New Hampshire.

Funding was the top concern expressed by all charter school stakeholders
interviewed for this review. State adequacy payments for charter schools are
widely regarded by charter school administrators as inadequate to serve as the sole
source of funding for their schools. Most charter schools received federal start-up
grants; however, these have been time-limited grants intended to fund start-up
activities rather than operations. The Legislature has periodically appropriated
funds for some charter schools, but charter schools have been unable to predict or
rely on such appropriations. As discussed in the introduction to this report, the
charter school law provides that charter schools that are eligible for grants “shall
match funds provided by the state through private contributions in order to receive
funding that exceeds the state's average per pupil cost for the grade level weight of
the pupil.”?! However, this review has not disclosed evidence of significant private
fundraising on the part of charter schools in New Hampshire,

The inadequate and unpredictable funding for charter schools in New Hampshire
has implications that extend beyond the constraints on spending. Effective
governance by the Board of Trustees is essential to the success of a charter school.
Board members should be strongly committed to the school’s mission, should bring
an appropriate mix of skills and experience to the school, and should be willing and
able to invest time and effort in strategic planning and school oversight. Recruiting
and retaining Board members to fulfill this governance role is often difficult for
organizations; when a charter school's continued existence is jeopardized by an
uncertain funding climate, this difficulty is exacerbated.

The funding environment for charter school oversight by the NH DOE has been
equally problematic. Federal funds paid the salaries of the two full-time staff
members with charter school responsibilities; with the recent loss of federal funds,
those staff members are no longer available. Thus, the NH DOE is currently
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providing no assistance to or oversight of the charter schools that are currently
open or those that are scheduled to open.

Onre of the stated purposes of the charter school law is to "[e]stablish results-driven
accountability for public charter scheools and require the measurement of
learning.”?* In the past year, the NH DQE has begun to implement a formal
accountability process; however, this implementation has been incomplete. The
accountability process requires each charter school to develop an accountability
plan, as required by the charter schoo! taw, with measurable goals. This review
indicated that there is a lack of clarity and consensus regarding the nature of the
required accountability plan. Seacoast Charter School adopted an Accountability
Plan for the 2006-2007 school year that does fulfill the requirement of listing
measurable goals: one such goal is: “Average student NECAP scores will be higher
than state averages.” However, this review showed that other charter schools
regard their annual reports to the NH DOE as accountability plans. Whiie these
annual reports do contain information on schocl activities during the year, they do
not generally report on progress against gquantifiable goals. Until the charter school
accountability process is fully implemented, results-driven accountability and
measurement of learning will continue to be elusive goals of the New Hampshire
charter school program.
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Appendix 1

FUNDING COMPARISONS, 2007 /2008

From unsunstantiated «formation provided directiy by NH Department of Education

SAU

37
39

41

45
53

66
67
80
18

59
14
16

15

District

Concord

Derry Coop
Candia
Hooksett
Manchester
Amherst

Mont Vernon
Souhegan Coop
Brookline

Hollis
Hollis-Brookline Coop
Moultonborough
Allenstown
Chichester
Deerfield

Epsom
Pembroke
Hopkinton

Bow

Shaker Regional
Franklin

Hill

Newfound Area
Winnisquam
Epping
Brentwood

East Kingston

Exeter

Exeter Regional Coop
Kensington

Auburn

Funding per State
District Funding
10,479 2,299
10,537 4,115
9,321 1,785
8,179 1,316
8,626 3,295
10,899 1,494
9,979 3,142
9,254 3,578
10,271
13,617 0
10,131 5,387
10,533 2,024
10,806 2,534
8,716 3,122
9,923
11,516 4,050
9,847 2,341
9,687 10,287
7,811
11,532
9,164 9,502
10,574 3,194
9,525 2,190
11,046 1,360
11,458 1,694
9,995 1,058

8,375

State funding to
Charter Schools

3,958

3,958




APPENDIX 2
FACULTY SURVEY

New Hampshire Charter School Faculty Survey Response Key

“Note: respondent’s answer may include more than one selection.

1. Whatis your position on the Charter School faculty?
N/A
2. What textbooks or anchor learning materials do you use in the classroom?*
1-Textbooks
2-Other baoks
3-Software
4-internet
5-Other

3. Do you hold an (please circle): Associate Degree Bachelors Degree Masters Degree
Doctorate

1-Associate Degree
2-Bachelors Degree
3-Masters Degree
4-Doctorate

4, What professional development opportunities have you participated in during the past
year?

1-None = did not participate in any formal development
2-One = participated in one formal devetopment program
3-Two or three = participated in two or three formal development programs
4-Four = participated in four formal development programs
5-Five or more = participated in five or more format development programs
5. Do you feel that the academic programs offered in this school are successful? Explain.

1-Not successful - student not succeeding in any way

2-5omewhat successful - programs seem to attempt to help students, but are lacking

3-Successful - students successfully participating, meeting goats, have ownership of work.

4-Very successiul - fantastic, many opportunities to learn, flexible to meet individual needs, ncreased
SCCres

5-Completely successful - big ¢cihanges in students’ abilities, absolute success




6. How do teachers play a role in designing and implementing new academic programs?
1-Research individually ~ teacher creates program with autonomy and flexibility for ctass
2-Utitize Competencies - using teacher's individual strengths to create speciatized program
3-Meet with other staff and ¢come to consensus - group goals and cross reference

7. How are Individual Education Plans (IEPs) used in you curriculum planning? Please
explain/give examples.

t-Same as traditiona! schools
2-Specific [ndividual Learning Plans reflect [EP
3-Same accommodations used for all students in class
8. Are teachers involved in data analysis of summative testing?
1-Yes
2-Ng
If so, how is this data used in the classroom to improve instruction?
1-Focusing on weak areas far extra empbhasis
2-Measuring successful areas to support work heing done
3-Not applicable to subject area
9. wWhat rescurces do you have to support your teaching?
1-Parents
2-Support staff - in scheol
3-Community
4-Pubiications/books/websites
5-Funds

&-Equipment/technalogy

New Hampshire Charter School Faculty Survey Responses as Percentage
*Note: respondent’s answer may include more than one selection.
1. What is your position on the Charter School facuity?

See responses.

2. What textbooks or anchor learning materials do you use in the classroom?*

1-Textbooks 36%
2-Other books 20%
3-Software 12%
d-internet 32%

5-Other 0%




3. Do you hold an {please circle): Associate Degree Bachelors Degree Masters Degree
Doctorate ?

1-Associate Degree 24%
2-Bachelors Degree 41%
3-Masters Degree 35%
4-Doctorate 0%
4. What professional development opportunities have you participated in during the past
year?
1-None 6%
2-One 31%
2-Two o; three 31%
4-Four 13%
5-Five or more 19%

5. Do you feel that the academic programs offered in this school are successful? Explain.

1-Not successful 0%
2-Somewhat successful 12%
3-Successful - 41%
4-Very successful 41%
5-Completely successful 6%

6. How do teachers play a role in designing and implementing new academic programs?

1-Research individually 38%
2-Utitize Competencies S%
3-Meet with other staff and come to consensus 57 %

7. How are Individual Education Plans (IEPs) used in you curriculum planning? Please
explain/give examples.

t-Same as traditionat schools 47%
2-Specific ILPs reflect [EP 20%
3-Same accommodations used for all students in class 33%

8. Are teachers involved in data analysis of summative testing?
i-Yes 30%
2-No 60%

If so, how is this data used in the classroom to improve instruction?
I-Focusing on weak areas for extra emphasis 72%
2-Measuning successful areas Lo support work bemng done 14%,

3-Not appiicable to subject area 14%




9. What resources do you have to support your teaching?

1-Parents 21%
2-Support staff - in schoot 37%
3-Community 17%
4-Publicatiens/bocks/websites 17%
5-Funds 0%
6-Equipment/technology 8%

New Hampshire Charter School Faculty Survey, narrative answers

(GB)

Great Bay eLearning Charter School

{CA) = Cocheco Arts and Technology Academy

1. What is your position on the charter School faculity?
Social Studies Teacher (GB)

Technology integration {GB}

Admin/Qutreach Coordinator (GB)

Physics and Physical Science Teacher (GB)
Freshman math, Biology, Chemistry teacher (GB)
Instructional Aicte, Instructor (GB)

English Teacher/Advisor (GB)

Social Studies Teacher (CA)

History, Drama teacher (CA}

English [V Teacher (CA)

Science Teacher (CA)

Math Teacher (CA)

French Teacher {CA)

ASL Teacher (CA)

PT Art Teacher (CA}

Music Teacher (CA)

Guidance Counselor (CA)

2. What textbooks/or anchor learning materials do you use in the classroom?

Moaodle Classroon, £thical Decisions (from National WWII Museum), Unfinished Nation by Alan
Brinkley, A People’s History by Howard Zinn. (GB)

Use computer suftware and hardware and internet. (GB)
Bridges.com, Acinet.crg, <ollege and career-related sites. {GB)

Hewatt Conceptual Phy sics, physicsclassroom.com (GB)




Texthooks are only used as resources, as well as internet-based resources. Project-based iearning
using 7 element assignments and rubrics. Daly assignments to practice skills and vocabulary, (GB)

School projects, technoiogy, {i.e. computers, internet, Moodie}. (GB)
The Americans, A People's History of the United States. {CA)
Internet, library, Library of Congress, music and video. {CA)
Various novels, dictionaries, Strunk & white, SAT Prep. (CA)

Glencoe Biglogy and Earth Science texts. Exploring the Way Life Works by Jones and Bartlett
Publishing, Glencoe Physical Science, A Short History of Nearly Everything by Bill Bryson, An [nstant
Gutde to Weather by Grammercy, USAToday Weather page. (CA)

Standard type textbooks at this time. (CA)

Discovering French 1 CD, Discovering French il CD, Discovering French 11, songs pesters. (CA)
Master ASL (new book), Vista. (CA)

Music Theory, Practical Music Theory, Arranging for the Rhythm Section. (CA)

In gwidance we use SAT Prep books, College Profile books and the internet for college search. We
have used a variety of matenals for guidance curriculum. (CA)

3. Do you hold an (please circle): Associate Degree Bacheiors Degree Masters Degree
Doctorate ?

Masters Degree (GB)
Associate Degree (GB}
Associate Degree (GB)

Bacheiors Degree in Engineering, Masters Degree in Educational Leadership with principal K-12
Certificate. (GB)

Bachelors Degree in Biochemistry (GB)
Associate Degree (GB)

Masters Dagree (GB)

Bachelors Degree (CA)

Bachelors Degree (CA)

Masters Degree (CA)

Masters Gegree it Environmental Education (CA)
Bachelors Degree {CA)

Bachelors Degree (CA)

Associate Degree (CA)

Bachelgrs Degree - Masters degree to be completed in June '08 (CA}
Bachelors Degree (CA)

Masters Degree {CA}




4. What professional development opportunities have you participated in during the past
year?

AP 2 day workshop, BER Seminar, E-Portfolio Workshop, Completed Med. Program at Franklin Pierce
College. (GB)

Christa McAuliffe Conference and Workshops at SAULG (GB)
in school teacher workshops and staff meetings. (GB)
10 Days Summer Curriculum Development (GB)

Collins Writing, Differentiated Instruction - general & math specific, 7 Habits of Highly Effective
Teachers and Teens, [nterdisciplinary, post secondary plans, project based assessment, advisory
curriculum. {GB)

BGeC's Professional Development, Collins Writing Program, Differentiation Instruction, Project
Planning. (GB)

[ tonk three classes at UNH, attended 8 days of training for GBeCS this past year and had digital
partfolio training, {GB)

Varous staff development activities, standardized test workshops, E-Governance Seminar, Arts
{ntegration Workshop, graduate classes in portfolios, assessment, action research methods. (CA}

Grade Quick traiming {CA}

{ am currently doing AR, Vv Certification, [ took the Praxis H in English, [ have been researching
standards and AP requirements for courses. (CA)

Association for Exponential Education New England/Mid-Atlantic Co-regional Conference, (AEE)
International Conference in Little Rock. (CA)

Math-Transition from High School to College, self-teaching on use of graphing calculators,
Training for Sexual Harassment. {CA)
Waorkshops, Conference-Relate to Deaf. (CA)

[ am new to CATA this year, so | have not yet participated in much professional development, but we
did have training for the Grade Quick computer program. (CA)

Professional Reading Materials, Workshops related to Music, Music Teaching, and Music Business. (CA)
5. Do you feel that the academic programs offered in this school are successful? Explain

The academic programs wiil he as successful as the students want them to be. The first year of AP
produced three students who earned a score of 3. There were about a dozen who earned a 2
(possibly qualified). (GB)

Yes, [ think the flexibibty and opportunities for stucents are fantastic. | wish i'd gone to high school
here. (GB)

Yes. The ability of each teacher to reach the stucents at their personal levels and bring them to the
next tevel s as important and happens as often as breathing does within thesa walls. (GB)

Yes. Beyond the core courses, students have a broad range of opportumities to pursue indwidual
learming interests. (GB)

Yes., We are reaching students who have been told that they aren't capable of learning by past
educaticnal establishments and they en)oy learning now. I[n additian, they are making progress
socizlly and emotienally. (GB)

Yes, because of the excellent professional staff and its willingness to do what’'s needed, the students
benent. {(GB)




Absclutely! Kids keep coming back for more and often bring siblings. NWEA scores have increased
too! (GB)

Yes. Students are active as participants in the creation of assessments. This gives them ownership of
thair learning and rncentive to be active within the community. Additionally, the smaller class sizes
enable teachers to have more time with each student. Our curriculum works with our students, not
the other way around. {CA}

The academic programs at the school are very successful, students are challenged and they are proud
of their school. CATA provides an environment where students are able to use ther individual skills to
get the most cut of their education. (CA}

Yes. Students are able to articulate clearly. They participate in class discussions. They do quality
work. They feel empowered in their learning. (CA)

To the best of my knowledge, yes, but [ have only been working here for a few short weeks. (CA)}

Yes. Lock at where fast year's graduates have gone compared to the high school [ came from. A little
more sucgess for my students, (CA)

Yes. Individual assessments, {CA)
Yes - students learning. (CA)

Yes. The small size of school allows students to have more attention from the teachers. Because of
this, teachers are able to challenge and explain academics to students in a way that each student

understands, which creates students who understand concepts and can discover areas on their own,
{CA}

Yes. They allow the students to learn in an atmasphere in which they are comfortable and excel in
content knowledge. (CA)

Yes. (CA)
6. How do teachers play a role in designing and implementing new academic programs?
We have meetings and everyone's suggestions are always considered. (GB)

We all meet on a requiar basis and decide an the major integratec projects each class level will be
responsible for exhibiting. {GB)

Partictpation in the 10 days summer professional development. We also have autonomy to make
curricular decisions, (GB)

Teachers here are where many of the new academic programs start. A teacher has an idea and brings
it to the principals, or the staff as a whole, and things get dane. Likewise, the principal will have an
idea anc the whole staff will work to implement it. (GB)

There ts a team environment here at GbeCS. Everyone's input is valued, appreciated and
implemented. (GB)

vie all design our awn curricula-we sculpt around competencies. (GB)

Teachers are encouraged te waork coltaboratively and, provided the state curriculum frameworks are
the basis, there is a qreat deal of autonomy for the individual teacher. Teachers also facus on what

works [or the particular group of students. Again, students are active participants in the creation
process. (CA}

Teacherg are very active in designing the academic programs at CATA, With the use of the NH
framework, CATA teachers design the majority of the curricuia used here, (CA)

The teachers design the curniculum. (CA)




I am designing my own curricula in 4 classes. Also, we meet together often to discuss cross-
disciplinary units. (CA)

Collaboration that is going on and expanding. Just starting, will slowly evolve and imprave. {CA)
Meetings, research. {(CA)
Great. (CA)

As mentioned in the question above, teachers are able to individually challenge and help students in
ways that make sense to them. The small staff size allows for flexibility and colaboration, because of
this, we are able to act as facilitaters for our students learning and development. (CA)

Teachers are given full centrol of designing courses according to the needs/wants of the school and in
keeping with the mission. {CA}

7. How are Individual Education Plans (IEPs) used in you curriculum planning? Please
explain/give examples.

with most of the identified students’ TEPS, there are many accommaodations that are repeated. 1 work
Lo incorporate those accommadations into the classroom (make them a regular aspect of the class).
An example weuld be hoew U hand out paper copies of directions because some students need the
wnitten directions, so [ provide written directions {or everyone. (GB)

We try to accommodate kids with [EPs using technology such as festival digstal screen reading or
audacity voice recorder. {GB)

They're used to help us help the student and to consult with other staff to reach the student’s goats.
(GB)

I work hard to include accommodation in project/lesson pfanning. Having fewer students in classes
enables more attention for each student. (GB)

[EPs work best with self-mativated students and, although we are always open to a student
developing an IEP at any time, the reality is that some have a difficult time following through despite a
teacher's best efforts. Projects are atways flexibie enough to tnclude choice and allow for
modifications and instruction is differentiated. (G8)

They are used to determine their needs, weaknesses, and areas that they have expressed interestsin,
1.8, project management and entrepreneurism are twe areas covered by myself, with the intent they
understand core disciphnes, practices, processes and what 1s necded to start and run a business. {GB)

We do Individual Learning Plans (ILPs), and they dc help us meet |[EP needs. However, | use
mformation in [EPs to gear instruction and lessons. {GB)

l view the [EP as a tool to help me to help the child be succassful. The [EP identifies strengths and
weaknesses for the chitd and allows me to understand how that chitd's mind works. 1 develop
strategies within my teaching that incorperate the methods established in the IEP. What's good for
the special education student 1s geod for all students. (CA)

Students are often offered 3 variety of ways to express that they have iearned the materiai. Teachers
halp students incarporate their IEPs into their assignments and class work, At times, [ have given
students notes before class time so they can copy down the notes that they are expected to have In
thetr notebooks. (CA)

They are a part of the everyday interactions [ have with those students. (CA)

[t's almost as if we treat all students like they have an [EP. For instance, assessments are designed to
accommuodate many learning styles or to be done in different ways depending upon the student,
Spacific [EPs that I have seen so far Just bave me checking for understanding on homework
dassignments and making sure 1 address behavioral issues one on one. (CA)




[ tend to treat all my students as if they have formal [EPs: extended time, fewer problems on a
particular assignment, modifications if ill, anything i can do to accommodate, yet keep standard digits.
(CA)

Focus on students - individual approach. (CA)

My classes allow for all students to excel an an individual basis. Students are challenged to.improve
their art skidls and complete projects that are challenging to them. There are no reguired artistic skiils
for students to live up to but their own, Because of thus, [EPs could easily be accommodated in my
class. (CA)

Each student develops their Ecucational Plan far their time at the school. The small class size allows
teachers to address individual fearning styles and abilities and help them succeed in class. (CA)

8. Are teachers involved in data analysis of summative testing? If so, how is this data used
in the classroom to improve instruction?

We are continuing work on integrating the NWEA scores, (specifically the Lexile scores), and using
those scores to strengthen the weaknesses of the students. As a staff, we are also working on
collecting academic and non-academic data (attendance preparedness, etc.) to repart on students’
end of the semester reports. (GB)

Yes, students with reading needs recerve more bime in reading class. (GB)

Yes., We meet to discuss results. The good scores make us feel like we did something right!

Otherwise, it heips us Lo determine where we need to put more emphasis or try something different.
(GB)

! have not used it as much in the past because science has never been tested, but | ptan to use the
math infermation in my classes once It 1s available. Problem solving tends to be a big weakness
anyway and I focus a lot on it \n math and science. {GB)

This 1s done by George McKenney atang with the staff and co-principals. (GB)

George McKenney {Specal Education) and I took a look at NWEA scares and implemanted a Lit. Lab,
We also looked at data to help students select books. (GB)

As a coilective, not yat. On an individual basis, definitely [ try to understand what the test is
evaluating (ex-reasoning skilts). When I view the results, [ try to consider what in my teaching
relates ta the skills being tested. I then adapt my teaching to focus/concentrate on areas needing
improvement (as defined by test scores). (CA}

Students’ needs that are apparent from the data are addressed in the work, hands on and
technolegical opportunities. (CA)

[ have not been yet. {CA}

[ don’t have experience with this yet (only ermployed for 3 weeks so far). {CA)

Little in my part for standardized testing. [ use my own data frem my own tests more. (CA)
Yes, but not me. (CA)

Student improve. (CA)

As [ am now this year, [ am not sure how this works, (CA)

As a part-ume faculty, i am not sure abaut this, (CA)

9. What resources do you have to support your teaching?

1 am fortunate to have digital cameras, vide¢ cameras and editing equipment, video conference
equipment, all kinds of graphic arts and constructive scftware, | am alse thrilted with the flexibility to
be able to switch gears when appropriate {i.e. rushing o set up a homemade weather station). (GB)




The staff 1s amazing. There are probably over 100 years of education and experience that is shared

and a commumty of supportive parents. We also have a netwark in Exeter that is very supportive of
charter schools. (GB)

The staff, professional development, a great community that helps whenever it is asked, helpful
parents, educational publications, my educational background and my age/expenences. (GB)

Co-principal, SAU, peer teachers, community volunteers, (GB)

what don‘t [ have? Truthfully!! {GB)

Great colleagues, interested students, support:ve families. The prime direction here is to do what
works for the students. Each of us brings different skills to the table and we build off each other. The
only resource painfully tacking is maney. {CA)

Teachers have a variety of electronic devices such as projectors, audio and video machines and the
opticn of student teacher assistants in many classes. (CA)

[ am a part of teacher workshops and staff meetings. [ have a mentor teacher who sits in on some of
my classes and with whom [ exchange professional advice. (CA)

A fantastic and supportive teaching staff, a fantastic and supportive administration, an active and
involved board, active and involved parents, a beautiful and understanding girlfriend. (CA)

Fellow teachers, administration, students, parents: they all help in many ways. (CA)
Internet, cther French teachers, books... (CA)
Internet, books, ASL Club. (CA}

[ have the support of CATA, faculty, administration. I also feel iike | have the support of the Board
and orgamizations like Friends of CATA. (CA}

[ have the professional community, other qualified educators, admunistration, and any other vast
amount of materials and sources available toe any education. (CA)




PARENT SURVEY

Mew Hampshire Charter School Parents Survey Respanse Percentages

*Note: each question response may apply to muitipte key answers

How well and in what ways 1s the charter school meeting the educational needs of your ¢hild?

1-Not welt 2%
Z2-Well 69% .
3-Very well 29%

How does the school communicate with you about your chiid's progress and school retated
Issues?*

1-E-mail 35%
Z2-Telephone 17%
3-In person 23%
4-Progress report/report card 25%

What support does the school offer your child?~

t-Individual Learning Plans 2%
2-Guidance counselor 11%
3-Speciabist/therapy 7%
4-Non-specific 67 %
S-N/A 13%

What special resources {pecple, learning equipment, funds) does the school have that help
your child to succeed?*

1-Staff members 53%
Z2-Technology, equipment 19%
3-Special emphasis {music, arts, etc.) 23%
4-Funds 3%
5-0thar 2%
How do parents support the schoal?=
1-Financially 17%
2-Volunteering 74%
3-Expernse/specialized instruction 6%
4-Other 3%




Are there Community Partners who support this school?

1-¥es 38%
2-No 0%
3-Unsure 62%

New Hampshire Charter School Parent/Community Partner Survey, narrative responses

1. How well and in what ways is the charter school meeting the educational needs of your
child?

This school meets all the academic standards as the public Exeter High School; however, because of
the small size of the school and classes, the discussions that take place during the subject classes
delve into the subject matter similar to college level classes. The staff are willing to go as far (high)
as the students’ interest in the subject areas. {GB)

GBEC has provided my daughter the opportunity to see what her own work lcoks like at the exemplary
levels. She s allowed Lo address content through modalhties that appeat to or interest her. (GB)

My son s a sentar at the school. He joinad this school when it opened and this is the first educational
setting that he has been in where atl of fus needs are being met, (GB)

My child was reluctant from day one to attend the high school because of the size and
bultying/cligueness of the students. She 1s much happier at the charter and, as a result, is doing well
in school. She s currently being treated for social anxiety. That may have been an underlying i1ssue
in middle school. (GB)

[t better be able to answer this question after we get further into the present term. I[n the whole, I'm
happy with my son’'s progress during the past year. ['m interested to see how the turnover in faculty
at the school affects the educational experience. {SC)

The ¢harter school is doing extremely well meeting our child’s educational needs. Now starting her
third year here, we see evidence of this maost graphically in her math progress; she left her former
schoal getting “extra heip” in math. This year, she placed a grade level ahead in math. We see a
very confident student emerging in her, and attnbute this largely to the small environment, inctusive
and interconnected school culture and curriculum focusing on art integration and questioning spint.
{5C}

Our family feels that the charter school has offered and provided our child with a rich curricuium. He
has been given opportunities that were naot available in our local public schoel.  Spanish, lets of
wnting, sctence projects and soaal studies project. They have access to more books on art, social
studies and science than other public schools. (5C)

So far, we have only had 6 days of school, so it’s hard to assess. The math work seems unchallenging
<0 far, but knowing that we will be worked with on an ingividual basis s exciting and promising. {SC)

The school has provided a good balance of challenge and nurture. Qur son’s test scores are better
than average, and he s young for his grade. Most impartantly, he continues to love learning. (SC)

Offering an individuahzed approach to arts-based education, children are listened to actively and with
enthusiasm, letting my child "bloom wheare she 15 planted”. {SC}

I will attach a testimomnial addressing this particular question. At the traditicnal public scheol, they
would not_be allowed to work at an accelerated level in math, which she is at the SCS. Emma needs
to be challenged in order to engage. When underchallenged, she becomes etther bored or anxious.
{50)




We are very pleased with our experience with the charter school. Qur sen is getting more
indwvidualized attention, and for the first time, he is being challenged academically. {SC)

My children are both engaged in their tearming. Neither ¢hild mentions they are bored. They come
home talking about the things they are learming with enthusiasm. (SC)

My chitd 13 more confident in her academic and social abilities than in her previous public school. She
is more comfortable setting forth an &ffort where the expectation is greater on her. (SC)

We are new to the school and so very, very happy with our decision. Son comes home very happy
ana sparked with energy. (5C)

Cnly one week of school so far, but..so far, so good. I[ndividualized attention, support for difficulty
transittoming to 1 grade provides acagemic challenges, love the homework ['ve seen so far. {SC)

I am happy that Erik likes the school. (SC)

I think there 15 more of an opportunity for growth, the child can learn at his or her own speed. (SC)

We feel that Seacoast Charter Schoal provides an excellent education for our daughter Hannah, The
arts based approach to learning has successfully engaged her and helped her to regain an interest in
school work in general. Art and math are Hannah's favorite classes. Hannah is very strong in math
and has indicated that she 1s encouraged to excel as far as her skills can take her.

She has told us that she feels comfortable asking guestions of her teacher, and when she does, her
teacher wiil not just give her the answer, but work with her to come up with the right answer. We
also feel that the Seacoast Charter Schooj is very effective at providing a “safe” environment for our
daughter by dealing effectively with behavioral issues between students. (SC)

Dual classes (1/2} allow my child to work in some of the areas that she excels in. {SC)

Very welll They allow my child to have a PEP {Personal Education Plan) which gives Aim flexibitity to
learn at his own pace, (SC)

Small class size, curriculum based on what [ used in hame schooling {Core Knowledge Series), arts
based currrculum s a plus, music 1s a bonus. {SC)

I am thrilled with my happy 3™ grader, happy to go to schooi again,
[ think some communication is needed, but we are happy with the changes. (SC)

CATA 15 meeting the educational needs of my child exceptionally well. They provide the ingividualized

direct instruction and small class size my son needs, but did not receive in our local public school.
{CA)

Flexibility in meeting my child’s strengths an weaknesses - For instarce: my daughter, as a freshman,
was able to attend a ¢lass with seniors in a freld where she has strong talents, while modifications
wereg made to accommadate difficulties with spelling in another class-school has been VERY
responsive. (CA)

The charter schaaol 1$ meeting the education needs of my child very well. It is the perfact environment
tor her learming style. She s succeeding so much more than she was in the larger Dover High Schoal,
The teachers are able to provide maore individual attention as well as create lesson plans that can
facus on the varmous needs of the students in order to complete the subject with a superb
understanding oy the student. (CA)




My child is receiving more of an education than I could ask for. They (CATA) have put their heart and
soul into all of the kigds” education. (CA)

The Cocheco Arts and Technology Academy has Individualized Personal Education Plans that allow my
daughter to select classes that she feels comfortable with. She wishes to pursue an education as a
Special Education Teacher, yet she reaily enjoys drama and would like to pursue school opportunities
to be part of their productions. The school has a drama club, and she was an active participant in
their spring musical. She does better with a small ¢lassroom environment, which the school provides.
If she needs extra help in any subject, the teachers make themselves available to the students during
school and after school. The school system that our community sends their high school students to is
a huge environment, where she would go from being one of 75 graduating 8'" graders, to a freshman
class of over 400. She appreciates the encouragement she gets in her small school environment,
where the students treat each other as equals and there are not so many cliques. The classes for
each subject have a maximum of 20 students. As a CATA student, she has to volunteer in the
community for so many hours in her hgh schoot years and she volunteers for the special Olympics
and has at the hospitai which she enjoys doing and probably would not have had thought to do if it
was not for CATA’s encouragement to do volunteering. She establishes more self-confidence and self-
asteem In the small classroom settings at the Charter School, than I believe she would n the huge,
city school environment. Last gquarter of the 06-07 school year, there was a lot of worry about if they
would have a school of their choice to attend this year, pending on financing. It was a hands on
learmng 1n government for them that the students were very much a part of. Mostly, [ applaud the
teaching staff and administration of the CATA community for keeping the students focused on learning
and maintaining their gragas through all the worry. Good job CATA. (CA)

The smaller classes have given her the apportunity for more one on one interaction with the teacher
and other students. (CA)

At Spaulcing, the peer pressure was for the children to appear not to care too much, not to get
involved, not to have any self-respect, etc. [ don't mean to imply that the teachers didn't care, but
sometimes they seemed maore intent on letting children fail than succeed. At CATA, it seems that my
child wants to succeed and that peer expectation is success, not failure. (CA)

CATA classrooms are very small and that allews for a lot more one on one communication. To me,
this 15 one of the best ways te iearn. The material 1s taught in a mcre creative way, which keeps my
daughter from being bored. {CA}

My child’s needs are met very well, better than the traditional public school she was attending. Her
needs are not only met educationally, but emoticnally as well, (CA)

CATA 1s allowrng my daughter to be herself and able to grow at the speed and diraction she neads for
herself. They allow freedom of expression with enough guidance to ha!p them flourish. (CA}

Very weli. The courses this year are appropriate for my daughter’s n2eds and interests. The teachers
are canng and attentive to her as a whole persan. (CA}

Cocheca Arts and Technology Academy (CATA) meets my daughter’s needs by prowviding a strong
college preparatory academuc program within a caring and nurturing community, My daughter has
strang mathematic skills which are recognized and challenged by the mathematics teacher. In
subjects that do not come as easily, my daughter receives guidance and support as necessary. | am

impressed that each student has a Personal Education Plan, created by the student in concert with
staff and parents. (CA)




Smaller class size 1s wonderful for her. It's great to have more one on one with teachers. [t enables
them to get to know all the students. She loves schoal. The only area she's weak in is math. ['ve
been hetping her. (CA)

My child is receving the individual attention from smaller class sizes that she needs and is learning
with various methods for non-traditional styles of education. (CA)

CATA has exceeded my expectations in meeting the educational needs for my daughter. She loves
schoof, warks hard at her academucs and even with a language learning disability, she does the same
work as her peers because of her teachers, (CA)

CATA provides a wonderful opportunity to learn academics and te do arts and performing arts where
she excels in. Also, the small class size provides opportunity for individual help. [f CATA was not
here, my oldest daughter may not have continued with high school. A very safe learning
envirgonment. (CA}

Emily has progressed very well in her 2 years at CATA. She has come a long way in her math skills
and loves the school community feeling., The small ¢classes are a help to her as well as the availability
of the teachers when she needs extra hetp. (CA)

I feel my son’s needs are being met. [ notice he 1s getting a reasonable amount of homework {which |
feel 15 good preparation for college) and he has challenging assignments, where he is able to use his
creative side. (CA}

The charter school is helping my child with the smaller classroom setting. Alsg, [ feel the teachers are
more invoived with their education. Also, a child that picks a charter school is more interested in their
education. (CA)

Very well, (CA)

Making classes interesting to her with things that interest her. Harder academics for her becorne
understandable. Due to sma!l class, more one on ane as well as stucent help, (CA)

Smaller mixed-age classes, personal connection to teachers and kids helps with motivation to go to
school and to do homework. {CA)

My child feels very comfortable at this school due to the small ¢lass size, which helps him feel more
able to tully parucipate in the learning process at school. The teachers seem to enjoy their work,
which relays a_joy of learning to the student! (CA}

It 1s challenging him to be the best he can be. It is alse allowing him to be himself, and to use his
talents. [f gives him a variety of ways in which to learn, (CA)

CATA meets Katie’s needs with small ctass size, individualized attention and excellent staff. The
students are required to take responsinlity for their own learning, participate as a group, and follow a
stringent educaticnal plan according to NH frameworks. (CA)

Encourages self-discipline - to be the best person/student to their ability. {CA)

This schoal is meeting my c¢hiid’s needs because they are concerned and flexible. Teachers are
avallabte to meet with parents and teachers can give support academically in classes with a smail
number of students to teackhers, (CA)

A great cuestion .wish it was easlly answered. [ have a son in the second grade and a daughter in
kindargarten. After spendirg a year in the ¥z classroom he was no further ahead with his reading than
he was when he began first grade., This has been addressed with his teacher and the director of the
sehool to no avail, Towards the end of last spring, my wife and [ took it upon ourselves ta supplement




our son’s education with a reading program at home. Since we have been reading to him since he
came home from the hospital (when he was born), this was an easy transition. He is on the cusp of
being able to read whole (simple) sentences due to our ditigence, His increased abikties have little or
no bearing on what 15 happening in the classroom, [an (our son) has loved math since he began to
have a general 1dea of numbers and how to manipulate them. The school has increased his love for

math i so far as showing him different ways to use math, but he kas been mostly seif taught in that
area.

There is no parent/teacher organization to bring concerns to. The Parent’s Council at SVCS may have
been initially created to handie such concerns; however, it has never been used as such. [f you take
your concerns to the director (Matora Fiory) and you are not satisfied with the results or tack thereof,
there is no other aption. That is a major problem. My wife having been the Secretary for the Parent's
Councit thes past year has stated that at best they were drawing in five or six parents {and this
inclided the officers) to those meetings, The Parent’s Council at SVCS is only there to raise funding
for the school. Anyone telling you different 1s spreading misinformation.

Cur daughter, Ashton, is only four years old and already in kindergarten. 1 realize that in this aspect,
we are fucky. She s highly advanced for her age. She too 1s almost reading simple sentences and
doing math. If we were in a "standard” school, she would be at home, not at school. Sadly, she is
already bored at SVCS. {5V)

2. How does the school communicate with you about your child’s progress and school
related issues?

Quarterly progress raports prior to report cards. Narratives on the report cards. Emails and school
newsletters for school-related events. All staff very accessible by e-mail with prompt response time,
(GB)

Communication 15 exceltent  Regular progress reports contan not only proficiency levels, but also
narradtives that describe progress. Email/phone exchanges occur regularty, (GB)

The communication 1s constant - ematl, phane calls, letters, progress reports and report cards. (GB)

The school 13 wonderful with cemmunication via regular emails and phone calls from teachers for the
more unmediate ssues. Detailed feedback is received for all academic classes. (GB)

Emails arrive regularly and my son also brings home handouts. (SC)

Qur cemmumicatien from the school is predeminantly delivered via email, which works well for our
family. Ongoing progress is cgmmunicated through the progress reports and frequent conversations
with the teachers and head of school, (5C)

Emai, phone and fots of one on one contact. You ar@ welcomed at anytime in the school. Phone
calls, emaits are returned quickly. Three times a year, we receive a detailed report on out child’s
progress. Also, each chid has a personal educational plan with parent input. (SC)

So far email has been helpful, That's probably the most canvenient channel of communication right
now. (5C)

Teachers and head have been clear, specific and responsive te all questions and concerns, (SC)

Easity - at carpool, inside school. Anytime a parent has 3 question/concern, Seacpast Charter
rosponds very quickly, (SC)




There are educationai plan meeting and trimester reports. [ have been satisfied with communication
as H.C.S. and teachers are responsive and readily available te address any concerns 1 might mention.
{50)

We are brand new to the school with only 6 days so far under our belt. We haven’t ad a chance to
axperence what the communication s going t¢ be like, {5C)

In person, via phore, emad and letters. (SC)

This vear, the scheol is excelling in their communication to parents, not only in the classroom, but as
a school in general. We are very happy with the increase communication. {(SC)

via email. Parent newslatters and handouts in the folder he brings home everyday. (SC)
School has communicated daily re: adjustment to schoo! issues. Very heipful!l (SC)
Email. (SC)

Good so far - the schoal year s still young. (SC)

Communication with the school happens through several channels, We receive frequent operationat
distmbutions by paper that Hannah brings home in her packets. We also receive emails with general
information about upcoming school events and requirements. Emait is effective for us on a more one
on one basis as well. Qn several occasions we have interacted with Hannah's teachers through email
regarding specific 1ssues. We have also recewved personal phone calls from the Director and other
staff on various i1ssues that required more immediate attention.

[n addition, we are encouraged to contact teachers directly by phone (at any time), or to come into
school whenever we need. Her teacher has aiso sent home documentation about her approach to
homewark and a parent survey to capture specific information about our daughter. (5C)

Sull @ work In progress. (sC)

Very cpen communication, via personal interaction, phene calls and email. (SC)

via email, so far. (SC)

Emall, phore, rates home, which [ sermetimes do not get for a few days. (SC)

The school communicates via emad and meetings about my child’s progress and issues. (CA)
Regular emails/newsletters, narrative assessiments, parent/teacher conferences quarterly. {CA)

We have saverai methods of communication. Several timas a year we will get a narrative from the
teachers where each teacher will write about the progress of the student, where the strong points are
and the areas that need further work. Shortly after receiving these narratives we have mancatory

meetings with the teachers to discuss., Wa also receive report cards several times throughout the
year.

[ personally have found all of the teachers and administrators open and available either in person, via
email or phone to discuss any cencarns or suggestions [ may have, (CA)

Daily, «f I need 1it. Anytime [ have a guestion, concern or even a good word, [ always send an email cr
call and | always have been responded back to. (CA)

CATA sends oul reports {0 parents quarterly, Email i1s frequently used for upcoming events. The
school’'s website provides much of the nformation that we need to know what meetings are coming
up. Twice a year, the parents are imvited in for conferences with the teachers that our students attend




with us and are a part of so that they may answer any information that both parents and teachers
might want tc hear. Anytime that there is any problem with my student (illness, missed bus, no lunch
money) 1 am rontactad immediately by office personnel. If my dacghter is not doing well in a class, [
~ilb get an emall frem that teacher, and have an opportunity to sit down with the teacher and
daughter to help correct the problem, (CA)

Yes, they are very informative. We receive emails and have progress meetings with the teachers,
{CA)

1 don't know as before this survey. [ don't know If | have received any communications regarding my
son’s progress. [ am not even sure if there is going to be a parent/facuity night. {CA)

This is my daughter’s first year, so | have not had much contact with the teachers yet, The
administrative staff has been most helpful to me as a new parent via email, etc. (CA)

Through assessments, emails, notes, telephone calls, meetings, and conferences. There is no problem
with commumicaton; | am very well informed of all the goings-an in my daughter’s school. {CA)

The CATA staff has heen wonderful in meetings our needs. | had a few teacher/parent meetings last
vear at CATA and alf of my encountars through many years at various schools and teachers, CATA was
the top of the st with suggestions, being proactive and concerns. (CA)

Progress notes. Narrative assessments, Face to face meetings. Phone calls and mailings for special
situatians. (CA)

The schoel communicates formally through report cards and narrative reports. These are
individualized communications and speak to my daughter's particular goals. Mandatory parent-
teacher-student conferences accur twice a year. However, the teachers are available if issues arise,
Teachers wili call or emad me. Monthly BOT meetings are open to the public. Parents are welcomed
to attend and speak at these. Email communication with Board members and CATA staff is
encouraged. (CA)

Progress reports, phone calls and meetings with parents and studert with teachers if problems arise.
(CA)

My child 1s new to CATA this year. So far, [ have received emails and phone calls. (CA)

They have quarterly parent/teacher/student conferences. [ think it's great to have the student at the
conference so that they toa are informed of what they need to improve on and mostly received
appraisal fer what they have achieved and successful at. (CA)

They use written reports of my child’'s progress and direct communication with the teachers. School
related issues 1s not communicated as well as could be. But this year so far has seemed to have
wmproved thru emails. (CA)

By the narrative reports and conferences with the teachers. Also, we have been in touch with the
guwdance counselor when the need arose. (CA)

[ have got an email and a phone call before school started along with all the correct paperwork to be
filled out. {CA)

wWe have jst started this year, but whenever anything has come up, they are very responsive in
commurnicating amth us, (CA)

Emait. (CA)




The whale schoot commurnicates with me very well and listens, tries hard to make changes for cur
daughter as well as speaking/listemng very well. {CA)

Wwe're new, so not sure yet. Meetings...(CA)

We have had a school meeting with my son's teachers and also communicate via email and homework
assignments are posted on the website. Also, due to having to provide gur own transportation, we
have contact with the school and staff on a daily basis. (CA)

Through mail and email. They are right on top of the situation. If there Is anything that needs to he
addressed, it :s done iImmediately. (CA)

There are frequent emaiis, progress reports, and mandatory teacher-parent-student conferences., We
also have board and parent meetings. (CA)

Via mad - updated progress every few months. {CA)

Email occurs between teacher to parent, parent to parent and parent to administrator on a regular or
as needed basis. They have parent meetings scheduled several times a year, progress reports at mid

term, and at the end of the term. You receive a great deal of information concerning progress.
Homework is online. (CA)

There 15 one Parent/Teacher corference each semester. ['m assuming that if your child is falling
hehind then you would receive a phone call or note from the teacher. We don't really knaw. {SV)

3. What support does the school offer our child?

[ndividualized learning plans for special interests of my child. All staff, teachers and administrators
know my child’s personal interests. My son had a sleep disorder and missad a lot of classes during the
year. That foliowing summer, teachers and staff helped hum make up his work, came 1n to teach him,
emailed assignmernts, corrected them, all without pay! (GB)

Academic Support. Career/college/post secondary planming. They know my daughter - are in tune
with her needs -~ academic, social and emotional, (GB)

| have not found one yet! (GB)

it 15 the incividual support and flexibility of the curriculum that allows that allows My chitd to be
successful. | know my daughter’s teachers on a personal level and they know my daughter in a way
that would not be possible in the larger environment. (GB)

Safety in dropping off and picking up, information about activities available outside of schoot. {SC)

Our child does not receive any special services in the literal sense, but she does receive the benefit of
caring leachers and support staff who have known her for the past two years. In her third year at
SCS, she feels hike she 15 an important member of her school community, which is a wonderful gift,
(5C)

They offer one on ane help. They also have an aid in the room. The children are encouraged to call
the school or email with ary questions on therr homework. They then meet with the child i the
morning. The teachers aiso work with the family to support the chiid. The school alsa offers reading
ard ariing mentors. (SC)

Emotional support 15 ahat we we're saeking, and we are hopeful that with the current foundations of
sdclal/emotional lessons, our child will grow to be strong and healthy emotionally. {SC)




The school does an excellent job of supporting the learning progess, including the making of and
learning from mistakes. {(5C)

A multi-dimensional educational experience that teaches the whole child, not just a “test-now” robotic
approach. Listening, hands on, active community. (SC)

Please see testimonial attached. (SC)
Again, we are so new we haven't got the feel yet for the level of support we'll receive for cur son. (SQC)

Each child has multiple teachers, i.e. their regular daily teacher, music and art teachers and the other
staff helpers. (SC)

Not really, or unaware. (5C)

Any we would probably need. 1 feel they are very attentive - if I email/leave a message, someone
gets back to me very quickly. {SC)

Emotiondl support re: transition. (SC)
FM System. (SC)
[t s a canng environment. {(SC)

The school allows students to grow at their own pace. For instance, in math, Hannah has indicated
how, when she finishes her in-¢class math work early, she is allowed to pick out any of the "math
games” available in the class so that she continues Lo learn more advanced topics.

Individuality is encouraged and supported with the SCS arts based zurriculum. Hannah feels that she
has a voice within the way the school operates, both through the town hall meeting as well as through
individual teractions with teachers and administrators-so much so, that she feels comfortable
running for school vice president while only in second grade. {SC)

Too soon to answer this. (SC)
[t tailors its support to the needs of the child, which vary from child to chiid. (SC)
My child receives tutoring from ane of his teachers. {(CA)

Guidance counselors are avaiiable freguently on an informal (sitting in at lunch, 2t¢.), as well as
appointment basis, Teachers are simiarly availlable and offer their time generousty, There has been a
whole hearted cffort to work with my child as a whole person, encampassing emotional needs, outside
interests, and her parsonabity, as well as academ:c needs. {CA)}

The administrative department is awesome. The suppart that they offer not only to my chitd, but to
the rest of school, 1s unbelievable. The guidance department 15 great also, making sure my child's
needs are met with classes as well as persaonal levet. The teachers are awesome as well. The ratio in
the classroom 1s what helps more intense learning. (CA}

CATA offers two gurdance counselors, who are there to guide the students academically. The teachers
are ail very academicaily supportive and usualty join the students for lunch, where the conversation is
light, developing relationships with their students on other levels. Most of the teachers are invelved in
after schoot pregramming - Student Government, Jam Club, Drama Club, Piano Lessons, etc. The
schoal director knows each and every student by first name, and they all feal comfertabie enough with
her to confide in her, when various situations arise for them. The schoel has found a way to offer
lunch to the students through the Barrington School lunch program. When there is interest in certam




drama, music or art programs, the schocl trigs to find instructors to teach the class. The students
have a loud voice at CATA. (CA)

My daughter is supported by the school by way of mentoring her work and progress she is making.
An example would be her struggling with one class and the teacher and guidance counselor helped her
get into a class that was better for her to be in. {CA)

I don't know. Other than he feels he can be himself and, actually enjoys going to CATA, 1 guess it
suppoerts his dream of being a performer and working in the music industry. (CA)

The teachers are available after school for additional help if needed. (CA)

The school offers her whatever support she needs. If she doesn't comprehend the work of if she
struggles with a particular problem the teachers are very willing to help her better understand. If she
reeds extra help, they are willing to stay after school to give her the help. [f the work 1S too easy for
her, they are willing to work with her to make it more chalienging. The teachers work with the kids to
heip them to learn at their pace and to build on their personal strengths. (CA)

I think it would be better to ask what support they don't offer.....nona, which | have found. (CA)

Teachers seem to be readily avaladle for any extra help needed. Student government and other
extracurricular activities stimulate her interests and help develop her skills. (CA)

My daughter recewves academic support in mastering core subject areas. She recerves teacher
support in identifying and enhancing areas of particular interest. The whole person is important at
CATA. The fact that my daughter loves drama and ASL is seen as impaortant by the students and the
teachers. Encouragement to develop academic and artistic talents comes from students, teachers and
administrative staff. Our family recently had a health crisis that was known by the school community.
My daughter received emotional support during that difficult pericd. This made all the difference to
her and allowed her to function and participate at CATA. She is not anonymous at CATA. (CA)

Encouragmg and a nurturing vibe. She loves her classes and her tzachers. Everyone is available to
her if she’s in need of help, {CA)

With a learning disability, the small classes help my daughter to do very well and achieve her
maximum learning potentiat, (CA)

Individual aid by teachers, after school clubs and guidance counseling provide a safe learning
environment, (CA)

Good learning experience through caring and involved teachers. Smaller classes. Good community
feeling and respect for ail. (CA)

Jesse feels extremely comfortable with the staff and students as well. ! feel Jesse has many
opporturuties to let his passion (music) shine. He is alsg mvolved i student government and Jam
Club, so tha support of extracurncular activities is strong at CATA, {CA)

Smaller classroom, if she has a question, her needs are met, {CA)
Whatever she needs so far this year. (CA)

Support in her individual needs, which 1s amazing, as long as she talks to someone about her needs.
As well as a few teachers find aut new neads that she has and have te make it easier for her. (CA)

The school has been very willing {6 accommeodate any concerns we may have about my son - offering
teachers_avalable ta give students extra_telp with_difficult subjects if requested. The guidance




department has also expressed in the meeting we had that if my son has any concerns, to please
speak up, (CA)

Adwisery, emad, after schacel, lunch. Keeps him up to date by signing planner. {CA)

The entire faculty has been very supportive of my daughter. She works at her own pace, yet
challenged to work beyond her comfort level. (CA)

Supportive teachers for the most part. After school help when needed. Guidance counselor. {CA)

There I1s academic assistance from teachers and there are counselors avaitable for emotional support
or direction. As of next week, my son will have the support of a 504. (CA)

Qur son has Sensory Processing Disorder that manifests itself in many (almost) invisible ways. We
were very lucky that last year there was a staff member who is an O.T. and picked it up shortly after
school began. Unfortunately there have been good intentions on behalf of the staff, but due to lack of
foliow-through on their behalf there has been little progress outside those strides my wife and | have

made on our own. Follow-through seems to be limited or nonexistent in regards to aur son and his
challenges. (SC)

4. What special resources (people, learning equipment, funds) does the school have that
help your child to succeed?

Both my children at GCeCS were “coded” during their entire school years, including their freshman
year at charter school, They received special ed support and accommodations at GBeCS from the on
site special ed teacher and all staff followed the TEP for accommodgations. After their first year at
5BeCs, they no longer receive services because the nature of the teacher support for ali the students
15 meeting the needs of my chiid. (GB)

Amazing technology/muitimedia. Along with professional teaching staff, adults with a variety of
backgrounds (business/technology/arts) are reqularly part of the schaot community. (GB})

Technology, special educators, professionals from many diverse fields, cameras, computers, labs. (GB)

My daughter has always been an information computer geek, and enjoys the computer mode of
learning, as well as the video equipment used to film for projects. She has done an internship with a
newspaper writer, and has been allowad to go into the community to gather information for her
project needs. (GB)

We are very grateful for the remarkable opportunity our daughter has in her daily art and music
instruction to work with authentic art supplies, a range of percussion and string instruments and
certainly her excellent teachers and head of school are apparent as our most valuable resource. (5C)

The school aids in alt the grade levels. Computers. Reading and writing mentors that meet with the
came child every week. {SC)

The people are key. Each adult seems to undarstand, know and care for our child. (sQ)

It ss first and foremost the qualified and dedicated staff that set SCS apart from ather schoals. The
resgurces avalable to kids in the music pregram are good - but could always be better. (3C)

Music, celle lessons, mudividualized art that doesn't condemn or behttle my child {as was sean at
previous school - Q2. rnipping up less than “perfect” artwork), healthy lunches, active anvironment,
reading corners, teacher's experience in Africa. (SC)




Her relationships with her teachers are the most important “special” resource. QOther than this, she is
excited about music and art and all the resources available to her at SCS (especially the teachers) in
these disciplines, (SC)

I'm very impressed with the staff's background and iife experiences. The computer equipment seems
adequate for the children’s needs. [ love the importance placed on arts and music. (5C)

People are the SCS’'s greatest asset. (SC)

They work very well with the sending school districts to accommaodate [EP. (SC)
Great teacher, specialized teachers in art and music. (5C)

Full time atd 1n classroom is wenderful, Teacher Joycelyn is wonderful as well. (SC)

I think guests/speakers/artists/musicians can enhance the academics. A c¢hallenging, stimulating,
enriching envirgnment is important to me. (5C)

The art class seems to have made a big impression on Hannah. She has always enjoyed drawing
pictures and now feels that she s really learning things about art, in addition to creating and drawing
nictures.

Music class tends to be very hands on as well. The school’s staff seems quite well rcunded in terms of
its experience with various art forms, (SC)

Do not know. (SC)
Integration in arts heips my child develop and nurture his creative side. (5C)

Teachers whe are quahfied and eager to teach. Teachers' aids who are present in class, Music
nstruments, Art/music teacher is very valuable, Computers are a good resource tool, {SC)

Individual Education Plans. {SC}

The teachers at CATA all love to teach. They care deeply about the success of my child. The school
has a music program that keeps any child interested in attending school, (CA)

What they coffer at our school versus a public sending school, The arts program and theater. What 1

appreciate is the technoiogy part. It has really helped my child fccus on that during a schogl day.
(CA)

Even though their saiaries are well below the NH state average, the teachers that they have hired over
the years have been superb! They have been innovative ang creative with very lktle financial
resources. The biggest resource that CATA has is their staff. They all genuinely hike ther jobs and
their students. They all believe in CATA’s mission. They encourage the students to succeed,
everyday. Cocheco has the oldest computers of any public high schocl in NH, yet they all manage to
get ther work dene on them. The teachers’ innovative methods of teaching, on a shee string, stili
manage to keap the students interested. Most of their supplies are donrated, and the wish list is
lengthy, but thay stil manage to get the job done. CATA has a board of directors to deal with the
school 1ssues, An administrative staff that hires the best teachers that are the best in their fields, and
many who are good in a few different ones. The school itseif is full of different, but like minded
students, all interested in iearning in a laid back atmosphere. (CA)

Internat access, {CA)

Excellent question, [ wish [ knew the answer. With turnover caused by the funding issue, it would be
mice to have a parent night. (CA)




I think the teachers are the most special resource. (CA)

The schoo!l employs certified teachers, but also brings in people from the cutside that are able to teach
the students things they wouldn't necessarily get at a traditional school. A couple of examples are
yoga and ballroom dancing. CATA has mentors from many areas such as artists and technology
related people, as well as theater performers. The Bell Center for the Arts is a nice resource available
to the students. CATA uses learring equipment, specifically related to the arts, such as costumes and
the recording studio, and computer equipment for technology. Unfortunately, because the school is
not funded by the federal government and many school districts do not support the school financially
they are in need-of funds. We, the parents, help with providing things, such as computer paper,
tissues, school supplies, etc., but there is just so much we can do. {CA)

The people are key -~ commutted, dedicated to the special focus of the school and to the students all
around, more so than ['ve seen in larger, conventional schoots. (CA)

The most valuable of ail possible resqurces (IMHQ) are the human beings who form the web of CATA.
[ believe the schoct is successful because of the canng with expectations that comes from each adult
n the building, Unfortunately, due to woefully inadequate funding from the State of MH, CATA has
had to creatwvely use mnimal funds to eguip the school. CATA does have a recording studio with
spacialized software and hardware. Additional funds are needed, but CATA has the most critical
rescurce: intethgent, nurturing adults who like and respect adolescents. {CA)

Computers, fundraising, volunteering by parents in the school, community work by the kids, (CA)
The teachers are all very skitled and experienced in their individual teaching areas. {(CA)

The staff of teachers are the largest resource for CATA. Mot only do they succeed at teaching my

daughter academics, but they care and help her feel good socially and promote self-motivation to
achieve goals set, {CA)

CATA offers the best teachers for my daughters - especially math, English and drama. [f my daughter
wanted to pursue a subject not offered, they would find a person «n the community to help with an
independent study project. Especially terrific considering this school's funding 1s not where it should
be. (CA)

The school does receive seme money per student, but does need more. There are very good teachers
that care for the growth of the students. There is a resource person to help find ways to help with the
cost of running the school. {CA)

From what my son tells me, the teachers are the key to this schogl! He is impressad by the respect
he 15 given by the teachers, He is motivated to be independent and responsible and CATA provides
hum with these skills while at school. So, | believe it is a perfect partnership between home and
school haecause we encourage Jasse in all those ways as well. {CA)

They are always locking for ways to help our children succeed. {(CA)
Patience and great teachers, {CA)

They teach band on method, tisten to her i1ssues, figure individual ways that will help her with any
learming abstacles - flexibihity in teaching. (CA)

Computers are available en every class, which 1s wonderful. Teachers are more than willing to go the
extra mie to help students succeed. All the families of the students pitch in to help the school in any
way (hey can to be even maore successful. The building is roomy and very comfortabie and clean. (CA)




The teachers and staff are phenomenal. They do what they can with the resources they have. They
do field trips, student share resources. (CA)

The number one resource is the staff and faculty. However, we are always in need of funding from

the state. The wvisual and technical equipment available is excellent, but new technology is always
welcome. (CA)

The school needs more help with supplies and teachers for the arts (fine art, drama, etc.). (CA)

[ believe this schoel works hard to receive funding. Last year, they had many fundrassers to enable
students to go on field tnps, et¢. Also, this charter school is special - the faculty are theatrical and
musical. They offer classes geared for the needs of those students. Their eguipment is musical and
theatricai, {CA)

The Occupational Therapist is no longer a member of the staff, but is now a consultant ta varying
degrees. There s Child/Family Therapist who is on staff in a limited capacity, The same hold true for
a Psychologist. However, both are parents of other SVCS students. While I am grateful that they are
avalable to the SVCS Community, it makes things a bit uncomfortable. {SV)

5. How do parents support the school? Please explain.

We have an extremely active parent group. As compared with the public schools in this district that
also have very good parent support. Parents support dances, yard sales, fundraising booth at the
Stratham Fair, votunteer in the schoaol to teach small group activities, knitting, landscaping. Parents
lead community service projects, organize school ice cream socials, holiday parties. Parents are made
very welcome in the school and are recognized and appreciated by the students and staff for our
support. Our support students are very used ta working with parents on their activities. {GB)

Parants provide support in a variety of ways. The "typical” - helping with special functions, fiald trips;
hut, also willing to participate 1in public meetings in support of charter schocls. The most active
parents group ['ve seen at the secondary tevel. (GB)

Very strong parent group who have activities, do fundraising and volunteer in the schaool. (GB)

There is a very active parent group that gathers supplies and food for special events. The parents tell
us when an important meeting is coming up at the school board regarding charter schoal, and who is
pahtically supportive of the charter school mode. (GB)

Attending school related events, donating supplies, equipment, volunteering. (SC)

Parents fuel Seacoast Charter School, Just as the school could not exist without our wonderful staff
ard students, it simply could not operate without parents. Parents offer critical support an input in
many areas: classroom help, serving as board members, organizing school wide events, fundraising
and lobbying for sustainable funding in Concord, to name a handful. Personally, being a2 $SCS parent
has been challenging, rewdrding and an avenue for professional growth because of the meaningful
voluinteer rales | serve. (SC)

The school relies on parent volunteers. We have class mothers., They arrange volunteers in the class
for special events, mentoring i the class. We have a parent group that nelps with set up before
events after school, fundraisers, field trps to educatienal places, drive students to field trips, donate
items needad by the school, welcome new famihes, legislation outreach, talking to our local elected
officials, (SC)




—

Volunteering, word of mouth, communication. (SC)

Volunteering is classrooms, at events, on field trips, as reading partners, on the board, as resources
for new parents, as painters in new classrooms, etc., etc., etc.,.... (SC)

By socalizing outside of school, inviting support staff for picnics/events/parties, raising funds for
needed supples, advocacy for aiternative approaches to standard public education at State House.
(50

Parents support the school primarily with their children, positive attitude and cooperation with
requests from H.0.5. and facuity/staff. This can be through volunteerism (time and talent), as well as
through financial donations which have been necessary for SCS's survival, (SC)

So far I've seen a huge amount of'support given to the school by the parents, whether it's concerning
a fundraising breaxfast or coordinating a school cook-cut. 1 look forward to being a part of it. (5Q)

Parents volunteer whenever asked. So much so, there are usually more parents there than needed.
{8C)

Through ctassroom volunteers, mentors, parent groups, donations, annual fund. (SC)
I'm a new parent, so not sure, but | feel very invited to participate. (SC)

Volunteer, (SC)

Get invalved with fund raising. {SC)

Very much, the parents are very involved, (SC)

Parents are encouraged te volunteer with school suppert on several levels including find raising,
chaperoning for outings, ¢lassroom participation and community outreach.

Parents are also encouraged to take an active role in their child's school experience by participating
during class presentations, town meetings, and even for lunch. {SC)

Parents group is involved, but do not know yet what thay support. (SC)
vVolunteer opportunities, donating items in class rooms or school, (5C)

Volunteering. {SC)

Parents support the school by attending meetings, participating in fund raising and by attending
schaol events. Parents have many volunteer apportunities. (CA)

With fundraisars, concerts, bake sales, etc. The parents really puli together to help make CATA move
forward. The «ds” education comes first in a "CATA” world. (CA)

The Parent Volunteer Group at the school is currently involved in many different fund ratsing/friend
raising activittes. The parents group oversees speciat events fund raising - velunteering at yard sates
to benefit the school, spaghetti dinners, sifent auctions, etc. They also do various office work during
the school week, and pick up school funches from the Barrington Middle School. When the schaol is
having an event ke Poetry Out Ltoud or the Hamilet Soiree, parents are utilizing during the event to
run video equipment, provide refreshments, sell tickets, etc. The parents regularly go to their iocal
school boargd meetings to encourage the tax dollars to follow their students. Parents donate maoney
ard supplies. Parents support the teacher's requests by posting the Wish List at their places of
employment. Each parent signs a contract at the beginning of every year, agreeing to volunteer a
certain percentage of hours at the schoot. (CA)




Parents support the school by helping with fund raising activities and providing transportation. (CA)

1 suspect there are roles for parents to play and [ suspect there are opportunities but without some
kind of forum to bring this information to light, they may never be recognizad, (CA)

Parents volunteer to do many office type duties, or anything asked of them, (CA)

Parents support the school in so many ways, depending on their talents. For example, since [ am
fluent in Sparush, last year | was able to come in and help some students with a project they were
doing for their Spanish ctass. [ also cooked a dish which they shared during their study of Spanish
countr:es. Some parents help with making costumes and crafts or help the kids rehearse for a play.
Wwe are the ones who drive our own vehicles to the middle school to pick up lunches for the students
so that these kids can have a healthy hot lunch. Parents come in and volunteer to work in the office
and help with cleaning the school. They also help with the fundraising efforts which are ongoing
throughout the year. The list of what parents do is endless. (CA)

Donations, volunteer work, lots of driving (hecause of the location, far away from all students’
homas). (CA)

Parents support the school in a number of ways. The mast importart way is 10 paying attention to
what the student 15 learning and what the academic requirements are, If (ssues arise, the parents
contact CATA staff to problem sclve.

Parents support the school by volunteering. You name it, parents will do it. Last year, volunteer
parents transpoarted iunches for the students. Parents help with field trips, do office work, paint
bultetin boards, nventory costumes; bake feood for events; assist with events; send In
paper/snacks/whataver 1s needed. (CA}

Monetary contributions from the parents to CATA support the school, Last year there was a Quarters
for CATA drive, a 100% Contribution drive and an auction to which parents donated and bid on items.
{CA)

Volunteer work, fund raising, postions on the board of directors. (CA})

Through fundraising, participating in the teaching environment if they have special skills, assisting
with P.R. (CA)

Parents help where they can. Some do more than others by volunteering their time and gthers donate
with supplies or monetarity. 1 myself work two jobs as a single mother and support in small ways
where [ can, (CA)

Yolunteensm, some monetary, (CA)

Some parents valunteer house with the lunch program and other volunteer with various guties at the
school. Some help by donating some egupment for the school. {(TA)

we are new this year, but 1 have heard how important parent invoivement is. [ know of a
potiuck/talent show fund ranser that s tentatively arranged for this month, That shouid be a success.
(CA)

volunteer work and fundrasing. {(CA)
Fundraising, volurteering, etc. (CA)

Me are supposed to keep Open Contact with all teachers and staff, volunteer in scheol, on trips and
soral events, fund raisers, give money, supphes, our ume. Be accountable for our students. (CA)




Trhe parents are required to volunteer. We help with phones, copying, field trips, whatever needs to
be dore. [ know [ personally will do whatever | can for the school and [ know | am not alone. (CA)

We have an active parent group which works with the school and Board of Directors. We address
fundraising, extracurricular events, and the school’'s progress. (CA)

School volunteers., The school needs more parent involvement and support. The Board needs to let
the parents hetp more with clubs and actwities. (CA)

Parpnts have opportunities to mentor students i a special field of expertise. They also have
opportunities to assist as fundraising event of schoo! activities. There are parent groups immersed
and interested in keeping CATA running. Parent involvement is necessary and expected. (CA)

Parents support the school in every way possible; financially, volunteerism, working in the school,
etc., etc.

Some parents volunteer at the school, others are paid members of the staff. 1 am the editor of the
Magna Charter {the SVCS Newsletter), my wife is heading up the Anrmual Fund at the request of the
Board of Directors. There are a good number of parents who do so much, and then again there are
those who do nothing. (SV)

6. Are their Community Partners who support this school? Please explain.

Area businesses have been generous with donations of gift cards, retail items that have been used for
school events and fundraisers. Students have also volunteerec to help with community service
projects, soup kitchens, Red Cross Blood Drives. We are supported by the cooperative school district,
meaning GBelCS gets support from the tax aollars in addition to Adequate Ed. Funds, which pays for
teacher salaries and building costs. Cooperative school distnct voted at the outset to support GBelCS
since the majority of students attending wauld otherwise be attending the district's H.5. (GB)

Local businesses provide venues for internships and off campus job shadows, The area high schoot is
beginning to recily appreciate the alternative offered by GBeCS. (GB)

SAL 16 (GB)

[ belinve there is a good deal if community involvement. { can't identify who partners with the charter
specifically. (GB)

Happily, [ can say that our local SAU 16, and more recently SAt) 17 superintendents have been
gutstanding community partners with SCS. We have also attracted community leaders who have
supported our schoot with some financiai gifts because they are impressed by cur mission and role as
a chowe public schoo! - a relatively new concept in our area and state. As a board member, 1 know
SCS will continue to buitd on these kinds of relationships. (SC)

‘fes, at our breakfast fundraisers we receved lots of donated items for the school fundraisers so that
goes right into the school, We also got a lot of support from the VOC school for our fundraisars.
Cutside businesses, elected officials, and phitanthropies come into the school, are really impressed
and than spread the word about our schoot. (9C)

tnsure. (5C)

I hope so. (5C)




We are musicians and writers and will be able to offer classes, bring our experiences and the
experiences/know-how of our art-based community to the school. Recording studio. Writing
workshops. Access to UHN writirg academy for 5-6 graders. (SC)

1 believe the board is developing a relationship with potential community partners. (SC)

Not sure. (SC}

Mostly parents. Neone that I'm aware of from lecal business. This is not entirely bad as much of the
cutreach effort has been with the State of NH. (SC)

Not that ['m aware of. {(5C)

Not sure, (3C)

Not sure., {SC)

We know there are groups but we are not familiar with them. {SC)
Yes, we have many. As seen at the fundraising breakfast, {SC)

We believe so, but we're not fully familiar with the external support “or the scheol (SC)

Do not know. {SC)

The school has received support from Barnes and Noble, Flatbread and other smal! businesses. They
have allowed the schoal to run fundraising events and have made dcnations. {CA)

The Bell Center in Dover, where our schoal ance shared its hallways with all their music. Also, the
Rochester Opera House. {CA)

Because of the difficulty that the State of NH Charter Schools has experienced with their funding,
ceupled with having to move to a new location in the second full vear of operation, there has been
difficulty having people/businesses get behind the school since we did not even know if our doors
would be open this year. CATA 15 currently a member of the Dover Chamber of Commerce. We have
students from 18-20 different communities, with not a lot of industry/business in the community that
the schogl 15 located . Hopefully that with financial sustairability, coming perhaps from having the
money foillow the student from each community or the state can come up with a sotution to finance
CATA ad other public schools are so CATA wilt be able to develop a solid financial base, and not have
ta worry about the costs of day to day operaticns. Since the other public hugh schools do not have to
worry about business ptans and fundraising the way that our public high does. The Town of
Barrington does give a discount in the rent they charge CATA and ahs one of their jamitors for the
building. Unhke district pubhc schools, charter public schools need to pay for rent, heat, hghts, phone
bill, interngt connection, garbage removal, and jamtors along with all the other school costs fram
teachers to stamps. (CA)

['m sure there are, but [I'm not very famihar with them. (CA)
[ suspect there are resources available, although I don't know if any have been tapped. (CA)

Yes, the community in general supports this school. Al CATA students, parents, teachers and
counselars support this schoal as well as some of the administrators support CATA as well. The Beli
Center for the Arts, and the Rochester Opera House are also supporters. (CA)

I'm not sure what this means. (CA)

in the fall of 2004, the CATA Board of Trustees began a campaign to develop community partners.
Irdividual board members approached commumty businesses with packets of formation. I




personally tatked with Rivers Camera and Andy’s Pottery. The Board became too imvolved with the
critical issue of funding and this community partner effort was not increased. Right now the Bell
Center for Music and the Arts partners with CATA to share performing space and materials/supplies.
But you are right, we need to do more in this area, We will be deing Spotlights in which students will
perform and specific community representatives will be invited to join us. (CA)

Yes, by volunteer work within the scheool, time and money. (CA)

Nat sure. (CA)

I ¢on’t kpow. (CA)

I'm not sure. {CA}

[ am not sure., (CA)

There are pegple in the community that help out with the students and mentoring them. {CA)
Unsure. {CA}

Baing very ivalved in the school, [ know of many different times our cutside community has helped.
Hannafaord 1n Dover has given CATA money for different activities. Pizza Places donated pizzas for our
students during commumnity service our students have done. Spaulding High School gave money to
CATA. [ am sure there is a tot more with plenty of room for even more. [ can’t remember them - a
"Poetry Out Loud” took piace with outside judges and a few spectators - with a nice luncheon for the
Judges. (CA)

There are board members, but we are not known enough in the community. We are working on that.

We tust formed a group of parents and friends t¢ help raise money and to work on community
autreach. (CA) '

We are in need of more active community invoivement. (CA)
L don't know. (CA)

flobody outside the Beard of Directors knows the answer to that question. As the Editor of the Magna
Charter, [ feel it 15 my duty fo find answers to questions that parents are asking. That 1s a guestion
that has been asked and never answered. {5V)

(GB) = Great Bay elLearning Charter School

(SC) = Seacpast Charter School
(CA} = Cacheco Arts and Technology Academy
(SV) = Surry Village Charter School

New Hampshire Charter School Parents Survey Response Key
rMNote: cach question response may apply to multiple key answers

How well and n what ways 1s the charter schoct meeting the aducationat needs of your child?
1-MNot well' not devseloping, ne change in habits or abilities

2-Waell: Meets ali expectations, standards

2-Very well: Exceads expectations, dramatic changes




3.

10

i1

12.

How does the school communicate with you about your child’s progress and schoot related
issuas?*
1-E-mad
2-Telephone
J-In person
4-Progress report/report card

5-Other

What support does the school offer your child?~
1-Individual Learning Plans

2-Guigance caunselor
3-Specialist/therapy
4-Other
What special resources (people, learning equipment, funds) does the school have that help
your child to succeed?”
1-Staff members
2-Technology, equipment
3-Software
4-Funds
5-Other

How do parents support the school?”
1-Financially

2-Volunteering
3-Expertise/specialized instruction
4-Other

Are there Community Partners who support this school?
1-Yes

2-No

APPENDIX 2 15 BASED ON INFORMATION RECEIVED FROM FOUR OF THE SEVEN SCHOOLS IN THE STUDY
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New Hampshire Center for School Reform

AT S

LR cea

CONTACT INFORMATION
NEW HAMPSHIRE CHARTER SCHOOLS

GENERAL INFORMATION

NH Center for School Reform:
Susan Hollins, Director & Consultant
89 South Street
Concord, New Hampshire 03301
Phone: (603) 224-0366

Email: susan@nhschoolreforfn.org
Comprehensive Charter School Website: www.nhschoolreform.org

NH Department of Education:
Roberta Tenney, Program Administrator
Office of Accountability
101 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3860
Phone: (603) 271-2079
Email: rtenney{@ed state.nh.us

CHARTER SCHOOLS OPEN & OPERATING

Surry Village Charter School (Opened September 2006)
School Director: Matora Fiorey
11 Village Rd
Surry, NH
Phone: 603-357-9700
Fax: 603-357-9701
Contact: Matora@surryvillagecharterschool.org
Web Site: http://www.surryvillagecharterschool.org/

Strong Foundations (Opened September 2007)
School Director: Beth McClure
5 Riverwood Drive
Pembroke, New Hampshire
Contact; bethmcclure(@comeast.net
Web Site; http//www.strongfoundationsnh,org/

S,LIOM(KS on b



Academy for Science and Design (Opened September 2007)
School Director: Chris Franklin
316 Daniel Webster Highway
Merrimack, NH. 03054
Phone: 603-262-9162

Contact: chris@sunnvcampus.com
Web Site: htip://www.asdnh.org

Franklin Career Academy (Opened August '04)
Head of School, Bill Grimm
PO Box 70,
Franklin, NH 03235
Physical Address:
St. Paul Parish Center at 15 Elkins Street in Franklin.
Phone: 603-934-9200
Fax: 603-934-9202
Email: bgrimm2@verizon.net
Web Site: www.franklincareeracademy.org

North Country Alternative Charter School {Opened September '04)
School Director: Lisa LaVoie
260 Cottage Street Suite'A
Littleton, NH 03561
Phone: 444-1535
Fax: 444-9843
Email: lisal@ncedservices.org
Web Site: www,northcountrycharteracademy.com

Seacoast Charter School (Opened September '04)
Head of School: Bill Wilmot
PO Box 892,
Exeter. NH 03833
Physical Address:

13 Church Street
Kingston NH, 03848

Phone: 603-642-8400
Fax: 603-642-8404

Email; bill@scacoastcharterschool.org
Web Site: www.seacoastcharterschool.org

Laurent Clerc Academy (Opened January 18, 2005) -- CLOSED



Cocheco Arts & Technology Academy (Opened January 24, 2005)
School Director: Deborah Byrne

37A Province Ln.
Barrington, NH 03825-3937
Phone: 603-664-9671

Fax: 603-664-9679

Email: infof@catanh.org
Web Site: www.catanh.org

Great Bay eLearmning Charter School {Opened January 24, 2005)
School Director: Cheryl McDonough
30 Linden St.
Exeter, NH 03833-2622
Phone: 603-775-8638
Fax: 603-775-8528

Contact: cmcdonoughi@sau] 6.org
Web Site: www_.bgecs.org
New Heights Academy Charter School (Opened January, 2006) - CLOSED

The Academy of Equine Science — (Opened September 2006)
Academic Coordinator: Casey Robinson
36 Industrial Way Suite3
Rochester, NH 03867
Phone: 603-335-690
Contact: english@nhequestrianacademv.org
Web Site: http://www nhequestrianacademy.org/

Ledyard Charter Academy (Opened September 2007)
School Director: Jim Nourse
Lebanon High school
195 Hanover St,
Lebanon, NH. 03766
Phone: 603-448-2055

Virtual Learning Academy Charter School
School Administration: Arthur (Skip) Hanson, Ed.D Superintendent of Schools
30 Linden Street
Exeter, NH 03833
Phone: 603.778.2500
Fax: 866-651-5038

info@vlacs.org

Telephone: 603.224.0366 Fax: 603.224.8366
Postal Address: Concord, NH 03301 Email: info@nhschoolreform.org
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2007-2008 Kansas Charter Schools

Receives L
- Receives
N Building Date Renewal | Federal . P .
District School Name Number | Established Date Charter Dissemination Contact Information
‘ G Funds
rant
Doug Reed
gfg 101 EIZ';‘:%‘:LQ 0108 2003 2011 No No 620-763-2470
y gesd r@usd‘lm .com
o Rose Fry
Lsp 101 Eﬁg:;?g chool | 0105 2007 2012 Yes No 620-244-3264
araf@usd101.com
USD 200 Greeley County Ken Bockwinkel
Greeley Jr. High Charter 0134 2004 2011 No No 620-376-4265
County School kenb@tribuneschools.org
. Stanley Cole
#’fr'zezroz E:;“rﬁ{nv'gﬁt .| otse 2006 2011 Yes No 620-875-6500
9 stanIez.cole@greenbush.org
. Dorothy Williams
g"‘fﬁaﬁm E;’::fl ROk ey | 0524 2007 2012 Yes No 620-697-1253
Y y dwilliams@usd218.0rq
. . Terri Peckham
gr?‘Dozrf:‘ I:;'r:g ngt\ter 1406 2004 2011 No No 620-728-8585
p 9 terrip@essdack.org
USD 261 L.eamning by Terry Eis
Haysville Design Charter 1963 2007 2012 Yes No 316-554-2331
y School teis@usd261.com
Barbie Hamlin
aﬁg j?: g“é‘a“f;':: 1989 2004 2011 No No 316-777-3070
y bhamlin@usd263 k12 ks.us |
Mindy Bruce
UsD 267 St. Mark's
Renwick Charter School 2074 2007 2012 Yes No 316-796-1406

mindy.l_wruce@ustG?.com




Receives

- Receives
District School Name :‘l“'::t',:? E stal:::::he d R%\;:al z‘;‘;ﬂ:: Diss:mination Contact Information
Grant unds
UsSb 287 West Frankiin Robhert Allen
West High School 2562 2001 2011 No No 785-746-5766
Franklin Leaming Center allenr@usd287.or
USD 312 Pleasantview Terry Fehrenbach
Haven Elementary/High | 3241/3242 2001 2011 No No 620-862-5516
School Charter tfehrenbach@essdack.org
USD 312 Yoder Charter Delon Martens
Haven Elementary 3238 1998 2011 No No 620-465-2605
School dmartens@havenschools.com
Diana Wieland
gglgyms Itgg‘eanﬁf““ty 3296 2004 2011 No Yes | 785-460-5000
dwieland@colbyeagles.com
. Pam Sumner
‘k’fﬁ\‘;‘gﬂey 33'13 o?“a“e’ 3418 2003 2008 No No 785-771-3470
sumnerp@kawvalley k12 ks us
Melvin Omiston
gﬁfﬂ;ﬁ‘am égﬂg;G’ade 3760 2004 2011 No Yes 620-243-5721
ormistonm@usd332.com
usD 347 Kinsley-Offerle Kevin Logan
Kinsley- Jr./Sr. High 4118 2007 2012 Yes No 620-659-2126
Offerle Charter School klogan®usd347.org
Stafford .
, Jim Cox
gtsagoe;gg E‘;ﬂ:&’:hﬁem 4164 2005 2010 Yes No | 620-234-5248
Charter icox@stafford349.com
Natise Vogt
5533;3 ‘E‘i’fae“g';sg:a' 4791 2007 2012 Yes No . 620-837-3161
nvogt@newton.km.ks.us
i Judith Best
uspD 376 Sterlin
Sterling Acad e?ny 4862 2006 2011 Yes No 620-278-4215

'|best@sterling.edu



Receives

Receives
. Building Date Renewal | Federal . i e .
District School Name Number | Established Date Charter Dlss::'lnl(rj::tlon Contact Information
Grant
USD 382 Becky Carter
Pratt Walden Center 5093 2007 2012 Yes No 620-672-4555
ra beckv.carter@usd?:sz.com
USD 400 Smoky Valley Marla EImquist
Smoky Virtual Charter 5498 2004 2011 No No 785-227-4254
Valley School melmguist@smokyvalley.org
Career
Kent Nye
USD 418 1 Academy of 6039 2007 2012 Yes No 620-241-9350
McPherson | McPherson kent.nye@mcpherson.com
Co_tlmty
217 Century John Paul Jones
USD 424 | ElementaryHigh | 5160/6162 | 2003 2008 No No 620-548-2289
Mullinville School [.eaming ionesi@mutlinville.o
Academy )
Gary Lewis
USD 497 | Lawrence 8185 2004 2011 No No 785-832-5620
Lawrence Virtual School lewis@usd497 or
Cornerstone
. . Jeff Eberhart
USD499 | Alterative 8272 1998 2011 No No 620-783-4499
Galena Charter High - ieberhart@usd499.org
School
Maurice R. .
. : Dr. Cynthia Lane
USD 500 Holman Will open in 979.2232
Kansas City | Academy of n/a 2008 2012 Yes No 913-279-223

Excellence

cilane@kckps.org




Receives

- Receives
- Building Date Renewal { Federal . . .
District School Name Number | Established Date Charter Dissemination Contact Information
G Funds
rant
USD 501 Hope Street Dale Noli
Topeka Charter B467 2004 2011 No Yes 785-438-4280
p Academy topeka k12 ks.us
Hope Street
Dale Nofl
?fgfg’ éﬁi‘r’t‘;’:‘l{m sdie 8469 2001 2011 No No 785-438-4280
p drol-ir@topeka.k12 ks.us
School
USD 503 Parsons Health Linda Proehl
Parsons Careers 8589 2007 2012 Yes No 620-421-3660
Academy iproehi@vikingnet.net




Iowa Department of Education | Charter Schools | School, Charter, District, Community, ... Page 1 of 3

»

Charfer Schools

On this page...
Authorized Charter Schools
Charter School Allocations

Charter schools are public schools of choice. In lowa, schools obtain charters only with the approval and oversight of their
local school district. In addition to schools directly operated by a school district, charter school are another way that

communities can create new public education options and partnerships for their children.

Contact: Del Hoover 515-281-8402 del hoover@iowa.gov

Authorized Charter Schools

Buffalo Ridge Charter School (K-6th Grade)
Sioux Central Community School District
4400 US Highway 71

Sioux Rapids, lowa 50585

712-283-2571

Administrator: Kevin Teno

lowa Central Charter School (11-12th Grade)
Southeast Webster Community School District
P.O. Box 49 30850 Paragon Avenue

Burnside, lowa 50521-0049

515-359-2235

Administrator; Mike Jorgenson

Storm Lake/lowa Central/Buena Vista Early College Charter High School (3-12th Grade)
Storm Lake Community School District

P.O. Box 638

Storm Lake, lowa 50588-0638

Administrator: Michael J. Hanna

Elma Elementary Charter School (K-6th Grade)
Howard-Winneshiek Community School District
P.O. Box 56 120 West Jackson

Eima, lowa 52155

Administrator: Robert Hughes

Northeast lowa Charter High School (9-12th Grade)
West Central Community School District
P.O. Box 54
Maynard, lowa 50655-0054
563-637-2283
" Administrator: Jim Patera

Lincoln Academy of Integrated Arts Charter School {K-5th Grade)
Davenport Community School District

http://www.iowa.gov/educate/content/view/487/1334/

S &(
4/17/2008



Iowa Department of Education | Charter Schools | School, Charter, District, Community, ..

318 East 7th Street
Davenport, lowa 52803
563-324-0497
Administrator: Jeff Womack

Northwest lowa Charter High School {3-12th Grade)
Hartley-Melvin-Sanborn Community School District
173 South Central Avenue

Hartley, lowa

712-928-3406

Administrator: Mark Petersen

Prescott Elementary Schoo! (9-12th Grade)
Dubugue Community School District

1151 White Street

Dubuque, lowa 52001

563-552-4200

Administrator: Christine McCarron
563-552-4200

Panorama Charter School (3-12th Grade)
Panorama Community School District

701 West Main- P.O. Box 39

Panora, lowa 50216

641-755-2317

Administrator: Mark Johnson

eSigourney Entrepreneurial Academy for Leadership (7-12th Grade)
Sigourney Community School District

107 W. Marion

Sigourney, 1A 51591

641-622-2025

Administrator: Jason Munn

Charter School Allocations
Last Updated ( Tuesday, 26 February 2008 )

http://www.iowa.gov/educate/content/view/487/1334/

Page 2 of 3

4/17/2008
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Search

NJ] Home | Services A to 7 | Departments/Agencies | FAQs

\ SuATE OoF NEW JERsSEY
7 DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Home | About Charter Schools | NJ Charter School Fact Sheet | Regulations | Application j Audit Information

» NJDOE Home

Directory | Reporting Requirements | Research & Resources | Calendar | Grants Update | Technology

NEW JERSEY CHARTER SCHOOLS
FACT SHEET

A charter school is a public school operated under a charter granted by the Commissioner of Education, that is
independent of the district board of education and that is managed by a board of trustees.

Charter school legislation was passed to give choice for all parents for their chitdren’s education. The intent of this
legisiation is to:

improve student learning and achievement;

Increase the availability of choice to parents and students when selecting a learning environment;
Encourage the use of different and innovative leaming methods;

Establish a new system of accountability for schools;

Make the school the unit for educational improvement;

Establish new professional opportunities for teachers

Founders of a charter schooi may be teaching staff members, parents with children attending schools of the district or a
combination of both, as well as institutions of higher education or a private entity located within the State in conjunction
with teaching staff members and parents.

Charter schools may not charge tuition.

A private or parochial school may not convert to a charter school.

A charter school is open to all students on a space-avaitable basis with preference being given to students from the
district of residence or region of residence of the charter school.

All classroom teachers and professional support staff must hold appropriate New Jersey certification.

CURRENT STATISTICS

As of January 2005, there are 55 approved charter schools in New Jersey. Forty-nine are operating and three are
scheduled to open in September 2005;

In September 2004, Princeton Charter School became the first charter school in New Jersey to achieve National
Biue Ribbon School of Excelience status;

As of September 2004, New Jersey's charter schools are serving over 14, 000 students in pre-kindergarten through
grade 12;

Fourteen counties have approved charter schools;

All of New Jersey's charter schools are newly created. There are no charter schools that have been converted from
other publi¢ schoats;

The average enroliment in a charter school is 193 students;

The average class size of charter schools is 17 students;

The average schoo! year for charter schools is 186 days;

ISion €

http://www.nj.gov/education/chartsch/fact.shtml 4/17/2008



. * New Jersey Charter Schools Fact Sheet Page 2 of 2

.

s The average length of the school day in charter schools is slightly over 7 hours; students are engaged in instruction

for an average of slightly over & hours;
» In 2004, four of the charter schools that opened in September 2000 were granted charter renewals for an additional

five-year period.

Contact Us | Privacy Notice | Legal Statement | Accessibility Statement@

Department: SBOE | About DOE | Accomplishrents | FAQ | Welcome | School Directory | Subjects A to Z | Search DOE
DOE Info. | Ask DOE | Parents | Educators | Students | Partners | County Info. & Services | Upcoming Opportunities
DOE Data | NJ School Report Card | Certiflcation Application Status Check | Doing Business with DOE | NJ QSAC | NCLB

Statewide: NJ Home | Services A to Z | Departments/Agencies | FAQs
Copyright ® State of New Jersey, 2006

NJ Department of Education
PO Box 500

Trenton, NJ 08625-0500
(609)292-4469

http://www.nj.gov/education/chartsch/fact.shtml 4/17/2008
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Search

NJ Home | Services Ato Z | Departments/Agencies | FAQs

SRR\ StATE OF NEW JERSEY

%’u.,,& DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

» NJDOE Home

Use the Edit, Find function of your browser to search for a specific school on this page.

» Academy Charter High School (Monmouth County)

» Adelaide L. Sanford Charter School {(Essex County)

» Bergen Arts and Science Charter School (Bergen County)

» Blank { County)

» Blank1 ( County)

» Burch Charter School of Excellence (Essex County)

» Camden Academy Charter High School (Camden County)

» Camden's Pride Charter Schoo! (Camden County)

» Camden's Promise Charter School {Camden County)

» Capital Prep Charter High School {Mercer County)

» Center for Responsible Economic and Technotogica! Excellence Charter School (CREATE) (Hudson County)
» Central Jersey Arts Charter Schoo! (Union County)

» Central Jersey College Prep Charter School (Middlesex and Somerset County)
» chARTer~TECH High School for the Performing Arts (Atiantic County)

» Classical Academy Charter Schooi of Clifton (Passaic County)

» Community Charter School of Paterson (Passaic County)

» D.U.E. Season Charter Schoo! (Camden County)

» Discovery Charter School {Essex County)

» East Qrange Community Charter School {Essex County)

» Elysian Charter School of Hoboken (Hudson County)

» Emily Fisher Charter School of Advanced Studies (Mercer County)

» Englewood on the Palisades Charter School (Bergen County)

» Environment Community Opportunity Charter School (ECO Charter School) (Camden County)
» Foundation Academy Charter School {Mercer County)

» Freedom Academy Charter School (Camden County)

» Galloway Community Charter School (Atlantic County)

» Gray Charter School (Essex County)

» Greater Brunswick Charter School (Middlesex County)

» Greatér Newark Charter School (formerly Newark, Greater Newark Academy Charter School (Essex County)
» Hoboken Charter School (Hudson County)

» Hope Academy Charter School (Menmouth County)

» Internationa! Charter Schooi of Trenton (Mercer County)

» Jersey City Community Charter School (Hudson County)

» Jersey City Golden Door Charter School {(Hudson County)

» Lady Liberty Academy Charter School (Essex County)

» LEAP Academy University Charter School (consolidated school in 2001) (Camden County)
» Learning Community Charter School (Hudson County)

» Liberty Academy Charter School (Hudson County)

» Maria L. Varisco-Rogers Charter School (Essex County)

» Marion P. Thomas Charter Schoo! (Essex County)

» New Horizons Commynity Charter Schoot (Essex County)

» North Star Academy Charter School of Newark (Essex County)

» Oceanside Charter School {Atlantic County)

» PACE Charter School of Hamilton (Mercer County)

» Paterson Charter School for Science and Technology (Passaic County)

http://www.nj.gov/cgi-bin/education/charter/charterl.pl 4/17/2008



. ~ Approved Charter Schools Page 2 of 2

» Paul Robeson Charter School for the Humanities (Mercer County)

» PleasanTech Academy Charter School {Atlantic County)

» Pride Academy Charter School (Essex County)

» Princeton Charter School (Mercer County)

» Queen City Academy Charter School (Union County)

» Red Bank Charter School (Monmgouth County)

» Ridge and Valley Charter School (Warren County)

» Robert Treat Academy Charter School (Essex County)

» Schomburg Charter School (Hudsen County)

» Soaring Heights Charter Schoo! (Hudson County)

» Sussex County Charter School of Technology (Sussex County)

» TEAM Academy Charter School (Essex County)

» Teaneck Community Charter School (Bergen County)

» Trenton Community Charter School (consolidated school in 2001) (Mercer County)
» Union County TEAMS (Technology, Engineering, Architecture, Math&Science) Charter Schoo! (Union County)
» Unity Charter Schoot (Morris County)

» University Academy Charter High School (Hudson County)

» University Heights Charter School (Essex County)

» Village Charter School (Mercer County)

Contact Us | Privacy Notice | Legal Statement | Accessibility Statement@

Department: NI State Board of Education | About DOE | Accomplishrents | FAQ | Welcome | N} School Directory
Subjects A to Z | Search DOE | NJDOE Information | Ask DOE | NJ Parents | N] Educators | N Student

N1 Partners | Information & Services by County | Upcoming Opportunities | DOE Data | NJ School Report Card
Certification Application Status Check List | Doing Business with DOE | N3 Quality Single Accountability Continuum
No Child Left Behid

Statewide: N Home | Services A to Z | Departments/Agencies | FAQs
Copyright © State of New Jersey, 2006

NJ Department of Education
PO Box 500

Trenton, NJ 08625-0500
(609)292-4469

http://www.nj.gov/cgi-bin/education/charter/charter1.pl 4/17/2008
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NEW MEXICO CHARTER SCHOOLS — 2008-2009

Chamirgdon ' o7 eiihispal B Addréss Phona Fax E-Mail Grades s':;‘um Teschars -|  Code
P.0. Box 9087
Academia de Lengua y Physical Location: 1900 ckelleya2005
o Colleen Adolph Rendolph, SE 5634242 | 563-4260 @yahoo.com 66 | 73 2 1015013
Albuquerque, NM 87195-2039
. 933 Bradbury, SE
Albuquerque insihute of Kaiy Sandoval 5004249 | Soa33gs | KEVSadow@R | g i gy | g3 ] qo1s001
Albuquerque, NM 87106 g0
123 4th Street SW
Amy Biehl Charter High | Sandy Beery 4680653 | 299493 | SPeey@abhsk | gy | oo | 5 1015026
Albuguerque, NM 87102 12.nm.us
8001 Mountain Rd. Place NE
Bataan Miitary bataanacadem 1015007
Academy Shelby Tefichief Albuquerque, NM 87110 292-5588 y@ao] .com 9-10 114 9
6805 Academy Parkway West
NE
Career Academic CATA_HS@ 7 1015015
Technical Academy (lee Hare Albuquerque, NM 87108 3451514 | 962-2574 msn.org 10-12 99
1718 Yale, SE
Cesar Chavez ’ cthomas@cesarcha
) Caryl Thomas 877-05568 | 877-4591 912 146 6 1015083
Community Schoal Albuguergue, NM 87106 yezcharter.net
- 5201 Central, SW . -~
Ghritine Duncan Jesus Moncada 8304971 | 2683276 | [roncada@enistine |5 | gy |6 | 101511
ty Albuquerque, NM 87105 oG
Corrales International PO Box 2987 catherine@corralesi 180
School (opening fall Carlos Pagan 270-5870 | N/A nternationalschool.or K-8 proie N/A 1015028
2008) Corrales, NM 87048 a cted
) CCPS 1776 Montano NW
Cottonwood Classical 500
X Lynn Barr or Lynn Ibars@cationwoodcl h 50201500
Preparatory (opening Carey Los Ranchos De Albuquerque, 3441776 | 345-6398 assical com 6-12 proje NA 1
fall 2008) NM 87107 cled
Creative Education ‘ .
" , NE . .
Prep Instiute #1 Torn Crespin o9 e i 42374, |y 057y | lorespin2000@yaho | 45 | 157 | 8 | 1015086
Albuguerque, NM 87123 Bxt.1 o.com
89 Hotel Circle, NE
Creative Education Physical Location: 69 Hotel 2372373 : nrTomet i2nm.
Prep Insttute #2 Nancy Romero Gircle, NE 37 237-2380 com 9-12 168 25 1015070
Albuguerqus, NM 87123
Digital Arts and
Technology Academy 1011 Lamberton Place, NE .
Lisa Myhre 3410888 | 3410749 "Ea'myhre@a" o2 | 30 | 21 1015063
{Formerty Charter Albuguerque, NM 87107 viis.com
Vocational High School)

Submisgion £
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- P.0. Box 340
Cast Vountain Hgh | Danielle Johnston ZATH0. | 2914173 | gommson@spinnet | 912 | 325 | 2 | tots02e
Sandia Park, NM 87047
EI Camino Real Chares | o7ofer Meror 3713 Isets Bivd., SW sz | szt | I 't'fl‘;?@c"m‘"‘ 12
Albuquerqua, NM 87105 ‘ §17 1 18 | 1015069
Gordon Bemnell Charter 100 John Dantis Dr.SW 250
School {opening fall | Greta Rosckom 8386716 | N/A greskom@bemcogo | 519 | orgie | NA | 1015030
: proj
2008) Albuquergue, NM 87151
1900 Atrisco Avenue, NW
Horizon Academy West | Amie Duran 998-0459 | 9980463 | amieamp@aol.com K6 429 23 1015022
Albuquergue, NM 87120
. §200 Sequoia, NE .
L2 Academia de Steve Wood 3523097 | Te4gs00 | Seood@esperanzac | g gy | g9 | 19 | 015061
Sp Albuguerque, NM 87120 oy
10301 Candetaria NE, Suite B .
tgaﬁfnd%m:" Al Baysinger 2067677 | 2060510 | DASMGE@ILIN |75 | qoe | 5 | 1015080
9 Abuquerque, NM 87112-1504 :
5201 Central Ave. NW .
La Promesa Early Francis Salazar ssaaars | omosgs | FsMazar@lapr | | o 3 1015115
Leaming Center Albuguerque, NM 87105 omesakl2.org
. 1718 Yale Bivd. SE
La Resoanalesming | jusina Montoya 2020100 | 2820109 | TOMRVIB@A | gy | g 5 | 1015114
ermy Albuguerque, NM 87106 ’ )
1106 Griegos, NW
Lﬁ;’;"“‘“ Charter | gyen Moore 0232401 | romze | MOOSOlosmentss | gy gz | g0 | 1015017
Albuguerque, NM 87107 ama—
Media Arts
g 4401 Central Ave. NE 240
gg:ﬁra‘“’e.c"%‘f’ Patti Gladstone 249778 | NiA deugals@swopoom | 912 | poje | twa | 01100
{opening Albuquerque, NM 87108 cted
2008)
. 3821 Singer Blvd., NE ]
Montessod Elementa | Mary Jans Besante 7960149 | 7960147 | TRsanto@mesnm. |y | g4 1015290
Albuquerque, NM 87109
. . 1650 Gabaldon Drive, NW .
ortessorioftheRio | oarie Dodge B25993 | 2422007 | DSbormie@mmched | 5 | g5 | 41 | 1015095
rande Albuguerque, NM 87104 2.9
. 5014 4TH St NW
Mountain Mahogany
] Nancy Kent 341-1424 | 3411428 | kent@aps.edu K-3 78 5 1015098
Commurnity School Albuguerque, NM 87107
L 1100 Cardenas Ave,, SE
Mative American ! kbobrofi@yahoo.co
ey | Kra Babrof 2660992 | 2662905 | 68 | 158 | & | 1015008

Albuquerque, NM 87108
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Albuguerque, NM 87107

ALBUQUERQUE CHARTER SCHOOLS ~continued Bernalillo County

Chiflse Bhoby : iy ; Phona ° Fax E-ali ‘. el Studants | ‘Taachers | Cods
4261 Baltoon Park Rd NE .

ot Abugueraue Co- | ety Chei 3440746 | aaorpg | Shemn@eomeastn | g | g 1015116

d Albuquerque, NM 87109
7939 4th Street, NW o

North Valley Academy | Jerald Snider Los Renchos d Albuguerque, | 2980501 | 8980505 ﬁ“;fger@"van ke | 387 % | 1015018
NM 87114 )
1021 Isleta Bivd., SW .

gz:fgfssgm‘” Monica Sanchez B73.7758 | §73-3567 gﬁa""hs@’“’""a"' o12 | 125 10 | 1015039
Albuquerque, NM 87105

) 4865 Indian Schook Road, NE
Public Aczdemy for | oty Harvey 224888, | a6oaney | Khovey@peparsar | gy | g % | 1015087
9 Albuquerque, NM 87110 d

1718 Yale SE

Raph ). Bunche Jasper Mathews 2020100 | 2020109 | jmatthews@riba. ks | 82 & | 1015004

Y Atbuguerque, NM 87106

1811 Central, NE .

2;’:%2;%‘;‘:“’ Glen White Eagle 2431118 | 2427444 gg‘:gf"g"*@’"‘d’a o12 | 28 19 | 1015051
Albuguerque, NM 87106 '
C/O Albuguerque Job Corps,

S.1A, Tech (Schook for 1500 Indian School Rd, NW 15

Integrated Academics & callahanke@siatech. 1015090

Technologies) Kelly Callahan Albuquerque, NM 87104 2426640 | 2426872 | org 9-12 284
3426 Blake, SW

South Valley Academy | Alan Merks 4523132 | 4523133 | Emes@soutaley | g4y | 599 18 | 1015025
Albuguerque, NM 87105 y.org

. 10301 Candelaria, NE Suite B
i Deb Young 2967677 | 2960510 | HOM@sslc 45 | 103 9 | 101505
"3 Albuquerque, NM 87112 : :

10301 Candelaria, NE Suite B .

f::r"r:.ﬁesé S:fer"""“’y Scott Glasrud 2967677 | 296-0510 ;ﬂa;"‘f@m' 712 | 266 12 | 1015031

tng Le Albuquerque, NM 87112 :

The Albuquerque 7521 Passo del Volcan clo

Tatent Development Couble Eagle Airport 11, NW, ! y Chavez177828@ach i

Secondary Charter Robert Chavez 8509188 | 821-2554 | -2 912 | 83 4 | 1015016

School Albuquerque, NM 87121

The Leaming 4575 San Mateo, NE Suite K '

Community Chater | Viola Martnez 3323200 | 342.5055 ;’"‘a‘““ez@““""'"“ 612 | 179 1| 1015038

School Albuguerque, NM 87109
3100 Menaul, NE

Twenty-First Century a2 1stcenturypa@aqw

Puble rcagery Donna Eldredge 2540260 | 2548507 | 220 | es | 28 0 | 1015027
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Youth Build Trade &

1718 Yale Blvd. SE

: Kay A. Birukoft 7655517 | 765.5925 | kbiukofi@msncom | 912 | 175 9 | 1015130

Technalogy High Albuguerque, NM 87106

AZTEC CHARTER SCHOOLS _ San Juan County

T ‘ %

Chairtar Schiol - Principsl Addrass Phatie Fix E-Mall .rm Students Taachess Code

Mosaic Academ 101 Ute bradenb@mosaic.k1

o Y Bonnie Braden 3346364 | N/A Py KL kr | 160 1| 64455001
Actec, NM 87410 20m.us

BERNALILLO CHARTER SCHOOLS Sandoval County

Charter Sehool frincipn) Addrees Fhona Fax E-Mail o Students | Teachem | Code
P.0. Box 1247

Pamela_engenstrom

Village Academy Pamela Engstrom 449-3360 | N/A Pamela_engenstiom | g 66 6 | 61435008
Placitas, NM 87043 {yahoo com

CARLSBAD CHARTER SCHOOLS Eddy County

Gi

Chartar Schoo! Principal Address Phone Fax E-Mail e | ouders | Tescnens Code
P.0. Box 2184

Jefferson Montessori - . Physical Location: 101 South ' Cindy.holguin@aqmai

pririval Cindy Holguin o sar930 | ea7-0301 | 203 K12 | 82 & | 20155001
Carishad, NM 88221

CIMARRON CHARTER SCHOOLS Colfax County

Charter School Princips! Addewse " Phone fux E-Mait 0 | s | v | cose

. P.0. Box 1037 .

oo Valey High | Jacque Boyd 73100 | 3777263 | Jacqueboyd@y | oy | g 2 | 8075003
Angel Fire, NM 87710-1037 ahoo.com

DEMING CHARTER SCHOOLS Luna County

Grade
Charter School Principst Addeens Phons Fax E-Maif . Students | Teachern | Cods
. 122 West Spruce .
Do e Chavez | ane Tilo sugaod | 2e5saty | Amilo.am@yzho | gy | g 6 | 42205006
9 Deming, NM 88030 :

ESPANOLA CHARTER SCHOOLS Rio Arriba County

ChamurScmhi Principsl Addrsss Phona Fax E-Mail :;m Students Teachers Code
P.0. Box 1087

Carifios de los Nifios | Victoria Garcia Physical Location: One Church | aso 3919 | nya vigarcia31@h |, | 4 » | ss3ss018
Circle otmail.com
San Juan Puéblo, NM 87566

" P.O. Drawer 100
Espancla Mitary Steve Baca 71337 | 7argon | Sovebeca@emaki | gy | yg 14 | 55305026
¥ Espanola, NM 87532 Am.

GALLUP CHARTER SCHOOQOLS McKinley County

Charar School - 'Frihgggg Address Fhone Fax E-Mail ?m. Students Yeachers Code
C/0 UNM-Gallup, 200 College
Road #9

Middle Coflege High i ¥ wleldman@gallup.u 10-

Mo Wally Feldman 8637561 | 8637627 | MO " 50 1| 43315007
Galtup, NM 87301-7603

JEMEZ MOUNTAIN CHARTER SCHOOLS Rio Arriba County
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A

Roswell, NM_88201

Grade
Charter School Principal Address Phone Fax E-Mail [} Students Teachers Code
o . P.Q. Box 166
lé::::g: gr;a“‘:‘mga Rebscca Gibson 7746669 | A dito@zianet.com K8 | 25 5 56395003
Lindrith, NM 87029
JEMEZ VALLEY CHARTER SCHOOLS Sandoval County
T~ Grade
Chartar School Principal Addrets Phane Fax E-Mait s Studerts | Teschens | Code
P.C. Box 99
eugenic2002@yaho
8an Diego Riverside Eugene Johnson Jemez Pueblo, NM 87024 834-7419 | 8349167 | o.com K-8 100 10 63435004
P.0. Box 60
Walatowa Charter High Physical Location: 147 Bear farchulsta@walatow
Schodl Tony Archuleta Head Canyon 834-0443 | 8340449 ahcs.org 912 50 7 63435003
Jemez Pueblo, NM 87024
LAS CRUCES CHARTER SCHOOLS Dona Ana County
; Grade
Charter School Principal Addrees Phane Fix E-Mail s Studeots | Teschars | Code
P.0. Box 10
: TABChMS | Catnerine Martnez | FrvsicalLocation: 402West | 5410145 | 5410146 | cmar@zianetcom | 912 | 164 10| 17135001
Las Cruces, NM 88004
La Academia Dolores Gilbert Gutierez 140 North Main 5262984 ggutierrez@acadeia
Huerta Las Cruces, NM 8800+ 523-2924 | nm.org 6-8 81 7 17135011
201 E. Lohman
Los Montafas Charter Joyoe Aranda . STo83% | 517686 | jaranca@tyinmorg | 810 | 90 New | 17135013
Las Cruces, NM 88001
LAS VEGAS CITY CHARTER SCHOOLS San Migue! County
Grade
Chactar Sehoot Principaé Address Phons Fux E-Msil . Students | Teachers | Code
P.0.Box 1118
Bridge Academy Physical Location: 1216 Sth ! RubenCordova10@
Charter High Ruben Cordova Streat 425-3302 | 454-8688 hotmail.com §-12 29 3 69475002
Las Vegas, NM 8771
QUESTA CHARTER SCHOOLS Taos County
" NS Grade
Chartar School Principal Addrass Phone Fax E-Mall s Students Teachars | Code
" P.Q. Box 742 .
Red River Valley - redrivervalieycs@th
Karen Phillips 7546117 | 754-3258 . K-8
Charter Red River, NM 87558 otmail.com 59 9 79555004
P.0. Box 1152
g&':fnﬁn‘fgngzh i Margaret Bartett | Fveical Locabon: 35Lalema | se 5076 | 5662007 | tadd@wos.ong 58 | 2% 2 | 7esssoo
El Prado, NM 87529
ROSWELL CHARTER SCHOOLS Roosevelt County
Grade
Charter Scheol Princlpal Address Phone Fax E-Mail [ Studants Teachers Code
Seney Guterez Ml joq Andreis P.0. Box 1437 U7.9703 | 479707 | jandreis@sgmsus | 68 | 60 7 | 4085009
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SANTA FE CHARTER SCHOOLS Santa Fe County
” - T = Crads -
Charter Schaot | Principal Addrens Phone Fax E-Mall . Students | Toeachers | Cods
Academy for 74 A Van Nu Po Road i
Technologyandthe | Ruth LeBlanc arsaggy | 1806 | ubblac@ateschool | 515 | ggg 3# | 7149502
Classics Santa Fe, NM 87508 og ‘
1501 Cerillos Rd, Bldg 2
Charter School 37 Jody Drew 983-3337 | 466-7372 | jdrew@cs37.0rg 011 105 6 71495036
Santa Fe, NM 87501
P.0. Box 4068
Monte del Sol Charter . Physical Location: 4157 y y tgedicz@montedeis R
Sehool Tony Gerlicz Walking Rain R, 9425226 ] 982-5321 olorg 7-12 3s8 36 71495014
Santa Fe, NM 87502
T ise Trail 13-A San Marcos Loop
Elomentany Sendra Davis 4671700 | 4747862 | sdavis@sips.info K& | 450 M| 71495155
ementary Santa Fe, NM 87508
SILVER CITY CHARTER SCHOOLS San Miguel County
=i\ A LIS, AL o
Chitter Sehool Principst Address Phons Fat E-Mall . Students | Teschers | Code
P.0.Box 770
Aldo Leopold Charter michaelmay@aldole 1" 2317501
School Michael May Sitver City, NM 88062 538-2547 | 3884970 | opoldhs.org 912 95
SOCCORO CHARTER SCHOOLS Socorro County
H . B . Grade
Chirtar School Principat Address Phons Fax E-Mail . Studants | Teachers | Code
P.O. Box 1829 -
Cotionyood Vatley Karin Willams 8382026 | gas-2420 | Mwilems@ootienwo | g | 47y 13 | 74535003
8 Socorra, NM 87801 ¥.0r9
TAOS CHARTER SCHOOLS Taos County
Ghastar Sehool Principal Addrets Fhons Fix ] Gradsr | Stugens | Teachars | Code
P.O. Box 1708
mhunt@acstacs.or
Anansi Charter School Michelle Hunt Ei Prado, NM 87529 TI6-2256 | 776-5561 | g K-2 50 3 76555006
Interim Director
P.0O. Box 3009
Tacs Municipal Charter taoscharterschool
School Nancy O'Bryan Ranchos de Taos, NM 87571 7917222 ¢ 751-7546 | {@newmex.com K-8 201 13 76555005
point of contact
Vista Grande High
School P.C. Box 850
758-5100 malaitaman@gmail .
Greg Perry Taos, NM 87571 Ext 102 770-8681 | .com 9-10 79 New 76565012
Contact
WEST LAS VEGAS CHARTER SCHOOLS San Miguel County
Chartar Sehogl Princiest Kddress Phane Fax E-Mal Grades | Studsets ] Teschers | Cods
1300 Mineral Hill
storyranch@hotma
Rio Gallinas School Cindy McLeod Las Vegas, NM 87701 454-8687 | 4546055 | il.com 28 84 1 68475004




NEVADA DEPARTMENT of EDUCATION
Administrative and Fiscal Services

Charter School and University School Directory
Revised: March 20, 2008 (New FY2008 Charter/University Schools)

[1] CHARTER SCHOOLS

Academy for Career Education

School Year Begun Operation: 2002-2003 (FY2003)

Sponsor: Washoe County School District

Grades: 10-12

Administrator/Principal: Silvia Marin, smarin@acehighschool.org
Mailing Address: 2800 Vassar Street, Reno, NV 89502

Physical Address: same

Phone: 775.324.3900

FAX. 775.324.3901

Website: www.acehighschool.org

Andre Agassi College Preparatory Academy

School Year Begun Operation: 2001-2002 (FY2002)

Sponsor: Clark County School District

Grades: K-12 (K-10 for FY2007; K-11 for FY2008)
Administrators/Principals: Roy Parker, roy_parker@agassiprep.net (Grades K-8)
Caesar Mickens, Caesar_mickens@agassiprep.net (Grades 9-11)

Mailing Address: 1201 West Lake Mead Boulevard, Las Vegas NV 89106
Physical Address: same

Phone: 702.948.6000

FAX: 702.948.6002

Website: www.agassiprep.org

Bailey Charter Elementary School

School Year Begun Operation: 2001-2002 (FY2002)

Sponsor. Washoe County School District

Grades: K-6

Administrator/Principal: Carl Meibergen, cmeibergen@baileycharter.org
Mailing Address: 1090 Bresson Avenue, Reno NV 89502

Physical Address: same

Phone: 775.323.6767

FAX: 775.323.6799

Website: www.baileycharter.org

Carson Montessori School

School Year Begun Operation: 2004-2005 (FY2005)

Sponsor: Carson City School District

Grades: K-6

Administrator/Principal: Jessica Daniels, jdaniels@carson.k12.nv.us
Mailing Address: 2263 Mouton Drive, Carson City, NV 89706
Physical Address: same ‘

Phones: 775.887.9500 and 775.887.9501

FAX: 775.887.9502

Website: www.carsonmontessori.com

Coral Academy of Science

Stbmis<ion 9



School Year Begun Operation: 2000-2001 (FY2001)

Sponsor: Washoe County School District

Grades: K-12 (2-12 currently)

Administrator/Principal: Erdinc Acar, eacar@coratacademy.org
Mailing Address: 1350 East Ninth Street, Reno NV 89512
Physical Address: same

Phone: 775.323.2332 x114

FAX. 775.323.2366

Website: www.coralacademy.org

Coral Academy of Science-Las Vegas

School Year Begun Operation: 2007-2008 (FY2008)

Sponsor: State Board of Education

Grades: K-12 (5-9 currently)

Administrator/Principal: Feyzi Tandogan, ftandogan@coratacademylv.org
Mailing Address: 8185 Tamarus Street, Las Vegas NV 89123

Physical Address: same

Phone: 702.822.0179

FAX; 702.269.3258

Website: www.coralacademy.org

Explore Knowledge Academy

School Year Begun Operation: 2003-2004 (FY2004)

Sponsor: Clark County School District

Grades: K-12

Administrator/Principal: Dr. Joan Sando, jsando@ekacademy.org
Mailing Address: 1711 Whitney Mesa Drive, Henderson, NV 83014
Physical Addresses: 4801 South Sandhill Road and 4845 Community Lane, Las Vegas, NV
89121 :

Phone: 702.870.5032

FAX: 702.871.5032

Website: www.ekacademy.org

High Desert Montessori School
School Year Begun Operation: 2002-2003 (FY2003)

Sponsor. Washoe County School District

Grades: K-8 (K-7 currently)

Administrator/Principal: Carol Andrew, principal@hdmschool.org
Mailing Address: 2590 Orovada Street, Reno, NV 89512
Physical Address: same

Phone: 775.624.2800 x103

FAX:. 775.624.2801

Website: www.highdesertmontessori.org

| Can Do Anything Charter High School

School Year Begun Operation: 1998-1999 (FY1999)

Sponsor: Washoe County School District

Grades: 9-12

Administrator/Principal: Jill Wells, jwells@icdachs.com

Mailing Address: 1195 Corporate Boulevard, Suite C, Reno NV 89502
Physical Address. same

Phone: 775.857.1544

FAX: 775.857.6825

Website: www.icdachs.com




Innovations International Charter School of Nevada

School Year Begun Operation: 2006-2007 (FY2007)

Sponsor: Clark County School District

Grades: K-12

Administrator/Principal: Dr. Connie Malin, connie.malin@iicsn.org
Mailing Address: 1600 East Oakey Boulevard, Las Vegas, NV 89104
Physical Address: same

Phone: 702.216.4337

FAX:; 702.216.4353

Website: www.iicsn.org

Mariposa Academy of Language and Learning

School Year Begun Operation: 2002-2003 (FY2003)

Sponsor. Washoe County School District

Grades: K-6

Administrator/Principal; Maria Sandra Jimenez, mariposaacademy@sbcglobal.net
Mailing Address. 3875 Glen Street, Reno NV 89502

Physical Address: same

Phone: 775.826.4040

FAX: 775.826.4030

Website: www.mariposaacademy.net

Nevada Connections Academy (Distance Education)

School Year Begun Operation: 2007-2008 (FY2008)

Sponsor: State Board of Education

Grades: 4-12 (4-11 for FY2008)

Administrator/Principal: Dr. Carol White, cwhite@connectionsacademy.com
Mailing Address: 5690 Riggins Court, Suite B, Reno, NV 89502

Physical Address: same

Phone: 775.826.4200 x301

FAX: 775.826.4288

Website: www.connectionsacademy.com (Nevada link)

Nevada State High School
School Year Begun Operation: 2004-2005 (FY2005)

Sponsor; State Board of Education

Grades: 11-12

Administrator/Principal: Dr. John Hawk, hawkj1@earlycollegeNV.com
Mailing Address: 303 South Water Street; Suite 120, Henderson, NV 89015
Physical Address: 1125 Nevada State Drive, Henderson, NV 89002

Phone: 702.953.2600

Cell: 702.808.3373

FAX: 702.953.2608

Website: www.earlycollegeNV.com

Nevada Virtual Academy (Distance Education)

School Year Begun Operation: 2007-2008 (FY2008)

Sponsor: State Board of Education

Grades: 4-8

Administrator/Principal: Pamela Jonidis {Interim), pjonidis@nvvacademy.org
Mailing Address: 187 East Warm Spring Road, Suite C, Las Vegas, NV 89119
Physical Address: same

Phone: 702.407.1825 x7001




FAX: 702.407.5055
Cell: 702.232.7034
Website: www.k12.com/nv

Odyssey Charter Schools (Distance Education)

School Year Begun Operation: 1999-2000 (FY2000)

Sponsor: Clark County School District

Grades: K-12 '

Administrator/Principal: Dr. Craig Butz, cbutz@odysseyk12.org
Mailing Address: 2251 South Jones Boulevard, Las Vegas NV 89146
Physical Address: same

Phone: 702.257.0578 x5550

FAX. 702.259.7793

Website: www.odysseyk12.org

One Hundred Academy of Excellence

Schoo! Year Begun Operation: 2006-2007 (FY2007)

Sponsor: Clark County School District

Grades: K-12 (K-5 currently)

Administrator/Principal: Hugh Wallace, Hugh.wallace@imagineschools.com
Mailing Address: 2341 Comstock Drive, North Las Vegas NV 89032
Physical Address: same

Phone: 702.636.2551

FAX: 702.636.9475

Website: www.imagineschools.com

Rainbow Dreams Academy

School Year Begun Operation: 2007-2008 (FY2008)

Sponsor. Clark County School District

Grades: K-5 (K-2 First Year)

Administrator/Principal: Carol Threats, rdacharter@yahoo.com

Mailing Address: 950 West Lake Mead Boulevard, Las Vegas, Nevada 89106
Physical Address: same

Phone: 702.638.0222

FAX: 702.638.0220

Website: Unknown

- Rainshadow Community Charter High School
School Year Begun Operation: 2003-2004 (FY2004)

Sponsor. Washoe County School District

Grades: 9-12

Administrator/Principal: Jon Hussman, jphussman@rainshadowcchs.org
Mailing Address: 434 Washington Street, Reno NV 89503-4300
Physical Address: same

Phone: 775.322.5566

FAX: 775.322.5509

Website: www.rainshadowncchs.org

Sierra Crest Academy
School Year Begun Operation: 2004-2005 (FY2005)

Sponsor: Douglas County School District

Grades: K-12 (7-10 currently)

Administrator/Principal: David Brackett, David_Brackett@jhu.edu
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 2439, Minden NV 89423

4



Physical Address: 1701 Lucerne Street, Minden NV 89423
Phone: 775.783.9002

FAX: 775.552.9815

Website: www.sierracrest.org

Sierra Nevada Academy

School Year Begun Operation: 1989-2000 (FY2000)
Sponsor. Washoe County School District

Grades: K-8

Administrator/Principal: Kim Regan, kregan@clearwire.net
Mailing Address: 13880 Stead Boulevard, Reno NV 89506
Physical Address: same

Phone: 775.677.4500 x13

FAX: 775.677.4441

Website: www.snacsonline.org

Silver State High School (Distance Education)

School Year Begun Operation: 2004-2005 (FY2005)

Sponsor: State Board of Education

Grades: 9-12

Administrator/Principal: Steve Knight, sknight@sshs.org

Mailing Address: 3719 North Carson Street, Carson City NV 89706
Physical Address: same

Phone: 775.883.7900

FAX: 775.883.9130

Website: www.SSHS. org

WestCare Charter School

School Year Begun Operation: 2007-2008 (FY2008)

Sponsor: Clark County School District

Grades: 7-12

Executive Director/Principal: Wayne Tanaka, wtanaka@cox.net
Principal: Dr. Kyle Konold, kyle_konold@westcarecharterschool.com
Mailing Address: 4075 North Rancho, Las Vegas NV 89130
Physical Address: same

Phone: 702.396.2252

FAX: 702.396.0848

Website: www. westcarecharterschool.com

[2] UNIVERSITY SCHOOLS FOR THE PROFOUNDLY GIFTED PUPILS

The Davidson Academy of Nevada (Serving Profoundly Gifted Students)
School Year Begun Operation: 2006-2007 (FY2007)

School Year State Payments Began: 2007-2008 (FY2008)

Sponsor: None (University of Nevada, Reno / Washoe County School District)
Grades: Ungraded (non-traditional grades)

Administrator/Director: Colleen Harsin, charsin@DavidsonAcademy.UNR.edu
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 9119, Reno, NV 89507

Physical Address: 1670 North Virginia Street, 2nd Floor, Reno, NV 89503
Phone: 775.337.0171 x105

FAX:. 775.337.0141

Website: www.DavidsonAcademy.UNR edu
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WISCONSIN CHARTER SCHOOLS ASSOCIATION

b

Home WCSA Member Charter Schools
Wi Charter Schools
Find a School 21st Century Preparatory School Racine, W1, 53404
Overview Sheboygan, WI,
FAQ A2 Charter School 53081
Creating & Operating Academia de Lenguaje y Bellas Artes (ALBA) gl;l;la;kee, WL,
; Authorizing
Networking Academy for International Studies .']5?5?45{;’ ille, WI,
News & Events
About WCSA Academy of Learning ?3325; 9A"'Sr WI,
¢« Annual Conference . ]
| Resources Academy of Learning & Leadership ;’I;;r;gjkee » WI,
. Site M |
f e Wap Alliance Charter Elementary Neenah, WI, 54956 |
I ALPs Charter School (Accelerated Alternative Oshkosh , WI, l
! Contact Us Learning Program) 54904 '
|
i i Appleton, WI
| subscribe to News Appleton Central High School 54912 P |
| from WCSA | . :
. Email & Appleton Community Learning Center ?28 lelton » WL,
|
|
l
Appleton, WI,
| Appleton e School 54915
| Quick Links ' - Appleton Public Montessori School Appleton , W1,
| 54915 !
| Argyle Land Ethic Academy Argyle, WI, 53504 |
i Audubon Technology & Communication Center I;I;I;\rfsukee, Wi,
: Barron Area Montessori School Barron, WI, 54812 1
1
! . Rice Lake, WI,
i Barron County Alternatlvg School 54868
l
' Beaver Dam, WI,
‘ Beaver Dam Charter Schoo! 53916
; . Milwaukee, WI, ‘
1‘ Bruce Guadalupe Community $School £3204 !
! Business & Economics Academy of Milwaukee Milwaukee, WI ,
. 53208 |
| Stevens Point, WI
1 1 ’
| C.A.R.E. Charter School 54481 ;
? . Milwaukee, WI , !
| Capitol West Academy 53222 ‘
X . s . Kimberly, WI,
i Caring Opportunities for Recovery Education 54136 |

Submisgon h

http://www.wicharterschools.org/charter.schools.show.cfm 4/17/2008
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Carmen High School of Science and Technology

Castle Charter School
Central Charter School

Chance 11
Chippewa Valley Montessort Charter School

Classical School

Community Recovery Education and Service
(CRES)

Comprehensive Learning Center
Connects Learning Center

Coulee Montessori
Darrell L. Hines Academy

Denmark Empowerment Charter School
Dimensions of Learning Academy
Deowntown Montesseori Academy

EAA - Experimental Aircraft Association Charter
School

Eagleville Elementary Charter School
Ear!y Childhood Family Education Center

East High Charter School
Environmental Education Charter School

Face to Face with Online Learning Charter High
School

Fairview Charter School

Flambeau Career Charter School

Fox River Academy

Franklin Key to Learning Charter School

Fritsche Middle School

Genesis High School

Glidden Class ACT Charter Schools, LLC
Grantsburg Virtual School

http://www.wicharterschools.org/charter.schools.show.cfm
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Milwaukee, WI,
53215

New London , WI,
54961

Salem, WI, 53168

Appleton, WI,
54915

Eau Claire, WI,
54703

Appleton, WI,
54911

Janesville, WI,
53538

Richland Center,
WI, 53581

Cudahy, WI, 53110
La Crosse, WI,

54603
Milwaukee, WI ,
53224
Denmark , WI,
54208

Kenosha, WI, 53143
Milwaukee, WI,
53207

QOshkosh, WI, 54901

Eagle, WI, 53119

Columbus, WI,
53925

Oshkosh, WI, 54501
Oshkosh, WI, 54904

Sheboygan, WI,
53081

Milwaukee, WI,
53219

Tony, WI , 54563

Appleton , WI,
54914

Oshkosh, WI,

Milwaukee, WI,
53207

Milwaukee, WI,
53206

Glidden, WI, 54527

Grantsburg, WI,

4/17/2008
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Green Lake School
Harborside Academy
Harvey Philip Alternative Charter Schoot

Hayward Center for Individualized Learning
(HACIL)

Health Care Academy

Highland Community Schoal

Hmong American Peace Academy

Honey Creek Continuous Progress School
Humboldt Park K-8 School

IDEAL Charter School

Insight School of Wisconsin

iQ Academies at Wisconsin

Istand City Research Academy

Jacob Shapiro Brain Based Instruction
Laboratory School

James C. Wright Middle School
James Madison Academic Center
Joseph Lalich Charter School

Juneau County Charter School

Kaleidoscope Academy

Kenosha eSchooi

Kenosha School of Technology Enhanced
Curriculum

Kiel eSchoo!

Kosciuszko Middle/ Mantessort Schoo!
La Causa Charter School

Lacrossroads High School

http://www.wicharterschools.org/charter.schools.show.cfm
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54840

Green Lake, WI,
54941

Kenosha, WI, 53140

Waukesha, WI ,
53186

Hayward, WI,
54843

lLadysmith, WI,
54848

Milwaukee, WI,
53208

Milwaukee, WI,
53215

Milwaukee , WI,
53220

Milwaukee, WI ,
53207

Milwaukee, WI,
53221

Grantsburg, WI,
54840

Waukesha , WI,
53186

Cumberland,
Wisconsin, 54829

Oshkosh, WI, 54902

Madison, WI, 53713

Milwaukee, WI,
53218

Hurley, WI, 54534
Necedah, WI ,
54646

Appleton, WI,
54911

Kenosha, Wi, 53403
Kenosha, WI, 53140

Kiel, WI, 53042
Milwaukee, WI,

53204
Milwaukee , WI ,
53204
LaCrosse, WI,
54601

4/17/2008
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Lakeshore Alternative

Lakeview Montessori School
Language Instruction for Tommorrow (LIFT)

LEAPP Charter Schoot
LEARN Charter School

Lucas Charter High Schooi

Maasai Institute

Manitowoc County Comprehensive Charter
School

Marshfield Human Services Academy
Mauston Alternative Resource School

McKinley Academy

McKinley Charter School

McKinley Middle Charter Schoal
Meeme LEADS Charter School

Mercer Environmental Tourism Charter School
Merrill Elementary Healthy Living Charter School

Merrimac Community Charter School
Middleton Alternati‘ve Senior High
Milwaukee Academy of Chinese Lanquage
Milwaukee African American Immersion
Milwaukee College Preparatory Schoo!
Milwaukee Leadership Training Center
Milwaukee Renaissance Academy

Milwaukee School of Entreprenedrship

Monona Grove Alternative School
Monroe Virtual High School
Montessori Charter School

New Century School

New Horizons Charter School
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Kewaunee, WI,
54216

Sparta , WI, 54656
Clinton, WI, 53525

Deerfield, WI,
53531

Lena, WI, 54139

Menomonhie, WI,
54751

Milwaukee, WI,
53209

Manitowoc, WI,
54220

Marshfield, WI,
54449

Mauston, WI, 53948

Manitowoc, WI,
54220

Eau Clalfe, WI,
54703

Racine, WI, 53405
Newton, WI, 53063
Mercer, WI, 54547
Oshkosh, WI, 54901

Merrimac, WI,
53561

Middieton, WI,
53562

Milwaukee, WI,
53233

Milwaukee, WI,
53206

Milwaukee, WI,
53210

Milwaukee, WI,
53210

Milwaukee, WI,
53210

Milwaukee, WI,
53216

Mongcna, WI, 53716
Monroe, WI , 53566
Wausau, WI, 54403
Verona , WI, 53593
Wausau, WI, 54403
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New Horizons for Learning
Next Door Charter School
Northeast Wisconsin Montessori School

Northeast Wisconsin Online Charter School
Northwoods Community Elementary School
Northwoods Community Secondary School

Nuestro Mundo Community School
Oconto 4K Charter School

Oconto Falls Alternative Learning Site

Odyssey-Magellan Charter School

Osceola Careers Charter School
Osceola Charter PreSchool
Paideia Academy

Parkview Charter High School

Phantom Knight Schoo! of Opportunity
Portage Academy of Achievement

POWER - Partnership, Organizations, Work,
£nvironment, and Relationships Charter Scheol

Preparatory School for Global Leadership
Professional Learning Institute

Project Change Alternative Recovery School
Renaissance Academy

Renaissance School far the Arts

Ripon Exploration and Appiication Charter High
(REACH)

River Crossing Environmental Charter School

River Falls Montessori Charter Academy
Riverview Academy Charter School

Rock River Charter School

Roosevelt IDEA School

http://www.wicharterschools.org/charter.schools.show.cfm
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Shorewood, WI,
53211

Milwaukee, WI,
53210

Cleveland, W1,
53015

Green Bay , WI ,
54304

Harshaw, WI, 54529

Rhinelander, WI,
54501

Madison, WI, 53716
Oconto, WI, 54153

Oconto Falls, WI,
54154

Appleton, WI,
54915

Osceola, WI, 54020
Osceola, WI, 54020
Kenosha, WI, 53140

Janesville, WI,
53548

De Pere, WI, 54115
Portage, WI, 53901

Clinton, WI, 53525
Milwaukee, WI,

53212

Milwaukee, WI,
53221

Waukesha, WI ,
53186

River Falls, WI ,
54022

Appleton, WI,
54914
Ripon, WI, 54971

Portage, WI, 53901

River Falls, W1,
54022

Sheboygan, WI,
53081

Janesville, WI,
53548

Stevens Point, WI,
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Rural Virtual Academy
SAILS

School for Early Development and Achievement
{SEDA)

School for Urban Planning and Architecture

School of Enterprise Marketing

School of Science, Engineering & Technology
(SoSET)

School of Technology & Arts II (SOTA II)

Seeds of Health

Sparta Charter Pre-Ki‘ndergarten
Sparta High Point Schooi
Spruce Charter School

Success Academy
Synectics Charter School

TAGOS Academy
Tenor High School

TESLA Engineering Charter School

The Brompton School
The Fifth Dimension

The Milwaukee Academy of Science
The R.E.A.L. School

Time 4 Learning

Tosa School of Health Science and Technology
Transitionai Skills Center

Truth Institute for Leadership and Service
Valley New School

Veritas High School

Vernon County Better Futures High School
Verona Area Core Knowledge Charter School

http://www.wicharterschools.org/charter.schools.show.cfm
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54467
Medford, WI, 54451
Sparta, W1, 54656

Milwaukee, WI,
53233

Milwaukee, WI,
53215

New London, WI,
54961

Blair, WI, 54616
LaCrosse, WI,
54601

Milwaukee, WI,
53215

Sparta, WI, 54656
Sparta, WI, 54656
Lena, WI, 54139

Sheboygan, WI,
53081

Beloit, WI, 53511

Janesville, WI,
53548

Milwaukee, WI,
53202

Appleton, WI,
54915

Kensoha, WI, 53142
Marshall, WI, 53559

Milwaukee, WI,
53233

Racine, WI, 53402

Greendale, WI ,
53129

Wauwatosa, WI,
53213

Glenwood City, WI,
54013

Milwaukee, WI,
53218

Appleton, WI,
54911

Milwaukee, WI,
53215

Virogua, WI , 54665
Verona, WI, 53593
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Waukesha Academy of Health Professions

Waukesha Engineering Preparatory Academy

Waupaca County Charter School
Waupun Alternative High School
Woestside Academy 1

Whitetail Academy

Whittier Elementary School
Wildlands Research Charter School

Wings Academy
Wisconsin Career Academy

Wisconsin Connections Academy
Wisconsin Virtual Academy

Woodlands School

Young Leaders Academy

© WCSA | Contact Us | Privacy Policy
Web Presence by www, vividmedia.com
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Hayward, WI,
54843

Waukesha, WI,
53186

Waukesha, WI,
53186

Wevauwega, WI ,
54683

Waupun, WI, 53963

Milwaukee, WI,
53208

Tony, WI, 54563

Milwaukee, WI,
53207

Augusta, WI, 54722

Milwaukee, WI,
53215

Milwaukee, WI,
53207

Appleton, WI,
54912

Fredonia, WI, 53021

Milwaukee, WI,
53208

Milwaukee, WI,
53205
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BOSTON CHARTER SCHOOLS
Champions of School Achievement

Over recent years, Bostonians have seen many different champions emerge. The Red Sox finally
broke the curse and won two World Series in four years. The New England Patriots have become
one of the most dominant football teams in history, winning three Superbowls, And, the Boston
Celtics are primed to have rousing success in the NBA playoffs.

While these champions are praised and talked about repeatedly in the media, one champion in
Beantown has gone largely unnoticed - charter schools. Charters have been an important part of
education reform in Boston and across the state, offering choice and opportunity for children,
especially in low-income areas, and prompting reforms in conventional district schools.

The recent study by the Boston Foundation lauded the accomplishments of pilot schools in the
city. However, Boston's charter schools are making huge strides in raising student achievement
scores 1o unprecedented levels, and many are doing better than pilot schools. The Boston media
has focused on the success of pilot schools as a way for entrenched interests to downplay and
block parents' access to the often more successful charter schools. And while the pilot schools
have been recognized, it's important to highlight Boston's true winners of education achievement
and improvement - charter schools.

KEY FINDINGS:

@ Charter school students in Boston have made impressive academic gains and surpass
the scores of students in pilot schools and conventional public schools on the
Massachusetts Comprehensive Assessment System (MCAS). In eighth grade math
alone, charter school students outperformed their district peers by as much as 50
percentage points.

® In 2007, there were 5,649 applications for 1,249 spots in Boston charter schools. While
the demand for quality school options is high, a repressive ¢ap on the number of
charter schools in Boston has recently been met, offering no hope to students and
parents wanting a better choice.

® As Massachusetts embarks on its | 5th year as a model for education reform, lawmakers
and educators are at a crossroads. Will they continue to expand educational excellence
in the Bay State through charter schools by eliminating the enrollment cap and impact
aid, or retreat from offering this important choice for families?

Sowbmucsmn |
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Student Engagement Found to

Rise as Class Size Falls

By Debra Viadero

New York

A new British study quantifies and
confirms what many teachers have long
believed: Students tend to be “off task”
more often when they are in larger
classes.

The report, by researchers from the

&Ehprinter-Friendty
Email Article
] Reprints

@Comments

B3 BOOKMARK ¢ 53 Y. |

University of London Institute of Education, was one of
several studies on the educational effects of reducing class
sizes that were presented here Monday on the first day of
the annual meeting of the Washington-based American

Educational Research Association. The March 24-28 event is
expected to draw more than 15,000 education scholars from
around the world before it ends on Friday.

Studies on class size have long suggested that elementary

school pupils tend to learn more in classes of 20 students or
fewer. The papers presented yesterday, which were based on

studies conducted in the United States and Hong Kong, as
well as in the United Kingdom, extend and deepen the

discussion on that topic by looking more closely at what goes

on inside smaller and larger classes.

In his study of British classrooms, for instance, researcher
Peter Blatchford found that both elementary and secondary

students benefit from smaller classes and that the benefits at

the secondary level are particularly strong for the

lowest-achieving students. That study involved 686 students
in 27 primary schools and 22 secondary schools in the United

Kingdom.

Benefits in Britain

The students were closely observed by teams of researchers
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of 10-second intervals. The researchers found that adding
five students to a class decreases the odds of students being
on task by nearly a guarter. In fact, the study found that
low-attaining students were nearly twice as likely to be
disengaged in classes of 30 students as they were in classes
of 15.

“As class size increases, the amount of teaching also
increases,” Mr. Blatchford, a professor of psychology and
education, added. “But that's explained by more whole-class
teaching.” Teachers are not necessarily capitalizing on the
smaller settings to engage more students in collaborative
projects—a finding that that some other studies have
echoed.

In secondary classrooms with low-achieving students,
though, teachers are also spending more of their time
dealing with pupils’ off-task behaviors, Mr. Blatchford said.

Contrary to some class-size studies conducted in the United
States, the British researchers also found no “threshold
effect” in their study. In other words, classes did not have to
be reduced to 15 or 20 students before the behavioral
benefits started to kick in,

Reducing class size at any end of the class-size spectrum
seemed to help.

Hong Kong Results Differ

A second study presented at the conference, though,
suggested that cultural differences can also play a role in the
way that class-size differences affect learning. Maurice
Galton, an education professor from the University of
Cambridge in Britain, has been studying the effects of an
initiative to phase in reductions in primary-level class sizes
over several years in Hong Kong, which, like other Asian
countries, is noted for having larger classes than is typically
the case in many Western nations.

In that 7,000-student study, though, the reductions
appeared to have no effect on the level of student
engagement—mostly because students are already on task
much of the time, according to Mr. Galton. He also found
that teachers’ one-to-one interactions with students were
just as frequent in classes of 20-to-25 students as they were
in classes of 32-to-37 students.

Mr. Galton said that is because Chinese teachers typically
make an effort to interact with each individual student,
keeping track by ticking off the names on the class roster as
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Teachers did spend more time talking with individual

students in smaller classes, though, and their students were
more likely to ask for help outside of class. Teachers in larger
classes also relied more on textbooks for all of their
instruction, the study found.

“We need to be able to collect data in different cultural
contexts,” Mr. Galton said, “so we can tease out those things
that are common and those things that are peculiar to that
culture.”

The U.S. study, which was conducted by researchers from
the University of Wisconsin-Madison, also attempts to focus
on what goes on inside classrooms, rather than rely on
measuring only outcomes like student achievement.

The study tracks schooling in nine Wisconsin schools taking
part in that state’s Student Guarantee in Education, or
SAGE, program, an initiative aimed at reducing the
student-teacher ratio to 15-to-1 in kindergarten to 3rd grade
classrooms serving economically disadvantaged students.
Those findings are not due to be released by the state
education department, though, unti! this summer.
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22| rilayman wrote:

€
How can this be news. Hasn't anyane ever heard of Roger Barker's classic study,
published in 19647
Barker R G & Gump P V Big school, small school: high school slze and student
behavlor, Stanford. CA: Stanford University Press, 1964
http:/ /www.garfleld.library.upenn.edu/classics1988/A1988P780500001.ps
3/26/2008 9:00 AM EDT on EdWeek
Recommend {3) Report Abuse
L“%.‘: Attitutor wrote:
Yes, It's news because in order for enough pecple to get the message it has to be
repeated over and over again until it becomes common sense,
Here are two good meta-anayses of the issue from the Northwest Regional
Educational Laboratory from 1996 and 2001:
http:/ /www.nwrel.org/scpd/sirs/10/c020.html
http:/ /www3.scasd.org/small_schools/nisc.pdf
It's fundamental to science that the issue is studied extensively and from different
angles to ensure that the initial picture from 1966 was not a one-off accident of
the politics of the time or the bias of the authors.
3/26/2008 1:22 PM EDT on EdWeek
Recommend Report Abuse
""g"" richardginn wrote:
well rilayman, a new study could go in a different route or come up with some
findings.
New studies never hurt,
3/26/2008 1:59 PM EDT on EdWeek
Recommend (1) Report Abuse
Submit
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Woe encourage lively debate, but please, no profanity or personal attacks. By «« 1ting,
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Intercepts

Alistening.post.-menitering.education and teachers’ unions.

NEA CONVENTION CONCLUDES

Because of all the presidential candidates, the NEA Representative Assembly ended much later than it has in recent years - $:34 p.m., if
you had that in your affice pool. [l have some video of Barack Obama, Mike Huckabee and Joseph Biden once | can edit it all together.

e resisted the great temptation to write about the candidates’ appearances and speeches as they occurred, but | feel there's a lot to
be satd that you're not getting from the newspaper coverage. A prime wphe is the Philadeiphia inquirer's story about Barack
Obama supporting merit pay.

This was no Sister Souljah moment, Sen. Obama - wheo probably does support performance pay - merely misunderstood the fnner
warkings of the union he was addressing.

"1 commend the work you've done in Minnesota with the geverneor there to craft an innovative pay system that not only values your
performance in the classroom, but the performance of your students as well,” he said. "You helped craft it and you and your students
benefit fromit.”

He was referring to Q-Comp, an alternative pay plan of Gov. Pawlenty's that was put together with plenty of input from Education
Minnesota, NEA's and AFT's state affilfate. What Sen, Obama probably didn't know is: a) Education Minnesota’s participation in §-Comp

. has not been, shall we say, universally embraced within NEA and its other state affiliates; and b} it can't really be considered the pride
and joy of Education Minnesota either.

in short, by citing Minnesota, Obama had no reason to believe his statements on alternative pay would be all that controversial'with his
audience, Nevertheless, there was some murrnuring in the halt.

If he miscalculated, he would not be the first palitician at the NEA convention to do so, Back in 1999, Hillary Clinton was greeted with a
moment of silence when she expressed her great admiration for charter schools. But at the time, NEA had its own Charter School
Initiative, and she cited it in her speech. Of course, the Charter School Initiative soon disappeared, and even if Q-Comp does not, there
is virtually na chance that NEA desires it as a national modet.

| doubt Obama will have to back away from his statement, the way John Kerry had to do in 2004, because he spoke only of discussing
such a system with NEA, But I strongly suspect in the future this particular plank {n his education platform will see {ts way out of the
woodshed only at more opportune Hmes.

I'll have a iot mare on the candidates in Monday's rigué. | would like to mention that | think | was wrong about Mike Huckabee's
appearance here. After hearing him speak, | think he did himself some goed, striking just the right humsrous tone and avoiding the
pitfalls,

Posted by Mike Antonucei on Thursday, July €5, 2007 at 19:43 Permalink g

. Ain't it a shame that candidates attend these frivolous NEA pow-wow's, full of fresh (reformist}

Sbynission F-
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Reasons to Support Charter School Funding

Public Charter schools are successfully serving a disparate group of grateful
students and parents, despite the low level of funding received from the
state.

There are approximately 400 students statewide (not including students of
the new Virtual Learning Academy Charter School).

These schools were approved by the state and should be supported by the
state at a monetary level sufficient to provide for their continued existence.

This bill only provides for one more year of funding and is passed with the
understanding that the charter school law will be rewritten in an effort to
ameliorate some of the problems the existing charter schools face, and in
anticipation of the success of SB 539. There is an extension of the
moratorium on any new charter schools till this can be accomplished. (2010)

The House Education Committee determined that the education policy of
charter schools is sound, and indicated as such in a bipartisan vote of 12-2.

Passing from Education on to the 2" House committee, Finance, the bill
again received strong bipartisan support with a 16-8 OTP from the full
Finance Committee in order to continue on to the Senate. The bill passed to
the Senate, with a House vote 204-118

Our constituents support charter schools in great numbers and wish to see
them continue to operate, and thrive.

The educational opportunities charters provide public school students can
greatly enrich and strengthen all public schools. Collaboration between
public charter schools and more traditional public schools can allow for all
public schools to have opportunities to be more innovative.

SUbMISS TN I



Hello, my name is Nathan Tong, and I attend Cocheco Arts and Technology Academy. 1
am 14 and am part of the freshmen class of about fifteen students.

My educational career has never been a simple one. I started with homeschooling, and
did that for a couple years before getting put into an underfunded public school amidst an
educational crisis in California. Since then, I’'ve switched back and forth again, although I've
also been partial to charter schools. Afier finishing 8 grade at Oyster River Middle School,
CATA seemed like the perfect fit for me.

When I first went into to shadow at CATA, I was amazed by how relaxed everyone was,
except when it came to the actual school work. The teachers and students actually acknowledged
that you are a person, not just another kid who came to school because they have to. 1 must say,
one of the things that really appealed to me was the fact that everyone who came to CATA came
because they wanted to, not because they had to. If they didn’t really care about their education,

they would have just gone to their regular school.

Going to CATA has been one of my better educational experiences. The smaller setting
of the school lets students and teachers interact on a more personal level, so that the teacher
understands the student’s needs as an individual, and when I say that, it’s not like I’m just saying
that. Other schools have said the same, but my experience while in those school has shown me
otherwise. The teachers have a much better knowledge of the student body. To me, that alone
was one of the most attractive things at CATA.

Another trait that I like about CATA is that you determine the level of your involvement
in the school. If you want to do something or you want to see a change, all it takes is self
motivation to get things moving in the direction you want them to go. Often enough, you will
find yourself in the support of many of the teachers, although they will push you to excel with

your own motivation and be the change you want to see.

During the current semester, I've been working on my independent study, another
interesting aspect at CATA. As CATA has been oriented towards the arts, the goal of my
independent study has been to bring more technological resources into the school. Being a
technology student, this has been one of the best things for me, because as part of the
independent study I'll be getting hands-on experience. I’ll be interning with the person who

Subnission M



originally donated the computers to the school, and through this, I’'ll gain valuable experience. In
addition, I’ll be able to apply the skills I’ll be learning to the school, as well as possibly bringing
in more resources. One of the things I enjoy about working on my independent study is that the
school supports me, and I have a chance to give back to the school. CATA gives students

freedom to pursue their interests and have it be related to their education.

Overall, Cocheco Arts and Technology Academy is as successful educational experience
as it is because everyone involved understands everyone else: teachers, students, and other
individuals associated with the school. Without that sense of understanding, CATA would be
just like any other high school, but because of it, it has a positive learning environment that is
supportive of all who attend: the musicians, the artists, and the assorted technology student such
as myself. CATA is not just a place to come and learn about the history of the world, or how
atoms interact, but a place where students can come and be themselves, something that is not

commonplace in our educational system.



tars ChristiansenL

I
From: nhhra@yahoogroups.com on behalf of Johnson, Rogers [Rogers.Johnson@ed.gov]
Sant: Woednesday, April 16, 2008 11:42 AM
To: nhhra@yahoogroups.com
Subject: {nhhra) Charter Schools
Foliow Up Flag: Fotlow up
Flag Status: Flagged
Categories: Red Category

The Florida House has passed a bill mandating that charter schools share in the construction aid going to local
communities. '

Panel: Public schools must share money with charters

By DWAYNE ROBINSON and LAURA GREEN <mailto:dwayne_robinson{@pbpost.com>

Palm Beach Post Staff Writers

Wednesday, April 16, 2008

TALLAHASSEE — School districts would be forced to share construction money with charter schools under a
bill approved Tuesday by a legislative panel.

For years, charter school operators have lobbied for a portion of the property tax doilars that go to construction,
remodeling or maintenance of regular county schools. Two years ago, the legislature allowed local school
boards to share.the money with charter schools. The new legislation (HB 1259), which passed the House
Budget and Policy Council, would mandate it.

Finding a building is often a major hurdle for charter school operators. Schools have opened in strip malls,
converted bowling atleys and old office buildings.

The council's vote is seen as a tentative victory for charter schools, which are often at odds with their school
districts.

“At this stage of the game, school districts across the state are uniformly opposed to it," said Vern Pickup-
Crawford, a lobbyist for Palm Beach, St. Lucie and Martin county schools. Districts already forfeit most of the
per-pupil allotment when a student transfers to a charter school.

The state's charter schools, which make up less 10 percent of all schools, already receive about $55 million -
about a third of the total construction funding the state provides for all 67 school districts, Pickup-Crawford
said.

School districts are able to charge for construction spending an additional $2 for every $1,000 in taxable value
above its normal tax rate that pays for the operation of its schools.

Supporters of the charter school movement sold the schools as a way to take some pressure off crowding at
district schools and allow school boards to catch up on construction needs, Pickup-Crawford said. That can't

happen if they have to share construction money with charter schoots; he spid.
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The measure says school districts would share an "equitable" portion of the tax money. But districts would have
discretion to decide how much that would be.

Charter schools are publicly financed but privately run. They are exempt from many mandates applied to
regular public schools. District administrators worry that charters would not have to subscribe to many
construction requirements school districts face.

The bill also would permit students to transfer to a different school district to attend a charter for practically any
reason, including his or her proximity to the school.

Rogers J. Johnson

Director, Intergovernmental Affairs
{J.S. Department of Education
400 Maryland Avenue, SW.
Washington, DC 20202

{202) 401-0026
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NEWSLETTER UPDATE #45
APRIL 17, 2008
Policy makers and opinion leaders should pay close attention....

LEGISLATION UPDATE

CHARTER SCHOOL UPDATE

QUR "WHY TO FUND CHARTER SCHOOLS" REPORTS

THE NORTH COUNTRY CHARTER SCHOQL—A LIFELINE FOR IT'S
STUDENTS

LEGISLATION UPDATE & HB 1642

House Bill 1642 will have its second hearing on Tuesday, April
22nd, 8:30 a.m., State House, Concord. This bill provides one
year of sustainable funding for the independent chartered
schools--a bridge until the state's new funding system begins in
2009-2010. Quite a few one-year, emergency spending bills
have been voted before by Senators who will vote on this one-
year bill. With so much invested, how can we not support these
schools when a one-year solution is available? -

Read our whole story—with Senator Estabrook’s objections and
Representative Wevyler’s proposal.

CHARTER SCHOOL UPDATE

Public interest and demand for New Hampshire's chartered public
schools keeps increasing, as is the case nationwide. Most schools
plan to expand somewhat next year, according to space capacity.
Schools are authorized-with 5-year plans that include gradual
growth. Most schools are accepting applications now for next
year and are holding open houses and special events. To connect
with each school’s website, go to complete listing.

Swbmisernn o



' 'The Academy for Equine Sciences, Rochester, plans to :
expand by 15 students, mostly in grades 9 and 10. This school is .
career-specialized in the state’s largest agricultural industry— .
horses. Students have rigorous math and sciences and weekly
clinical rounds with an equine surgeon. One open house is
planned for May 31st--the day of the school's auction--in
Rochester.

Strong Foundations, elementary school, Pembroke, plans to
expand from 52 to 70 students. Founded by reading and special
education teachers, this school's mission is early literacy--
preventing failure and frustration. Teachers use well-researched
methods for teaching reading. Strong Foundations opened this
September and already they see amazing results in-reading.

The Academy for Science and Design, New Hampshire’s first
science-specialized-sehool, opened this September in Merrimack.
ASD plans to increase from 32 to 50-60 students, grades 7, 8,
and 9. This scheel-sets a new and uniquely high standard for
science and mathematics teaching, requiring atgebra, physics,
and bio-chemistry in grade 7. The school has a fabulous
enrichment program. Over 100 people attended each of the first
open houses (seg article).

North Country Charter School, the state’s first drop-out
recovery school, is on target to graduate 30 students {50% of
enrollment) and has weekly calls about openings from parents
and school districts (see_article).

Seacoast Charter School, elementary, in Kingston, plans to
expand to 106 students next year, adding two classrooms. This
school specializes in the arts and teaching through the arts.

CSI has just opened in Merrimack Valley, with students who
had dropped out or were ciose to dropping out of high school.
The school is thriving.

Cocheco Arts and Technology (CATA), Barrington, is also
thriving. This is New Hampshire's first high school for performing
arts and arts-related technology. Students from CATA have won
talent competitions, have acted in professicnal theatre
productions, have been recognized for musical compositions, and
obtained significant college scholarships.

Franklin Career Academy is accepting applications and
recently received additional funding from the Governor.

Surry Village Charter School, Surry, elementary, is also
accepting applications now. This is a true village school with high
academic standards. 2



For students attending, these schools are described as either a
lifeline or a schoot that finally is a match for the students. All
chartered public schools use a lottery if more students apply
than there are spaces available.

For a complete listing of schools and links to websites (where
you can find application materials and contact lnformatron) click
here.

OUR “"WHY FUND CHARTER SCHOOL"” REPORTS

Charter schools should be allowed funds for rent and lease costs
if public space is not available. That seems to be the state
funding policy. In New Hampshire’s state budget, 280 state
programs receive $29,000,000.00 for various rent and lease
costs. Are the authorized charter schools the only state programs

teft out? Read: 3 Reasons to Fund Charter Schogl Rent and Lease

Costs (April 2008).

Current state aid is calculated and distributed-to-districts
according to a formula that provides more state aid to districts
which, essentially, are poor. But charter schoels are not
“districts” so even though they are the poorest-of public schoois
with no iocal funding guaranteed, this allowable additionat aid is
not provided.

Additional reasons to provide a larger portion of state aid funding
to charter schools are found in 20 Reasons to Fund Charter
Schools (March 2008).

THE NORTH COUNTRY CHARTER SCHOOL—A LIFELINE FOR
ITS STUDENTS

With locations in Littleton and Lancaster, the North Country
Charter Academy literally makes a difference in the lives of
young people who have dropped out, or are-en-the vergea of
dropping out, of public high schools. These students are at risk of

-not completing high school and all of life’s disadvantages that T

result from this decision. Read more about this fantastic New

We welcome questions and suggestions. So contact us. Know someone who might
like our newsletter? Let us know.

Telephone: 603.224.0366 Fax: 603.224.8386
-~ Postal Address: Concord, NH 03301 Email: susan@nhschooireform.org

t




THE TELEGRAPH | SATURDAY, APRIL 19, 2008

LErTers To THE EDITOR

Senate should approve
charter school measure

1 urge all state senators to support
House Bill 1642, providing sustainable
funding to public charter schools for
next year, which is being heard by the
Senate Education Committee on Tues-
day, April 22.

I see the financial benefit — as well
as the benefit to the child - of offering
a public charter school option for stu-
dents who could be successful in envi-
ronments that range from focusing on
literacy at the elementary school level
to a school that focuses on a rigorous
science and engineering curriculum
for middle and high school students.

Public charter schools are not in
competition with our school districts;.
they are public school options open to
any child in the Granite State who
might flourish in another smaller envi-
ronment, perhaps with a special focus.

Having worked at a Nashua higher ed-
ucation institution for five years, I saw
the opening of Mexrimack’s Academy
for Science and Design as a benefit to
the Greater Nashua region in its special
focus and as a special place for students
whose interest in science and technology
goes beyond what may be available at
their own middle or high school.

Our senators must be made aware of
the financial and educational benefits of
New Hampshire's charter schools,
which ultimately save taxpayers money.

It is imperative that the Legislature
supports the one-year bridge funding
for next year for charter public
schools so that they may continue to
offer options to all of our children.

Please urge our state senators to
vote “yes” on House Bill 1642.

Annette Kurman
Chester -
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Senate Education Committee
EXECUTIVE SESSION

Bill # [LHZ— N

Hearing date: 4{_ 6. 2008 + Y. ZZA7Moom= SH 103

Executive session date: . 22 . 7008
Motion of: J] F' VOTE: (ﬂ"&
JTp OTP fen. #1405 Jalled .

Made by  Estabrook [] @ Seconded Estabrook ]

Senator:  Foster ] by Senator: Foster [] é
Fuller E/ Fuller []
Bragdon [] Bragdon L]
Letourneau [] Letourneau E/
Kelly Ll Kelly ]

Committee Member ' Present Vote Reported out by

(Y/N)

Senator Estabrook, Chairman \/

Senator Foster, Vice-Chair S

Senator Fuller /

Senator R. Bragdon / \/

Senator Letourneau v

Senator Kelly \/

* Amendments: Q@Vldf{'ﬂy“g%maz:’ I(’{L{ 0s

NOTES:
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
SENATE

REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE

Date: April 22, 2008

THE COMMITTEE ON Education
to which was referred House Bill 1642-FN
AN ACT (New Title) providing additional funding for charter
schools for the 2009 fiscal year.
Having considered the same, the committee recommends that the Bill:

OUGHT TO PASS

BY A VOTE OF: 6-0

AMENDMENT # s

Senator Peter E. Bragdon
For the Committee

Amanda Jurta 271-1403
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New Hampshire General Court - Bill Status System

DOCket Of HB1 642 Docket Abbreviations

Bill Title: (New Title) providing additional funding for charter scheools for the 2009 fiscal year.

Official Docket of HB1642:

Date Body Description

01/25/2008 H Rules Committee Approved: Introduced 1/23/2008 and Referred to
Education; H) 13, PG.724

01/30/2008 H Suspend Rules for Reporting Deadline to 2/21/08 (Reps Wallner &
Whalley): MA VV; H] 14, PG.726

01/30/2008 H Public Hearing: 2/7/2008 1:00 PM LOB 207

02/14/2008 H Executive Session: 2/19/2008 10:00 AM LOB 207 (Continued 2/20/08
10:00 AM LOB 207 if needed)

02/20/2008 H Committee Report: Ought to Pass with Amendment #0672h NT for Mar 5
Reg (vote 12-2); HC 18, PG.979

02/20/2008 H Proposed Committee Amendment #0672h (New Title); HC 17, PG.940

03/05/2008 H Amendment #0672h (New Title) Adopted, VV; HJ 22, PG.1292-1253

03/05/2008 H Ought to Pass with Amendment #0672h NT: MA DIV 198-91; H) 22,
PG.1292-1293

03/05/2008 H Referred to Finance; HJ 22, PG.1293

03/06/2008 H Division IT Work Session: 3/10/2008 9:15 AM LOB 210-211

03/06/2008 H Executive Session: 3/13/2008 9:30 AM LOB 210-211

03/13/2008 H Committee Report: Ought to Pass for Mar 18 Reg (vote 16-8); HC 21,
PG.1092

03/18/2008 H Floor Amendment #1030h (Rep Weyler) Adopted, VV; HJ 26, PG.1431-
1432

03/18/2008 H QOught to Pass with Amendment #1030h: MA DIV 204-118; HJ 26,
PG.1431-1432

03/27/2008 ) Introduced and Referred to Education; $3 11, Pg.362

04/08/2008 S Hearing; === RECESSED === April 15, 2008, Room 103, State House,
8:45 a.m.; SC15

04/15/2008 S Hearing; === CANCELLED === RECONVENE === April 22, 2008, Room
103, State House, 8:30 a.m.

04/17/2008 S Hearing; = TIME CHANGE = RECONVENE = April 22, 2008, Room 103,
State House, 8:45 a.m.; SC16

04/23/2008 S Committee Report; Ought to Pass [05/01/08]; SC17

05/01/2008 S Qught to Pass, MA, VV; Refer to Finance [Rule 26]; 83 15, Pg.442

05/13/2008 S Committee Report; Qught to Pass with Amendment{1852} [05/15/08];
SC19A, Pg.15

05/15/2008 S Sen. Burling Moved Laid On Table RC 10Y-14N, MF; S] 18, Pg.623-624

05/15/2008 S Committee Amendment{1852} RC 15Y-9N, AA; SJ 18, Pg.624

05/15/2008 S QOught to Pass with Amendment{1852} RC 13Y-11N, MA; OT3rdg; §J 18,
Pg.624

05/15/2008 S Passed by Third Reading Resolution

hitp://www.gencourt.state.nh.us/bill_status/bill _docket.aspx?lsr=2892&sy=2008&sortopti... 6/25/2008
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05/21/2008

05/21/2008

05/21/2008

05/21/2008
05/22/2008

05/27/2008

05/28/2008

05/30/2008

06/04/2008
06/04/2008
06/04/2008
06/05/2008

»w I I un

Page 2 of 2

House Non-Concurs and Requests Comm of Conf {(Reps Rous & M.Smith):
MA VV; H] 43, PG.2108

Speaker Appoints: Reps Casey, B.Shaw, Stiles, and Weyler; H] 43,
PG.2108

Sen. Estabrook Accede to House Request For Committee of Conference,
MA, VV

President Appoints: Senators Foster, Burling and Odell

Committee of Caonference Meeting: 5/27/2008 1:00 PM LOB 207
==RECESSED==

==RECONVENE== Committee of Conference Meeting: 5/28/2008 11:00
AM LOB 207 ==RECESSED==

==RECONVENE== Committee of Conference Meeting: 5/29/2008 10:00
AM LOB 207

Conference Committee Report; Senate Amendment + New Amendment
(2098), Filed

Conference Committee Report{2098}; RC 18Y-5N, Adopted
Conference Committee Report #2098 Adopted, VV
Enrolled

Enrolled

NH Senate
New Hampshire General Court Information Systems

Contact Us

107 North Main Street - State House Room 31, Concord NH 03301

http://www.gencourt.state.nh.us/bill_status/bill_docket.aspx?1sr=2892&sy=2008&sortopti...

6/25/2008
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COMMITTEE REPORT FILE INVENTORY
\/___ ORIGINAL REFERRAL RE-REFERRAL

HB loHZ-FN

1. THIS INVENTORY IS TO BE SIGNED AND DATED BY THE COMMITTEE SECRETARY AND PLACED
INSIDE THE FOLDER AS THE FIRST ITEM IN THE COMMITTEE FILE.
2. PLACE ALL DOCUMENTS IN THE FOLDER FOLLOWING THE INVENTORY IN THE ORDER LISTED.
3. THE DOCUMENTS WHICH HAVE AN “X” BESIDE THEM ARE CONFIRMED AS BEING IN THE FOLDER.
4. THE COMPLETED FILE IS THEN DELIVERED TO THE CALENDAR CLERK. %ear "
N

AL DOCKET (Submit only the latest docket found in Bill Status) ONer Z—

/. COMMITTEE REPORT e.<sions
l CALENDAR NOTICE on which you have taken attendance (Z)

__3[_ HEARING REPORT (written summary of hearing testimony)

/. HEARING TRANSCRIPT (verbatim transcript of hearing)
List attachments (testimony and submissions which are part of the
transcript) by number [1 thru 4 or 1, 2, 3, 4] here: r
| Hvu S fam

_\/ SIGN-UP SHEET (LD

ALL AMENDMENTS (passed or not) CONSIDERED BY COMMITTEE:

4.15.06
U.72.0¢

- AMENDMENT # |UHQc - AMENDMENT #
- AMENDMENT # - AMENDMENT #
ALL AVAILABLE VERSIONS OF THE BILL:
/. AS INTRODUCED ./ AS AMENDED BY THE HOUSE
./ FINAL VERSION AS AMENDED BY THE SENATE

v/ PREPARED TESTIMONY AND OTHER SUBMISSIONS (Which are not
part of the transcript)
List by letter [ a thru g or a, b, ¢, d] here: _ /4 —-H/L{F{/( O

v/ EXECUTIVE SESSION REPORT

\/ OTHER (Anything else deemed important but not listed above, such as
amended fiscal notes):

Amunded on 0lJo3)0%

IF YOU HAVE A RE-REFERRED BILL, YOU ARE GOING TO MAKE UP A DUPLICATE FILE FOLDER

DATE DELIVERED TO SENATE CLERK [Q_Z@ZQQK

COMMITTEE SEQRETARY
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